
AGENDA 
 

ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Tuesday, January 21, 2025 ‐ 5:30 PM 

City Hall Council Chambers ‐ 385 S. Goliad St., Rockwall, TX 75087 

  

I. Call Public Meeting to Order 
 

II. Executive Session 

 The City of Rockwall City Council will  recess  into executive  session  to discuss  the  following matter as 
authorized by chapter 551 of the Texas government code: 

 

 1. Discussion  regarding  possible  terms  of  agreement  of  possible  grant  for  improvements  to 
municipal park, pursuant to Section 551.071 (Attorney consultation). 

 

 2. Discussion regarding (re)appointments to city regulatory boards and commissions, pursuant 
to §551.074 (Personnel Matters). 

 

III. Adjourn Executive Session 
 

IV. Reconvene Public Meeting (6:00 P.M.) 
 

V. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance ‐ Councilmember Thomas 
 

VI. Proclamations / Awards / Recognitions 
 

 1. Food For Kids Day (Kiwanis) Proclamation 
 

VII. Appointment Items 
 

 1. Appointment with Planning & Zoning Commission representative to discuss and answer any 
questions regarding planning‐related cases on the agenda. 

 

VIII. Open Forum 

 This is a time for anyone to address the Council and public on any topic not already listed on the agenda 
or set for a public hearing. To speak during this time, please turn in a (yellow) "Request to Address City 
Council" form to the City Secretary either before the meeting or as you approach the podium. Per Council 
policy, public comments should be limited to three (3) minutes out of respect for others' time. On topics 
raised during Open Forum, please know Council  is not permitted to respond to your comments during 
the meeting since the topic has not been specifically listed on the agenda (the Texas Open Meetings Act 
requires that topics of discussion/deliberation be posted on an agenda not less than 72 hours in advance 
of the Council meeting). This, in part, is so that other citizens who may have the same concern may also 
be involved in the discussion. 

 

IX. Take Any Action as a Result of Executive Session 
 

Page 1 of 142



X. Consent Agenda 

 These agenda items are routine/administrative in nature, have previously been discussed at a prior City 
Council meeting, and/or  they do not warrant Council deliberation.  If you would  like  to discuss one of 
these items, please do so during "Open Forum."  

 

 1. Consider approval of the minutes from the Jan. 6, 2025 city council meeting, and take any 
action necessary. 

 

 2. Consider  authorizing  the City Manager  to execute  this  contract  renewal option with  SLM 
Landscaping for a period of one‐year for the new 2025‐2026 projected cost in the amount of 
$676,651.04 to be funded by the Parks Operations budget, and take any action necessary. 

 

 3. Consider  authorizing  the  City Manager  to  execute  a  one‐year  contract with  three  1‐year 
renewal  options  with  North  Texas  Baseball  Association  to  host  Fall  and  Spring  baseball 
tournaments at Leon Tuttle Athletic Complex, and take any action necessary. 

 

 4. P2024‐042 ‐ Consider a request by Brian Cramer of CCD – Rockwall, LLC for the approval of a 
Preliminary Plat for the Southside Hills Subdivision consisting of 384 single‐family residential 
lots on a 262.94‐acre tract of land identified as Tracts 17‐13, 17‐14, 17‐15, 17‐16, & 40‐8 of 
the W. W. Ford Survey, Abstract No. 80, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas,  zoned 
Planned Development District 99  (PD‐99)  for Single‐Family 10  (SF‐10) and  limited General 
Retail (GR) District  land uses,  located on the east side of SH‐205 [S. Goliad Street] south of 
the intersection of SH‐205 and FM‐549, and take any action necessary. 

 

 5. P2024‐043 ‐ Consider a request by Brian Cramer of CCD – Rockwall, LLC for the approval of a 
Master Plat for the Southside Hills Subdivision consisting of 384 single‐family residential lots 
on a 262.94‐acre tract of land identified as Tracts 17‐13, 17‐14, 17‐15, 17‐16, & 40‐8 of the 
W.  W.  Ford  Survey,  Abstract  No.  80,  City  of  Rockwall,  Rockwall  County,  Texas,  zoned 
Planned Development District 99  (PD‐99)  for Single‐Family 10  (SF‐10) and  limited General 
Retail (GR) District  land uses,  located on the east side of SH‐205 [S. Goliad Street] south of 
the intersection of SH‐205 and FM‐549, and take any action necessary. 

 

XI. Public Hearing Items 

 If you would like to speak regarding an item listed below, please turn in a (yellow) "Request to Address 
City Council" form to the City Secretary either before the meeting or as you approach the podium. The 
Mayor  or  Mayor  Pro  Tem  will  call  upon  you  to  come  forth  at  the  proper  time.  Please  limit  your 
comments to no more than three minutes.  

 

 1. Z2024‐061 ‐ Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Adam Buczek of the 
Skorburg Company on behalf of Dr. Karl Erwin of the Estate of Karl W. Erwin for the approval 
of  an ordinance for  a  Zoning  Change  from  an  Agricultural  (AG)  District  to  a  Planned 
Development District for Single‐Family 10 (SF‐10) District land uses on a 101.43‐acre tract of 
land identified as Tract 4 of the J. M. Gass Survey, Abstract No. 88, City of Rockwall, Rockwall 
County, Texas zoned Agricultural (AG) District, generally  located on the southside of North 
Country  Lane east of  the  intersection of North Country  Lane  and  FM‐1141,  and  take  any 
action necessary (1st Reading). 
 
 

Page 2 of 142



 
 

 2. Z2024‐062  ‐ Hold  a public  hearing  to  discuss  and  consider  a  request by  Tzemach Moshe 
Kalmenson  for  the  approval  of  an ordinance  for  a Zoning  Change  amending  Planned 
Development District 50 (PD‐50) [Ordinance No. 23‐60] to incorporate an additional 0.2010‐
acre  parcel  of  land  and  amend  the  land  uses  for  the  purpose  of  allowing  the  House  of 
Worship land use by Specific Use Permit (SUP) within the district being a 21.467‐acre tract of 
land situated within the S. S. McCurry Survey, Abstract No. 146 and B. F. Boydston Survey, 
Abstract  No.  14,  City  of  Rockwall,  Rockwall  County,  Texas,  zoned  Planned  Development 
District 50 (PD‐50) for Residential‐Office (RO) District land uses and Single‐Family 10 (SF‐10) 
District,  situated  within  the  North  Goliad  Corridor  Overlay  (NGC  OV)  District,  generally 
located along N. Goliad Street [SH‐205] north of Olive Street and south of Live Oak Street, 
and take any action necessary (1st Reading). 

 

 3. Z2024‐064 ‐ Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Inocencio Barron on 
behalf of Ariel Palacios for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for 
Residential  Infill  in an Established Subdivision on a 0.1650‐acre parcel of  land  identified as 
Lot 910‐A0 of Rockwall Lake Estates #2 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, 
zoned Planned Development District 75 (PD‐75) for Single Family 7 (SF‐7) District, addressed 
as 178 Lynne Drive, and take any action necessary (1st Reading). 

 

XII. Adjournment 
 

This facility  is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Request for accommodations or 
interpretive  services must be made 48 hours prior  to  this meeting. Please contact  the City Secretary's Office at 
(972) 771‐7700 or FAX (972) 771‐7727 for further information. 
 
The City of Rockwall City Council reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time to discuss any of 
the matters  listed on the agenda above, as authorized by Texas Government Code ¶ 551.071 (Consultation with 
Attorney) ¶ 551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property) ¶ 551.074 (Personnel Matters) and ¶ 551.087 (Economic 
Development) 
 
I, Kristy Teague, City Secretary for the City of Rockwall, Texas, do hereby certify that this Agenda was posted at City 
Hall, in a place readily accessible to the general public at all times, on the 17th day of January 2025, at 5 PM and 
remained so posted for at least 72 continuous hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting. 

__________________________________ 
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 
or Margaret Delaney, Asst. to the City Sect. 

___________________________ 
Date Removed 

 

Page 3 of 142



 
Proclamation 

 
 

Whereas, for many years, the Rockwall County Kiwanis Club has tirelessly served our 

community through its Food for Kids program, which provides essential weekend meals for 
children in need throughout Rockwall County; and 

Whereas, since its inception, the Food for Kids program has packed and distributed 

thousands of bags of food to send home with kids after school, ensuring that no child goes 
hungry during times when their school meals are unavailable; and  

Whereas, the success of this program and its impact on children within our community is 

a testament to the dedication of volunteers, donors, and community supporters who make this 
vital initiative possible; and 

Whereas, earlier this month on January 14th, the 50,000th food bag was packed by 

Rockwall County Kiwanis Club, signifying a remarkable milestone in the program’s ongoing 
mission to combat hunger and provide hope to local children and families; and 

Whereas, the City of Rockwall recognizes and celebrates the incredible impact of this 

program and the compassionate efforts of the Rockwall County Kiwanis Club and its volunteers 
who truly exemplify the spirit of service and community. 

 

Now, Therefore, I, Trace Johannesen, Mayor of the City of Rockwall, do hereby 

proclaim JJaannuuaarryy  2211,,  22002255 as:  
 

FFoooodd  ffoorr  KKiiddss  DDaayy  
 

in the City of Rockwall and encourage all citizens to support the Rockwall County Kiwanis Club, 
whose members continue to foster a community of generosity and volunteerism through the 
Food for Kids program. 
 

In Witness Whereof, I hereunto affix my hand and official seal this 21st day of 

January, 2025.  

        
  Trace Johannesen, Mayor 

Page 4 of 142



Rockwall City Council Meeting Minutes – 01/06/2025 
Page 1 of 5 

MINUTES 
 

ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Monday, January 6, 2025 - 6:00 PM 

City Hall Council Chambers - 385 S. Goliad St., Rockwall, TX 75087 

  

I. Call Public Meeting to Order 

Mayor Johannesen called the public meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. Present were Mayor Trace 
Johannesen, Mayor Pro Tem Clarence Jorif, and Councilmembers Sedric Thomas, Mark Moeller, Anna 
Campbell, Dennis Lewis and Tim McCallum. Also present were City Manager, Mary Smith and 
Assistant City Manager, Joey Boyd. 

 

II. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance - Councilmember McCallum 

Councilmember McCallum delivered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

III. Open Forum 
Mayor Johannesen asked if anyone would like to come forth and speak at this time. There being no 
one indicating such, he then closed Open Forum. 

 

IV. Consent Agenda 
 

 1. Consider approval of the minutes from the December 16, 2024 city council meeting, and 
take any action necessary. 

 

 2. Z2024-053 - Consider a request by Amanda Dailey for the approval of an ordinance for a 
Zoning Change from Agricultural (AG) District to Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District being a 
1.47-acre tract of land identified as Tract 3 of the N. Butler Survey, Abstract No. 183, City of 
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, addressed as 205 Dial 
Lane, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading). 

 

 3. Z2024-054 - Consider a request by the City of Rockwall for the approval of an ordinance for 
a Zoning Change amending Planned Development District 9 (PD-9) [Ordinance No.’s 73-49, 
86-55, 87-30, 88-13, 88-20, 95-17, 01-43, 04-02, 11-31, & 13-43] for the purpose of 
consolidating the regulating ordinances for a 307.57-acre tract of land situated within the E. 
Teal Survey, Abstract No. 207, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned 
Development District 9 (PD-9), generally located south of Horizon Road [FM-3097], east of 
Ridge Road, and north of the southern corporate limits of the City of Rockwall, and take any 
action necessary (2nd Reading). 

 

 4. Z2024-057 - Consider a request by Michael Jaquette of CED Rockwall on behalf of QA 
Logistics Rockwall, LP for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for 

Page 5 of 142



Rockwall City Council Meeting Minutes – 01/06/2025 
Page 2 of 5 

General Retail Store in conjunction with a Wholesale Showroom Facility on a portion of a 
larger 5.1292-acre parcel of land identified Lot 2, Block D, Ellis Centre #2 Addition, City of 
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI) District, addressed as 1915 
Alpha Drive, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading). 

 

 5. Consider the approval of an ordinance for a text amendment to Article III, Impact Fee 
Regulations, of Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances for the 
purpose of adopting revised Impact Fee Regulations, and take any action necessary (2nd 
Reading). 

Councilmember Campbell moved to approve the entire Consent Agenda (#s 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5). 
Councilmember Thomas seconded the motion. The ordinance captions were read as follows: 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 

ORDINANCE NO. 25-01 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE 
CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO APPROVE A 
CHANGE IN ZONING FROM AN AGRICULTURAL (AG) DISTRICT TO A SINGLE-
FAMILY 10 (SF-10) DISTRICT FOR A 1.47-ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS 
TRACT 3 OF THE N. BUTLER SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 183, CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING MORE SPECIFICALLY 
DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBITS ‘A’ & ‘B’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; 
PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE 
NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR 
EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 

ORDINANCE NO. 25-02 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 9 (PD-9) AND THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO CONSOLIDATE THE REGULATING 
ORDINANCES OF THE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, BEING A 307.57-
ACRE TRACT OF LAND SITUATED WITHIN THE E TEAL SURVEY, ABSTRACT 
NO. 207, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS AND MORE FULLY 
DESCRIBED HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND DEPICTED HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘B’; 
PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE 
NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR 
EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR 
A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 

ORDINANCE NO. 25-04 
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-352 

 

Page 6 of 142



Rockwall City Council Meeting Minutes – 01/06/2025 
Page 3 of 5 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF 
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY 
AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) TO ALLOW A 
GENERAL RETAIL STORE ON A 5.1292-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS 
LOT 2, BLOCK D, ELLIS CENTRE #2 ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL 
COUNTY, TEXAS; AND MORE SPECIFICALLY DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND 
EXHIBIT ‘B’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
CITY OF ROCKWALL 

ORDINANCE NO. 25-06 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
REPEALING IN ITS ENTIRETY ARTICLE III, IMPACT FEE REGULATIONS, OF 
CHAPTER 38, SUBDIVISIONS, OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF ORDINANCES, 
ADOPTING ARTICLE III, IMPACT FEE REGULATIONS, OF CHAPTER 38, 
SUBDIVISIONS, AS DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE, AND 
AMENDING SECTION 38-9(5), PROPORTIONALITY, OF ARTICLE I, IN GENERAL, 
OF CHAPTER 38, SUBDIVISIONS, AS DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘B’ OF THIS 
ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM 
OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING 
FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

The motion to approve passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 

 

V. Action Items 
 

 1. Z2024-055 - Discuss and consider a request by Bryan Cook for the approval of an 
ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Detached Garage on a one (1) acre parcel of 
land identified as Lot 13, Block A, Saddlebrook Estates #2 Addition, City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District, addressed as 2348 
Saddlebrook Lane, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading). 

Councilmember Campbell moved to approve Z2024-055. Councilmember Thomas seconded the 
motion. The ordinance caption was read as follows: 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 

ORDINANCE NO. 25-03 
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-351 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF 
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY 
AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR A DETACHED 
GARAGE AND FOR MORE ACCESSORY STRUCTURES THAN PERMITTED ON A 
ONE (1) ACRE PARCEL OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS LOT 13, BLOCK A, 

Page 7 of 142



Rockwall City Council Meeting Minutes – 01/06/2025 
Page 4 of 5 

SADDLEBROOK ESTATES #2 ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL 
COUNTY, TEXAS, ZONED SINGLE-FAMILY 16 (SF-16) DISTRICT, ADDRESSED AS 
2348 SADDLEBROOK LANE, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, 
AND MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS 
ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A 
PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

The motion to approve passed by a vote of 6 ayes with 1 nay (Jorif). 

 

 2. Z2024-060 - Discuss and consider a request by Ryan Joyce of Michael Joyce Properties on 
behalf of Bill Lofland for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from an 
Agricultural (AG) District to a Planned Development District for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) and 
General Retail (GR) District land uses on a 544.89-acre tract of land identified as Tracts 3 & 
3-1 of the A. Johnson Survey, Abstract No. 123 [355.146-acres]; Tracts 7 & 7-2 of the W. H. 
Baird Survey, Abstract No. 25 [45.744-acres]; and Tracts 3 & 4 of the J. R. Johnson Survey, 
Abstract No. 128 [144.00-acres], City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural 
(AG) District, situated within the SH-205 Overlay (SH-205) and SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-
205 BY OV) District, generally located on the east and west side of S. Goliad Street [SH-205] 
at the corner of the intersection of John King Boulevard and S. Goliad Street [SH-205], and 
take any action necessary (2nd Reading). 

Mayor Johannesen moved to approve Z2024-060. Councilmember Thomas seconded the motion. The 
ordinance caption was read as follows: 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 

ORDINANCE NO. 25-05 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 
20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO 
CHANGE THE ZONING FROM AN AGRICULTURAL (AG) DISTRICT TO 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 103 (PD-103) FOR SINGLE FAMILY 10 
(SF-10) DISTRICT AND GENERAL RETAIL (GR) DISTRICT LAND USES ON 
THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, BEING A 519.5402-ACRE TRACT OF LAND 
IDENTIFIED AS TRACTS 3 & 3-1 OF THE A. JOHNSON SURVEY, ABSTRACT 
NO. 123; TRACT 7 OF THE W. H. BAIRD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 25; AND 
TRACTS 3 & 4 OF THE J. R. JOHNSON SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 128, CITY 
OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS AND MORE FULLY 
DESCRIBED HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND DEPICTED HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘B’; 
PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF 
FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) 
FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
The motion passed by a vote of 4 ayes with 3 nays (Jorif, McCallum and Campbell). 

 

VI. City Manager's Report, Departmental Reports and Related Discussions Pertaining To Current 
City Activities, Upcoming Meetings, Future Legislative Activities, and Other Related Matters. 

 

Page 8 of 142



Rockwall City Council Meeting Minutes – 01/06/2025 
Page 5 of 5 

 1. Building Inspections Department Monthly Report 
 

 2. Fire Department Monthly Report 
 

 3. Parks & Recreation Department Monthly Report 
 

 4. Police Department Monthly Report 
 

 5. Sales Tax Historical Comparison 
 

 6. Water Consumption Historical Statistics 

City Manager Mary Smith indicated monthly reports have been provided to Council for review. There 
being no questions or discussion, Mrs. Smith briefly mentioned some upcoming events and associated 
dates of interest to council members. 

 

VII. Adjournment 

Mayor Johannesen adjourned the meeting at 6:07 p.m. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS ON THIS 

21st DAY OF JANUARY, 2025. 

 
 

TRACE JOHANNESEN, MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
KRISTY TEAGUE, CITY SECRETARY 

  
 

 

Page 9 of 142



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS
MEMORANDUM  

TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

FROM: Travis E. Sales, Director Parks, Recreation and Animal Services

DATE: January 21, 2025

SUBJECT: Grounds Maintenance Services Contract Extension

The current large landscape maintenance services contract provides for mowing, weed eating, 
trimming and debris removal at City facilities, parks, street medians, ROW and thoroughfares.  
Maintenance includes but is not limited to all trees, shrubs, ground cover, beds, turf, mulch and 
application of some herbicides and insecticides.  These contracts provide for an annual 
extension at end of the initial contract period for up to three consecutive years should the scope 
of work and contracted bid conditions remain the same; and both parties agree to the extension.  
Staff has determined that it is in the best interest of the City to renew these contracts.

Large Contract 
The large service contract expires on March 19, 2025 that was awarded to Southlake 
Landscaping and Maintenance (SLM) on March 19, 2024.  The original contract amount was 
$639,023.00 and several sites were added to their contract over the course of 2024 bringing 
their current contract amount to $658,314.00.  A contingency for possible contract expansion 
and possible renewal increase of 5% was figured into the 2024-2025 budget for the 1st renewal.  
SLM has asked for a 2.77% increase at this 1st renewal option resulting in the new contract 
amount of $676,651.04 for the approved 2024-2025 budget.  

SLM has agreed to the contract renewal and has requested this  2.77% price increase in 
relation to their increase in salaries to retain experienced employees and rising fuel cost.  This 
price increase request is afforded by contract and compared to the Municipal Cost Index (MCI) 
average percent change for 2024 Dallas/Fort Worth area of +2.77%.  Using this index helps 
staff determine whether a price increase may be warranted.  This 2.77% request equates to an 
annual contract increase of $18,337.04 based on the 2024 contract amount and this increase 
will be absorbed in the current Parks and Harbor grounds maintenance budgets and amended 
budget.  

Staff asks City Council to consider authorizing the City Manager to execute this contract 
renewal option with SLM for a period of one-year with two one-year renewal options remaining 
for the new 2024-2025 projected cost.  

Page 10 of 142



Page 11 of 142



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS

ADDENDUM TO THE CONTRACT FOR GROUNDS MAINTENANCE SERVICES
CONTRACT RENEWAL

The City of Rockwall and SLM Landscaping and Maintenance are parties to an agreement 
dated March 19, 2024 for Grounds Maintenance Services (" Agreement ") and

Whereas, the parties seek to amend the Agreement for additional one-year extension detail 
included in Exhibit A and attached hereto.

Now therefore, the parties, pursuant to Article 1, Scope of Work, of the Agreement, hereby 
agree to amend the original agreement and agree to the 1st of 3 renewals for $676,651.04.

All other Agreement terms and conditions remain in full force and effect.

Agreed to this the                                 day of ___________, 20___.

City of Rockwall, Texas       SLM Landscaping and Maintenance

       
Signature         Signature

 
Printed Name   Printed Name

 
Title   Title

Page 12 of 142



EXHIBIT A

CONTRACT DOCUMENT TO FOLLOW

Page 13 of 142



Page 14 of 142



Page 15 of 142



Page 16 of 142



Page 17 of 142



Page 18 of 142



Page 19 of 142



Page 20 of 142



City of Rockwall, Texas
Grounds Maintenance Services Bid Form
Attachment A - Pricing Worksheet & Service Locations

CONTRACTOR:__________________________________________SLM Landscaping

Map ID Location Freq Description
# of Cycles for

Half Year 2024 Unit Cost
2024 Total per

Cycle
GO1 City Hall C weekly mowing 36 $ 375.00 $ 13,500.00

D* monthly mowing 10 $ 200.00 $ 2,000.00
B Shrub Trim 6 $ 195.00 $ 1,170.00
B Mulch 1 $ 1,050.00 $ 1,050.00
F Grass/Perrienial trim 1 $ 160.00 $ 160.00
H Pre & Fert (Landscape) 2 $ 150.00 $ 300.00
I Pre & Fert (Turfgrass) 2 $ 450.00 $ 900.00
J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 325.00 $ 650.00

GO2 The Center C weekly mowing 36 $ 165.00 $ 5,940.00
D* monthly mowing 10 $ 80.00 $ 800.00
B Shrub Trim 6 $ 40.00 $ 240.00
B Mulch 1 $ 750.00 $ 750.00
F Grass/Perrienial trim 1 $ 95.00 $ 95.00
H Pre & Fert (Landscape) 2 $ 40.00 $ 80.00
I Pre & Fert (Turfgrass) 2 $ 100.00 $ 200.00
J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 90.00 $ 180.00

GO5 Fire Station No 3 C weekly mowing 36 $ 125.00 $ 4,500.00
B Shrub Trim 6 $ 50.00 $ 300.00
B Mulch 1 $ 220.00 $ 220.00
F Grass/Perrienial trim 1 $ 100.00 $ 100.00
H Pre & Fert (Landscape) 2 $ 30.00 $ 60.00
I Pre & Fert (Turfgrass) 2 $ 135.00 $ 270.00
J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 110.00 $ 220.00

GO6 Police Bldg C weekly mowing 36 $ 115.00 $ 4,140.00
D monthly mowing 10 $ 50.00 $ 500.00
B Shrub Trim 6 $ 230.00 $ 1,380.00

9:33 PM1/8/2025    1
Page 21 of 142



B Mulch 1 $ 525.00 $ 525.00
F Grass/Perrienial trim 1 $ 95.00 $ 95.00
H Pre & Fert (Landscape) 2 $ 50.00 $ 100.00
I Pre & Fert (Turfgrass) 2 $ 90.00 $ 180.00
J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 90.00 $ 180.00

GO7 Memorial Cemetery(SH 66) C weekly mowing 36 $ 1,275.00 $ 45,900.00
B Shrub Trim 6 $ 45.00 $ 270.00
B Mulch 1 $ 40.00 $ 40.00
F Grass/Perrienial trim 1 $ 15.00 $ 15.00
H Pre & Fert (Landscape) 2 $ 10.00 $ 20.00
I Pre & Fert (Turfgrass) 2 $ 2,900.00 $ 5,800.00
J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 1,850.00 $ 3,700.00

GO8 Service Center C weekly mowing 36 $ 375.00 $ 13,500.00
B Shrub Trim 6 $ 45.00 $ 270.00
B Mulch 1 $ 65.00 $ 65.00
H Pre & Fert (Landscape) 2 $ 25.00 $ 50.00
I Pre & Fert (Turfgrass) 2 $ 250.00 $ 500.00
J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 175.00 $ 350.00

GO9 Animal Adoption Center C weekly mowing 36 $ 125.00 $ 4,500.00
B Shrub Trim 6 $ 75.00 $ 450.00
B Mulch 1 $ 425.00 $ 425.00
F Grass/Perrienial trim 1 $ 75.00 $ 75.00
H Pre & Fert (Landscape) 2 $ 20.00 $ 40.00
I Pre & Fert (Turfgrass) 2 $ 125.00 $ 250.00
J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 90.00 $ 180.00

G10 Firearms Training Facility C weekly mowing 36 $ 140.00 $ 5,040.00
G11 Yellow Jacket Medians C weekly mowing 36 $ 180.00 $ 6,480.00

J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 95.00 $ 190.00
G12 North lakeshore Drive (median only) SH 66 to SH 205 C weekly mowing 36 $ 325.00 $ 11,700.00

D monthly mowing 10 $ 170.00 $ 1,700.00
J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 210.00 $ 420.00

G13 Ralph Hall Parkway (median/right-of-way) C weekly mowing 36 $ 450.00 $ 16,200.00

Map ID Location Freq Description
# of Cycles for

Half Year 2024 Unit Cost
2024 Total per

Cycle

9:33 PM1/8/2025    2
Page 22 of 142



D monthly mowing 10 $ 200.00 $ 2,000.00
B Shrub Trim 6 $ 225.00 $ 1,350.00
B Mulch 1 $ 2,550.00 $ 2,550.00
H Pre & Fert (Landscape) 2 $ 200.00 $ 400.00
I Pre & Fert (Turfgrass) 2 $ 550.00 $ 1,100.00
J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 425.00 $ 850.00

G14 Clark Street Median C weekly mowing 36 $ 20.00 $ 720.00
B Shrub Trim 6 $ 5.00 $ 30.00
B Mulch 1 $ 125.00 $ 125.00

G15 FM 740 Medians(Ridge Rd.) C weekly mowing 36 $ 955.00 $ 34,380.00
D monthly mowing 10 $ 325.00 $ 3,250.00
B Shrub Trim 6 $ 300.00 $ 1,800.00
B Mulch 1 $ 8,000.00 $ 8,000.00
F Grass/Perrienial trim 1 $ 650.00 $ 650.00
H Pre & Fert (Landscape) 2 $ 1,650.00 $ 3,300.00
J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 975.00 $ 1,950.00

G16 Brockaway Branch A-2 Bi-weekly mowing 18 $ 725.00 $ 13,050.00
G17 Quail Run Medians C weekly mowing 36 $ 160.00 $ 5,760.00

J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 80.00 $ 160.00
G18 La Jolla Median and Railroad ROW C weekly mowing 36 $ 130.00 $ 4,680.00
G19 SH 66 ( median/right-of-way) B Shrub Trim 6 $ 300.00 $ 1,800.00

B Mulch 1 $ 1,740.00 $ 1,740.00
C weekly mowing 36 $ 440.00 $ 15,840.00
D monthly mowing 10 $ 180.00 $ 1,800.00
F Grass/Perrienial trim 1 $ 200.00 $ 200.00
H Pre & Fert (Landscape) 2 $ 650.00 $ 1,300.00
J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 550.00 $ 1,100.00

G20 SH 205 (Goliad St.) B Shrub Trim 6 $ 400.00 $ 2,400.00
B Mulch 1 $ 3,550.00 $ 3,550.00
C weekly mowing 36 $ 445.00 $ 16,020.00
D monthly mowing 10 $ 200.00 $ 2,000.00
F Grass/Perrienial trim 1 $ 425.00 $ 425.00

Map ID Location Freq Description
# of Cycles for

Half Year 2024 Unit Cost
2024 Total per

Cycle

9:33 PM1/8/2025    3
Page 23 of 142



H Pre & Fert (Landscape) 2 $ 900.00 $ 1,800.00
J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 475.00 $ 950.00

G21 Summer Lee C weekly mowing 36 $ 435.00 $ 15,660.00
J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 450.00 $ 900.00

G22 N TL Townsend Dr. C weekly mowing 36 $ 75.00 $ 2,700.00
J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 55.00 $ 110.00

G23 Caruth Ln. C weekly mowing 36 $ 450.00 $ 16,200.00
J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 425.00 $ 850.00

G24 SH 66 Willowbend A-2 Bi-weekly mowing 18 $ 60.00 $ 1,080.00
G25 Summit Ridge/Lakeshore Roundabouts C weekly mowing 36 $ 50.00 $ 1,800.00

I Pre & Fert (Turfgrass) 2 $ 75.00 $ 150.00
J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 55.00 $ 110.00

G27 Stone Bridge Cemetery (Wood Park) C weekly mowing 36 $ 65.00 $ 2,340.00
G28 Valley Dr Alley and Lot C weekly mowing 36 $ 135.00 $ 4,860.00
G29 Emma Jane C weekly mowing 36 $ 50.00 $ 1,800.00
G30 Fire Station No 4 C weekly mowing 36 $ 185.00 $ 6,660.00

D* monthly mowing 10 $ 55.00 $ 550.00
B Shrub Trim 6 $ 50.00 $ 300.00
B Mulch 1 $ 450.00 $ 450.00
F Grass/Perrienial trim 1 $ 150.00 $ 150.00
H Pre & Fert (Landscape) 2 $ 40.00 $ 80.00
I Pre & Fert (Turfgrass) 2 $ 320.00 $ 640.00
J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 250.00 $ 500.00

G32 Municipal Court Building C weekly mowing 36 $ 140.00 $ 5,040.00
B Shrub Trim 6 $ 115.00 $ 690.00
B Mulch 1 $ 500.00 $ 500.00
F Grass/Perrienial trim 1 $ 150.00 $ 150.00
H Pre & Fert (Landscape) 2 $ 30.00 $ 60.00
I Pre & Fert (Turfgrass) 2 $ 200.00 $ 400.00
J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 120.00 $ 240.00

G33 Cemetery (205) C weekly mowing 36 $ 425.00 $ 15,300.00
B Shrub Trim 6 $ 5.00 $ 30.00

Map ID Location Freq Description
# of Cycles for

Half Year 2024 Unit Cost
2024 Total per

Cycle

9:33 PM1/8/2025    4
Page 24 of 142



F Grass/Perrienial trim 1 $ 30.00 $ 30.00
 J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 470.00 $ 940.00

G34 The Harbor C weekly mowing 36 $ 605.00 $ 21,780.00
D monthly mowing 10 $ 190.00 $ 1,900.00
B Shrub Trim 6 $ 750.00 $ 4,500.00
B Mulch 1 $ 3,200.00 $ 3,200.00
F Grass/Perrienial trim 1 $ 525.00 $ 525.00
H Pre & Fert (Landscape) 2 $ 200.00 $ 400.00
I Pre & Fert (Turfgrass) 2 $ 450.00 $ 900.00
J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 295.00 $ 590.00

G34 Harbor Parking C weekly mowing 36 $ 50.00 $ 1,800.00
D monthly mowing 10 $ 15.00 $ 150.00

G35 Downtown Square C weekly mowing 36 $ 360.00 $ 12,960.00
B Shrub Trim 6 $ 350.00 $ 2,100.00
B Mulch 1 $ 1,550.00 $ 1,550.00
D monthly mowing 10 $ 100.00 $ 1,000.00
F Grass/Perrienial trim 1 $ 350.00 $ 350.00
H Pre & Fert (Landscape) 2 $ 60.00 $ 120.00
I Pre & Fert (Turfgrass) 2 $ 50.00 $ 100.00
J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 75.00 $ 150.00

G38 Justin Rd. ROW C weekly mowing 36 $ 715.00 $ 25,740.00
G39 SH 66 Takeline A-2 Bi-weekly mowing 18 $ 175.00 $ 3,150.00
G41 Horizon Rd (ROW) C weekly mowing 36 $ 130.00 $ 4,680.00

D monthly mowing 10 $ 50.00 $ 500.00
B Shrub Trim 6 $ 95.00 $ 570.00
B Mulch 1 $ 2,200.00 $ 2,200.00
F Grass/Perrienial trim 1 $ 550.00 $ 550.00
H Pre & Fert (Landscape) 2 $ 115.00 $ 230.00
J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 85.00 $ 170.00

G42 Police Station Parking Lot C weekly mowing 36 $ 85.00 $ 3,060.00
G43 Tubbs Rd C weekly mowing 36 $ 325.00 $ 11,700.00
G44 White Rd C weekly mowing 36 $ 50.00 $ 1,800.00

Map ID Location Freq Description
# of Cycles for

Half Year 2024 Unit Cost
2024 Total per

Cycle

9:33 PM1/8/2025    5
Page 25 of 142



G45 Stone Creek Park C weekly mowing 36 $ 540.00 $ 19,440.00
B Shrub Trim 6 $ 30.00 $ 180.00
B Mulch 1 $ 110.00 $ 110.00
F Grass/Perrienial trim 0 $ -
H Pre & Fert (Landscape) 2 $ 25.00 $ 50.00
I Pre & Fert (Turfgrass) 2 $ 1,100.00 $ 2,200.00
J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 760.00 $ 1,520.00

G46 Breezy Hill Park C weekly mowing 36 $ 425.00 $ 15,300.00
 B Shrub Trim 6 $ 100.00 $ 600.00

B Mulch 1 $ 300.00 $ 300.00
F Grass/Perrienial trim 0 $ -
H Pre & Fert (Landscape) 2 $ 20.00 $ 40.00
I Pre & Fert (Turfgrass) 2 $ 900.00 $ 1,800.00
J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 290.00 $ 580.00

G47 276 Bybass (ROW) C weekly mowing 36 $ 955.00 $ 34,380.00
D monthly mowing 10 $ 400.00 $ 4,000.00
B Shrub Trim 6 $ 145.00 $ 870.00
B Mulch 1 $ 280.00 $ 280.00
E Tree trim 1 $ - $ -
F Grass/Perrienial trim 1 $ 175.00 $ 175.00
H Pre & Fert (Landscape) 2 $ 150.00 $ 300.00
I Pre & Fert (Turfgrass) 2 $ 925.00 $ 1,850.00
J Post Grassy & Broadleaf 2 $ 750.00 $ 1,500.00

G49 Mims Rd C weekly mowing 36 $ 110.00 $ 3,960.00
G50 Renfro St C weekly mowing 36 $ 100.00 $ 3,600.00

Ridge Rd & Stegar Town Crossing A-2 Bi-Weekly Mowing 18 $ 25.00 $ 450.00
627 E Boydstun C weekly mowing 36 $ 80.00 $ 2,880.00
Hwy 66 & Cordoba monthly mowing 8 $ 110.00 $ 880.00
Nathan Butler Cemetery monthly mowing 8 $ 525.00 $ 4,200.00
Horizon and County Line c weekly mowing 36 $ 75.00 $ 2,700.00
Flag Pole c weekly mowing 36 $ 85.00 $ 3,060.00

Map ID Location Freq Description
# of Cycles for

Half Year 2024 Unit Cost
2024 Total per

Cycle

9:33 PM1/8/2025    6
Page 26 of 142



Sub Total - Grounds Maintenance $ 592,845.00

Brush Cut Areas

 SITE/Map reference FREQ ACERAGE
AMOUNT OF

CYCLES Cycle PRICE Extended Price
1 551 LAKESIDE DR/ TROUT INTERSECTION G 0.05 8 3 $ 24.00
2 CLARK ST PARK AREA G 1.3 8 85 $ 680.00
3 HICKORY RIDGE - BACK AREA G 2.7 8 175 $ 1,400.00
4 1141 /JOHN KING LOT G 5.45 8 355 $ 2,840.00
5 JOHN KING/ QUAIL RUN G 2 8 130 $ 1,040.00
6 KAUFMAN LOT G 1 8 65 $ 520.00
7 LOT AT SUMMER LEE & RIDGE RD G 0.5 8 30 $ 240.00
8 LYNDEN PARK G 2.52 8 165 $ 1,320.00
9 WALNUT RIDGE DR & FOXWOOD LN G 3.1 8 200 $ 1,600.00

10 FOXWOOD LANE G 0.5 8 30 $ 240.00
11 MIMMS/HIGHLAND MEADOWS (Bluebell Court) G 0.84 8 55 $ 440.00
12 NORTH COUNTRY LN PARK G 9 8 590 $ 4,720.00
13 TAKELINE AREA FROM DALTON/MIRAGE G 12 8 790 $ 6,320.00
14 BREEZY HILL ROW G 9.26 8 600 $ 4,800.00
15 JOHN KING / 552 G 5 8 330 $ 2,640.00
16 TRAIL GLEN G 0.5 8 30 $ 240.00
17 WINDMILL RIDGE PARK GREENBELT G 4 8 260 $ 2,080.00
18 WINDMILL RIDGE PINION G 0.05 8 3 $ 24.00

19-21 CAMERON & PHELPS LAKE G 78 8 4300 $ 34,400.00
 

Total Acreage 137.77  
 

Map ID Location Freq Description
# of Cycles for

Half Year 2024 Unit Cost
2024 Total per

Cycle

9:33 PM1/8/2025    7
Page 27 of 142



Sub Total - Brush Cut $ 65,568.00
 

Total Bid (Grounds Maint total + Brush Cut total) $ 658,413.00

Map ID Location Freq Description
# of Cycles for

Half Year 2024 Unit Cost
2024 Total per

Cycle

9:33 PM1/8/2025    8
Page 28 of 142



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS
MEMORANDUM 

TO:              Honorable Mayor and City Council        

CC:              Mary Smith, City Manager
                    Joey Boyd, Assistant Manager
                     
FROM:        Travis E. Sales, Director of Parks and Recreation

DATE:         January 21, 2025
     
SUBJECT:  North Texas Baseball Association Contract for Leon Tuttle Athletic Complex

Staff has received a request from to utilize Leon Tuttle Athletic Complex for several 
weekend tournaments during the 2025 spring and fall baseball seasons. 

Rockwall Parks and Recreation entered into agreements with Fortius Altius Operating LLC 
in 2024 with Walter Chen, General Partner, Fortius Altius Operating LLC. They are excited 
about continuing this partnership. These tournaments are open to all participants including 
Rockwall teams.  This can be a major revenue stream for our department and it also puts 
Rockwall Parks and Recreation on the sports map for hosting local, state and national 
tournaments with our award-winning fields that many organizations want to utilize.  An 
example of revenue is January 2024 – May 2024 ($8,600.00) for ZT Baseball Nation 
tournaments and this does not include the concession stand revenue. It is important to note 
that these tournaments do not conflict with our Rockwall Baseball and Softball League 
games, as many of teams compete in these tournaments. Staff is requesting a 1-year 
agreement with (3) 1-year renewal options for the future. Fortius Altius and North Texas 
Baseball Association will both have dates for tournaments during 2025 that do no conflicts 
with each other or RBSL league games

The City Council is requested to consider authorizing the City Manager to execute the 
agreement with North Texas Baseball Association.  Staff will be available to answer any 
questions. 

Page 29 of 142



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
01/07/2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT

AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT

CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS
WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED.
NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE
ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF
SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

PRODUCER Simply Business 
53 State Street 
19th Floor 
Boston, MA 02109 

CONTACT Simply BusinessNAME:
PHONE FAX
(A/C, No, Ext): (844) 654-7272 (A/C, No):
E-MAIL 
ADDRESS: contactus@simplybusiness.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

INSURER A : Hiscox Insurance Company Inc 10200
INSURED North Texas Baseball Association 

1761 County Road 4309 N 
Greenville, Texas 75401 

INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

INSR
TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL SUBR
POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
LIMITSLTR INSD WVD (MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY HIUS4813429XB1 01/08/2025 01/08/2026 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000

CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR
DAMAGE TO RENTED 
PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $100,000

MED EXP (Any one person) $5,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000

X 
POLICY

PRO-
LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG S/T Gen. Agg.JECT

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person)

OWNED
SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOS

HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

UMBRELLA LIAB
OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE

EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE 
AGGREGATE

DED RETENTION
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y / N

STATUTE ER

ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

N / AOFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY EACH CLAIM

AGGREGATE

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

City of Rockwall, Texas, 
385 S Goliad St, 
Rockwall, TX 75087 

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD Page 30 of 142



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 
 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

DATE: January 21, 2025 
 

APPLICANT: Brian Cramer; CCD – Rockwall, LLC 
 

CASE NUMBER: P2024-042; Preliminary Plat for the Southside Hills Subdivision 
 
 

SUMMARY 
 
Consider a request by Brian Cramer of CCD – Rockwall, LLC for the approval of a Preliminary Plat for the Southside Hills 
Subdivision consisting of 384 single-family residential lots on a 262.94-acre tract of land identified as Tracts 17-13, 17-14, 17-
15, 17-16, & 40-8 of the W. W. Ford Survey, Abstract No. 80, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned 
Development District 99 (PD-99) for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) and limited General Retail (GR) District land uses, located on the 
east side of SH-205 [S. Goliad Street] south of the intersection of SH-205 and FM-549, and take any action necessary. 
 
PLAT INFORMATION 
 
 Purpose. The purpose of the applicant’s request is to Preliminary Plat a 262.94-acre tract of land (i.e. Tracts 17-13, 17-14, 

17-15, 17-16, & 40-8 of the W. W. Ford Survey, Abstract No. 80) to show the future establishment of 384 single-family 
residential lots, two (2) commercial lots, ten (10) open space lots, and one (1) amenity center (i.e. Lots 1-126, Block A; Lots 
1-18, Block B; Lots 1-8, Block C; Lots 1-14, Block D; Lots 1-23, E; Lots 1-23, Block F; Lots 1-19, Block G; Lots 1-12, Block 
H; Lots 1-26, Block I; Lots 1-21, Block J; Lots 1-2, Block K; Lots 1-11, Block L; Lots 1-17, Block M; Lots 1-4, Block N; Lots 
1-36, Block O; Lots 1-23, Block P; Lots 1-14, Block Q, Southside Hills Subdivision). The proposed Preliminary Plat also lays 
out the necessary easements (e.g. fire lane, public access/right-of-way, utilities, and drainage) for the future development 
of the residential subdivision. Staff should note that in conjunction with the submittal of this Preliminary Plat, the applicant 
has also submitted a Master Plat [Case No. P2024-043] for the Southside Hills Subdivision. 

 
 Background. The subject property is a 264.51-acre tract of land that was annexed into the City on November 4, 2010 by 

Ordinance No. 10-27 [Case No. A2010-001]. At the time of annexation, the subject property was zoned as an Agricultural 
(AG) District. According to the Rockwall Central Appraisal District (RCAD), there is an existing 8,567 SF single-family home, 
a 1,568 SF mobile home, a 61,200 SF metal building, and various other commercial buildings currently situated on the 
property. On December 18, 2021, the applicant -- Brian Cramer of Corson Cramer Development -- submitted an application 
requesting to change the zoning [Case No. Z2021-057] of the subject property from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Planned 
Development District for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) and limited Commercial (C) District land uses, which was ultimately 
withdrawn. Following this submittal, the applicant submitted a subsequent application on May 20, 2022. This application 
was requesting to change the zoning [Case No. Z2022-028] of the subject property from an Agricultural (AG) District to a 
Planned Development District for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) and limited Commercial (C) District land uses. The applicant 
also withdrew this request on June 20, 2022. The applicant submitted a third and final zoning request [Case No. Z2022-
039] to change the zoning on the subject property from Agricultural (AG) District to a Planned Development District for 
Single-Family 10 (SF-10) and limited Commercial (C) District land uses. The City Council approved this request on October 
3, 2022.The following is a summary of the lot composition and density and dimensional standards contained within Planned 
Development District 99 (PD-99): 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 31 of 142



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

TABLE 1: LOT COMPOSITION 

LOT TYPE MINIMUM LOT SIZE (FT) MINIMUM LOT SIZE (SF) 
MAXIMUM DWELLING 

UNITS (#) DWELLING UNITS (%) 
A 130’ x 240’ 43,560 SF 43 11.20% 
B 110’ x 190’ 24,000 SF 26 06.77% 
C 80’ x 115’ 11,000 SF 66 17.19% 
D 80’ x 110’ 9,600 SF 43 11.20% 
E 62’ x 110’ 7,200 SF 206 53.65% 

Maximum Permitted Units: 384 100.00% 
     

 
TABLE 2: LOT DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS 

 

Lot Type (see Concept Plan) ► A  B C D E 
Minimum Lot Width (1) 130’ 110’ 80’ 80’ 62’ 
Minimum Lot Depth 240’ 190’ 115’ 110’ 110’ 
Minimum Lot Area (SF) 43,560 SF 24,000 SF 11,000 SF 9,600 SF 7,200 SF 
Minimum Front Yard Setback (2), (5) & (6) 40’ 30’ 20’ 20’ 20’ 
Minimum Side Yard Setback 15’ 10’ 6’ 6’ 6’ 
Minimum Side Yard Setback (Adjacent to a Street) (2) & (5) 15’ 15’ 15’ 15’ 15’ 
Minimum Length of Driveway Pavement (7) 20’ 20’ 20’ 20’ 20’ 
Maximum Height (3) 35’ 35’ 35’ 35’ 35’ 
Minimum Rear Yard Setback (4) 50’ 50’ 10’ 10’ 10’ 
Minimum Area/Dwelling Unit (SF) [Air-Conditioned Space] 3,800 SF 3,200 SF 2,500 SF 2,500 SF 2,200 SF 
Maximum Lot Coverage 50% 50% 65% 65% 65% 

 

General Notes: 
1:  Lots fronting onto curvilinear streets, cul-de-sacs and eyebrows may have the front lot width reduced by 20% as 

measured at the front property line provided that the lot width will be met at the Front Yard Building Setback. Additionally, 
the lot depth on lots fronting onto curvilinear streets, cul-de-sacs and eyebrows may be reduced by up to ten (10) percent, 
but shall meet the minimum lot size for each lot type referenced in Table 1. 

2:  The location of the Front Yard Building Setback as measured from the front property line. 
3:  The Maximum Height shall be measured to the eave or top plate (whichever is greater) of the single-family home. 
4: The location of the Rear Yard Building Setback as measured from the rear property line. 
5: Sunrooms, porches, stoops, bay windows, balconies, masonry clad chimneys, eaves and similar architectural features 

may encroach beyond the Front Yard Building Setback by up to ten (10) feet for any property; however, the 
encroachment shall not exceed five (5) feet on Side Yard Setbacks. A sunroom is an enclosed room no more than 15 -
feet in width that has glass on at least 50% of each of the encroaching faces. 

6: J-Swing or Traditional Swing Garages are permitted to encroach into the front yard building setback a maximum of five 
(5) feet. 

7: Type ‘A’, ‘B’, ‘C' & ‘D' lots shall have a minimum of a three (3) car garage. 
 
 Parks Board. Per the zoning ordinance for Planned Development District 99 (PD-99) [Ordinance No. 22-51], the Southside 

Hills Subdivision is not required to pay pro-rata equipment fees or cash-in-lieu of land fees; however, a fully amenitized 
11.60-acre park must be developed and dedicated to the City of Rockwall. In addition, all improvements will need to be 
approved and accepted by the Parks and Recreation Board after being reviewed and recommended by the Director of 
Parks and Recreation. Normally the park improvements would be approved at the time of Master Plat; however, at the 
January 7, 2025 Parks Board meeting, the Board agreed to delay the approval of the park improvements until the PD Site 
Plan. 
 

 Conformance to the Subdivision Ordinance. The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested 
by staff, and this plat -- conforming to the requirements for plats as stipulated by the Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the 
Municipal Code of Ordinances -- is recommended for conditional approval pending the completion of final technical 
modifications and submittal requirements. 
 

 Conditional Approval. Conditional approval of this Preliminary Plat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to 
the conditions stipulated in the Conditions of Approval section below. 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If the City Council chooses to approve the Preliminary Plat for the Southside Hills Subdivision staff would propose the following 
conditions of approval: 

Page 32 of 142



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 3 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

 
(1) All technical comments from the Engineering, Planning and Fire Departments shall be addressed prior to the filing of this 

Preliminary Plat; and, 
 
(2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this Preliminary Plat shall conform to the requirements set forth by the 

Unified Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city 
adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by 
the state and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On January 14, 2025, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the Preliminary Plat 
by a vote of 7-0.  

Page 33 of 142



Page 34 of 142



Page 35 of 142



7
11950 SF

S.H. 205

F.
M

. 5
49

W
YL

IE
 L

AN
E

DETENTION
POND

ZONED:
AG

STREET A

ST
RE

ET
 Q

ST
RE

ET
 S

STREET L

STREET M

STREET U

STREET W

STREET V

STREET A

ST
RE

ET
 Q

STREET I

STREET K

ST
RE

ET
 Z

STREET X

STREET Y

STREET AA

4
44119 SF

3
43672 SF

6
43981 SF

7
43997 SF

9
44028 SF

10
45309 SF

11
45297 SF

12
45285 SF

13
45272 SF

14
45248 SF

15
45258 SF

5

10
10527 SF

11
9549 SF

12
9549 SF

15

33
9627 SF

29
9764 SF32

11988 SF
28

8244 SF

31
8059 SF

26
8244 SF

30
10060 SF

25
8244 SF

34
8061 SF

125
9110 SF 121

7440 SF
117

7440 SF
118

7440 SF
119

7440 SF
120

7440 SF
124

7440 SF
122

7440 SF
123

7440 SF
115

7440 SF
110

7440 SF
111

7440 SF
112

7440 SF
113

7440 SF
114

7440 SF
116

7440 SF

106
9576 SF

105
7253 SF

104
7254 SF

103
7254 SF

107
15724 SF

108
7939 SF

109
7440 SF

23
8571 SF

21
7896 SF17

7896 SF
16

7896 SF
20

7896 SF
15

7896 SF
19

7896 SF14
7896 SF

22
7865 SF18

7896 SF
12

9992 SF

4
7440 SF

9
7932 SF

5
7440 SF10

9473 SF
2

7440 SF
6

7440 SF

13
7896 SF

3
7440 SF

7
7440 SF

11
14602 SF

1
8500 SF8

7445 SF

3
7440 SF

12
7440 SF

10
7440 SF

5
7438 SF

11
7440 SF

4
7440 SF

14
8625 SF

2
7440 SF 1

8554 SF

13
7440 SF

8
7440 SF

9
7440 SF

OPEN SPACE
LOT 6X,

BLOCK Q
14,358 SF

98
7254 SF

97
7254 SF

96
7254 SF

95
7254 SF

102
7254 SF

94
7254 SF

101
7254 SF

93
7254 SF

100
7254 SF

92
7254 SF

99
7254 SF

91
7254 SF

55
7440 SF

56
7440 SF

57
7440 SF

58
7440 SF

59
7440 SF

60
9925 SF

61
7569 SF

62
8497 SF

17
7440 SF

18
9840 SF

16
7440 SF

15
7440 SF

10
7860 SF

11
9845 SF

14
7440 SF

16
7820 SF

15
7820 SF

7
8203 SF

12
7494 SF

11
8024 SF

10
8024 SF

6
8203 SF

9
7889 SF

10
7889 SF

8
7878 SF

3
8379 SF

5
8461 SF

4
8379 SF

2
8283 SF

1
55744 SF

13
12556 SF

14
8763 SF

5
8011 SF

3
24119 SF

2
24053 SF

52
7780 SF11

9840 SF 7 20

8
7440 SF

19
9840 SF

16
43886 SF

17
43562 SF

18
48670 SF

OPEN SPACE
LOT 1X, BLOCK B

242,368 SF

L

B

I

B

A

B

M

M

Q

Q

O

O

A

A

A

A

A

P

P

A

77
8449 SF

78
8449 SF 81

7440 SF
79

8461 SF 82
7416 SF

83
9104 SF

84
7440 SF

85
7440 SF

86
7440 SF

87
7440 SF

80
7440 SF

90
7221 SF

89
10530 SF

88
9577 SF

9
7440 SF 53

7721 SF

ST
RE

ET
 B

J

A

3
11477 SF 15

7440 SF

14
7440 SF

21
7440 SF

20
7440 SF

19
7440 SF

18
7440 SF

17
7440 SF

7
26757 SF

9
11010 SF

2
24162 SF

5
26295 SF

4
24105 SF

3
24068 SF

8
12107 SF

10
9840 SF

65
8655 SF

66
8176 SF

70
7518 SF

71
9841 SF

72
9840 SF

67
7923 SF

16
8050 SF

15
8050 SF

14
8050 SF

13
8050 SF

20
8670 SF

12
8050 SF

19
8050 SF

11
8050 SF

18
8050 SF

17
8050 SF

8
8140 SF

7
8140 SF

6
8140 SF

5
8140 SF

4
8140 SF

3
8140 SF

2
8140 SF

64
8860 SF

STREET R

O

O

O

J

75
8449 SF

74
10680 SF

76
8449 SF

24
12638 SF

12
7440 SF

11
7440 SF

13
7440 SF

16
7440 SF

OPEN SPACE
LOT 54X, BLOCK A

732,268 SF

AMENITY
CENTER

POINT OF
BEGINNING

9
11332 SF

10
11950 SF

12
11817 SF

13
11836 SF

13
8838 SF

14
11590 SF

63
10353 SF

3
43675 SF

4
24374 SF

7
12871 SF 8

11502 SF 9
11114 SF

21
9148 SF

1
9902 SF

1
24240 SF

17
9229 SF

4
25153 SF 9

9322 SF

8
9691 SF

6
9668 SF

11
9125 SF

7
9711 SF

1
9020 SF

22
8476 SF

2
43609 SF

7
43801 SF

8
43630 SF

2
43785 SF

5
43568 SF 8

43918 SF

69
9938 SF

68
9585 SF

4
13480 SF

6
24739 SF

OPEN SPACE
LOT 2X, BLOCK K

504,355 SF

OPEN SPACE
LOT 2X, BLOCK N

64,023 SF

10
9861 SF

9
11161 SF

STREET A

1
24130 SF

STREET T

STREET R

STREET X

STREET
BB

ST
RE

ET
H

27
8244 SF

K

N

OPEN SPACE
LOT 23X, BLOCK O

193,176 SF

OPEN SPACE
LOT 73X, BLOCK A

551,288 SF

OPEN SPACE
LOT 1X, BLOCK O

674,608 SF

36
254381 SF

126
899338 SFA

O

35
8058 SF

<CM>

R
O

N

HT

SHEET 1 OF 4
December 11, 2024

PRELIMINARY PLAT
SOUTHSIDE HILLS
LOTS 1-126, BLOCK A; LOTS 1-18, BLOCK B;

LOTS 1-8, BLOCK C; LOTS 1-14, BLOCK D;
LOTS 1-23, BLOCK E; LOTS 1-23, BLOCK F;
LOTS 1-19, BLOCK G; LOTS 1-12, BLOCK H;
LOTS 1-26, BLOCK I; LOTS 1-21, BLOCK J;
LOTS 1-2, BLOCK K; LOTS 1-11, BLOCK L;

LOTS 1-17, BLOCK M; LOTS 1-4, BLOCK N;
LOTS 1-36, BLOCK O; LOTS 1-23, BLOCK P;

LOTS 1-14, BLOCK Q;
262.94 ACRES OR 11,453,704.24 SF

384 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ,2 COMMERCIAL LOTS,
 10 OPEN SPACES & 1 AMENITY CENTER

SITUATED WITHIN
W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80

CITY OF ROCKWALL,
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

P2024-XXXMATCH LINE - SHEET 2 OF 4

VICINITY MAP
N.T.S.

30

SITE

205

3097

205

549

549

740

1140

1139

KEY MAP

OPEN SPACE                ACRES

FLOOD PLAIN 29.4

OTHER 44.4

TOTAL 73.8

OPEN SPACE RATIO*

[(29.4/2) + 44.4] / 262.94   = 22.4%

*ASSUMING HALF OF FLOODPLAIN

Applicant:
Corson Cramer Development
4925 Greenville Ave, Ste. 604

Dallas, Texas 75206
Phone: 214-734-5924

Engineer/Surveyor:
 Johnson Volk Consulting, Inc.

704 Central Parkway East, Suite. 1200
Plano, Texas 75074

Phone: 972-201-3100
Contact: Tom Dayton, PE

Owner:
Rockwall Highgate, Ltd.
13155 Noel Rd., Ste 900

Dallas, Texas 75240
Phone: 214-566-8699

Page 36 of 142

AutoCAD SHX Text
120' ROW VOL. 33, PG 556 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
CODY A BARRICK AND CARRIE L BARRICK VOLUME 6167, PAGE 67 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
JAMES KESSLER AND ANGELA KESSLER DOCUMENT NO. 20180000020020 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
DR MOHIUDIN ZEB, NASREEN ZEB VOLUME 1059, PAGE 14 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
SCOTT W. & GLENITA G. BLACKWOOD VOLUME 2884, PAGE 2550 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
ROCKWALL 205 BUSINESS PARK CAB. C, PAGE 7 P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
15' WATERLINE EASEMENT R.C.H. WATER SUPPLY CORP. VOL. 640, PG. 320 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
50' WATERLINE EASEMENT NORTH TEXAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT DOC. NO. 2006-00366548 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
100 YR INNUNDATION BOUNDARY (FEMA BLE DATA)

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
15' WATERLINE EASEMENT R.C.H. WATER SUPPLY CORP. VOL. 929, PG. 271 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
10' S.W. BELL EASEMENT VOL. 1152, PG. 249 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
10' S.W. BELL EASEMENT VOL. 1152, PG. 249 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
101 HUBBARD DR LLC LOTS 1 AND 2, BLOCK A JBR2 ADDITION CABINET J, SLIDES 131 & 132 M.R.R.C.T. DOCUMENT NO. 20180000008030 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
25' ROW DEDICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
50' LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
EASEMENT TO THE STATE OF TEXAS VOL. 330, PG. 558 D.R.R.C.T. (DESCRIPTION TOO VAGUE TO LOCATE)

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
25' ROW DEDICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
DRAINAGE EASEMENT STATE OF TEXAS DOCUMENT NO. 20220000001603 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
PROPOSED ACCESS AND UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
20' UTILITY EASEMENT RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION DOCUMENT NO. 20240000015763 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
20' UTILITY EASEMENT RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION DOCUMENT NO. 20240000015763 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
PROPOSED 15' WATERLINE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
PROPOSED 15' WATERLINE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
COMMERCIAL LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
COMMERCIAL LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
1/2" IRF (unless otherwise noted)

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
UE

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
Point of Curvature or Tangency on Center Line

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
C1   

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
L1    

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
Drainage Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
Building Line

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
Curve No. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
Line No. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
BL    

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
DE   

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
Control Monument

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
1/2" Iron rod set with a yellow plastic cap stamped "JVC" (unless otherwise noted)

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
SF   

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
Square Feet 

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
Esmt  

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
Easement 

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
AC  

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
Acre 

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
SE

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
Sidewalk Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
D.R.R.C.T.= Deed Records of Rockwall County, Texas

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
Drainage Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
DUE   

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
P.R.R.C.T.= Plat Records of Rockwall County, Texas

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
VE

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
Visibility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
400

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
SCALE  1" = 200'

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
LAKE RAY HUBBARD



ZONED:
AG

ZONED:
SFE-2

ZONED:
AG

ST
RE

ET
 B

ST
RE

ET
 C

ST
RE

ET
 E

ST
RE

ET
 F

ST
RE

ET
 G

ST
RE

ET
 J

STREET K

STREET L

ST
RE

ET
 P

STREET N

STREET D

ST
RE

ET
 O

STREET A

STREET D

STREET K

3
43629 SF

4
46124 SF

5
43940 SF

6
43694 SF 9

43680 SF

10
48031 SF

2
43725 SF

1
43899 SF

OPEN SPACE
LOT 1X, BLOCK A

197,733 SF

6
24000 SF

5
24000 SF

7
24000 SF

16
30407 SF 18

24045 SF
17

24607 SF
19

24120 SF
22

24029 SF
20

24027 SF
21

24091 SF
23

24042 SF
24

24091 SF

11
11040 SF

2
10020 SF

3
10020 SF

4
10020 SF

5
10020 SF

6
10020 SF 9

11040 SF

10
11040 SF

13
11077 SF

12
11040 SF

17
18313 SF

6
10008 SF

2
10235 SF

3
10008 SF

4
10008 SF

5
10008 SF

8
10008 SF

7
10008 SF

22
10140 SF

21
10140 SF

20
10140 SF

19
10140 SF

18
10079 SF

10
10527 SF

11
9549 SF

12
9549 SF

15
10627 SF

16
10182 SF

17
11084 SF

4
9840 SF

5
9840 SF

3
9840 SF

2
9840 SF

1
11039 SF

22
11040 SF

21
11040 SF

20
12207 SF 12

11956 SF

14
11250 SF

13
12840 SF

19
15374 SF

7440 SF7440 SF

18
9840 SF

10
7860 SF

11
43710 SF

12
43721 SF

13
44889 SF

14
44762 SF

15
43588 SF

27
43623 SF

29
57607 SF

30
51981 SF

31
63912 SF

32
43952 SF

33
43613 SF

35
11472 SF 36

14439 SF

37
24211 SF

38
11900 SF

39
12035 SF

40
11983 SF

41
18743 SF

43
11630 SF

52
7780 SF

44
12826 SF

46
7780 SF

47
7780 SF

48
7780 SF

49
7780 SF

50
7780 SF

51
7780 SF

2
11040 SF

1
11104 SF

3
11973 SF

18
11040 SF

4
12537 SF

17
11633 SF

15
12104 SF

7
10080 SF

13
11260 SF

11
9840 SF

6
10080 SF

5
11782 SF

8
10313 SF

12
9840 SF

16
12104 SF

9
11525 SF

3
11525 SF

5
11631 SF

8
11631 SF

11
11525 SF

4
11525 SF

2
11525 SF

10
11525 SF

7
7440 SF

25
7862 SF

23
10398 SF

24
7862 SF

3
7949 SF

2
7949 SF

5
8364 SF

22
8369 SF

6
9868 SF

20
8164 SF

21
8369 SF

8
7440 SF

19
9840 SF

28
43707 SF

25
24048 SF

14
11507 SF 4

7949 SF

OPEN SPACE
LOT 42X,
BLOCK A
15,428 SF

C

D

D

A

A

A

A

A

A

G

G

H

I

E

E

F

A

9
7440 SF 53

7721 SF

8670 SF

9
10020 SF

10
10020 SF

11
10080 SF

7
12079 SF

STREET M

26
43577 SF

34
43596 SF

45
9196 SF

1
13511 SF

14
14081 SF

9
11332 SF

10
11950 SF

19
12133 SF

6
11524 SF

7
11801 SF

1
10017 SF

26
9480 SF

1
12769 SF

23
11050 SF

13
8838 SF

14
11590 SF

23
11157 SF

15
12298 SF

16
12298 SF

6
12894 SF

8
11086 SF

1
11450 SF

12
11452 SF

18
16266 SF

3
43675 SF

4
24374 SF

8
25522 SF

7
12871 SF 8

11502 SF 9
11114 SF

21
9148 SF2

43609 SF

7
43801 SF

8
43630 SF

ST
RE

ET
 L

STREET H

STREET D

<CM>

R
O

N

HT

SHEET 2 OF 4
December 11, 2024

MATCH LINE - SHEET 1 OF 4

VICINITY MAP
N.T.S.

30

SITE

205

3097

205

549

549

740

1140

1139

KEY MAP

PRELIMINARY PLAT
SOUTHSIDE HILLS
LOTS 1-126, BLOCK A; LOTS 1-18, BLOCK B;

LOTS 1-8, BLOCK C; LOTS 1-14, BLOCK D;
LOTS 1-23, BLOCK E; LOTS 1-23, BLOCK F;
LOTS 1-19, BLOCK G; LOTS 1-12, BLOCK H;
LOTS 1-26, BLOCK I; LOTS 1-21, BLOCK J;
LOTS 1-2, BLOCK K; LOTS 1-11, BLOCK L;

LOTS 1-17, BLOCK M; LOTS 1-4, BLOCK N;
LOTS 1-36, BLOCK O; LOTS 1-23, BLOCK P;

LOTS 1-14, BLOCK Q;
262.94 ACRES OR 11,453,704.24 SF

384 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ,2 COMMERCIAL LOTS,
 10 OPEN SPACES & 1 AMENITY CENTER

SITUATED WITHIN
W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80

CITY OF ROCKWALL,
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

P2024-XXX

OPEN SPACE                ACRES

FLOOD PLAIN 29.4

OTHER 44.4

TOTAL 73.8

OPEN SPACE RATIO*

[(29.4/2) + 44.4] / 262.94   = 22.4%

*ASSUMING HALF OF FLOODPLAIN

Applicant:
Corson Cramer Development
4925 Greenville Ave, Ste. 604

Dallas, Texas 75206
Phone: 214-734-5924

Engineer/Surveyor:
 Johnson Volk Consulting, Inc.

704 Central Parkway East, Suite. 1200
Plano, Texas 75074

Phone: 972-201-3100
Contact: Tom Dayton, PE

Owner:
Rockwall Highgate, Ltd.
13155 Noel Rd., Ste 900

Dallas, Texas 75240
Phone: 214-566-8699

Page 37 of 142

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
GARY BYRD and wife, CAROL BYRD VOLUME 508, PAGE 125 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
1.00 ACRE RELEASE GARY BYRD and wife, CAROL BYRD VOLUME 508, PAGE 125 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
TONY POPE and wife, KAREN POPE VOLUME 915, PAGE 141 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
JORGE ABREU AND TASHA ABREU DOCUMENT NO. 20200000018552 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
LESLIE HOPE AND DARYL HOPE DOCUMENT NO. 20160000016212 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
BOBBY DALE PRICE and wife, BRETTA JEAN PRICE VOLUME 1028, PAGE 142 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
BRET A. WILSON AND LESLIE WILSON VOLUME 1327, PAGE 212 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
JAMES RUSSELL WYLIE, JR. VOLUME 175, PAGE 386 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
PAUL DAVIS JR. DOCUMENT NO. 1983-41393 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
15' WATERLINE EASEMENT R.C.H. WATER SUPPLY CORP. VOL. 929, PG. 271 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
10' S.W. BELL EASEMENT VOL. 1152, PG. 249 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
50' WATERLINE EASEMENT NORTH TEXAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT DOC. NO. 2006-00366548 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
VARIABLE WIDTH ROW DEDICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
10' LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
10' LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
12" IRF BEARS S31°29'46"E 0.8' 0.8'0.8'

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
1/2" IRF (unless otherwise noted)

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
UE

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
Point of Curvature or Tangency on Center Line

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
C1   

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
L1    

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
Drainage Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
Building Line

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
Curve No. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
Line No. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
BL    

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
DE   

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
Control Monument

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
1/2" Iron rod set with a yellow plastic cap stamped "JVC" (unless otherwise noted)

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
SF   

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
Square Feet 

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
Esmt  

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
Easement 

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
AC  

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
Acre 

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
SE

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
Sidewalk Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
D.R.R.C.T.= Deed Records of Rockwall County, Texas

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
Drainage Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
DUE   

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
P.R.R.C.T.= Plat Records of Rockwall County, Texas

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
VE

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
Visibility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
400

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
SCALE  1" = 200'

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
LAKE RAY HUBBARD

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
GENERAL NOTES: 1. OPEN SPACE LOTS SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE HOA. OPEN SPACE LOTS SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE HOA. 2. THE PROPOSED SUBDIVISION WILL BE SERVED BY WATER, THE PROPOSED SUBDIVISION WILL BE SERVED BY WATER,  PROPOSED SUBDIVISION WILL BE SERVED BY WATER, PROPOSED SUBDIVISION WILL BE SERVED BY WATER,  SUBDIVISION WILL BE SERVED BY WATER, SUBDIVISION WILL BE SERVED BY WATER,  WILL BE SERVED BY WATER, WILL BE SERVED BY WATER,  BE SERVED BY WATER, BE SERVED BY WATER,  SERVED BY WATER, SERVED BY WATER,  BY WATER, BY WATER,  WATER, WATER, WASTEWATER, ROADWAY & DRAINAGE AS FOLLOWS:  2.1. WATER - CONNECTIONS TO EXISTING WATER LINES WATER - CONNECTIONS TO EXISTING WATER LINES ON FM 549 & SH 205 2.2. WASTEWATER - CONSTRUCTION OF ONSITE LIFT WASTEWATER - CONSTRUCTION OF ONSITE LIFT STATION AND FORCE MAIN TO EXISTING GRAVITY WASTEWATER LINE ON FM 549 2.3. ROADWAY - CONNECTIONS TO EXISTING ROADWAYS ROADWAY - CONNECTIONS TO EXISTING ROADWAYS FM 549 & SH 205 2.4. DRAINAGE - DRAINAGE TO LONG BRANCH CREEKDRAINAGE - DRAINAGE TO LONG BRANCH CREEK



SHEET 3 OF 4
December 11, 2024

GENERAL NOTES:

1. ALL LOT CORNERS MONUMENTED WITH A 1/2" IRON ROD WITH A YELLOW
PLASTIC CAP STAMPED "JVC" UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

2. ALL UTILITY EASEMENTS AND DRAINAGE EASEMENTS WITHIN THIS PLATTED
PROPERTY ARE CREATED BY THIS PLAT, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

3. BASIS OF BEARING AND COORDINATES SHOWN HEREON REFER TO "TEXAS
STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NORTH CENTRAL ZONE (4202), NORTH
AMERICAN DATUM OF 1983 ON GRID COORDINATE VALUES.

4. LOCATION OF 1% ANNUAL FLOOD CHANCE ESTIMATED FROM FEMA FIRM
PANELS 48397C0045L & & 483970110L DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008.

5. LOTS ADJACENT TO FLOODPLAIN SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM FINISHED FLOOR
ELEVATION 2' ABOVE THE 100-YR WSEL.

6. DRAINAGE EASEMENTS SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE HOA.
7. OPEN SPACE LOTS SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE HOA.

PRELIMINARY PLAT
SOUTHSIDE HILLS
LOTS 1-126, BLOCK A; LOTS 1-18, BLOCK B;

LOTS 1-8, BLOCK C; LOTS 1-14, BLOCK D;
LOTS 1-23, BLOCK E; LOTS 1-23, BLOCK F;
LOTS 1-19, BLOCK G; LOTS 1-12, BLOCK H;
LOTS 1-26, BLOCK I; LOTS 1-21, BLOCK J;
LOTS 1-2, BLOCK K; LOTS 1-11, BLOCK L;

LOTS 1-17, BLOCK M; LOTS 1-4, BLOCK N;
LOTS 1-36, BLOCK O; LOTS 1-23, BLOCK P;

LOTS 1-14, BLOCK Q;
262.94 ACRES OR 11,453,704.24 SF

384 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ,2 COMMERCIAL LOTS,
 10 OPEN SPACES & 1 AMENITY CENTER

SITUATED WITHIN
W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80

CITY OF ROCKWALL,
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

P2024-XXX

Applicant:
Corson Cramer Development
4925 Greenville Ave, Ste. 604

Dallas, Texas 75206
Phone: 214-734-5924

Engineer/Surveyor:
 Johnson Volk Consulting, Inc.

704 Central Parkway East, Suite. 1200
Plano, Texas 75074

Phone: 972-201-3100
Contact: Tom Dayton, PE

Owner:
Rockwall Highgate, Ltd.
13155 Noel Rd., Ste 900

Dallas, Texas 75240
Phone: 214-566-8699

Page 38 of 142



SHEET 4 OF 4
December 11, 2024

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“
”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

Applicant:
Corson Cramer Development
4925 Greenville Ave, Ste. 604

Dallas, Texas 75206
Phone: 214-734-5924

Engineer/Surveyor:
 Johnson Volk Consulting, Inc.

704 Central Parkway East, Suite. 1200
Plano, Texas 75074

Phone: 972-201-3100
Contact: Tom Dayton, PE

PRELIMINARY PLAT
SOUTHSIDE HILLS
LOTS 1-126, BLOCK A; LOTS 1-18, BLOCK B;

LOTS 1-8, BLOCK C; LOTS 1-14, BLOCK D;
LOTS 1-23, BLOCK E; LOTS 1-23, BLOCK F;
LOTS 1-19, BLOCK G; LOTS 1-12, BLOCK H;
LOTS 1-26, BLOCK I; LOTS 1-21, BLOCK J;
LOTS 1-2, BLOCK K; LOTS 1-11, BLOCK L;

LOTS 1-17, BLOCK M; LOTS 1-4, BLOCK N;
LOTS 1-36, BLOCK O; LOTS 1-23, BLOCK P;

LOTS 1-14, BLOCK Q;
262.94 ACRES OR 11,453,704.24 SF

384 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ,2 COMMERCIAL LOTS,
 10 OPEN SPACES & 1 AMENITY CENTER

SITUATED WITHIN
W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80

CITY OF ROCKWALL,
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

P2024-XXX

Owner:
Rockwall Highgate, Ltd.
13155 Noel Rd., Ste 900

Dallas, Texas 75240
Phone: 214-566-8699

Page 39 of 142

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 262.94 ACRES BEING a tract of land situated in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and  a tract of land situated in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and a tract of land situated in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and  tract of land situated in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and tract of land situated in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and  of land situated in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and of land situated in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and  land situated in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and land situated in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and  situated in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and situated in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and  in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and  the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and  W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and  FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and  SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and  ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and  NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and  80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and 80, Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and  Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and Town of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and  of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and  Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and  Rockwall County, Texas and Rockwall County, Texas and  County, Texas and County, Texas and  Texas and Texas and  and and being all of those tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume  all of those tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume all of those tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume  of those tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume of those tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume  those tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume those tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume  tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume  of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume  land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume  described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume  as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume  Tract 1 and Tract 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume Tract 1 and Tract 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume  1 and Tract 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume 1 and Tract 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume  and Tract 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume and Tract 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume  Tract 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume Tract 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume  2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume 2 in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume  in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume  Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume  to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume  Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume  Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume  Ltd., as recorded in Volume Ltd., as recorded in Volume  as recorded in Volume as recorded in Volume  recorded in Volume recorded in Volume  in Volume in Volume  Volume Volume 5015, Page 251, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall  Page 251, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall Page 251, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall  251, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall 251, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall  Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall  Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall  Rockwall County, Texas and being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall Rockwall County, Texas and being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall  County, Texas and being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall County, Texas and being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall  Texas and being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall Texas and being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall  and being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall and being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall  being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall  all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall  of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall  that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall  tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall  of land described in Deed to Rockwall of land described in Deed to Rockwall  land described in Deed to Rockwall land described in Deed to Rockwall  described in Deed to Rockwall described in Deed to Rockwall  in Deed to Rockwall in Deed to Rockwall  Deed to Rockwall Deed to Rockwall  to Rockwall to Rockwall  Rockwall Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume 5572, Page 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more particularly  Ltd., as recorded in Volume 5572, Page 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more particularly Ltd., as recorded in Volume 5572, Page 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more particularly  as recorded in Volume 5572, Page 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more particularly as recorded in Volume 5572, Page 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more particularly  recorded in Volume 5572, Page 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more particularly recorded in Volume 5572, Page 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more particularly  in Volume 5572, Page 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more particularly in Volume 5572, Page 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more particularly  Volume 5572, Page 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more particularly Volume 5572, Page 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more particularly  5572, Page 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more particularly 5572, Page 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more particularly  Page 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more particularly Page 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more particularly  219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more particularly 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more particularly  Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more particularly Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more particularly  Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more particularly Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more particularly  Rockwall County, Texas and being more particularly Rockwall County, Texas and being more particularly  County, Texas and being more particularly County, Texas and being more particularly  Texas and being more particularly Texas and being more particularly  and being more particularly and being more particularly  being more particularly being more particularly  more particularly more particularly  particularly particularly described as follows: BEGINNING at a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205,  at a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, at a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205,  a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205,  1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205,  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205,  iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205,  rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205,  with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205,  a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205,  yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205,  plastic cap stamped “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, plastic cap stamped “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205,  cap stamped “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, cap stamped “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205,  stamped “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, stamped “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205,  “JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, JVC” set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205,  set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, set in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205,  in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205,  the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, the southwest line of State Highway No. 205,  southwest line of State Highway No. 205, southwest line of State Highway No. 205,  line of State Highway No. 205, line of State Highway No. 205,  of State Highway No. 205, of State Highway No. 205,  State Highway No. 205, State Highway No. 205,  Highway No. 205, Highway No. 205,  No. 205, No. 205,  205, 205, a variable width right of way, in the common northwest line of said Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described  variable width right of way, in the common northwest line of said Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described variable width right of way, in the common northwest line of said Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described  width right of way, in the common northwest line of said Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described width right of way, in the common northwest line of said Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described  right of way, in the common northwest line of said Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described right of way, in the common northwest line of said Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described  of way, in the common northwest line of said Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described of way, in the common northwest line of said Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described  way, in the common northwest line of said Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described way, in the common northwest line of said Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described  in the common northwest line of said Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described in the common northwest line of said Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described  the common northwest line of said Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described the common northwest line of said Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described  common northwest line of said Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described common northwest line of said Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described  northwest line of said Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described northwest line of said Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described  line of said Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described line of said Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described  of said Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described of said Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described  said Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described said Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described  Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described Tract 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described  2 and southeast line of that tract of land described 2 and southeast line of that tract of land described  and southeast line of that tract of land described and southeast line of that tract of land described  southeast line of that tract of land described southeast line of that tract of land described  line of that tract of land described line of that tract of land described  of that tract of land described of that tract of land described  that tract of land described that tract of land described  tract of land described tract of land described  of land described of land described  land described land described  described described in Deed to Dr. Mohiudin Zeb, Nasreen Zeb, as recorded in Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed Records, Rockwall, County, Texas;  THENCE Southeasterly, with said southwest line, the following nine (9) courses and distances: South 40 degrees 17 minutes 02 seconds East, a distance of 248.25 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  40 degrees 17 minutes 02 seconds East, a distance of 248.25 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap 40 degrees 17 minutes 02 seconds East, a distance of 248.25 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  degrees 17 minutes 02 seconds East, a distance of 248.25 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap degrees 17 minutes 02 seconds East, a distance of 248.25 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  17 minutes 02 seconds East, a distance of 248.25 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap 17 minutes 02 seconds East, a distance of 248.25 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  minutes 02 seconds East, a distance of 248.25 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap minutes 02 seconds East, a distance of 248.25 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  02 seconds East, a distance of 248.25 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap 02 seconds East, a distance of 248.25 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  seconds East, a distance of 248.25 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap seconds East, a distance of 248.25 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  East, a distance of 248.25 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap East, a distance of 248.25 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  a distance of 248.25 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap a distance of 248.25 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  distance of 248.25 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap distance of 248.25 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  of 248.25 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap of 248.25 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  248.25 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap 248.25 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  iron rod with a pink plastic cap iron rod with a pink plastic cap  rod with a pink plastic cap rod with a pink plastic cap  with a pink plastic cap with a pink plastic cap  a pink plastic cap a pink plastic cap  pink plastic cap pink plastic cap  plastic cap plastic cap  cap cap stamped “TXDOT SURVEY MARKER RIGHT OF WAY” found for corner; TXDOT SURVEY MARKER RIGHT OF WAY” found for corner;  found for corner; South 45 degrees 53 minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 143.27 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  45 degrees 53 minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 143.27 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 45 degrees 53 minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 143.27 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  degrees 53 minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 143.27 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap degrees 53 minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 143.27 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  53 minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 143.27 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 53 minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 143.27 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 143.27 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 143.27 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  03 seconds East, a distance of 143.27 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 03 seconds East, a distance of 143.27 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  seconds East, a distance of 143.27 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap seconds East, a distance of 143.27 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  East, a distance of 143.27 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap East, a distance of 143.27 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  a distance of 143.27 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap a distance of 143.27 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  distance of 143.27 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap distance of 143.27 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  of 143.27 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap of 143.27 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  143.27 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 143.27 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  iron rod with a yellow plastic cap iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  rod with a yellow plastic cap rod with a yellow plastic cap  with a yellow plastic cap with a yellow plastic cap  a yellow plastic cap a yellow plastic cap  yellow plastic cap yellow plastic cap  plastic cap plastic cap  cap cap stamped “JVC” set for corner; JVC” set for corner;  set for corner; North 44 degrees 06 minutes 57 seconds East, a distance of 34.82 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  44 degrees 06 minutes 57 seconds East, a distance of 34.82 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 44 degrees 06 minutes 57 seconds East, a distance of 34.82 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  degrees 06 minutes 57 seconds East, a distance of 34.82 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap degrees 06 minutes 57 seconds East, a distance of 34.82 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  06 minutes 57 seconds East, a distance of 34.82 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 06 minutes 57 seconds East, a distance of 34.82 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  minutes 57 seconds East, a distance of 34.82 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap minutes 57 seconds East, a distance of 34.82 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  57 seconds East, a distance of 34.82 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 57 seconds East, a distance of 34.82 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  seconds East, a distance of 34.82 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap seconds East, a distance of 34.82 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  East, a distance of 34.82 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap East, a distance of 34.82 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  a distance of 34.82 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap a distance of 34.82 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  distance of 34.82 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap distance of 34.82 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  of 34.82 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap of 34.82 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  34.82 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 34.82 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  iron rod with a yellow plastic cap iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  rod with a yellow plastic cap rod with a yellow plastic cap  with a yellow plastic cap with a yellow plastic cap  a yellow plastic cap a yellow plastic cap  yellow plastic cap yellow plastic cap  plastic cap plastic cap  cap cap stamped “JVC” set for corner; JVC” set for corner;  set for corner; South 45 degrees 48 minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 355.93 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  45 degrees 48 minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 355.93 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 45 degrees 48 minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 355.93 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  degrees 48 minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 355.93 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap degrees 48 minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 355.93 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  48 minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 355.93 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 48 minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 355.93 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 355.93 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 355.93 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  12 seconds East, a distance of 355.93 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 12 seconds East, a distance of 355.93 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  seconds East, a distance of 355.93 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap seconds East, a distance of 355.93 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  East, a distance of 355.93 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap East, a distance of 355.93 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  a distance of 355.93 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap a distance of 355.93 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  distance of 355.93 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap distance of 355.93 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  of 355.93 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap of 355.93 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  355.93 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 355.93 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  iron rod with a yellow plastic cap iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  rod with a yellow plastic cap rod with a yellow plastic cap  with a yellow plastic cap with a yellow plastic cap  a yellow plastic cap a yellow plastic cap  yellow plastic cap yellow plastic cap  plastic cap plastic cap  cap cap stamped “JVC” set for corner; JVC” set for corner;  set for corner; South 41 degrees 25 minutes 46 seconds East, a distance of 50.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  41 degrees 25 minutes 46 seconds East, a distance of 50.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap 41 degrees 25 minutes 46 seconds East, a distance of 50.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  degrees 25 minutes 46 seconds East, a distance of 50.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap degrees 25 minutes 46 seconds East, a distance of 50.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  25 minutes 46 seconds East, a distance of 50.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap 25 minutes 46 seconds East, a distance of 50.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  minutes 46 seconds East, a distance of 50.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap minutes 46 seconds East, a distance of 50.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  46 seconds East, a distance of 50.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap 46 seconds East, a distance of 50.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  seconds East, a distance of 50.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap seconds East, a distance of 50.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  East, a distance of 50.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap East, a distance of 50.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  a distance of 50.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap a distance of 50.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  distance of 50.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap distance of 50.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  of 50.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap of 50.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  50.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap 50.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  iron rod with a pink plastic cap iron rod with a pink plastic cap  rod with a pink plastic cap rod with a pink plastic cap  with a pink plastic cap with a pink plastic cap  a pink plastic cap a pink plastic cap  pink plastic cap pink plastic cap  plastic cap plastic cap  cap cap stamped “TXDOT SURVEY MARKER RIGHT OF WAY” found for corner; TXDOT SURVEY MARKER RIGHT OF WAY” found for corner;  found for corner;  South 38 degrees 34 minutes 47 seconds East, a distance of 307.39 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap South 38 degrees 34 minutes 47 seconds East, a distance of 307.39 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  38 degrees 34 minutes 47 seconds East, a distance of 307.39 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap 38 degrees 34 minutes 47 seconds East, a distance of 307.39 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  degrees 34 minutes 47 seconds East, a distance of 307.39 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap degrees 34 minutes 47 seconds East, a distance of 307.39 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  34 minutes 47 seconds East, a distance of 307.39 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap 34 minutes 47 seconds East, a distance of 307.39 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  minutes 47 seconds East, a distance of 307.39 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap minutes 47 seconds East, a distance of 307.39 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  47 seconds East, a distance of 307.39 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap 47 seconds East, a distance of 307.39 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  seconds East, a distance of 307.39 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap seconds East, a distance of 307.39 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  East, a distance of 307.39 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap East, a distance of 307.39 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  a distance of 307.39 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap a distance of 307.39 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  distance of 307.39 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap distance of 307.39 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  of 307.39 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap of 307.39 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  307.39 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap 307.39 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  iron rod with a pink plastic cap iron rod with a pink plastic cap  rod with a pink plastic cap rod with a pink plastic cap  with a pink plastic cap with a pink plastic cap  a pink plastic cap a pink plastic cap  pink plastic cap pink plastic cap  plastic cap plastic cap  cap cap stamped “TXDOT SURVEY MARKER RIGHT OF WAY” found for corner; TXDOT SURVEY MARKER RIGHT OF WAY” found for corner;  found for corner; South 44 degrees 34 minutes 51 seconds East, a distance of 50.00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  44 degrees 34 minutes 51 seconds East, a distance of 50.00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap 44 degrees 34 minutes 51 seconds East, a distance of 50.00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  degrees 34 minutes 51 seconds East, a distance of 50.00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap degrees 34 minutes 51 seconds East, a distance of 50.00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  34 minutes 51 seconds East, a distance of 50.00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap 34 minutes 51 seconds East, a distance of 50.00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  minutes 51 seconds East, a distance of 50.00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap minutes 51 seconds East, a distance of 50.00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  51 seconds East, a distance of 50.00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap 51 seconds East, a distance of 50.00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  seconds East, a distance of 50.00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap seconds East, a distance of 50.00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  East, a distance of 50.00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap East, a distance of 50.00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  a distance of 50.00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap a distance of 50.00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  distance of 50.00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap distance of 50.00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  of 50.00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap of 50.00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  50.00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap 50.00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  iron rod with a pink plastic cap iron rod with a pink plastic cap  rod with a pink plastic cap rod with a pink plastic cap  with a pink plastic cap with a pink plastic cap  a pink plastic cap a pink plastic cap  pink plastic cap pink plastic cap  plastic cap plastic cap  cap cap stamped “TXDOT SURVEY MARKER RIGHT OF WAY” found for corner; TXDOT SURVEY MARKER RIGHT OF WAY” found for corner;  found for corner; South 51 degrees 01 minutes 14 seconds East, a distance of 178.01 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  51 degrees 01 minutes 14 seconds East, a distance of 178.01 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap 51 degrees 01 minutes 14 seconds East, a distance of 178.01 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  degrees 01 minutes 14 seconds East, a distance of 178.01 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap degrees 01 minutes 14 seconds East, a distance of 178.01 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  01 minutes 14 seconds East, a distance of 178.01 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap 01 minutes 14 seconds East, a distance of 178.01 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  minutes 14 seconds East, a distance of 178.01 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap minutes 14 seconds East, a distance of 178.01 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  14 seconds East, a distance of 178.01 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap 14 seconds East, a distance of 178.01 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  seconds East, a distance of 178.01 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap seconds East, a distance of 178.01 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  East, a distance of 178.01 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap East, a distance of 178.01 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  a distance of 178.01 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap a distance of 178.01 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  distance of 178.01 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap distance of 178.01 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  of 178.01 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap of 178.01 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  178.01 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap 178.01 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap a 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap 5/8 inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap inch iron rod with a pink plastic cap  iron rod with a pink plastic cap iron rod with a pink plastic cap  rod with a pink plastic cap rod with a pink plastic cap  with a pink plastic cap with a pink plastic cap  a pink plastic cap a pink plastic cap  pink plastic cap pink plastic cap  plastic cap plastic cap  cap cap stamped “TXDOT SURVEY MARKER RIGHT OF WAY” found for corner; TXDOT SURVEY MARKER RIGHT OF WAY” found for corner;  found for corner; South 46 degrees 03 minutes 36 seconds East, a distance of 1,363.83 feet to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET &  46 degrees 03 minutes 36 seconds East, a distance of 1,363.83 feet to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET & 46 degrees 03 minutes 36 seconds East, a distance of 1,363.83 feet to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET &  degrees 03 minutes 36 seconds East, a distance of 1,363.83 feet to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET & degrees 03 minutes 36 seconds East, a distance of 1,363.83 feet to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET &  03 minutes 36 seconds East, a distance of 1,363.83 feet to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET & 03 minutes 36 seconds East, a distance of 1,363.83 feet to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET &  minutes 36 seconds East, a distance of 1,363.83 feet to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET & minutes 36 seconds East, a distance of 1,363.83 feet to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET &  36 seconds East, a distance of 1,363.83 feet to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET & 36 seconds East, a distance of 1,363.83 feet to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET &  seconds East, a distance of 1,363.83 feet to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET & seconds East, a distance of 1,363.83 feet to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET &  East, a distance of 1,363.83 feet to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET & East, a distance of 1,363.83 feet to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET &  a distance of 1,363.83 feet to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET & a distance of 1,363.83 feet to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET &  distance of 1,363.83 feet to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET & distance of 1,363.83 feet to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET &  of 1,363.83 feet to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET & of 1,363.83 feet to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET &  1,363.83 feet to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET & 1,363.83 feet to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET &  feet to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET & feet to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET &  to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET & to a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET &  a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET & a mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET &  mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET & mag nail with washer stamped “DOUCET &  nail with washer stamped “DOUCET & nail with washer stamped “DOUCET &  with washer stamped “DOUCET & with washer stamped “DOUCET &  washer stamped “DOUCET & washer stamped “DOUCET &  stamped “DOUCET & stamped “DOUCET &  “DOUCET & DOUCET &  & & ASSOCIATES” found for corner in the common northwest line of that tract of land described in Deed to Joseph Edward  found for corner in the common northwest line of that tract of land described in Deed to Joseph Edward found for corner in the common northwest line of that tract of land described in Deed to Joseph Edward  for corner in the common northwest line of that tract of land described in Deed to Joseph Edward for corner in the common northwest line of that tract of land described in Deed to Joseph Edward  corner in the common northwest line of that tract of land described in Deed to Joseph Edward corner in the common northwest line of that tract of land described in Deed to Joseph Edward  in the common northwest line of that tract of land described in Deed to Joseph Edward in the common northwest line of that tract of land described in Deed to Joseph Edward  the common northwest line of that tract of land described in Deed to Joseph Edward the common northwest line of that tract of land described in Deed to Joseph Edward  common northwest line of that tract of land described in Deed to Joseph Edward common northwest line of that tract of land described in Deed to Joseph Edward  northwest line of that tract of land described in Deed to Joseph Edward northwest line of that tract of land described in Deed to Joseph Edward  line of that tract of land described in Deed to Joseph Edward line of that tract of land described in Deed to Joseph Edward  of that tract of land described in Deed to Joseph Edward of that tract of land described in Deed to Joseph Edward  that tract of land described in Deed to Joseph Edward that tract of land described in Deed to Joseph Edward  tract of land described in Deed to Joseph Edward tract of land described in Deed to Joseph Edward  of land described in Deed to Joseph Edward of land described in Deed to Joseph Edward  land described in Deed to Joseph Edward land described in Deed to Joseph Edward  described in Deed to Joseph Edward described in Deed to Joseph Edward  in Deed to Joseph Edward in Deed to Joseph Edward  Deed to Joseph Edward Deed to Joseph Edward  to Joseph Edward to Joseph Edward  Joseph Edward Joseph Edward  Edward Edward Baumann, as recorded in Document No. 2010-436143, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and southeast line of said  as recorded in Document No. 2010-436143, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and southeast line of said as recorded in Document No. 2010-436143, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and southeast line of said  recorded in Document No. 2010-436143, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and southeast line of said recorded in Document No. 2010-436143, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and southeast line of said  in Document No. 2010-436143, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and southeast line of said in Document No. 2010-436143, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and southeast line of said  Document No. 2010-436143, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and southeast line of said Document No. 2010-436143, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and southeast line of said  No. 2010-436143, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and southeast line of said No. 2010-436143, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and southeast line of said  2010-436143, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and southeast line of said 2010-436143, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and southeast line of said  Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and southeast line of said Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and southeast line of said  Records, Rockwall County, Texas and southeast line of said Records, Rockwall County, Texas and southeast line of said  Rockwall County, Texas and southeast line of said Rockwall County, Texas and southeast line of said  County, Texas and southeast line of said County, Texas and southeast line of said  Texas and southeast line of said Texas and southeast line of said  and southeast line of said and southeast line of said  southeast line of said southeast line of said  line of said line of said  of said of said  said said Tract 2; THENCE South 44 degrees 19 minutes 10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line of State Highway No. 205 and with the  South 44 degrees 19 minutes 10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line of State Highway No. 205 and with the South 44 degrees 19 minutes 10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line of State Highway No. 205 and with the  44 degrees 19 minutes 10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line of State Highway No. 205 and with the 44 degrees 19 minutes 10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line of State Highway No. 205 and with the  degrees 19 minutes 10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line of State Highway No. 205 and with the degrees 19 minutes 10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line of State Highway No. 205 and with the  19 minutes 10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line of State Highway No. 205 and with the 19 minutes 10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line of State Highway No. 205 and with the  minutes 10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line of State Highway No. 205 and with the minutes 10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line of State Highway No. 205 and with the  10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line of State Highway No. 205 and with the 10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line of State Highway No. 205 and with the  seconds West, leaving said southwest line of State Highway No. 205 and with the seconds West, leaving said southwest line of State Highway No. 205 and with the  West, leaving said southwest line of State Highway No. 205 and with the West, leaving said southwest line of State Highway No. 205 and with the  leaving said southwest line of State Highway No. 205 and with the leaving said southwest line of State Highway No. 205 and with the  said southwest line of State Highway No. 205 and with the said southwest line of State Highway No. 205 and with the  southwest line of State Highway No. 205 and with the southwest line of State Highway No. 205 and with the  line of State Highway No. 205 and with the line of State Highway No. 205 and with the  of State Highway No. 205 and with the of State Highway No. 205 and with the  State Highway No. 205 and with the State Highway No. 205 and with the  Highway No. 205 and with the Highway No. 205 and with the  No. 205 and with the No. 205 and with the  205 and with the 205 and with the  and with the and with the  with the with the  the the southeast line of said Tract 2, a distance of 2,578.96 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of  line of said Tract 2, a distance of 2,578.96 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of line of said Tract 2, a distance of 2,578.96 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of  of said Tract 2, a distance of 2,578.96 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of of said Tract 2, a distance of 2,578.96 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of  said Tract 2, a distance of 2,578.96 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of said Tract 2, a distance of 2,578.96 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of  Tract 2, a distance of 2,578.96 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of Tract 2, a distance of 2,578.96 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of  2, a distance of 2,578.96 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of 2, a distance of 2,578.96 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of  a distance of 2,578.96 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of a distance of 2,578.96 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of  distance of 2,578.96 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of distance of 2,578.96 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of  of 2,578.96 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of of 2,578.96 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of  2,578.96 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of 2,578.96 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of  to a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of to a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of  a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of  1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of 1/2 inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of  inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of inch iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of  iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of iron rod found in the northwest line of that tract of  rod found in the northwest line of that tract of rod found in the northwest line of that tract of  found in the northwest line of that tract of found in the northwest line of that tract of  in the northwest line of that tract of in the northwest line of that tract of  the northwest line of that tract of the northwest line of that tract of  northwest line of that tract of northwest line of that tract of  line of that tract of line of that tract of  of that tract of of that tract of  that tract of that tract of  tract of tract of  of of land described in Deed to Paul Davis Jr., as recorded in Document No. 1983-41393, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas; THENCE South 45 degrees 05 minutes 45 seconds West, a distance of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  South 45 degrees 05 minutes 45 seconds West, a distance of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic South 45 degrees 05 minutes 45 seconds West, a distance of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  45 degrees 05 minutes 45 seconds West, a distance of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 45 degrees 05 minutes 45 seconds West, a distance of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  degrees 05 minutes 45 seconds West, a distance of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic degrees 05 minutes 45 seconds West, a distance of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  05 minutes 45 seconds West, a distance of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 05 minutes 45 seconds West, a distance of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  minutes 45 seconds West, a distance of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic minutes 45 seconds West, a distance of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  45 seconds West, a distance of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 45 seconds West, a distance of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  seconds West, a distance of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic seconds West, a distance of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  West, a distance of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic West, a distance of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  a distance of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic a distance of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  distance of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic distance of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  iron rod with a yellow plastic iron rod with a yellow plastic  rod with a yellow plastic rod with a yellow plastic  with a yellow plastic with a yellow plastic  a yellow plastic a yellow plastic  yellow plastic yellow plastic  plastic plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the most southerly southeast corner of the above mentioned Tract 1; JVC” set for the most southerly southeast corner of the above mentioned Tract 1;  set for the most southerly southeast corner of the above mentioned Tract 1; THENCE North 45 degrees 20 minutes 38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a  North 45 degrees 20 minutes 38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a North 45 degrees 20 minutes 38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a  45 degrees 20 minutes 38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a 45 degrees 20 minutes 38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a  degrees 20 minutes 38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a degrees 20 minutes 38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a  20 minutes 38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a 20 minutes 38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a  minutes 38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a minutes 38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a  38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a 38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a  seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a  West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a  with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a  the southwest line of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a the southwest line of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a  southwest line of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a southwest line of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a  line of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a line of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a  of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a of said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a  said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a said Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a  Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a Tract 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a  1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a 1, a distance of 315.37 feet to a  a distance of 315.37 feet to a a distance of 315.37 feet to a  distance of 315.37 feet to a distance of 315.37 feet to a  of 315.37 feet to a of 315.37 feet to a  315.37 feet to a 315.37 feet to a  feet to a feet to a  to a to a  a a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume  iron rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume iron rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume  rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume  with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume  a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume  yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume  plastic cap found for the east corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume plastic cap found for the east corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume  cap found for the east corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume cap found for the east corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume  found for the east corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume found for the east corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume  for the east corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume for the east corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume  the east corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume the east corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume  east corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume east corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume  corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume  of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume  said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume  Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume  Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume  Ltd. tract recorded in Volume Ltd. tract recorded in Volume  tract recorded in Volume tract recorded in Volume  recorded in Volume recorded in Volume  in Volume in Volume  Volume Volume 5572, Page 219; THENCE South 44 degrees 05 minutes 31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch  South 44 degrees 05 minutes 31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch South 44 degrees 05 minutes 31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch  44 degrees 05 minutes 31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch 44 degrees 05 minutes 31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch  degrees 05 minutes 31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch degrees 05 minutes 31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch  05 minutes 31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch 05 minutes 31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch  minutes 31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch minutes 31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch  31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch 31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch  seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch  West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch  leaving said southwest line, a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch leaving said southwest line, a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch  said southwest line, a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch said southwest line, a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch  southwest line, a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch southwest line, a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch  line, a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch line, a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch  a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch a distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch  distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch distance of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch  of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch  690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch  feet to a 1/2 inch feet to a 1/2 inch  to a 1/2 inch to a 1/2 inch  a 1/2 inch a 1/2 inch  1/2 inch 1/2 inch  inch inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in  rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in  with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in  a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in  yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in  plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in  cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in  stamped “JVC” set for the south corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in stamped “JVC” set for the south corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in  “JVC” set for the south corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in JVC” set for the south corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in  set for the south corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in set for the south corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in  for the south corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in for the south corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in  the south corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in the south corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in  south corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in south corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in  corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in  of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in  said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in  Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in  Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in  Ltd. tract recorded in Ltd. tract recorded in  tract recorded in tract recorded in  recorded in recorded in  in in Volume 5572, Page 219; THENCE North 32 degrees 39 minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  North 32 degrees 39 minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic North 32 degrees 39 minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  32 degrees 39 minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 32 degrees 39 minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  degrees 39 minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic degrees 39 minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  39 minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 39 minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  iron rod with a yellow plastic iron rod with a yellow plastic  rod with a yellow plastic rod with a yellow plastic  with a yellow plastic with a yellow plastic  a yellow plastic a yellow plastic  yellow plastic yellow plastic  plastic plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume 5572, Page 219; JVC” set for the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume 5572, Page 219;  set for the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume 5572, Page 219; THENCE North 62 degrees 15 minutes 39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  North 62 degrees 15 minutes 39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic North 62 degrees 15 minutes 39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  62 degrees 15 minutes 39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 62 degrees 15 minutes 39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  degrees 15 minutes 39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic degrees 15 minutes 39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  15 minutes 39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 15 minutes 39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  minutes 39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic minutes 39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  iron rod with a yellow plastic iron rod with a yellow plastic  rod with a yellow plastic rod with a yellow plastic  with a yellow plastic with a yellow plastic  a yellow plastic a yellow plastic  yellow plastic yellow plastic  plastic plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume 5572, Page 219; JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume 5572, Page 219;  set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume 5572, Page 219; THENCE North 61 degrees 56 minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  North 61 degrees 56 minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic North 61 degrees 56 minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  61 degrees 56 minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 61 degrees 56 minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  degrees 56 minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic degrees 56 minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  56 minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 56 minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  iron rod with a yellow plastic iron rod with a yellow plastic  rod with a yellow plastic rod with a yellow plastic  with a yellow plastic with a yellow plastic  a yellow plastic a yellow plastic  yellow plastic yellow plastic  plastic plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume 5572, Page 219; JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume 5572, Page 219;  set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume 5572, Page 219; THENCE North 45 degrees 09 minutes 15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  North 45 degrees 09 minutes 15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic North 45 degrees 09 minutes 15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  45 degrees 09 minutes 15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 45 degrees 09 minutes 15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  degrees 09 minutes 15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic degrees 09 minutes 15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  09 minutes 15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 09 minutes 15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  minutes 15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic minutes 15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  iron rod with a yellow plastic iron rod with a yellow plastic  rod with a yellow plastic rod with a yellow plastic  with a yellow plastic with a yellow plastic  a yellow plastic a yellow plastic  yellow plastic yellow plastic  plastic plastic cap found in the southwest line of the above mentioned Tract 1; THENCE North 45 degrees 15 minutes 38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  North 45 degrees 15 minutes 38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic North 45 degrees 15 minutes 38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  45 degrees 15 minutes 38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 45 degrees 15 minutes 38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  degrees 15 minutes 38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic degrees 15 minutes 38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  15 minutes 38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 15 minutes 38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  minutes 38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic minutes 38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  iron rod with a yellow plastic iron rod with a yellow plastic  rod with a yellow plastic rod with a yellow plastic  with a yellow plastic with a yellow plastic  a yellow plastic a yellow plastic  yellow plastic yellow plastic  plastic plastic cap stamped “RSCI RPLS 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715,  stamped “RSCI RPLS 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715, stamped “RSCI RPLS 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715,  “RSCI RPLS 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715, RSCI RPLS 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715,  RPLS 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715, RPLS 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715,  5034” found for corner at the beginning of a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715, 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715,  found for corner at the beginning of a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715, found for corner at the beginning of a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715,  for corner at the beginning of a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715, for corner at the beginning of a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715,  corner at the beginning of a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715, corner at the beginning of a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715,  at the beginning of a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715, at the beginning of a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715,  the beginning of a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715, the beginning of a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715,  beginning of a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715, beginning of a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715,  of a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715, of a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715,  a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715, a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715,  Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715, Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715,  Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715, Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715,  Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715, Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715,  as recorded in Volume 4715, as recorded in Volume 4715,  recorded in Volume 4715, recorded in Volume 4715,  in Volume 4715, in Volume 4715,  Volume 4715, Volume 4715,  4715, 4715, Page 230 (Document No. 2006-00361312), Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas; THENCE Northwesterly, with said Boundary Line Agreement, the following six (6) courses and distances: North 44 degrees 04 minutes 30 seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  44 degrees 04 minutes 30 seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 44 degrees 04 minutes 30 seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  degrees 04 minutes 30 seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap degrees 04 minutes 30 seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  04 minutes 30 seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 04 minutes 30 seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  minutes 30 seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap minutes 30 seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  30 seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 30 seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  iron rod with a yellow plastic cap iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  rod with a yellow plastic cap rod with a yellow plastic cap  with a yellow plastic cap with a yellow plastic cap  a yellow plastic cap a yellow plastic cap  yellow plastic cap yellow plastic cap  plastic cap plastic cap  cap cap found for corner; North 48 degrees 39 minutes 02 seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  48 degrees 39 minutes 02 seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 48 degrees 39 minutes 02 seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  degrees 39 minutes 02 seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap degrees 39 minutes 02 seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  39 minutes 02 seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 39 minutes 02 seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  minutes 02 seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap minutes 02 seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  02 seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 02 seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  iron rod with a yellow plastic cap iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  rod with a yellow plastic cap rod with a yellow plastic cap  with a yellow plastic cap with a yellow plastic cap  a yellow plastic cap a yellow plastic cap  yellow plastic cap yellow plastic cap  plastic cap plastic cap  cap cap found for corner; North 39 degrees 59 minutes 19 seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  39 degrees 59 minutes 19 seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 39 degrees 59 minutes 19 seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  degrees 59 minutes 19 seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap degrees 59 minutes 19 seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  59 minutes 19 seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 59 minutes 19 seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  minutes 19 seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap minutes 19 seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  19 seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 19 seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  iron rod with a yellow plastic cap iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  rod with a yellow plastic cap rod with a yellow plastic cap  with a yellow plastic cap with a yellow plastic cap  a yellow plastic cap a yellow plastic cap  yellow plastic cap yellow plastic cap  plastic cap plastic cap  cap cap stamped “RSCI RPLS 5034” found for corner; RSCI RPLS 5034” found for corner;  found for corner; North 44 degrees 51 minutes 58 seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  44 degrees 51 minutes 58 seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 44 degrees 51 minutes 58 seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  degrees 51 minutes 58 seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap degrees 51 minutes 58 seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  51 minutes 58 seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 51 minutes 58 seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  minutes 58 seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap minutes 58 seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  58 seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 58 seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  iron rod with a yellow plastic cap iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  rod with a yellow plastic cap rod with a yellow plastic cap  with a yellow plastic cap with a yellow plastic cap  a yellow plastic cap a yellow plastic cap  yellow plastic cap yellow plastic cap  plastic cap plastic cap  cap cap stamped “JVC” set for corner; JVC” set for corner;  set for corner; South 44 degrees 53 minutes 18 seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  44 degrees 53 minutes 18 seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 44 degrees 53 minutes 18 seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  degrees 53 minutes 18 seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap degrees 53 minutes 18 seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  53 minutes 18 seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 53 minutes 18 seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  minutes 18 seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap minutes 18 seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  18 seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 18 seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  iron rod with a yellow plastic cap iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  rod with a yellow plastic cap rod with a yellow plastic cap  with a yellow plastic cap with a yellow plastic cap  a yellow plastic cap a yellow plastic cap  yellow plastic cap yellow plastic cap  plastic cap plastic cap  cap cap stamped “JVC” set for corner in the west line of said Tract 1; JVC” set for corner in the west line of said Tract 1;  set for corner in the west line of said Tract 1; THENCE Northwesterly, with said west line, the following three (3) courses and distances: North 45 degrees 16 minutes 15 seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  45 degrees 16 minutes 15 seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 45 degrees 16 minutes 15 seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  degrees 16 minutes 15 seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap degrees 16 minutes 15 seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  16 minutes 15 seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 16 minutes 15 seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  minutes 15 seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap minutes 15 seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  15 seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 15 seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  iron rod with a yellow plastic cap iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  rod with a yellow plastic cap rod with a yellow plastic cap  with a yellow plastic cap with a yellow plastic cap  a yellow plastic cap a yellow plastic cap  yellow plastic cap yellow plastic cap  plastic cap plastic cap  cap cap stamped “JVC” set for corner the common south corner of that tract of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie  “JVC” set for corner the common south corner of that tract of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie JVC” set for corner the common south corner of that tract of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie  set for corner the common south corner of that tract of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie set for corner the common south corner of that tract of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie  for corner the common south corner of that tract of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie for corner the common south corner of that tract of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie  corner the common south corner of that tract of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie corner the common south corner of that tract of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie  the common south corner of that tract of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie the common south corner of that tract of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie  common south corner of that tract of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie common south corner of that tract of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie  south corner of that tract of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie south corner of that tract of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie  corner of that tract of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie corner of that tract of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie  of that tract of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie of that tract of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie  that tract of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie that tract of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie  tract of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie tract of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie  of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie  land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie  described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie  in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie  Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie  to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie  Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Bret A. Wilson and Leslie  A. Wilson and Leslie A. Wilson and Leslie  Wilson and Leslie Wilson and Leslie  and Leslie and Leslie  Leslie Leslie Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327, Page 212, Deed Records, Rockwall, County, Texas and an exterior ell corner of said  as recorded in Volume 1327, Page 212, Deed Records, Rockwall, County, Texas and an exterior ell corner of said as recorded in Volume 1327, Page 212, Deed Records, Rockwall, County, Texas and an exterior ell corner of said  recorded in Volume 1327, Page 212, Deed Records, Rockwall, County, Texas and an exterior ell corner of said recorded in Volume 1327, Page 212, Deed Records, Rockwall, County, Texas and an exterior ell corner of said  in Volume 1327, Page 212, Deed Records, Rockwall, County, Texas and an exterior ell corner of said in Volume 1327, Page 212, Deed Records, Rockwall, County, Texas and an exterior ell corner of said  Volume 1327, Page 212, Deed Records, Rockwall, County, Texas and an exterior ell corner of said Volume 1327, Page 212, Deed Records, Rockwall, County, Texas and an exterior ell corner of said  1327, Page 212, Deed Records, Rockwall, County, Texas and an exterior ell corner of said 1327, Page 212, Deed Records, Rockwall, County, Texas and an exterior ell corner of said  Page 212, Deed Records, Rockwall, County, Texas and an exterior ell corner of said Page 212, Deed Records, Rockwall, County, Texas and an exterior ell corner of said  212, Deed Records, Rockwall, County, Texas and an exterior ell corner of said 212, Deed Records, Rockwall, County, Texas and an exterior ell corner of said  Deed Records, Rockwall, County, Texas and an exterior ell corner of said Deed Records, Rockwall, County, Texas and an exterior ell corner of said  Records, Rockwall, County, Texas and an exterior ell corner of said Records, Rockwall, County, Texas and an exterior ell corner of said  Rockwall, County, Texas and an exterior ell corner of said Rockwall, County, Texas and an exterior ell corner of said  County, Texas and an exterior ell corner of said County, Texas and an exterior ell corner of said  Texas and an exterior ell corner of said Texas and an exterior ell corner of said  and an exterior ell corner of said and an exterior ell corner of said  an exterior ell corner of said an exterior ell corner of said  exterior ell corner of said exterior ell corner of said  ell corner of said ell corner of said  corner of said corner of said  of said of said  said said Tract 1; North 44 degrees 44 minutes 29 seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  44 degrees 44 minutes 29 seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 44 degrees 44 minutes 29 seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  degrees 44 minutes 29 seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap degrees 44 minutes 29 seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  44 minutes 29 seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 44 minutes 29 seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  minutes 29 seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap minutes 29 seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  29 seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 29 seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  iron rod with a yellow plastic cap iron rod with a yellow plastic cap  rod with a yellow plastic cap rod with a yellow plastic cap  with a yellow plastic cap with a yellow plastic cap  a yellow plastic cap a yellow plastic cap  yellow plastic cap yellow plastic cap  plastic cap plastic cap  cap cap stamped “JVC” set for the common east corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of  “JVC” set for the common east corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of JVC” set for the common east corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of  set for the common east corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of set for the common east corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of  for the common east corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of for the common east corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of  the common east corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of the common east corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of  common east corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of common east corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of  east corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of east corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of  corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of  of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of  said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of  Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of  A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of  Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of  and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of  Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of  Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of  tract and an interior ell corner of tract and an interior ell corner of  and an interior ell corner of and an interior ell corner of  an interior ell corner of an interior ell corner of  interior ell corner of interior ell corner of  ell corner of ell corner of  corner of corner of  of of said Tract 1; North 31 degrees 29 minutes 46 seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  31 degrees 29 minutes 46 seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the 31 degrees 29 minutes 46 seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  degrees 29 minutes 46 seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the degrees 29 minutes 46 seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  29 minutes 46 seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the 29 minutes 46 seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  minutes 46 seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the minutes 46 seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  46 seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the 46 seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the feet a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  1/2 inch iron rod found for the 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  inch iron rod found for the inch iron rod found for the  iron rod found for the iron rod found for the  rod found for the rod found for the  found for the found for the  for the for the  the the common north corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed  north corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed north corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed  corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed  of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed  said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed  Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed  A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed  Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed  and Leslie Wilson tract and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed and Leslie Wilson tract and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed  Leslie Wilson tract and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed Leslie Wilson tract and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed  Wilson tract and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed Wilson tract and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed  tract and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed tract and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed  and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed  east corner of that tract of land described in Deed east corner of that tract of land described in Deed  corner of that tract of land described in Deed corner of that tract of land described in Deed  of that tract of land described in Deed of that tract of land described in Deed  that tract of land described in Deed that tract of land described in Deed  tract of land described in Deed tract of land described in Deed  of land described in Deed of land described in Deed  land described in Deed land described in Deed  described in Deed described in Deed  in Deed in Deed  Deed Deed to Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean Price, as recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean Price, as recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean Price, as recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean Price, as recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean Price, as recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  Price and wife, Bretta Jean Price, as recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Price and wife, Bretta Jean Price, as recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  and wife, Bretta Jean Price, as recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, and wife, Bretta Jean Price, as recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  wife, Bretta Jean Price, as recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, wife, Bretta Jean Price, as recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  Bretta Jean Price, as recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Bretta Jean Price, as recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  Jean Price, as recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Jean Price, as recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  Price, as recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Price, as recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  as recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, as recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  Deed Records, Rockwall County, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  Records, Rockwall County, Records, Rockwall County,  Rockwall County, Rockwall County,  County, County, Texas, and continuing in all for a total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road  and continuing in all for a total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road and continuing in all for a total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road  continuing in all for a total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road continuing in all for a total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road  in all for a total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road in all for a total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road  all for a total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road all for a total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road  for a total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road for a total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road  a total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road a total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road  total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road  distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road  of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road  857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road  feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road  to a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road to a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road  a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road a point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road  point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road point in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road  in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road in the southeast line of Farm to Market Road  the southeast line of Farm to Market Road the southeast line of Farm to Market Road  southeast line of Farm to Market Road southeast line of Farm to Market Road  line of Farm to Market Road line of Farm to Market Road  of Farm to Market Road of Farm to Market Road  Farm to Market Road Farm to Market Road  to Market Road to Market Road  Market Road Market Road  Road Road No. 548, a variable width right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46  548, a variable width right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46 548, a variable width right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46  a variable width right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46 a variable width right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46  variable width right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46 variable width right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46  width right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46 width right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46  right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46 right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46  from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46 from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46  which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46 which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46  point a 1/2 inch iron rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46 point a 1/2 inch iron rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46  a 1/2 inch iron rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46 a 1/2 inch iron rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46  1/2 inch iron rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46 1/2 inch iron rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46  inch iron rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46 inch iron rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46  iron rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46 iron rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46  rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46 rod found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46  found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46 found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46  bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46 bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46  South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46 South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46  31 degrees 29 minutes 46 31 degrees 29 minutes 46  degrees 29 minutes 46 degrees 29 minutes 46  29 minutes 46 29 minutes 46  minutes 46 minutes 46  46 46 seconds East, 0.80 feet, said point being at the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01  East, 0.80 feet, said point being at the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01 East, 0.80 feet, said point being at the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01  0.80 feet, said point being at the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01 0.80 feet, said point being at the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01  feet, said point being at the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01 feet, said point being at the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01  said point being at the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01 said point being at the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01  point being at the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01 point being at the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01  being at the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01 being at the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01  at the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01 at the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01  the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01 the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01  beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01 beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01  of a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01 of a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01  a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01 a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01  non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01 non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01  curve to the left having a central angle of 01 curve to the left having a central angle of 01  to the left having a central angle of 01 to the left having a central angle of 01  the left having a central angle of 01 the left having a central angle of 01  left having a central angle of 01 left having a central angle of 01  having a central angle of 01 having a central angle of 01  a central angle of 01 a central angle of 01  central angle of 01 central angle of 01  angle of 01 angle of 01  of 01 of 01  01 01 degrees 12 minutes 54 seconds, a radius of 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17  12 minutes 54 seconds, a radius of 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17 12 minutes 54 seconds, a radius of 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17  minutes 54 seconds, a radius of 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17 minutes 54 seconds, a radius of 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17  54 seconds, a radius of 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17 54 seconds, a radius of 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17  seconds, a radius of 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17 seconds, a radius of 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17  a radius of 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17 a radius of 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17  radius of 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17 radius of 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17  of 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17 of 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17  5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17  feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17  and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17 and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17  a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17 a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17  chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17 chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17  bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17 bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17  and distance of North 45 degrees 17 and distance of North 45 degrees 17  distance of North 45 degrees 17 distance of North 45 degrees 17  of North 45 degrees 17 of North 45 degrees 17  North 45 degrees 17 North 45 degrees 17  45 degrees 17 45 degrees 17  degrees 17 degrees 17  17 17 minutes 02 seconds East, 122.92 feet; THENCE Northeasterly, with said southeast line, the following three (3) courses and distances: Northeasterly, with said curve to the left, an arc distance of 122.93 feet to a concrete pedestal monument found for  with said curve to the left, an arc distance of 122.93 feet to a concrete pedestal monument found for with said curve to the left, an arc distance of 122.93 feet to a concrete pedestal monument found for  said curve to the left, an arc distance of 122.93 feet to a concrete pedestal monument found for said curve to the left, an arc distance of 122.93 feet to a concrete pedestal monument found for  curve to the left, an arc distance of 122.93 feet to a concrete pedestal monument found for curve to the left, an arc distance of 122.93 feet to a concrete pedestal monument found for  to the left, an arc distance of 122.93 feet to a concrete pedestal monument found for to the left, an arc distance of 122.93 feet to a concrete pedestal monument found for  the left, an arc distance of 122.93 feet to a concrete pedestal monument found for the left, an arc distance of 122.93 feet to a concrete pedestal monument found for  left, an arc distance of 122.93 feet to a concrete pedestal monument found for left, an arc distance of 122.93 feet to a concrete pedestal monument found for  an arc distance of 122.93 feet to a concrete pedestal monument found for an arc distance of 122.93 feet to a concrete pedestal monument found for  arc distance of 122.93 feet to a concrete pedestal monument found for arc distance of 122.93 feet to a concrete pedestal monument found for  distance of 122.93 feet to a concrete pedestal monument found for distance of 122.93 feet to a concrete pedestal monument found for  of 122.93 feet to a concrete pedestal monument found for of 122.93 feet to a concrete pedestal monument found for  122.93 feet to a concrete pedestal monument found for 122.93 feet to a concrete pedestal monument found for  feet to a concrete pedestal monument found for feet to a concrete pedestal monument found for  to a concrete pedestal monument found for to a concrete pedestal monument found for  a concrete pedestal monument found for a concrete pedestal monument found for  concrete pedestal monument found for concrete pedestal monument found for  pedestal monument found for pedestal monument found for  monument found for monument found for  found for found for  for for corner; North 44 degrees 52 minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in concrete for the common  44 degrees 52 minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in concrete for the common 44 degrees 52 minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in concrete for the common  degrees 52 minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in concrete for the common degrees 52 minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in concrete for the common  52 minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in concrete for the common 52 minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in concrete for the common  minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in concrete for the common minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in concrete for the common  16 seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in concrete for the common 16 seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in concrete for the common  seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in concrete for the common seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in concrete for the common  East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in concrete for the common East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in concrete for the common  a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in concrete for the common a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in concrete for the common  distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in concrete for the common distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in concrete for the common  of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in concrete for the common of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in concrete for the common  304.20 feet to an “X” found in concrete for the common 304.20 feet to an “X” found in concrete for the common  feet to an “X” found in concrete for the common feet to an “X” found in concrete for the common  to an “X” found in concrete for the common to an “X” found in concrete for the common  an “X” found in concrete for the common an “X” found in concrete for the common  “X” found in concrete for the common X” found in concrete for the common  found in concrete for the common found in concrete for the common  in concrete for the common in concrete for the common  concrete for the common concrete for the common  for the common for the common  the common the common  common common north corner of said Tract 1 and most westerly northwest corner of said Tract 2; North 44 degrees 50 minutes 38 seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found,  44 degrees 50 minutes 38 seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found, 44 degrees 50 minutes 38 seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found,  degrees 50 minutes 38 seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found, degrees 50 minutes 38 seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found,  50 minutes 38 seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found, 50 minutes 38 seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found,  minutes 38 seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found, minutes 38 seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found,  38 seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found, 38 seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found,  seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found, seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found,  East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found, East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found,  passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found,  at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found, at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found,  a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found, a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found,  distance of 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found, distance of 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found,  of 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found, of 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found,  375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found, 375.47 feet a concrete pedestal monument found,  feet a concrete pedestal monument found, feet a concrete pedestal monument found,  a concrete pedestal monument found, a concrete pedestal monument found,  concrete pedestal monument found, concrete pedestal monument found,  pedestal monument found, pedestal monument found,  monument found, monument found,  found, found, and continuing in all for a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that  continuing in all for a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that continuing in all for a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that  in all for a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that in all for a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that  all for a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that all for a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that  for a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that for a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that  a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that  total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that  distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that  of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that  398.43 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that 398.43 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that  to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that  a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that  1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that  inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that  iron rod found for the common west corner of that iron rod found for the common west corner of that  rod found for the common west corner of that rod found for the common west corner of that  found for the common west corner of that found for the common west corner of that  for the common west corner of that for the common west corner of that  the common west corner of that the common west corner of that  common west corner of that common west corner of that  west corner of that west corner of that  corner of that corner of that  of that of that  that that tract of land described in Deed to Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed  of land described in Deed to Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed of land described in Deed to Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed  land described in Deed to Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed land described in Deed to Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed  described in Deed to Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed described in Deed to Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed  in Deed to Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed in Deed to Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed  Deed to Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Deed to Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed  to Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed to Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed  Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed  A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed  Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed  and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed  Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed  L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed  Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed  as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed  recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed  in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed  Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed  6167, Page 67, Deed 6167, Page 67, Deed  Page 67, Deed Page 67, Deed  67, Deed 67, Deed  Deed Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and most northerly northwest corner of said Trat 2; THENCE South 45 degrees 15 minutes 03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch  South 45 degrees 15 minutes 03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch South 45 degrees 15 minutes 03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch  45 degrees 15 minutes 03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch 45 degrees 15 minutes 03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch  degrees 15 minutes 03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch degrees 15 minutes 03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch  15 minutes 03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch 15 minutes 03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch  minutes 03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch minutes 03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch  03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch 03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch  seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch  East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch  leaving said southeast line, a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch leaving said southeast line, a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch  said southeast line, a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch said southeast line, a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch  southeast line, a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch southeast line, a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch  line, a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch line, a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch  a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch a distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch  distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch distance of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch  of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch  995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch  feet to a 1/2 inch feet to a 1/2 inch  to a 1/2 inch to a 1/2 inch  a 1/2 inch a 1/2 inch  1/2 inch 1/2 inch  inch inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick  rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick  with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick  a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick  yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick  plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick  cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick  stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick  “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick  set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick  for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick  a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick  common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick  south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick  corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick  of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick  said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick  Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick  A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick  Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick  and Carrie L. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick  Carrie L. Barrick Carrie L. Barrick  L. Barrick L. Barrick  Barrick Barrick tract and an interior ell corner of said Tract 2; THENCE North 89 degrees 17 minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  North 89 degrees 17 minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic North 89 degrees 17 minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  89 degrees 17 minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 89 degrees 17 minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  degrees 17 minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic degrees 17 minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  17 minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 17 minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic inch iron rod with a yellow plastic  iron rod with a yellow plastic iron rod with a yellow plastic  rod with a yellow plastic rod with a yellow plastic  with a yellow plastic with a yellow plastic  a yellow plastic a yellow plastic  yellow plastic yellow plastic  plastic plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell  stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell  “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell  set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell  for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell  a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell  common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell  south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell  corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell  of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell  said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell  Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell  A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell  Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell  and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell  Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell  L. Barrick tract and an interior ell L. Barrick tract and an interior ell  Barrick tract and an interior ell Barrick tract and an interior ell  tract and an interior ell tract and an interior ell  and an interior ell and an interior ell  an interior ell an interior ell  interior ell interior ell  ell ell corner of said Tract 2; THENCE North 44 degrees 48 minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  North 44 degrees 48 minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the North 44 degrees 48 minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  44 degrees 48 minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the 44 degrees 48 minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  degrees 48 minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the degrees 48 minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  48 minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the 48 minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the 03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  1/2 inch iron rod found for the 1/2 inch iron rod found for the  inch iron rod found for the inch iron rod found for the  iron rod found for the iron rod found for the  rod found for the rod found for the  found for the found for the  for the for the  the the common east corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south corner of that tract of land described in  east corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south corner of that tract of land described in east corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south corner of that tract of land described in  corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south corner of that tract of land described in corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south corner of that tract of land described in  of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south corner of that tract of land described in of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south corner of that tract of land described in  said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south corner of that tract of land described in said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south corner of that tract of land described in  Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south corner of that tract of land described in Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south corner of that tract of land described in  A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south corner of that tract of land described in A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south corner of that tract of land described in  Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south corner of that tract of land described in Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south corner of that tract of land described in  and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south corner of that tract of land described in and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south corner of that tract of land described in  Carrie L. Barrick tract and south corner of that tract of land described in Carrie L. Barrick tract and south corner of that tract of land described in  L. Barrick tract and south corner of that tract of land described in L. Barrick tract and south corner of that tract of land described in  Barrick tract and south corner of that tract of land described in Barrick tract and south corner of that tract of land described in  tract and south corner of that tract of land described in tract and south corner of that tract of land described in  and south corner of that tract of land described in and south corner of that tract of land described in  south corner of that tract of land described in south corner of that tract of land described in  corner of that tract of land described in corner of that tract of land described in  of that tract of land described in of that tract of land described in  that tract of land described in that tract of land described in  tract of land described in tract of land described in  of land described in of land described in  land described in land described in  described in described in  in in Deed to James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in Document No. 20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  to James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in Document No. 20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County, to James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in Document No. 20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in Document No. 20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County, James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in Document No. 20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in Document No. 20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in Document No. 20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  and Angela Kessler, as recorded in Document No. 20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County, and Angela Kessler, as recorded in Document No. 20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  Angela Kessler, as recorded in Document No. 20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Angela Kessler, as recorded in Document No. 20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  Kessler, as recorded in Document No. 20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Kessler, as recorded in Document No. 20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  as recorded in Document No. 20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County, as recorded in Document No. 20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  recorded in Document No. 20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County, recorded in Document No. 20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  in Document No. 20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County, in Document No. 20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  Document No. 20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Document No. 20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  No. 20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County, No. 20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County, 20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  Deed Records, Rockwall County, Deed Records, Rockwall County,  Records, Rockwall County, Records, Rockwall County,  Rockwall County, Rockwall County,  County, County, Texas; THENCE North 44 degrees 50 minutes 31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east  North 44 degrees 50 minutes 31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east North 44 degrees 50 minutes 31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east  44 degrees 50 minutes 31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east 44 degrees 50 minutes 31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east  degrees 50 minutes 31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east degrees 50 minutes 31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east  50 minutes 31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east 50 minutes 31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east  minutes 31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east minutes 31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east  31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east 31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east  seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east  East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east  a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east  distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east  of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east  538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east  to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east  a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east  1/2 inch iron rod found for the east 1/2 inch iron rod found for the east  inch iron rod found for the east inch iron rod found for the east  iron rod found for the east iron rod found for the east  rod found for the east rod found for the east  found for the east found for the east  for the east for the east  the east the east  east east corner of said James Kessler and Angela Kessler tract; THENCE North 44 degrees 31 minutes 54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south  North 44 degrees 31 minutes 54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south North 44 degrees 31 minutes 54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south  44 degrees 31 minutes 54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south 44 degrees 31 minutes 54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south  degrees 31 minutes 54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south degrees 31 minutes 54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south  31 minutes 54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south 31 minutes 54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south  minutes 54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south minutes 54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south  54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south 54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south  seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south  East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south  a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south  distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south  of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south  541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south  to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south  a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south  1/2 inch iron rod found for the south 1/2 inch iron rod found for the south  inch iron rod found for the south inch iron rod found for the south  iron rod found for the south iron rod found for the south  rod found for the south rod found for the south  found for the south found for the south  for the south for the south  the south the south  south south corner of the above mentioned Dr. Mohiudin Zeb, Nasreen Zeb tract; THENCE North 44 degrees 43 minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 595.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing  North 44 degrees 43 minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 595.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing North 44 degrees 43 minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 595.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing  44 degrees 43 minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 595.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 44 degrees 43 minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 595.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing  degrees 43 minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 595.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing degrees 43 minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 595.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing  43 minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 595.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 43 minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 595.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing  minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 595.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 595.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing  30 seconds East, a distance of 595.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 30 seconds East, a distance of 595.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing  seconds East, a distance of 595.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing seconds East, a distance of 595.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing  East, a distance of 595.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing East, a distance of 595.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing  a distance of 595.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing a distance of 595.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing  distance of 595.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing distance of 595.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing  of 595.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing of 595.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing  595.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 595.13 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing  feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing  to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing  the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing  POINT OF BEGINNING and containing POINT OF BEGINNING and containing  OF BEGINNING and containing OF BEGINNING and containing  BEGINNING and containing BEGINNING and containing  and containing and containing  containing containing 262.941 acres of land, more or less.



BARRICK CODY ANDREW
VOL. 617, PG. 67

D.R.R.C.T

KESSLER JAMES AND ANGELA
VOL. 2018, PG. 20020

D.R.R.C.T

HARRISON DAMON SR
VOL. 2020, PG. 23849

D.R.R.C.T

BLACKWOOD SCOTT W & GLENITA G
VOL. 02884, PG. 2550

D.R.R.C.T

ZEB MOHIUDIN DR &
VOL. 1059, PG. 14

D.R.R.C.T

FOLEY-TRAVIS LE'ARDEN J
DEATH CERTIFICATE

D.R.R.C.T

BYRD GARY ETUX
VOL. 508, PG. 125

D.R.R.C.T

POPE TONY & KAREN
VOL. 915, PG. 141

D.R.R.C.T

ABREU JORGE & TASHA
VOL. 2020, PG. 18552

D.R.R.C.T

HOPE LESLIE & DARYL
VOL. 2016, PG. 16212

D.R.R.C.T

BARRICK CODY ANDREW
VOL. 617, PG. 67

D.R.R.C.T

BARRICK CODY ANDREW
VOL. 617, PG. 67

D.R.R.C.T

LAKESHORE ASSEMBLY OF GOD INC
VOL. 2432, PG. 19

D.R.R.C.T

FIRRA CHRISTOPHER & PAMELA
VOL. 3348, PG. 3

D.R.R.C.T

COSBY KAREN D
VOL. 1399, PG. 71

D.R.R.C.T

MARIENFELD MICAH ERIC &
VICTORIA JO

VOL. 2019, PG. 1739
D.R.R.C.THEATH RUSSELL ETUX

VOL. 516, PG. 183
D.R.R.C.T

LUU VINHSON
& PHUONG NGYUEN
VOL. 6631, PG. 200

D.R.R.C.T

BRASWELL DONALD HODGES
& SANDRA

VOL. 2018, PG. 3699
D.R.R.C.T

MAULDIN NANCY WOOD
VOL. 2019, PG. 17652

D.R.R.C.T

BAUMANN JOSEPH EDWARD TRUSTEE
VOL. 6288, PG. 64
DOC. NO. 442088

D.R.R.C.T

DAVIS WILLIAM PAUL JR
VOL. 174, PG. 313/316

D.R.R.C.T

HADDOCK HOWARD J &
JOAN W TRUSTEES
VOL. 4489, PG. 52

D.R.R.C.T

FLEMING KATHI
VOL. 7209, PG. 259

D.R.R.C.T

RUCKER ROY LYDELL &
MONIFA

VOL. 2017, PG. 23713
D.R.R.C.T

BURZAIR EDWARD & MARCIA Y
VOL. 2021, PG. 22537

D.R.R.C.T

LIVINGSTON ERIKA & JACK E
VOL. 2019, PG. 12128

D.R.R.C.T

ZONED: SFE-2

ZONED: AG

ZONED: AG

ZONED: AG

ZONED: AGZONED:
SF-1.5

ZONED: AG

36

126

DETENTION
POND

FM
 549

W
YL

IE 
LA

NE

TRAVIS LANE

CULLINS RD

CULLI
NS R

D

SH 205

F6
12.84

K2
10.28

F4
3.27

I3
19.13

J1
3.33

L1
10.60

H2
9.27

A2
4.36

B1
4.24

A4
7.58

OS-1
7.85

E2
4.82

J2
7.07

C5
6.20

C2
3.71

A6
3.28

A5
6.97

C1
4.58

C3
4.94 D1

4.30

A3
5.50

B2
8.03

C4
8.22

F5
3.76

H1
2.93

I1
7.61

E1
4.88

A1
5.10

K1
4.93

G2
2.28

F3
2.93

F2
2.75

F1
0.75

I2
1.96 G1

2.01

F7
5.72

100 YR INNUNDATION
BOUNDARY

(FEMA BLE DATA)

RO
N H

T

C-1
22.64 AC

LEGEND

VICINITY MAP
N.T.S.

SITE

December 6, 2024

Applicant:
Corson Cramer Development

4925 Greenville Ave, Ste. 604
Dallas, Texas 75206

Phone: 214-734-5924

Engineer/Surveyor:
 Johnson Volk Consulting, Inc.

704 Central Parkway East, Suite. 1200
Plano, Texas 75074

Phone: 972-201-3100
Contact: Tom Dayton, PE

PRELIMINARY DRAINAGE PLAN
SOUTHSIDE HILLS
LOTS 1-126, BLOCK A; LOTS 1-18, BLOCK B;

LOTS 1-8, BLOCK C; LOTS 1-14, BLOCK D;
LOTS 1-23, BLOCK E; LOTS 1-23, BLOCK F;
LOTS 1-19, BLOCK G; LOTS 1-12, BLOCK H;
LOTS 1-26, BLOCK I; LOTS 1-21, BLOCK J;
LOTS 1-2, BLOCK K; LOTS 1-11, BLOCK L;

LOTS 1-17, BLOCK M; LOTS 1-4, BLOCK N;
LOTS 1-36, BLOCK O; LOTS 1-23, BLOCK P;

LOTS 1-14, BLOCK Q;
262.94 ACRES OR 11,453,704.24 SF

384 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ,2 COMMERCIAL LOTS,
 10 OPEN SPACES & 1 AMENITY CENTER

SITUATED WITHIN
W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80

CITY OF ROCKWALL,
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

P2024-XXX

Owner:
Rockwall Highgate, Ltd.

13155 Noel Rd., Ste 900
Dallas, Texas 75240

Phone: 214-566-8699

Page 40 of 142

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
300

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
600

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
SCALE  1" = 300'

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
300

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
DIRECTION OF FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
STORM DRAIN LINE & INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
DRAINAGE AREA SIZE (AC.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
DRAINAGE AREA DESIGNATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
EXISTING CONT0UR

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
PROPOSED DRAINAGE AREA DIVIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
635

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
205

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
740

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
3097

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
549

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
1139

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
1140

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
549

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
205

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
LAKE RAY HUBBARD



BARRICK CODY ANDREW
VOL. 617, PG. 67

D.R.R.C.T

KESSLER JAMES AND ANGELA
VOL. 2018, PG. 20020

D.R.R.C.T

HARRISON DAMON SR
VOL. 2020, PG. 23849

D.R.R.C.T

BLACKWOOD SCOTT W & GLENITA G
VOL. 02884, PG. 2550

D.R.R.C.T

101 HUBBARD DR LLC
VOL. 2018, PG. 8030

D.R.R.C.T

ZEB MOHIUDIN DR &
VOL. 1059, PG. 14

D.R.R.C.T

101 HUBBARD DR LLC
VOL. 2018, PG. 8030

D.R.R.C.T

FOLEY-TRAVIS LE'ARDEN J
DEATH CERTIFICATE

D.R.R.C.T

BYRD GARY ETUX
VOL. 508, PG. 125

D.R.R.C.T

POPE TONY & KAREN
VOL. 915, PG. 141

D.R.R.C.T

ABREU JORGE & TASHA
VOL. 2020, PG. 18552

D.R.R.C.T

HOPE LESLIE & DARYL
VOL. 2016, PG. 16212

D.R.R.C.T

BARRICK CODY ANDREW
VOL. 617, PG. 67

D.R.R.C.T

BARRICK CODY ANDREW
VOL. 617, PG. 67

D.R.R.C.T

LAKESHORE ASSEMBLY OF GOD INC
VOL. 2432, PG. 19

D.R.R.C.T

FIRRA CHRISTOPHER & PAMELA
VOL. 3348, PG. 3

D.R.R.C.T

COSBY KAREN D
VOL. 1399, PG. 71

D.R.R.C.T

MARIENFELD MICAH ERIC &
VICTORIA JO

VOL. 2019, PG. 1739
D.R.R.C.THEATH RUSSELL ETUX

VOL. 516, PG. 183
D.R.R.C.T

LUU VINHSON
& PHUONG NGYUEN
VOL. 6631, PG. 200

D.R.R.C.T

BRASWELL DONALD HODGES
& SANDRA

VOL. 2018, PG. 3699
D.R.R.C.T

MAULDIN NANCY WOOD
VOL. 2019, PG. 17652

D.R.R.C.T

ROCKWALL 205 INVESTORS LLC
VOL. 2016, PG. 1487

D.R.R.C.T

BAUMANN JOSEPH EDWARD TRUSTEE
VOL. 6288, PG. 64
DOC. NO. 442088

D.R.R.C.T

DAVIS WILLIAM PAUL JR
VOL. 174, PG. 313/316

D.R.R.C.T

HADDOCK HOWARD J &
JOAN W TRUSTEES
VOL. 4489, PG. 52

D.R.R.C.T

FLEMING KATHI
VOL. 7209, PG. 259

D.R.R.C.T

RUCKER ROY LYDELL &
MONIFA

VOL. 2017, PG. 23713
D.R.R.C.T

BURZAIR EDWARD & MARCIA Y
VOL. 2021, PG. 22537

D.R.R.C.T

LIVINGSTON ERIKA & JACK E
VOL. 2019, PG. 12128

D.R.R.C.T

ZONED: SFE-2

ZONED: AG

ZONED: AG

ZONED: AG

ZONED: AGZONED:
SF-1.5

ZONED: AG

ZONED: AG

ZONED: AG

ZONED:
SF-1.5

ZONED: AG

DETENTION
POND

100 YR INNUNDATION
BOUNDARY

(FEMA BLE DATA)

FM
 549

W
YL

IE 
LA

NE

TRAVIS LANE

CULLINS RD

JEFF BOYD RD

CULLI
NS R

D

FM
 549

SH 205

FUT. FM 549

RO
N H

T

LEGEND

VICINITY MAP
N.T.S.

SITE

December 6, 2024

Applicant:
Corson Cramer Development

4925 Greenville Ave, Ste. 604
Dallas, Texas 75206

Phone: 214-734-5924

Engineer/Surveyor:
 Johnson Volk Consulting, Inc.

704 Central Parkway East, Suite. 1200
Plano, Texas 75074

Phone: 972-201-3100
Contact: Tom Dayton, PE

Owner:
Rockwall Highgate, Ltd.

13155 Noel Rd., Ste 900
Dallas, Texas 75240

Phone: 214-566-8699

PRELIMINARY UTILITY PLAN
SOUTHSIDE HILLS
LOTS 1-126, BLOCK A; LOTS 1-18, BLOCK B;

LOTS 1-8, BLOCK C; LOTS 1-14, BLOCK D;
LOTS 1-23, BLOCK E; LOTS 1-23, BLOCK F;
LOTS 1-19, BLOCK G; LOTS 1-12, BLOCK H;
LOTS 1-26, BLOCK I; LOTS 1-21, BLOCK J;
LOTS 1-2, BLOCK K; LOTS 1-11, BLOCK L;

LOTS 1-17, BLOCK M; LOTS 1-4, BLOCK N;
LOTS 1-36, BLOCK O; LOTS 1-23, BLOCK P;

LOTS 1-14, BLOCK Q;
262.94 ACRES OR 11,453,704.24 SF

384 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ,2 COMMERCIAL LOTS,
 10 OPEN SPACES & 1 AMENITY CENTER

SITUATED WITHIN
W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80

CITY OF ROCKWALL,
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

P2024-XXX

Page 41 of 142

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
STATE HIGHWAY NO. 205 (120' RIGHT-OF-WAY) VOLUME 33, PAGE 556 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
400

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
800

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
SCALE  1" = 400'

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
400

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
STORM DRAIN LINE & INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
EXISTING CONT0UR

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
535

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
EXISTING SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
PROPOSED FORCE MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
EXISTING FORCE MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
PROPOSED 12" WATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
PROPOSED 8" WATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
EXISTING WATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
WATER LINE BY OTHERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
205

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
740

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
3097

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
549

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
1139

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
1140

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
549

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
205

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
LAKE RAY HUBBARD

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
OFFSITE INFRASTRUCTURE SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH INFRASTRUCTURE STUDY 



ST
RE

E
T O

RB

RB

LO

LO

LO

LO

LO

LO

SO

SO

SO

LO

LO

LO

SO

SO

SO

BO

BO

BO

CE

CE

CE

LO

LO

LO

LO

SO

SO

SO

BO

BO

BO

SO

SO

SO

BO

BO

BO

CE

CE

CE

BC

BC

BC

SO

SO

SO

BO

BO
BO

CE

CE

CE

BC

BC

BC

LO

LO

LO

SO

SO

SO

BO

BO

BO

CE

CE

CE

RB

RB

BC

BC

BC

LO

LO

LO

SO

SO

SO

BO

BO

BO

BC

BC

BCBC

BC

RB

LO
LO

LO

SO

SO

SO

BC

BC

BC

BO

BO

BO

SO

SO

SO

BC

OPEN SPACE

AMENITY
CENTER

OPEN SPACE

OPEN SPACE

OPEN SPACE

STREET A

ST
RE

E
T G

ST
RE

E
T F

ST
RE

E
T E

ST
RE

E
T C

ST
RE

E
T B

FM
 5

49

STREET A

ST
RE

E
T O

STRE
E
T D

STRE
E
T D

ST
R

E
E

T
 D

STRE
E
T M

S
T

R
E

E
T

 L

STREET H

STREET X

STREET Q

STRE
E
T Q ST

REET R STREET S

ST
RE

E
T P

ST
RE

E
T P

S
T

R
E

E
T

 T

SH
 205

ST
RE

E
T Z

STREET A
A

STREET BB

ST
RE

E
T C

C

STRE
E

T Y

STREET U

S
T

R
E

E
T

 X

ST
REET N

ST
RE

E
T I S

T
R

E
E

T
 J

BARRICK CODY
ANDREW

VOL. 617, PG. 67
D.R.R.C.T

KESSLER JAMES AND ANGELA
VOL. 2018, PG. 20020

D.R.R.C.T

HARRISON DAMON SR
VOL. 2020, PG. 23849

D.R.R.C.T

BLACKWOOD SCOTT W & GLENITA G
VOL. 02884, PG. 2550

D.R.R.C.T

ZEB MOHIUDIN DR &
VOL. 1059, PG. 14

D.R.R.C.T

FOLEY-TRAVIS LE'ARDEN J
DEATH CERTIFICATE

D.R.R.C.T

BYRD GARY ETUX
VOL. 508, PG. 125

D.R.R.C.T

PO
PE

 T
O

N
Y
 &

 K
A
RE

N

V
O

L. 9
15

, P
G

. 1
41

D
.R

.R
.C

.T

A
BRE

U
 JO

RG
E
 &

 T
A
SH

A

V
O

L. 2
02

0,
 P

G
. 1

85
52

D
.R

.R
.C

.T

H
O

PE
 L

E
SL

IE
 &

 D
A
RY

L

V
O

L. 2
01

6,
 P

G
. 1

62
12

D
.R

.R
.C

.T

BARRICK CODY
ANDREW

VOL. 617, PG. 67
D.R.R.C.T

BARRICK CODY
ANDREW

VOL. 617, PG. 67
D.R.R.C.T

LAKESHORE ASSEMBLY OF
GOD INC

VOL. 2432, PG. 19
D.R.R.C.T

FIRRA CHRISTOPHER &
PAMELA

VOL. 3348, PG. 3
D.R.R.C.T

COSBY KAREN D
VOL. 1399, PG. 71

D.R.R.C.T

MARIENFELD MICAH ERIC &
VICTORIA JO

VOL. 2019, PG. 1739
D.R.R.C.T

HEATH RUSSELL ETUX
VOL. 516, PG. 183

D.R.R.C.T

LUU VINHSON
& PHUONG NGYUEN

VOL. 6631, PG. 200
D.R.R.C.T

BRASWELL DONALD HODGES
& SANDRA

VOL. 2018, PG. 3699
D.R.R.C.T

D.R.R.C.T

BAUMANN JOSEPH EDWARD TRUSTEE
VOL. 6288, PG. 64
DOC. NO. 442088

D.R.R.C.T

DAVIS WILLIAM PAUL JR
VOL. 174, PG. 313/316

D.R.R.C.T

HADDOCK HOWARD J
& JOAN W TRUSTEES

VOL. 4489, PG. 52
D.R.R.C.T

FLEMING KATHI
VOL. 7209, PG. 259

D.R.R.C.T

RUCKER ROY LYDELL &
MONIFA

VOL. 2017, PG. 23713
D.R.R.C.T

BURZAIR EDWARD & MARCIA Y
VOL. 2021, PG. 22537

D.R.R.C.T

LIVINGSTON ERIKA & JACK E
VOL. 2019, PG. 12128

D.R.R.C.T

ZONED: SFE-2

ZONED: AG

ZONED: AG

ZONED: AG
ZONED: SF-1.5

ZONED: AG

2

3

4
7

8

5

6

9

10

16

18

17

19

22

20

21

23

24

26

27

29

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

43

60

61

62

45

52

44

46

47

48

49

50

51

2

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

3

A B

A

A

A

A A

125

105

97

104

96

103

95

102

94

101

93

100

92

99

91

98

90

114

106

107
108

109

110

111

112

113

120

115

116

117

118

119

123

121

122

124

2

6

3

1

4

5

7

8

C

1

112

3

4
5

6

7

8

9

10

13

12

14

D

1

K

1

17

16

15

7

12
11 10

9

8

6

M

6
9

11
10

7
8

3

5 4

2 1

L

1

176

2

3

4

5

8

7

9

23

22

21

20

19

18

10
11

12 13

14
1516

E

E

17

23

4

5

3

2

1
22

21

20

12

15

14

13
16

18

6

F

A

A

32

34

28

31

27

30

26

25

29

24

35

33

2

1

3

18

4

17

15

7

13

9

11

14

6

5

8

10

12

16

19

G

G

6

9

3

7

5

8

11

4
10

1

12

H

H

1

7

25

23

24

3

2

4

26

5

22

6
20

21

179

8

19

18

12

16

15

10

11

14

13

I

I

3

12

10

5

11

4

142

1

13

8

7

9

Q

Q

12

23

21

17

4

16

20

9

5

15

19

10

2

6

14

22

18

13

3

7

11

1

8

P

P

4

13

14

5
3

2

28

25

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

76

77

80

78

81

82

83

84

85

86

89

88
87

126

79

24

25

26

2728

29

6

15

14

21

20

19

18

17

22

7

9

2

5

4

3

81

4

3

10

63

64

6566

70 71 72
69

21

16
15

14

13

20

12

19

11

18
17

74

73

75

N

23

68 67

8

7

6
5

4
3

10

2

9

1

12

11

13

16

K

DETENTION
POND

DETENTION
POND

DETENTION
POND

DETENTION
POND

DETENTION
POND

DETENTION
POND

2

2

BC

BC

BC

LO

LO

LO

LO

LO

LO

V

V

V

V

V

V

RB

RB

RB

V

V

V

RB

RB

RB

V

V

V

RB

RB

RB

RB

RB

RB

V

V

V

SO

SO

SO

BO

BO

BO

CE

CE

CE

CE

CE

CE

BO

BO

BO

SO

SO

SO

RB

RB

RB

RB

200 100

SCALE  1" = 200'

0 200

L1 of 15
0

j:\
ci

v
il 

3
d
 p

ro
je

ct
s\

m
jp

 -
 m

ic
h

ae
l 
jo

yc
e 

p
ro

p
er

ti
es

\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 s
o

u
th

si
d
e 

h
ill

s\
la

n
d
sc

ap
e\

d
w

g\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 t
re

es
ca

p
e 

p
la

n
.d

w
g

JVC No MJP503

SCALE:

One Inch

1" = 20'

S
O

U
T

H
S
ID

E
 H

IL
L

S
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 R
O

C
W

A
L

L
R

O
C

K
W

A
L

L
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, 
T

E
X

A
S

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

O
V

E
R

A
L

L
 L

A
Y

O
U

T
 P

L
A

N

December 4, 2024

. HI

O

O
D

J

ST
E

C

C
CT

TE

SA

ET

S
TA

I
RE
G

3

OF

2 8

ET
X

N

R

LD
RE

CAANDS

L

EP A
H

SON

Y

3

N
1" = 200'

L4

L6

L8

L9

L10

L11

L12

L13

L14

L5

L2

L3
L7

Page 42 of 142



2

3

A

M
A
TCH

LIN
E

RE
F: SH

E
E
T L3

RE
F: SH

E
E
T L2

LO

LO

LO

RB

RB

RB

V

V

V

RB

RB

RB

RB

V

V

V

SO

SO

SO

BO

BO

BO

CE

CE

CE

STRE
E
T A

FM
 5

49

RB

RB

RB

RB

PLANT LEGEND

SYMBOL KEY COMMON NAME SCIENTIFIC NAME SIZE SPACING

LO LIVE OAK QUERCUS VIRGINIANA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

SO SHUMARD OAK QUERCUS SHUMARDII 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BO BUR OAK QUERCUS MACROCARPA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

CE CEDAR ELM ULMUS CRASSIFOLIA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BC BALD CYPRESS TAXODIUM DISTICHUM 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

RB TEXAS REDBUD
CERCIS CANADENSIS VAR.
TEXENSIS

2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

V CHASTE TREE VITEX ANGUS-CASTUS 2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

LO

SO

BO

CE

BC

RB

V

L2 of 15

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

20 10

SCALE  1" = 20'

0 20

0

j:\
ci

v
il 

3
d
 p

ro
je

ct
s\

m
jp

 -
 m

ic
h

ae
l 
jo

yc
e 

p
ro

p
er

ti
es

\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 s
o

u
th

si
d
e 

h
ill

s\
la

n
d
sc

ap
e\

d
w

g\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 t
re

es
ca

p
e 

p
la

n
.d

w
g

JVC No MJP503

SCALE:

One Inch

1" = 20'

S
O

U
T

H
S
ID

E
 H

IL
L

S
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 R
O

C
W

A
L

L
R

O
C

K
W

A
L

L
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, 
T

E
X

A
S

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

December 4, 2024

. HI

O

O
D

J

ST
E

C

C
CT

TE

SA

ET

S
TA

I
RE
G

3

OF

2 8

ET
X

N

R

LD
RE

CAANDS

L

EP A
H

SON

Y

3

N

W
A
TE

R

W
A
TE

R

W
A
TER

10' U
.E

.

15' BL

FH

SA
N

. S
E
W

E
R

10
' U

.E
.

Page 43 of 142



2

3

M
A
TCH

LIN
E

RE
F: SH

E
E
T L3

RE
F: SH

E
E
T L2

RB

RB

RB

V

V

V

RB

RB

RB

RB

RB

RB

CE

CE

CE

CE

CE

BO

BO

BO

SO

SO

SO

STRE
E
T A

FM
 5

49

RB

RB

RB

RB

PLANT LEGEND

SYMBOL KEY COMMON NAME SCIENTIFIC NAME SIZE SPACING

LO LIVE OAK QUERCUS VIRGINIANA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

SO SHUMARD OAK QUERCUS SHUMARDII 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BO BUR OAK QUERCUS MACROCARPA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

CE CEDAR ELM ULMUS CRASSIFOLIA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BC BALD CYPRESS TAXODIUM DISTICHUM 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

RB TEXAS REDBUD
CERCIS CANADENSIS VAR.
TEXENSIS

2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

V CHASTE TREE VITEX ANGUS-CASTUS 2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

LO

SO

BO

CE

BC

RB

V

L3 of 15

20 10

SCALE  1" = 20'

0 20

0

j:\
ci

v
il 

3
d
 p

ro
je

ct
s\

m
jp

 -
 m

ic
h

ae
l 
jo

yc
e 

p
ro

p
er

ti
es

\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 s
o

u
th

si
d
e 

h
ill

s\
la

n
d
sc

ap
e\

d
w

g\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 t
re

es
ca

p
e 

p
la

n
.d

w
g

JVC No MJP503

SCALE:

One Inch

1" = 20'

S
O

U
T

H
S
ID

E
 H

IL
L

S
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 R
O

C
W

A
L

L
R

O
C

K
W

A
L

L
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, 
T

E
X

A
S

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

December 4, 2024

. HI

O

O
D

J

ST
E

C

C
CT

TE

SA

ET

S
TA

I
RE
G

3

OF

2 8

ET
X

N

R

LD
RE

CAANDS

L

EP A
H

SON

Y

3

N

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

SA
N

. S
E
W

E
R

10
' U

.E
.

W
A
TE

R

10' U
.E.

15' BL

Page 44 of 142



LO

LO

LO

SO

SO

SO

LO

LO

LO

SO

SO

SO

BO

BO

BO

CE

ST
R
E
E
T P

2

PLANT LEGEND

SYMBOL KEY COMMON NAME SCIENTIFIC NAME SIZE SPACING

LO LIVE OAK QUERCUS VIRGINIANA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

SO SHUMARD OAK QUERCUS SHUMARDII 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BO BUR OAK QUERCUS MACROCARPA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

CE CEDAR ELM ULMUS CRASSIFOLIA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BC BALD CYPRESS TAXODIUM DISTICHUM 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

RB TEXAS REDBUD
CERCIS CANADENSIS VAR.
TEXENSIS

2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

V CHASTE TREE VITEX ANGUS-CASTUS 2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

LO

SO

BO

CE

BC

RB

V

L4 of 15

20 10

SCALE  1" = 20'

0 20

0

j:\
ci

v
il 

3
d
 p

ro
je

ct
s\

m
jp

 -
 m

ic
h

ae
l 
jo

yc
e 

p
ro

p
er

ti
es

\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 s
o

u
th

si
d
e 

h
ill

s\
la

n
d
sc

ap
e\

d
w

g\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 t
re

es
ca

p
e 

p
la

n
.d

w
g

JVC No MJP503

SCALE:

One Inch

1" = 20'

S
O

U
T

H
S
ID

E
 H

IL
L

S
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 R
O

C
W

A
L

L
R

O
C

K
W

A
L

L
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, 
T

E
X

A
S

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

December 4, 2024

. HI

O

O
D

J

ST
E

C

C
CT

TE

SA

ET

S
TA

I
RE
G

3

OF

2 8

ET
X

N

R

LD
RE

CAANDS

L

EP A
H

SON

Y

3

N

IN
L
E

T

IN
L
E

T

STORM

10
' U

.E
.

10' U
.E

.

10
' U

.E
.

10
' U

.E
.

10
' U

.E
.

4'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE SIDEWALK PER
CITY OF ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

4'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE SIDEWALK PER
CITY OF ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

6'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF

ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

6'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF

ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

50'-0" WATER EASEMENT

50'-0" WATER EASEMENT

50'-0" WATER EASEMENT

W
A
TE

R

W
A

T
E

R

W
A

T
E

R

W
A
TE

R

W
A
TE

R

W
A

T
E

R

SA
N

. S
E
W

E
R

FH

SSMH

10
' U

.E
.

SA
N

. S
E
W

E
R

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

FLOODPLAIN

FLOODPLAIN

Page 45 of 142



2

5

4

3

MATCHLINE
REF: SHEET L2

REF: SHEET L3

CE

CE

CE

S
T

R
E

E
T

 P

PLANT LEGEND

SYMBOL KEY COMMON NAME SCIENTIFIC NAME SIZE SPACING

LO LIVE OAK QUERCUS VIRGINIANA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

SO SHUMARD OAK QUERCUS SHUMARDII 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BO BUR OAK QUERCUS MACROCARPA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

CE CEDAR ELM ULMUS CRASSIFOLIA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BC BALD CYPRESS TAXODIUM DISTICHUM 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

RB TEXAS REDBUD
CERCIS CANADENSIS VAR.
TEXENSIS

2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

V CHASTE TREE VITEX ANGUS-CASTUS 2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

LO

SO

BO

CE

BC

RB

V

L5 of 15

20 10

SCALE  1" = 20'

0 20

0

j:\
ci

v
il 

3
d
 p

ro
je

ct
s\

m
jp

 -
 m

ic
h

ae
l 
jo

yc
e 

p
ro

p
er

ti
es

\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 s
o

u
th

si
d
e 

h
ill

s\
la

n
d
sc

ap
e\

d
w

g\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 t
re

es
ca

p
e 

p
la

n
.d

w
g

JVC No MJP503

SCALE:

One Inch

1" = 20'

S
O

U
T

H
S
ID

E
 H

IL
L

S
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 R
O

C
W

A
L

L
R

O
C

K
W

A
L

L
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, 
T

E
X

A
S

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

December 4, 2024

. HI

O

O
D

J

ST
E

C

C
CT

TE

SA

ET

S
TA

I
RE
G

3

OF

2 8

ET
X

N

R

LD
RE

CAANDS

L

EP A
H

SON

Y

3

N

50'-0" WATER EASEMENT

50'-0" WATER EASEMENT

50'-0" WATER EASEMENT

SSMH

S
A

N
. 
S
E

W
E

R

S
A

N
. 
S
E

W
E

R

SA
N

. S
E

W
E

R

W
A

T
E

R

W
A

T
E

R

W
A

T
E

R

1
0
' U

.E
.

1
0
' U

.E
.

3
0
' B

L

4
0
' B

L

1
0
' U

.E
.1
0
' U

.E
.

3
0
' B

L

30
' B

L

1
0
' U

.E
.

10
' U

.E
.

10
' U

.E
.

FH

4'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE SIDEWALK PER
CITY OF ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

6'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE SIDEWALK PER
CITY OF ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

6'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE SIDEWALK PER
CITY OF ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

6'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE SIDEWALK PER
CITY OF ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

Page 46 of 142



OPEN SPACE

4

OPEN SPACE
 AC

1

3

N

LO

LO

LO

LO

SO

SO

SO

BO

BO

BO

ST
R
E

E
T
 P

STRE
E
T U

M
A

T
C

H
L

IN
E

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

4

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

5

PLANT LEGEND

SYMBOL KEY COMMON NAME SCIENTIFIC NAME SIZE SPACING

LO LIVE OAK QUERCUS VIRGINIANA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

SO SHUMARD OAK QUERCUS SHUMARDII 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BO BUR OAK QUERCUS MACROCARPA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

CE CEDAR ELM ULMUS CRASSIFOLIA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BC BALD CYPRESS TAXODIUM DISTICHUM 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

RB TEXAS REDBUD
CERCIS CANADENSIS VAR.
TEXENSIS

2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

V CHASTE TREE VITEX ANGUS-CASTUS 2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

LO

SO

BO

CE

BC

RB

V

L6 of 15

20 10

SCALE  1" = 20'

0 20

0

j:\
ci

v
il 

3
d
 p

ro
je

ct
s\

m
jp

 -
 m

ic
h

ae
l 
jo

yc
e 

p
ro

p
er

ti
es

\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 s
o

u
th

si
d
e 

h
ill

s\
la

n
d
sc

ap
e\

d
w

g\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 t
re

es
ca

p
e 

p
la

n
.d

w
g

JVC No MJP503

SCALE:

One Inch

1" = 20'

S
O

U
T

H
S
ID

E
 H

IL
L

S
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 R
O

C
W

A
L

L
R

O
C

K
W

A
L

L
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, 
T

E
X

A
S

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

December 4, 2024

. HI

O

O
D

J

ST
E

C

C
CT

TE

SA

ET

S
TA

I
RE
G

3

OF

2 8

ET
X

N

R

LD
RE

CAANDS

L

EP A
H

SON

Y

3

N

IN
L

E
T

IN
L

E
T

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

W
A

T
E
R

W
A

T
E

R

W
A
TER

SSMH

SA
N

. S
E
W

E
R

10
' U

.E
.

10
' U

.E
.

30
' B

L

40
' B

L

15' BL

10' U.E.

10' U
.E

.

10' U
.E

.

15' BL

10
' U

.E
.

10
' U

.E
.

10' U
.E

.

15' BL

SSMH

WATER

FH

4'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE SIDEWALK PER
CITY OF ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

4'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE SIDEWALK PER
CITY OF ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

4'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE SIDEWALK PER
CITY OF ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

Page 47 of 142



9

8

10

11

M
A

T
C

H
L

IN
E

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

4

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

5

BC

BC

BC

LO

LO

LO

S
T

R
E

E
T

 T

PLANT LEGEND

SYMBOL KEY COMMON NAME SCIENTIFIC NAME SIZE SPACING

LO LIVE OAK QUERCUS VIRGINIANA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

SO SHUMARD OAK QUERCUS SHUMARDII 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BO BUR OAK QUERCUS MACROCARPA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

CE CEDAR ELM ULMUS CRASSIFOLIA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BC BALD CYPRESS TAXODIUM DISTICHUM 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

RB TEXAS REDBUD
CERCIS CANADENSIS VAR.
TEXENSIS

2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

V CHASTE TREE VITEX ANGUS-CASTUS 2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

LO

SO

BO

CE

BC

RB

V

L7 of 15

20 10

SCALE  1" = 20'

0 20

0

j:\
ci

v
il 

3
d
 p

ro
je

ct
s\

m
jp

 -
 m

ic
h

ae
l 
jo

yc
e 

p
ro

p
er

ti
es

\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 s
o

u
th

si
d
e 

h
ill

s\
la

n
d
sc

ap
e\

d
w

g\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 t
re

es
ca

p
e 

p
la

n
.d

w
g

JVC No MJP503

SCALE:

One Inch

1" = 20'

S
O

U
T

H
S
ID

E
 H

IL
L

S
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 R
O

C
W

A
L

L
R

O
C

K
W

A
L

L
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, 
T

E
X

A
S

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

December 4, 2024

. HI

O

O
D

J

ST
E

C

C
CT

TE

SA

ET

S
TA

I
RE
G

3

OF

2 8

ET
X

N

R

LD
RE

CAANDS

L

EP A
H

SON

Y

3

N

STORM

6'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE SIDEWALK PER
CITY OF ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

6'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE SIDEWALK PER
CITY OF ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

6'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE SIDEWALK PER
CITY OF ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

SSMH

50'-0" WATER
 EASEMENT

50'-0" WATER
 EASEMENT

50'-0" WATER
 EASEMENT

20'-0" STORM
EASEMENT

WATER

W
A

T
E

R

STORM

STORM

6'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE SIDEWALK PER
CITY OF ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

S
A

N
. 
S
E

W
E

R

1
0
' U

.E
.

2
0
' B

L

1
0
' U

.E
.

10' U.E.15' BL

10' U.E.

30' BL

FLOODPLAIN

S
T

O
R

M

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

Page 48 of 142



8

9

10

K

MATCHLINE
REF: SHEET L5

REF: SHEET L6

LO

SO

SO

SO

BO

BO

BO

CE

SO

SO

BO

M
A

T
C

H
L

IN
E

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

5

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

8

M
A

T
C

H
L

IN
E

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

5

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

7

OPEN SPACE

STRE
E
T A

STREET P

PLANT LEGEND

SYMBOL KEY COMMON NAME SCIENTIFIC NAME SIZE SPACING

LO LIVE OAK QUERCUS VIRGINIANA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

SO SHUMARD OAK QUERCUS SHUMARDII 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BO BUR OAK QUERCUS MACROCARPA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

CE CEDAR ELM ULMUS CRASSIFOLIA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BC BALD CYPRESS TAXODIUM DISTICHUM 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

RB TEXAS REDBUD
CERCIS CANADENSIS VAR.
TEXENSIS

2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

V CHASTE TREE VITEX ANGUS-CASTUS 2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

LO

SO

BO

CE

BC

RB

V

L8 of 15

20 10

SCALE  1" = 20'

0 20

0

j:\
ci

v
il 

3
d
 p

ro
je

ct
s\

m
jp

 -
 m

ic
h

ae
l 
jo

yc
e 

p
ro

p
er

ti
es

\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 s
o

u
th

si
d
e 

h
ill

s\
la

n
d
sc

ap
e\

d
w

g\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 t
re

es
ca

p
e 

p
la

n
.d

w
g

JVC No MJP503

SCALE:

One Inch

1" = 20'

S
O

U
T

H
S
ID

E
 H

IL
L

S
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 R
O

C
W

A
L

L
R

O
C

K
W

A
L

L
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, 
T

E
X

A
S

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

December 4, 2024

. HI

O

O
D

J

ST
E

C

C
CT

TE

SA

ET

S
TA

I
RE
G

3

OF

2 8

ET
X

N

R

LD
RE

CAANDS

L

EP A
H

SON

Y

3

N

IN
LET

IN
LE

T

STO
RM

10' U
.E

.

10' U
.E

.

15' BL

15' BL

W
A
TE

R

SA
N

. SEW
ER

SSMH

FH

SAN. SEWER

WATER

10' U.E.

10' U.E.

40' BL

SSMH

4'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF
ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

4'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF
ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

Page 49 of 142



4

5

6

7

8

9

K

MATCHLINE
REF: SHEET L5

REF: SHEET L6

LO

LO

LO

SO

SO

SO

SO

BO

BO

M
A

T
C

H
L

IN
E

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

6

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

9

RB

M
A

T
C

H
L

IN
E

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

6

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

8

AMENITY
CENTER

ST
R

E
E

T
 A

ST
RE

E
T E

DETENTION
POND

V

V

V

PLANT LEGEND

SYMBOL KEY COMMON NAME SCIENTIFIC NAME SIZE SPACING

LO LIVE OAK QUERCUS VIRGINIANA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

SO SHUMARD OAK QUERCUS SHUMARDII 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BO BUR OAK QUERCUS MACROCARPA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

CE CEDAR ELM ULMUS CRASSIFOLIA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BC BALD CYPRESS TAXODIUM DISTICHUM 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

RB TEXAS REDBUD
CERCIS CANADENSIS VAR.
TEXENSIS

2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

V CHASTE TREE VITEX ANGUS-CASTUS 2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

LO

SO

BO

CE

BC

RB

V

L9 of 15

20 10

SCALE  1" = 20'

0 20

0

j:\
ci

v
il 

3
d
 p

ro
je

ct
s\

m
jp

 -
 m

ic
h

ae
l 
jo

yc
e 

p
ro

p
er

ti
es

\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 s
o

u
th

si
d
e 

h
ill

s\
la

n
d
sc

ap
e\

d
w

g\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 t
re

es
ca

p
e 

p
la

n
.d

w
g

JVC No MJP503

SCALE:

One Inch

1" = 20'

S
O

U
T

H
S
ID

E
 H

IL
L

S
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 R
O

C
W

A
L

L
R

O
C

K
W

A
L

L
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, 
T

E
X

A
S

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

December 4, 2024

. HI

O

O
D

J

ST
E

C

C
CT

TE

SA

ET

S
TA

I
RE
G

3

OF

2 8

ET
X

N

R

LD
RE

CAANDS

L

EP A
H

SON

Y

3

N

IN
L

E
T

IN
L

E
T

STORM

FH

FH

STO
RM

STORM

SSMH

SA
N

. S
E
W

E
R

W
A

TE
R

10
' U

.E
.

20
' B

L

40
' B

L

10
' U

.E
.

SA
N

. SE
W

E
R

W
A

T
E

R

10' U
.E

.

10' U
.E

.

15' B
L

SSMH

W
A
TE

R

SA
N

. S
E
W

E
R

10
' U

.E
.

20
' B

L10
' U

.E
.

4'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF
ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

6'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF

ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

6'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF

ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

Page 50 of 142



11

1

MATCHLINE
REF: SHEET L7

REF: SHEET L8

CE

CE

CE

BC

BC

BC

BC

BC

LO

LO

LO

SO

SO

SO

BO

RB

M
A

T
C

H
L

IN
E

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

5

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

7

OPEN SPACE

STREET Q

ST
REET P

ST
RE

E
T P

PLANT LEGEND

SYMBOL KEY COMMON NAME SCIENTIFIC NAME SIZE SPACING

LO LIVE OAK QUERCUS VIRGINIANA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

SO SHUMARD OAK QUERCUS SHUMARDII 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BO BUR OAK QUERCUS MACROCARPA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

CE CEDAR ELM ULMUS CRASSIFOLIA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BC BALD CYPRESS TAXODIUM DISTICHUM 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

RB TEXAS REDBUD
CERCIS CANADENSIS VAR.
TEXENSIS

2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

V CHASTE TREE VITEX ANGUS-CASTUS 2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

LO

SO

BO

CE

BC

RB

V

L10 of 15

20 10

SCALE  1" = 20'

0 20

0

j:\
ci

v
il 

3
d
 p

ro
je

ct
s\

m
jp

 -
 m

ic
h

ae
l 
jo

yc
e 

p
ro

p
er

ti
es

\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 s
o

u
th

si
d
e 

h
ill

s\
la

n
d
sc

ap
e\

d
w

g\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 t
re

es
ca

p
e 

p
la

n
.d

w
g

JVC No MJP503

SCALE:

One Inch

1" = 20'

S
O

U
T

H
S
ID

E
 H

IL
L

S
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 R
O

C
W

A
L

L
R

O
C

K
W

A
L

L
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, 
T

E
X

A
S

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

December 4, 2024

. HI

O

O
D

J

ST
E

C

C
CT

TE

SA

ET

S
TA

I
RE
G

3

OF

2 8

ET
X

N

R

LD
RE

CAANDS

L

EP A
H

SON

Y

3

N

SSMH

FH

W
A

TE
R

10' U
.E

.

10' U
.E.

15' BL
W

A
TER

SA
N

. S
E
W

E
R

10
' U

.E
.

30
' B

L

10
' U

.E
.

10
' U

.E
.

10
' U

.E
.

30
' B

L

20
' B

L

4'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF

ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

6'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF

ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

6'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF
ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

Page 51 of 142



K

ST
RE

E
T P

MATCHLINE
REF: SHEET L7

REF: SHEET L8

MATCHLINE
REF: SHEET L8

REF: SHEET L9

CE

CE

BO
BO

CE

CE

CE

BC

BC

SO

BO

BO

RB

M
A

T
C

H
L

IN
E

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

6

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

8

M
A

T
C

H
L

IN
E

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

5

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

8

M
A

T
C

H
L

IN
E

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

8

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

1
0

M
A

T
C

H
L

IN
E

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

8

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

1
1

M
A

T
C

H
L

IN
E

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

9

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

1
1

OPEN SPACE

STRE
E
T Q

DETENTION
POND

V

PLANT LEGEND

SYMBOL KEY COMMON NAME SCIENTIFIC NAME SIZE SPACING

LO LIVE OAK QUERCUS VIRGINIANA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

SO SHUMARD OAK QUERCUS SHUMARDII 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BO BUR OAK QUERCUS MACROCARPA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

CE CEDAR ELM ULMUS CRASSIFOLIA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BC BALD CYPRESS TAXODIUM DISTICHUM 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

RB TEXAS REDBUD
CERCIS CANADENSIS VAR.
TEXENSIS

2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

V CHASTE TREE VITEX ANGUS-CASTUS 2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

LO

SO

BO

CE

BC

RB

V

L11 of 15

20 10

SCALE  1" = 20'

0 20

0

j:\
ci

v
il 

3
d
 p

ro
je

ct
s\

m
jp

 -
 m

ic
h

ae
l 
jo

yc
e 

p
ro

p
er

ti
es

\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 s
o

u
th

si
d
e 

h
ill

s\
la

n
d
sc

ap
e\

d
w

g\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 t
re

es
ca

p
e 

p
la

n
.d

w
g

JVC No MJP503

SCALE:

One Inch

1" = 20'

S
O

U
T

H
S
ID

E
 H

IL
L

S
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 R
O

C
W

A
L

L
R

O
C

K
W

A
L

L
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, 
T

E
X

A
S

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

December 4, 2024

. HI

O

O
D

J

ST
E

C

C
CT

TE

SA

ET

S
TA

I
RE
G

3

OF

2 8

ET
X

N

R

LD
RE

CAANDS

L

EP A
H

SON

Y

3

N

POND EDGE

6'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF

ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

Page 52 of 142



1

10

11

12

13

MATCHLINE
REF: SHEET L8

REF: SHEET L9

RB

RB

M
A

T
C

H
L

IN
E

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

6

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

9

BO

BO

BC

BC

BCBC

BC

RB

LO

M
A

T
C

H
L

IN
E

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

9

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

1
1

STREET A

DETENTION
POND

V

V

V

PLANT LEGEND

SYMBOL KEY COMMON NAME SCIENTIFIC NAME SIZE SPACING

LO LIVE OAK QUERCUS VIRGINIANA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

SO SHUMARD OAK QUERCUS SHUMARDII 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BO BUR OAK QUERCUS MACROCARPA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

CE CEDAR ELM ULMUS CRASSIFOLIA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BC BALD CYPRESS TAXODIUM DISTICHUM 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

RB TEXAS REDBUD
CERCIS CANADENSIS VAR.
TEXENSIS

2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

V CHASTE TREE VITEX ANGUS-CASTUS 2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

LO

SO

BO

CE

BC

RB

V

L12 of 15

20 10

SCALE  1" = 20'

0 20

0

j:\
ci

v
il 

3
d
 p

ro
je

ct
s\

m
jp

 -
 m

ic
h

ae
l 
jo

yc
e 

p
ro

p
er

ti
es

\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 s
o

u
th

si
d
e 

h
ill

s\
la

n
d
sc

ap
e\

d
w

g\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 t
re

es
ca

p
e 

p
la

n
.d

w
g

JVC No MJP503

SCALE:

One Inch

1" = 20'

S
O

U
T

H
S
ID

E
 H

IL
L

S
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 R
O

C
W

A
L

L
R

O
C

K
W

A
L

L
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, 
T

E
X

A
S

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

December 4, 2024

. HI

O

O
D

J

ST
E

C

C
CT

TE

SA

ET

S
TA

I
RE
G

3

OF

2 8

ET
X

N

R

LD
RE

CAANDS

L

EP A
H

SON

Y

3

N

INLET

INLET

SSMH

FH

WATER

10' U.E.

20' BL

SAN. SEWER

10' U.E.

STORM

S
T

O
R

M

POND EDGE

6'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF
ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

6'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF
ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

6'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF

ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

4'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF

ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

Page 53 of 142



6

9

10

8

3

5

4

2

69

L

MATCHLINE
REF: SHEET L10

REF: SHEET L11

BO

BO

CE

CE

CE

RB

BC

BC

BC

BO

SO

SO

SO

BC

M
A

T
C

H
L

IN
E

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

8

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

1
0

STREET Q

ST
RE

E
T R

S
T

R
E

E
T

 A

DETENTION
POND

PLANT LEGEND

SYMBOL KEY COMMON NAME SCIENTIFIC NAME SIZE SPACING

LO LIVE OAK QUERCUS VIRGINIANA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

SO SHUMARD OAK QUERCUS SHUMARDII 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BO BUR OAK QUERCUS MACROCARPA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

CE CEDAR ELM ULMUS CRASSIFOLIA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BC BALD CYPRESS TAXODIUM DISTICHUM 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

RB TEXAS REDBUD
CERCIS CANADENSIS VAR.
TEXENSIS

2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

V CHASTE TREE VITEX ANGUS-CASTUS 2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

LO

SO

BO

CE

BC

RB

V

L13 of 15

20 10

SCALE  1" = 20'

0 20

0

j:\
ci

v
il 

3
d
 p

ro
je

ct
s\

m
jp

 -
 m

ic
h

ae
l 
jo

yc
e 

p
ro

p
er

ti
es

\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 s
o

u
th

si
d
e 

h
ill

s\
la

n
d
sc

ap
e\

d
w

g\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 t
re

es
ca

p
e 

p
la

n
.d

w
g

JVC No MJP503

SCALE:

One Inch

1" = 20'

S
O

U
T

H
S
ID

E
 H

IL
L

S
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 R
O

C
W

A
L

L
R

O
C

K
W

A
L

L
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, 
T

E
X

A
S

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

December 4, 2024

. HI

O

O
D

J

ST
E

C

C
CT

TE

SA

ET

S
TA

I
RE
G

3

OF

2 8

ET
X

N

R

LD
RE

CAANDS

L

EP A
H

SON

Y

3

N

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

FH

FH

10' U.E.

10' U.E.

20' BL

10' U.E.

WATER

SAN. SEWER

W
A

T
E

R

S
A

N
. 
S
E

W
E

R

W
A

T
E

R

1
0
' U

.E
.

1
5
' B

L

POND EDGE

6'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF

ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

6'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF

ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

4'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF
ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

4'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF

ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

Page 54 of 142



68

8

7

6

9

MATCHLINE
REF: SHEET L10

REF: SHEET L11

LO

LO

LO

SO

SO

SO

BO

BO

BO

LO
LO

LO

SO

SO

SO

BC

BC

BC

BO

BO

M
A

T
C

H
L

IN
E

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

8

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

1
1

M
A

T
C

H
L

IN
E

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

9

R
E

F
: 
S
H

E
E

T
 L

1
1

OPEN SPACE

ST
R

E
E

T
 A

STREET X

DETENTION
POND

PLANT LEGEND

SYMBOL KEY COMMON NAME SCIENTIFIC NAME SIZE SPACING

LO LIVE OAK QUERCUS VIRGINIANA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

SO SHUMARD OAK QUERCUS SHUMARDII 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BO BUR OAK QUERCUS MACROCARPA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

CE CEDAR ELM ULMUS CRASSIFOLIA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

BC BALD CYPRESS TAXODIUM DISTICHUM 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN

RB TEXAS REDBUD
CERCIS CANADENSIS VAR.
TEXENSIS

2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

V CHASTE TREE VITEX ANGUS-CASTUS 2" CALIPER AS SHOWN

LO

SO

BO

CE

BC

RB

V

L14 of 15

20 10

SCALE  1" = 20'

0 20

0

j:\
ci

v
il 

3
d
 p

ro
je

ct
s\

m
jp

 -
 m

ic
h

ae
l 
jo

yc
e 

p
ro

p
er

ti
es

\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 s
o

u
th

si
d
e 

h
ill

s\
la

n
d
sc

ap
e\

d
w

g\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 t
re

es
ca

p
e 

p
la

n
.d

w
g

JVC No MJP503

SCALE:

One Inch

1" = 20'

S
O

U
T

H
S
ID

E
 H

IL
L

S
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 R
O

C
W

A
L

L
R

O
C

K
W

A
L

L
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, 
T

E
X

A
S

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

December 4, 2024

. HI

O

O
D

J

ST
E

C

C
CT

TE

SA

ET

S
TA

I
RE
G

3

OF

2 8

ET
X

N

R

LD
RE

CAANDS

L

EP A
H

SON

Y

3

N

IN
L

E
T

IN
L

E
T

FH
SSMH

10
' U

.E
.

SA
N

. S
E

W
E

R

10
' U

.E
.

20
' B

L

10' U.E.

10' U.E.

15' BL

20' BL

1
0
' U

.E
.

2
0
' B

L

1
0
' U

.E
.

S
A

N
. 
S
E

W
E

R

W
A

T
E

R

W
A

T
E

R

WATER

POND EDGE

6'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF

ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

6'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF

ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

6'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF
ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

4'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF
ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

4'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF
ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

4'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK PER CITY OF

ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

Page 55 of 142



LANDSCAPE PROVIDED

1-4" CAL. CANOPY TREE / 50 LF OF LANDSCAPE EDGE
821 LF OF FRONTAGE / 50 LF = 17 - 4" CAL. TREES REQUIRED.
PROVIDED: 18 - 4" CALIPER AND GREATER CANOPY TREES PROVIDED 

A.

FM 549

GENERAL LANDSCAPE NOTESPLANT LIST

KEY
ESTIMATED
QUANTITY COMMON NAME SCIENTIFIC NAME SIZE SPACING REMARKS

LO 28 LIVE OAK QUERCUS VIRGINIANA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN
NURSERY GROWN; FULL HEAD; MINIMUM BRANCHING
HEIGHT AT 6'-0"; MINIMUM 10'-0" OVERALL HEIGHT.

SO 33 SHUMARD OAK QUERCUS SHUMARDII 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN
NURSERY GROWN; FULL HEAD; MINIMUM BRANCHING
HEIGHT AT 6'-0"; MINIMUM 10'-0" OVERALL HEIGHT.

BO 27 BUR OAK QUERCUS MACROCARPA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN
NURSERY GROWN; FULL HEAD; MINIMUM BRANCHING
HEIGHT AT 6'-0"; MINIMUM 10'-0" OVERALL HEIGHT.

CE 18 CEDAR ELM ULMUS CRASSIFOLIA 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN
NURSERY GROWN; FULL HEAD; MINIMUM BRANCHING
HEIGHT AT 6'-0"; MINIMUM 10'-0" OVERALL HEIGHT.

BC 21 BALD CYPRESS TAXODIUM DISTICHUM 4" CALIPER AS SHOWN
NURSERY GROWN; FULL HEAD; MINIMUM BRANCHING
HEIGHT AT 6'-0"; MINIMUM 10'-0" OVERALL HEIGHT.

RB 21 TEXAS REDBUD
CERCIS CANADENSIS VAR.
TEXENSIS

2" CALIPER AS SHOWN
NURSERY GROWN; FULL HEAD; MINIMUM 8'-0"
OVERALL HEIGHT.

V 15 CHASTE TREE VITEX AGNUS-CASTUS 2" CALIPER AS SHOWN
NURSERY GROWN; FULL HEAD; MINIMUM 8'-0"
OVERALL HEIGHT.

INSPECTIONS:
1. NO EXCAVATION SHALL OCCUR IN CITY R.O.W. WITHOUT A R.O.W. PERMIT--CONTACT THE PUBLIC

WORKS DEPARTMENT.
2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MARK ALL WATER LINES, SEWER LINES, AND TREE LOCATIONS PRIOR TO

CALLING FOR ROW INSPECTION AND PERMIT.
3. THE LANDSCAPE INSTALLATION SHALL COMPLY WITH APPROVED LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS PRIOR TO

FINAL ACCEPTANCE BY THE CITY AND ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY.
4. WATER METERS, CLEANOUTS AND OTHER APPURTENANCES, SHALL BE ACCESSIBLE, ADJUSTED TO

GRADE, CLEARLY MARKED WITH FLAGGING AND COMPLIANT WITH PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
STANDARDS PRIOR TO CALLING FOR FINAL LANDSCAPE AND ROW INSPECTIONS.

LANDSCAPE STANDARDS:
1. PLANTINGS AND LANDSCAPE ELEMENTS SHALL COMPLY WITH THE CITY'S ENGINEERING DESIGN

STANDARDS, PUBLIC R.O.W. VISIBILITY REQUIREMENTS.
2. UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED, TREES SHALL BE PLANTED NO LESS THAN 4' FROM CURBS, SIDEWALKS,

UTILITY LINES, SCREENING WALLS AND OTHER STRUCTURES. THE CITY HAS FINAL APPROVAL FOR ALL
TREE PLACEMENTS.

3. A MINIMUM THREE FEET (3') RADIUS AROUND A FIRE HYDRANT MUST REMAIN CLEAR OF LANDSCAPE
PURSUANT TO THE FIRE CODE.

4. STREET TREES, WHERE REQUIRED, SHALL BE (10') MINIMUM FROM THE EDGE OF A STORM SEWER CURB
INLET BOX AND THE EDGE OF THE ROOT BALL SHALL BE (4') MINIMUM FROM THE WATER METER.

5. THE AMERICAN STANDARD FOR NURSERY STOCK (ANSI Z60.1-2004) SPECIFICATIONS SHALL GOVERN
PLANT QUALIFICATIONS, GRADES, AND STANDARDS.

6. TREE PLANTING SHALL COMPLY WITH DETAILS HEREIN AND THE INTERNATIONAL SOCIETY OF
ARBORICULTURE (ISA) STANDARDS.

7. A 2-3" LAYER OF MULCH SHALL BE PROVIDED AROUND THE BASE OF THE PLANTED TREE. THE MULCH
SHALL BE PULLED BACK 4" FROM THE TRUNK OF THE TREE.

8. TREE PITS SHALL BE TESTED FOR WATER PERCOLATION. IF WATER DOES NOT DRAIN OUT OF TREE PIT
WITHIN 24-HOURS, THE TREE SHALL BE MOVED OR DRAINAGE SHALL BE PROVIDED.

9. ALL BEDS TO HAVE 3" OF COMPOSTED SOIL, LIVING EARTH TECHNOLOGY, OR APPROVED EQUAL
TILLED AND TURNED TO A DEPTH OF 8" MINIMUM.

10. ALL PLANT BEDS SHALL BE TOP-DRESSED WITH A MINIMUM OF 3 INCHES OF HARDWOOD MULCH.
11. NATIVE SITE TOPSOIL IS TO BE PROTECTED FROM EROSION OR STOCKPILED.  NATIVE SITE TOPSOIL

SHALL BE LABORATORY TESTED BY AND ACCREDITED LABORATORY AND AMENDED PER SAID
LABORATORY'S RECOMMENDATIONS.

IRRIGATION STANDARDS:
1. ANY CHANGES TO THESE APPROVED IRRIGATION DRAWINGS SHALL BE AUTHORIZED BY THE CITY.
2. CONTACT DEVELOPMENT SERVICES FOR AN IRRIGATION PERMIT PRIOR TO INSTALLING THE

IRRIGATION SYSTEM.
3. IRRIGATION OVER-SPRAY ON STREETS AND WALKS IS PROHIBITED.
4. MAINLINES, VALVES, OR CONTROL WIRES SHALL NOT BE LOCATED IN THE CITY'S ROW.
5. ET IRRIGATION CONTROLLERS SHALL BE PROGRAMMED AND ADJUSTED TO NOT EXCEED THE

LANDSCAPE WATER ALLOWANCE (LWA) PRIOR TO APPROVAL OF LANDSCAPE INSTALLATION.
6. VALVES SHALL BE LOCATED A MINIMUM OF (3') AWAY FROM STORM SEWERS, AND SANITARY SEWER

LINES AND 5 FEET FROM CITY FIRE HYDRANTS AND WATER VALVES.
7. THE BORE DEPTH UNDER STREETS, DRIVE AISLES, AND FIRE LANES SHALL PROVIDE (2') OF CLEARANCE

(MINIMUM).
8. IRRIGATION HEADS THAT RUN PARALLEL AND NEAR PUBLIC WATER AND SANITARY SEWER LINES;

SHALL BE FED FROM STUBBED LATERALS OR BULL-BEADS. A MINIMUM FIVE FOOT (5') SEPARATION IS
REQUIRED BETWEEN IRRIGATION MAIN LINES AND LATERALS THAT RUN PARALLEL TO PUBLIC WATER
AND SANITARY SEWER LINES.

9. NO VALVES, BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLIES, QUICK COUPLERS ETC. SHALL BE LOCATED CLOSER
THAN 10' FROM THE CURB AT STREET OR DRIVE INTERSECTION.

MAINTENANCE STANDARDS:
1. THE OWNER SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT, MAINTENANCE, AND VIGOR OF PLANT

MATERIAL IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DESIGN INTENT AND AS APPROPRIATE FOR THE SEASON OF
THE YEAR.

2. LANDSCAPE AND OPEN AREAS SHALL BE FREE OF TRASH, LITTER AND WEEDS.
3. NO PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE ALLOWED TO ENCROACH ON R.O.W., SIDEWALKS OR EASEMENTS TO

THE EXTENT THAT VISION OR ROUTE OF TRAVEL FOR VEHICULAR, PEDESTRIAN, OR BICYCLE TRAFFIC
IS IMPEDED.

4. TREE MAINTENANCE SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STANDARDS OF THE INTERNATIONAL
SOCIETY OF ARBORICULTURE.

5. TREE STAKING MATERIALS, IF USED, SHALL BE REMOVED AFTER (1) GROWING SEASON, NO MORE
THAN (1) YEAR AFTER INSTALLATION (STEEL TREE STAKES, WIRES, AND HOSES ARE PROHIBITED).

TREE PROTECTION NOTES:
1. CONTACT DEVELOPMENT SERVICES FOR A TREE REMOVAL PERMIT PRIOR TO REMOVAL OR

TRANSPLANTING OF ANY TREES.
2. ALL TREES WHICH ARE TO REMAIN ON SITE SHALL BE PROTECTED WITH A (4') TALL BRIGHTLY

COLORED PLASTIC FENCE, OR SILT FENCE, PLACED AT THE DRIP LINE OF THE TREES.
3. PRIOR TO THE PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING OR OBTAINING A GRADING PERMIT, ALL TREE

MARKINGS AND PROTECTIVE FENCING SHALL BE INSTALLED BY THE OWNER AND BE INSPECTED BY
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES.

4. NO EQUIPMENT SHALL BE CLEANED, OR HARMFUL LIQUIDS DEPOSITED WITHIN THE LIMITS OF THE
ROOT ZONE OF TREES WHICH REMAIN ON SITE.

5. NO SIGNS, WIRES, OR OTHER ATTACHMENTS SHALL BE ATTACHED TO ANY TREE TO REMAIN ON SITE.
6. VEHICULAR AND CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT SHALL NOT PARK OR DRIVE WITHIN THE LIMITS OF THE

DRIP LINE.
7. GRADE CHANGES IN EXCESS OF 3 INCHES (CUT OR FILL) SHALL NOT BE ALLOWED WITHIN A ROOT

ZONE, UNLESS ADEQUATE TREE PRESERVATION METHODS ARE APPROVED BY THE CITY.
8. NO TRENCHING SHALL BE ALLOWED WITHIN THE DRIP-LINE OF A TREE, UNLESS APPROVED BY THE

CITY.
9. ALL REMOVED TREES SHALL BE CHIPPED AND USED FOR MULCH ON SITE OR HAULED OFF-SITE.
10. ALL TREE MAINTENANCE TECHNIQUES SHALL BE IN CONFORMANCE WITH INDUSTRY IDENTIFIED

STANDARDS. IMPROPER OR MALICIOUS PRUNING TECHNIQUES ARE STRICTLY PROHIBITED.

L15 of 15

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E
 &

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

0

j:\
ci

v
il 

3
d
 p

ro
je

ct
s\

m
jp

 -
 m

ic
h

ae
l 
jo

yc
e 

p
ro

p
er

ti
es

\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 s
o

u
th

si
d
e 

h
ill

s\
la

n
d
sc

ap
e\

d
w

g\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 t
re

es
ca

p
e 

p
la

n
.d

w
g

JVC No MJP503

SCALE:

One Inch

1" = 20'

S
O

U
T

H
S
ID

E
 H

IL
L

S
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 R
O

C
W

A
L

L
R

O
C

K
W

A
L

L
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, 
T

E
X

A
S

T
R

E
E

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

December 4, 2024

. HI

O

O
D

J

ST
E

C

C
CT

TE

SA

ET

S
TA

I
RE
G

3

OF

2 8

ET
X

N

R

LD
RE

CAANDS

L

EP A
H

SON

Y

3

REFER TO
DETAILS

1
NOT TO SCALE

TYPICAL TREE PLANTING

SECTION

DO NOT CUT
CENTRAL LEADER

FINISH GRADE

TRUNK FLARE SHALL
REMAIN VISIBLE

TOP OF ROOTBALL
AT THE SURFACE

BLACK, 1/2" WIDE
NYLON TAPE

REMOVE BURLAP FROM TOP
HALF OF ROOT BALL

MULCH LAYER AS SPECIFIED

4" EARTHEN WATERING RING

MINIMUM 2"x2"x36" WOOD
STAKE.  POSITION TO
SECURELY STABILIZE TREE.
PROVIDE (3) TOTAL ON EACH
TREE.

PLANTING MIX AS SPECIFIED

UNDISTURBED NATIVE SOILROOT
BALL

2X ROOT BALL

1-2" CAL. ACCENT TREE / 50 LF OF LANDSCAPE EDGE
821 LF OF FRONTAGE / 50 LF = 17 - 2" CAL. TREES REQUIRED.
PROVIDED: 22 - 2" CALIPER AND GREATER ACCENT TREES PROVIDED 

B.

Page 56 of 142



Δ

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

GRAPHIC SCALE

j:\
ci

v
il 

3
d
 p

ro
je

ct
s\

cc
d
 -

 c
o

rs
o

n
 c

ra
m

er
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t\
2
1
4
7
 -

 h
ig

h
ga

te
\
su

rv
ey

\
d
w

g\
2
1
4
7
-t

it
le

-2
6
4
.4

3
3
ac

.d
w

g

09/22/2022

JVC No ________

SCALE:

One Inch

SHEET  ___  OF  ___

LA
N

D
 T

IT
LE

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

26
4.

43
3 

A
C

R
E

S
W

.W
. F

O
R

D
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
, A

B
ST

R
A

C
T

 N
O

. 8
0

T
O

W
N

 O
F 

R
O

C
K

W
A

LL
, R

O
C

K
W

A
LL

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

, T
E

X
A

S

Page 57 of 142

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
TRACT I ROCKWALL HIGHGATE, LTD. VOLUME 5015, PAGE 251 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
TRACT 2 ROCKWALL HIGHGATE, LTD. VOLUME 5015, PAGE 251 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
ROCKWALL HIGHGATE, LTD. VOLUME 5572, PAGE 219 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
GARY BYRD and wife, CAROL BYRD VOLUME 508, PAGE 125 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
1.00 ACRE RELEASE GARY BYRD and wife, CAROL BYRD VOLUME 508, PAGE 125 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
TONY POPE and wife, KAREN POPE VOLUME 915, PAGE 141 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
JORGE ABREU AND TASHA ABREU DOCUMENT NO. 20200000018552 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
LESLIE HOPE AND DARYL HOPE DOCUMENT NO. 20160000016212 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
BOBBY DALE PRICE and wife, BRETTA JEAN PRICE VOLUME 1028, PAGE 142 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
BRET A. WILSON AND LESLIE WILSON VOLUME 1327, PAGE 212 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
CODY A BARRICK AND CARRIE L BARRICK VOLUME 6167, PAGE 67 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
JAMES KESSLER AND ANGELA KESSLER DOCUMENT NO. 20180000020020 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
DR MOHIUDIN ZEB, NASREEN ZEB VOLUME 1059, PAGE 14 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
101 HUBBARD DR LLC LOTS 1 AND 2, BLOCK A JBR2 ADDITION CABINET J, SLIDES 131 & 132 M.R.R.C.T. DOCUMENT NO. 20180000008030 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
STATE HIGHWAY NO. 205 (120' RIGHT-OF-WAY) VOLUME 33, PAGE 556 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
1/2" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
1/2" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
1/2" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
1/2" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
1/2" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
1/2" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
1/2" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
1/2" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
1/2" IRF BEARS S31°29'46"E, 0.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
1/2" IRF W/ YELLOW PLASTIC CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
1/2" IRF W/ YELLOW PLASTIC CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
1/2" IRF W/ YELLOW PLASTIC CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
CONCRETE PEDESTAL MONUMENT FOUND <CM1>

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
1/2" IRF W/ YELLOW PLASTIC CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
SCOTT W. & GLENITA G. BLACKWOOD VOLUME 2884, PAGE 2550 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
F.M. ROAD NO. 549 ROAD NO. 549 (VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
BOUNDARY LINE AGREEMENT VOLUME 4715, PAGE 230 DOCUMENT NO. 2006-00361312 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
1/2" IRF <CM2>

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
JAMES RUSSELL WYLIE, JR. VOLUME 175, PAGE 386 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
PAUL DAVIS JR. DOCUMENT NO. 1983-41393 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
JOSEPH EDWARD BAUMANN DOCUMENT NO. 2010-436143 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
WYLIE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
PROPOSED TXDOT RIGHT-OF-WAY 10,705 SQ. FT. 0.246 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
PROPOSED TXDOT RIGHT-OF-WAY 54,278 SQ. FT. 1.246 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
ZONE X (UNSHADED)

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
ZONE A

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
ZONE X (UNSHADED)

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
ZONE X (UNSHADED)

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
APPROXIMATE LOCATION 0.1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
15' WATER LINE EASEMENT R.C.H. WATER SUPPLY CORP. VOLUME 929, PAGE 271 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
50' WATERLINE EASEMENT NORTH TEXAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT DOCUMENT NO. 2006-00366548 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
15' WATERLINE EASEMENT RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION VOLUME 640, PAGE 320 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
10' S.W. BELL EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
VOLUME 1152, PAGE 249

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
EXISTING POND

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
10' S.W. BELL EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
VOLUME 1152, PAGE 249

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: BEING a tract of land situated in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall,  a tract of land situated in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, a tract of land situated in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall,  tract of land situated in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, tract of land situated in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall,  of land situated in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, of land situated in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall,  land situated in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, land situated in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall,  situated in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, situated in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall,  in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, in the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall,  the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, the W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall,  W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall,  FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall,  SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall,  ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, ABSTRACT NO. 80, Town of Rockwall,  NO. 80, Town of Rockwall, NO. 80, Town of Rockwall,  80, Town of Rockwall, 80, Town of Rockwall,  Town of Rockwall, Town of Rockwall,  of Rockwall, of Rockwall,  Rockwall, Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and being all of those tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in  County, Texas and being all of those tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in County, Texas and being all of those tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in  Texas and being all of those tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in Texas and being all of those tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in  and being all of those tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in and being all of those tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in  being all of those tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in being all of those tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in  all of those tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in all of those tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in  of those tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in of those tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in  those tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in those tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in  tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in tracts of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in  of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in of land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in  land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in land described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in  described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in described as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in  as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in as Tract 1 and Tract 2 in  Tract 1 and Tract 2 in Tract 1 and Tract 2 in  1 and Tract 2 in 1 and Tract 2 in  and Tract 2 in and Tract 2 in  Tract 2 in Tract 2 in  2 in 2 in  in in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume 5015, Page 251, Deed Records, Rockwall  to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume 5015, Page 251, Deed Records, Rockwall to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume 5015, Page 251, Deed Records, Rockwall  Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume 5015, Page 251, Deed Records, Rockwall Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume 5015, Page 251, Deed Records, Rockwall  Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume 5015, Page 251, Deed Records, Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as recorded in Volume 5015, Page 251, Deed Records, Rockwall  Ltd., as recorded in Volume 5015, Page 251, Deed Records, Rockwall Ltd., as recorded in Volume 5015, Page 251, Deed Records, Rockwall  as recorded in Volume 5015, Page 251, Deed Records, Rockwall as recorded in Volume 5015, Page 251, Deed Records, Rockwall  recorded in Volume 5015, Page 251, Deed Records, Rockwall recorded in Volume 5015, Page 251, Deed Records, Rockwall  in Volume 5015, Page 251, Deed Records, Rockwall in Volume 5015, Page 251, Deed Records, Rockwall  Volume 5015, Page 251, Deed Records, Rockwall Volume 5015, Page 251, Deed Records, Rockwall  5015, Page 251, Deed Records, Rockwall 5015, Page 251, Deed Records, Rockwall  Page 251, Deed Records, Rockwall Page 251, Deed Records, Rockwall  251, Deed Records, Rockwall 251, Deed Records, Rockwall  Deed Records, Rockwall Deed Records, Rockwall  Records, Rockwall Records, Rockwall  Rockwall Rockwall County, Texas and being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as  Texas and being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as Texas and being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as  and being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as and being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as  being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as being all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as  all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as all of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as  of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as of that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as  that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as that tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as  tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as tract of land described in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as  of land described in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as of land described in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as  land described in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as land described in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as  described in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as described in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as  in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as in Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as  Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as Deed to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as  to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as to Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as  Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as Rockwall Highgate, Ltd., as  Highgate, Ltd., as Highgate, Ltd., as  Ltd., as Ltd., as  as as recorded in Volume 5572, Page 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more  in Volume 5572, Page 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more in Volume 5572, Page 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more  Volume 5572, Page 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more Volume 5572, Page 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more  5572, Page 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more 5572, Page 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more  Page 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more Page 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more  219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more 219, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more  Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more  Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more  Rockwall County, Texas and being more Rockwall County, Texas and being more  County, Texas and being more County, Texas and being more  Texas and being more Texas and being more  and being more and being more  being more being more  more more particularly described as follows: BEGINNING at a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot  at a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot at a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot  a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot  1/2 inch iron rod found in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot 1/2 inch iron rod found in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot  inch iron rod found in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot inch iron rod found in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot  iron rod found in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot iron rod found in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot  rod found in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot rod found in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot  found in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot found in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot  in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot in the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot  the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot the southwest line of State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot  southwest line of State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot southwest line of State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot  line of State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot line of State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot  of State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot of State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot  State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot State Highway No. 205, a 120 foot  Highway No. 205, a 120 foot Highway No. 205, a 120 foot  No. 205, a 120 foot No. 205, a 120 foot  205, a 120 foot 205, a 120 foot  a 120 foot a 120 foot  120 foot 120 foot  foot foot right-of-way, for the common north corner of said Tract 2 and east corner of that tract of land  for the common north corner of said Tract 2 and east corner of that tract of land for the common north corner of said Tract 2 and east corner of that tract of land  the common north corner of said Tract 2 and east corner of that tract of land the common north corner of said Tract 2 and east corner of that tract of land  common north corner of said Tract 2 and east corner of that tract of land common north corner of said Tract 2 and east corner of that tract of land  north corner of said Tract 2 and east corner of that tract of land north corner of said Tract 2 and east corner of that tract of land  corner of said Tract 2 and east corner of that tract of land corner of said Tract 2 and east corner of that tract of land  of said Tract 2 and east corner of that tract of land of said Tract 2 and east corner of that tract of land  said Tract 2 and east corner of that tract of land said Tract 2 and east corner of that tract of land  Tract 2 and east corner of that tract of land Tract 2 and east corner of that tract of land  2 and east corner of that tract of land 2 and east corner of that tract of land  and east corner of that tract of land and east corner of that tract of land  east corner of that tract of land east corner of that tract of land  corner of that tract of land corner of that tract of land  of that tract of land of that tract of land  that tract of land that tract of land  tract of land tract of land  of land of land  land land described in Deed to Dr. Mohiudin Zeb, Nasreen Zeb, as recorded in Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed  in Deed to Dr. Mohiudin Zeb, Nasreen Zeb, as recorded in Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed in Deed to Dr. Mohiudin Zeb, Nasreen Zeb, as recorded in Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed  Deed to Dr. Mohiudin Zeb, Nasreen Zeb, as recorded in Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed Deed to Dr. Mohiudin Zeb, Nasreen Zeb, as recorded in Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed  to Dr. Mohiudin Zeb, Nasreen Zeb, as recorded in Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed to Dr. Mohiudin Zeb, Nasreen Zeb, as recorded in Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed  Dr. Mohiudin Zeb, Nasreen Zeb, as recorded in Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed Dr. Mohiudin Zeb, Nasreen Zeb, as recorded in Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed  Mohiudin Zeb, Nasreen Zeb, as recorded in Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed Mohiudin Zeb, Nasreen Zeb, as recorded in Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed  Zeb, Nasreen Zeb, as recorded in Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed Zeb, Nasreen Zeb, as recorded in Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed  Nasreen Zeb, as recorded in Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed Nasreen Zeb, as recorded in Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed  Zeb, as recorded in Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed Zeb, as recorded in Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed  as recorded in Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed as recorded in Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed  recorded in Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed recorded in Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed  in Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed in Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed  Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed Volume 1059, Page 14, Deed  1059, Page 14, Deed 1059, Page 14, Deed  Page 14, Deed Page 14, Deed  14, Deed 14, Deed  Deed Deed Records, Rockwall, County, Texas; THENCE Southeasterly, with said southwest line, the following three (3) courses and distances: South 45 degrees 48 minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 1,120.76 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  45 degrees 48 minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 1,120.76 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 45 degrees 48 minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 1,120.76 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  degrees 48 minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 1,120.76 feet to a 1/2 inch iron degrees 48 minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 1,120.76 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  48 minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 1,120.76 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 48 minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 1,120.76 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 1,120.76 feet to a 1/2 inch iron minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 1,120.76 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  12 seconds East, a distance of 1,120.76 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 12 seconds East, a distance of 1,120.76 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  seconds East, a distance of 1,120.76 feet to a 1/2 inch iron seconds East, a distance of 1,120.76 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  East, a distance of 1,120.76 feet to a 1/2 inch iron East, a distance of 1,120.76 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  a distance of 1,120.76 feet to a 1/2 inch iron a distance of 1,120.76 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  distance of 1,120.76 feet to a 1/2 inch iron distance of 1,120.76 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  of 1,120.76 feet to a 1/2 inch iron of 1,120.76 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  1,120.76 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 1,120.76 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  feet to a 1/2 inch iron feet to a 1/2 inch iron  to a 1/2 inch iron to a 1/2 inch iron  a 1/2 inch iron a 1/2 inch iron  1/2 inch iron 1/2 inch iron  inch iron inch iron  iron iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for corner; JVC” set for corner;  set for corner; South 46 degrees 03 minutes 02 seconds East, a distance of 621.15 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  46 degrees 03 minutes 02 seconds East, a distance of 621.15 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 46 degrees 03 minutes 02 seconds East, a distance of 621.15 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  degrees 03 minutes 02 seconds East, a distance of 621.15 feet to a 1/2 inch iron degrees 03 minutes 02 seconds East, a distance of 621.15 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  03 minutes 02 seconds East, a distance of 621.15 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 03 minutes 02 seconds East, a distance of 621.15 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  minutes 02 seconds East, a distance of 621.15 feet to a 1/2 inch iron minutes 02 seconds East, a distance of 621.15 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  02 seconds East, a distance of 621.15 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 02 seconds East, a distance of 621.15 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  seconds East, a distance of 621.15 feet to a 1/2 inch iron seconds East, a distance of 621.15 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  East, a distance of 621.15 feet to a 1/2 inch iron East, a distance of 621.15 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  a distance of 621.15 feet to a 1/2 inch iron a distance of 621.15 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  distance of 621.15 feet to a 1/2 inch iron distance of 621.15 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  of 621.15 feet to a 1/2 inch iron of 621.15 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  621.15 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 621.15 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  feet to a 1/2 inch iron feet to a 1/2 inch iron  to a 1/2 inch iron to a 1/2 inch iron  a 1/2 inch iron a 1/2 inch iron  1/2 inch iron 1/2 inch iron  inch iron inch iron  iron iron rod found for corner; South 46 degrees 03 minutes 47 seconds East, a distance of 951.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  46 degrees 03 minutes 47 seconds East, a distance of 951.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod 46 degrees 03 minutes 47 seconds East, a distance of 951.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  degrees 03 minutes 47 seconds East, a distance of 951.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod degrees 03 minutes 47 seconds East, a distance of 951.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  03 minutes 47 seconds East, a distance of 951.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod 03 minutes 47 seconds East, a distance of 951.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  minutes 47 seconds East, a distance of 951.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod minutes 47 seconds East, a distance of 951.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  47 seconds East, a distance of 951.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod 47 seconds East, a distance of 951.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  seconds East, a distance of 951.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod seconds East, a distance of 951.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  East, a distance of 951.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod East, a distance of 951.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  a distance of 951.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod a distance of 951.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  distance of 951.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod distance of 951.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  of 951.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod of 951.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  951.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod 951.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  to a 1/2 inch iron rod to a 1/2 inch iron rod  a 1/2 inch iron rod a 1/2 inch iron rod  1/2 inch iron rod 1/2 inch iron rod  inch iron rod inch iron rod  iron rod iron rod  rod rod found for the east corner of said Tract 2; THENCE South 44 degrees 19 minutes 10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line and with the  South 44 degrees 19 minutes 10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line and with the South 44 degrees 19 minutes 10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line and with the  44 degrees 19 minutes 10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line and with the 44 degrees 19 minutes 10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line and with the  degrees 19 minutes 10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line and with the degrees 19 minutes 10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line and with the  19 minutes 10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line and with the 19 minutes 10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line and with the  minutes 10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line and with the minutes 10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line and with the  10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line and with the 10 seconds West, leaving said southwest line and with the  seconds West, leaving said southwest line and with the seconds West, leaving said southwest line and with the  West, leaving said southwest line and with the West, leaving said southwest line and with the  leaving said southwest line and with the leaving said southwest line and with the  said southwest line and with the said southwest line and with the  southwest line and with the southwest line and with the  line and with the line and with the  and with the and with the  with the with the  the the southeast line of said Tract 2, a distance of 2,607.26 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for corner; THENCE South 45 degrees 05 minutes 45 seconds West, continuing with said southeast line, a  South 45 degrees 05 minutes 45 seconds West, continuing with said southeast line, a South 45 degrees 05 minutes 45 seconds West, continuing with said southeast line, a  45 degrees 05 minutes 45 seconds West, continuing with said southeast line, a 45 degrees 05 minutes 45 seconds West, continuing with said southeast line, a  degrees 05 minutes 45 seconds West, continuing with said southeast line, a degrees 05 minutes 45 seconds West, continuing with said southeast line, a  05 minutes 45 seconds West, continuing with said southeast line, a 05 minutes 45 seconds West, continuing with said southeast line, a  minutes 45 seconds West, continuing with said southeast line, a minutes 45 seconds West, continuing with said southeast line, a  45 seconds West, continuing with said southeast line, a 45 seconds West, continuing with said southeast line, a  seconds West, continuing with said southeast line, a seconds West, continuing with said southeast line, a  West, continuing with said southeast line, a West, continuing with said southeast line, a  continuing with said southeast line, a continuing with said southeast line, a  with said southeast line, a with said southeast line, a  said southeast line, a said southeast line, a  southeast line, a southeast line, a  line, a line, a  a a distance of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the  of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the of 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the  1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the 1,146.10 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the  to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the  a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the  1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the  iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the  rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the  with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the  a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the  yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the  plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the  cap stamped “JVC” set for the cap stamped “JVC” set for the  stamped “JVC” set for the stamped “JVC” set for the  “JVC” set for the JVC” set for the  set for the set for the  for the for the  the the most southerly southeast corner of the above mentioned Tract 1; THENCE North 45 degrees 20 minutes 38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a  North 45 degrees 20 minutes 38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a North 45 degrees 20 minutes 38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a  45 degrees 20 minutes 38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a 45 degrees 20 minutes 38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a  degrees 20 minutes 38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a degrees 20 minutes 38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a  20 minutes 38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a 20 minutes 38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a  minutes 38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a minutes 38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a  38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a 38 seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a  seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a seconds West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a  West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a West, with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a  with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a with the southwest line of said Tract 1, a  the southwest line of said Tract 1, a the southwest line of said Tract 1, a  southwest line of said Tract 1, a southwest line of said Tract 1, a  line of said Tract 1, a line of said Tract 1, a  of said Tract 1, a of said Tract 1, a  said Tract 1, a said Tract 1, a  Tract 1, a Tract 1, a  1, a 1, a  a a distance of 315.37 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of  of 315.37 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of of 315.37 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of  315.37 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of 315.37 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of  to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of  a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of  1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of  iron rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of iron rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of  rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of rod with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of  with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of with a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of  a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of a yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of  yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of yellow plastic cap found for the east corner of  plastic cap found for the east corner of plastic cap found for the east corner of  cap found for the east corner of cap found for the east corner of  found for the east corner of found for the east corner of  for the east corner of for the east corner of  the east corner of the east corner of  east corner of east corner of  corner of corner of  of of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume 5572, Page 219; THENCE South 44 degrees 05 minutes 31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of  South 44 degrees 05 minutes 31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of South 44 degrees 05 minutes 31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of  44 degrees 05 minutes 31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of 44 degrees 05 minutes 31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of  degrees 05 minutes 31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of degrees 05 minutes 31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of  05 minutes 31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of 05 minutes 31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of  minutes 31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of minutes 31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of  31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of 31 seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of  seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of seconds West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of  West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of West, leaving said southwest line, a distance of  leaving said southwest line, a distance of leaving said southwest line, a distance of  said southwest line, a distance of said southwest line, a distance of  southwest line, a distance of southwest line, a distance of  line, a distance of line, a distance of  a distance of a distance of  distance of distance of  of of 690.67 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner  to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner  a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner  1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner  iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner  rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner  with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner  a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner  yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner  plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner  cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner cap stamped “JVC” set for the south corner  stamped “JVC” set for the south corner stamped “JVC” set for the south corner  “JVC” set for the south corner JVC” set for the south corner  set for the south corner set for the south corner  for the south corner for the south corner  the south corner the south corner  south corner south corner  corner corner of said Rockwall Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume 5572, Page 219; THENCE North 32 degrees 39 minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch  North 32 degrees 39 minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch North 32 degrees 39 minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch  32 degrees 39 minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch 32 degrees 39 minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch  degrees 39 minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch degrees 39 minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch  39 minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch 39 minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch  minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch  25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch 25 seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch  seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch seconds West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch  West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch West, a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch  a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch a distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch  distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch distance of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch  of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch of 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch  6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch 6680.55 feet to a 1/2 inch  feet to a 1/2 inch feet to a 1/2 inch  to a 1/2 inch to a 1/2 inch  a 1/2 inch a 1/2 inch  1/2 inch 1/2 inch  inch inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate, rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate, with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate, a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate, yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate, plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  cap stamped “JVC” set for the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate, cap stamped “JVC” set for the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  stamped “JVC” set for the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate, stamped “JVC” set for the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  “JVC” set for the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate, JVC” set for the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  set for the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate, set for the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  for the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate, for the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate, the west corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  west corner of said Rockwall Highgate, west corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  corner of said Rockwall Highgate, corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  of said Rockwall Highgate, of said Rockwall Highgate,  said Rockwall Highgate, said Rockwall Highgate,  Rockwall Highgate, Rockwall Highgate,  Highgate, Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume 5572, Page 219; THENCE North 62 degrees 15 minutes 39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  North 62 degrees 15 minutes 39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron North 62 degrees 15 minutes 39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  62 degrees 15 minutes 39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 62 degrees 15 minutes 39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  degrees 15 minutes 39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron degrees 15 minutes 39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  15 minutes 39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 15 minutes 39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  minutes 39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron minutes 39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 39 seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron seconds East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron East, a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron a distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron distance of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron of 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 110.73 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  feet to a 1/2 inch iron feet to a 1/2 inch iron  to a 1/2 inch iron to a 1/2 inch iron  a 1/2 inch iron a 1/2 inch iron  1/2 inch iron 1/2 inch iron  inch iron inch iron  iron iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  cap stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, cap stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  corner of said Rockwall Highgate, corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  of said Rockwall Highgate, of said Rockwall Highgate,  said Rockwall Highgate, said Rockwall Highgate,  Rockwall Highgate, Rockwall Highgate,  Highgate, Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume 5572, Page 219; THENCE North 61 degrees 56 minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  North 61 degrees 56 minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron North 61 degrees 56 minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  61 degrees 56 minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 61 degrees 56 minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  degrees 56 minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron degrees 56 minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  56 minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 56 minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 23 seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron seconds East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron East, a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron a distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron distance of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron of 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 43.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  feet to a 1/2 inch iron feet to a 1/2 inch iron  to a 1/2 inch iron to a 1/2 inch iron  a 1/2 inch iron a 1/2 inch iron  1/2 inch iron 1/2 inch iron  inch iron inch iron  iron iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  cap stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, cap stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, stamped “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  “JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, JVC” set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, set for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, interior ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate, ell corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  corner of said Rockwall Highgate, corner of said Rockwall Highgate,  of said Rockwall Highgate, of said Rockwall Highgate,  said Rockwall Highgate, said Rockwall Highgate,  Rockwall Highgate, Rockwall Highgate,  Highgate, Highgate, Ltd. tract recorded in Volume 5572, Page 219; THENCE North 45 degrees 09 minutes 15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  North 45 degrees 09 minutes 15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron North 45 degrees 09 minutes 15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  45 degrees 09 minutes 15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 45 degrees 09 minutes 15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  degrees 09 minutes 15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron degrees 09 minutes 15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  09 minutes 15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 09 minutes 15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  minutes 15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron minutes 15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 15 seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron seconds East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron East, a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron a distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron distance of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron of 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 393.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  feet to a 1/2 inch iron feet to a 1/2 inch iron  to a 1/2 inch iron to a 1/2 inch iron  a 1/2 inch iron a 1/2 inch iron  1/2 inch iron 1/2 inch iron  inch iron inch iron  iron iron rod with a yellow plastic cap found in the southwest line of the above mentioned Tract 1; THENCE North 45 degrees 15 minutes 38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  North 45 degrees 15 minutes 38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron North 45 degrees 15 minutes 38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  45 degrees 15 minutes 38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 45 degrees 15 minutes 38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  degrees 15 minutes 38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron degrees 15 minutes 38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  15 minutes 38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 15 minutes 38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  minutes 38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron minutes 38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 38 seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron seconds West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron West, a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron a distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron distance of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron of 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 598.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  feet to a 1/2 inch iron feet to a 1/2 inch iron  to a 1/2 inch iron to a 1/2 inch iron  a 1/2 inch iron a 1/2 inch iron  1/2 inch iron 1/2 inch iron  inch iron inch iron  iron iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “RSCI RPLS 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a  with a yellow plastic cap stamped “RSCI RPLS 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a with a yellow plastic cap stamped “RSCI RPLS 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a  a yellow plastic cap stamped “RSCI RPLS 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a a yellow plastic cap stamped “RSCI RPLS 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a  yellow plastic cap stamped “RSCI RPLS 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a yellow plastic cap stamped “RSCI RPLS 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a  plastic cap stamped “RSCI RPLS 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a plastic cap stamped “RSCI RPLS 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a  cap stamped “RSCI RPLS 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a cap stamped “RSCI RPLS 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a  stamped “RSCI RPLS 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a stamped “RSCI RPLS 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a  “RSCI RPLS 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a RSCI RPLS 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a  RPLS 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a RPLS 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a  5034” found for corner at the beginning of a 5034” found for corner at the beginning of a  found for corner at the beginning of a found for corner at the beginning of a  for corner at the beginning of a for corner at the beginning of a  corner at the beginning of a corner at the beginning of a  at the beginning of a at the beginning of a  the beginning of a the beginning of a  beginning of a beginning of a  of a of a  a a Boundary Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715, Page 230 (Document No. 2006-00361312),  Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715, Page 230 (Document No. 2006-00361312), Line Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715, Page 230 (Document No. 2006-00361312),  Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715, Page 230 (Document No. 2006-00361312), Agreement, as recorded in Volume 4715, Page 230 (Document No. 2006-00361312),  as recorded in Volume 4715, Page 230 (Document No. 2006-00361312), as recorded in Volume 4715, Page 230 (Document No. 2006-00361312),  recorded in Volume 4715, Page 230 (Document No. 2006-00361312), recorded in Volume 4715, Page 230 (Document No. 2006-00361312),  in Volume 4715, Page 230 (Document No. 2006-00361312), in Volume 4715, Page 230 (Document No. 2006-00361312),  Volume 4715, Page 230 (Document No. 2006-00361312), Volume 4715, Page 230 (Document No. 2006-00361312),  4715, Page 230 (Document No. 2006-00361312), 4715, Page 230 (Document No. 2006-00361312),  Page 230 (Document No. 2006-00361312), Page 230 (Document No. 2006-00361312),  230 (Document No. 2006-00361312), 230 (Document No. 2006-00361312),  (Document No. 2006-00361312), (Document No. 2006-00361312),  No. 2006-00361312), No. 2006-00361312),  2006-00361312), 2006-00361312), Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas; THENCE Northwesterly, with said Boundary Line Agreement, the following six (6) courses and  Northwesterly, with said Boundary Line Agreement, the following six (6) courses and Northwesterly, with said Boundary Line Agreement, the following six (6) courses and  with said Boundary Line Agreement, the following six (6) courses and with said Boundary Line Agreement, the following six (6) courses and  said Boundary Line Agreement, the following six (6) courses and said Boundary Line Agreement, the following six (6) courses and  Boundary Line Agreement, the following six (6) courses and Boundary Line Agreement, the following six (6) courses and  Line Agreement, the following six (6) courses and Line Agreement, the following six (6) courses and  Agreement, the following six (6) courses and Agreement, the following six (6) courses and  the following six (6) courses and the following six (6) courses and  following six (6) courses and following six (6) courses and  six (6) courses and six (6) courses and  (6) courses and (6) courses and  courses and courses and  and and distances: North 44 degrees 04 minutes 30 seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  44 degrees 04 minutes 30 seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 44 degrees 04 minutes 30 seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  degrees 04 minutes 30 seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron degrees 04 minutes 30 seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  04 minutes 30 seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 04 minutes 30 seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  minutes 30 seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron minutes 30 seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  30 seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 30 seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron seconds West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron West, a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron a distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron distance of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron of 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 436.95 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  feet to a 1/2 inch iron feet to a 1/2 inch iron  to a 1/2 inch iron to a 1/2 inch iron  a 1/2 inch iron a 1/2 inch iron  1/2 inch iron 1/2 inch iron  inch iron inch iron  iron iron rod with a yellow plastic cap found for corner; North 48 degrees 39 minutes 02 seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  48 degrees 39 minutes 02 seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 48 degrees 39 minutes 02 seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  degrees 39 minutes 02 seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron degrees 39 minutes 02 seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  39 minutes 02 seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 39 minutes 02 seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  minutes 02 seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron minutes 02 seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  02 seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 02 seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron seconds West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron West, a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron a distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron distance of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron of 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 237.14 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  feet to a 1/2 inch iron feet to a 1/2 inch iron  to a 1/2 inch iron to a 1/2 inch iron  a 1/2 inch iron a 1/2 inch iron  1/2 inch iron 1/2 inch iron  inch iron inch iron  iron iron rod with a yellow plastic cap found for corner; North 39 degrees 59 minutes 19 seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  39 degrees 59 minutes 19 seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 39 degrees 59 minutes 19 seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  degrees 59 minutes 19 seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron degrees 59 minutes 19 seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  59 minutes 19 seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 59 minutes 19 seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  minutes 19 seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron minutes 19 seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  19 seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 19 seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron seconds West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron West, a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron a distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron distance of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron of 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 184.23 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  feet to a 1/2 inch iron feet to a 1/2 inch iron  to a 1/2 inch iron to a 1/2 inch iron  a 1/2 inch iron a 1/2 inch iron  1/2 inch iron 1/2 inch iron  inch iron inch iron  iron iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “RSCI RPLS 5034” found for corner; RSCI RPLS 5034” found for corner;  found for corner; North 44 degrees 51 minutes 58 seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  44 degrees 51 minutes 58 seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 44 degrees 51 minutes 58 seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  degrees 51 minutes 58 seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron degrees 51 minutes 58 seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  51 minutes 58 seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 51 minutes 58 seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  minutes 58 seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron minutes 58 seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  58 seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 58 seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron seconds West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron West, a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron a distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron distance of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron of 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 244.71 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  feet to a 1/2 inch iron feet to a 1/2 inch iron  to a 1/2 inch iron to a 1/2 inch iron  a 1/2 inch iron a 1/2 inch iron  1/2 inch iron 1/2 inch iron  inch iron inch iron  iron iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for corner; JVC” set for corner;  set for corner; South 44 degrees 53 minutes 18 seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  44 degrees 53 minutes 18 seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod 44 degrees 53 minutes 18 seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  degrees 53 minutes 18 seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod degrees 53 minutes 18 seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  53 minutes 18 seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod 53 minutes 18 seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  minutes 18 seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod minutes 18 seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  18 seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod 18 seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod seconds West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod West, a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod a distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod distance of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod of 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod 13.39 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod  to a 1/2 inch iron rod to a 1/2 inch iron rod  a 1/2 inch iron rod a 1/2 inch iron rod  1/2 inch iron rod 1/2 inch iron rod  inch iron rod inch iron rod  iron rod iron rod  rod rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for corner in the west line of said Tract 1; JVC” set for corner in the west line of said Tract 1;  set for corner in the west line of said Tract 1; THENCE Northwesterly, with said west line, the following three (3) courses and distances: North 45 degrees 16 minutes 15 seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  45 degrees 16 minutes 15 seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 45 degrees 16 minutes 15 seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  degrees 16 minutes 15 seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron degrees 16 minutes 15 seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  16 minutes 15 seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 16 minutes 15 seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  minutes 15 seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron minutes 15 seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  15 seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 15 seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron seconds West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron West, a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron a distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron distance of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron of 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 259.63 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  feet to a 1/2 inch iron feet to a 1/2 inch iron  to a 1/2 inch iron to a 1/2 inch iron  a 1/2 inch iron a 1/2 inch iron  1/2 inch iron 1/2 inch iron  inch iron inch iron  iron iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for corner the common south corner of that  with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for corner the common south corner of that with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for corner the common south corner of that  a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for corner the common south corner of that a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for corner the common south corner of that  yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for corner the common south corner of that yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for corner the common south corner of that  plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for corner the common south corner of that plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for corner the common south corner of that  cap stamped “JVC” set for corner the common south corner of that cap stamped “JVC” set for corner the common south corner of that  stamped “JVC” set for corner the common south corner of that stamped “JVC” set for corner the common south corner of that  “JVC” set for corner the common south corner of that JVC” set for corner the common south corner of that  set for corner the common south corner of that set for corner the common south corner of that  for corner the common south corner of that for corner the common south corner of that  corner the common south corner of that corner the common south corner of that  the common south corner of that the common south corner of that  common south corner of that common south corner of that  south corner of that south corner of that  corner of that corner of that  of that of that  that that tract of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327,  of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327, of land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327,  land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327, land described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327,  described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327, described in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327,  in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327, in Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327,  Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327, Deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327,  to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327, to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327,  Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327, Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327,  A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327, A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327,  Wilson and Leslie Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327, Wilson and Leslie Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327,  and Leslie Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327, and Leslie Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327,  Leslie Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327, Leslie Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327,  Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327, Wilson, as recorded in Volume 1327,  as recorded in Volume 1327, as recorded in Volume 1327,  recorded in Volume 1327, recorded in Volume 1327,  in Volume 1327, in Volume 1327,  Volume 1327, Volume 1327,  1327, 1327, Page 212, Deed Records, Rockwall, County, Texas and an exterior ell corner of said Tract 1; North 44 degrees 44 minutes 29 seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  44 degrees 44 minutes 29 seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 44 degrees 44 minutes 29 seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  degrees 44 minutes 29 seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron degrees 44 minutes 29 seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  44 minutes 29 seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 44 minutes 29 seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  minutes 29 seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron minutes 29 seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  29 seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 29 seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron seconds East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron East, a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron a distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron distance of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron of 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 467.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  feet to a 1/2 inch iron feet to a 1/2 inch iron  to a 1/2 inch iron to a 1/2 inch iron  a 1/2 inch iron a 1/2 inch iron  1/2 inch iron 1/2 inch iron  inch iron inch iron  iron iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the common east corner of said Bret A.  with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the common east corner of said Bret A. with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the common east corner of said Bret A.  a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the common east corner of said Bret A. a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the common east corner of said Bret A.  yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the common east corner of said Bret A. yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the common east corner of said Bret A.  plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the common east corner of said Bret A. plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for the common east corner of said Bret A.  cap stamped “JVC” set for the common east corner of said Bret A. cap stamped “JVC” set for the common east corner of said Bret A.  stamped “JVC” set for the common east corner of said Bret A. stamped “JVC” set for the common east corner of said Bret A.  “JVC” set for the common east corner of said Bret A. JVC” set for the common east corner of said Bret A.  set for the common east corner of said Bret A. set for the common east corner of said Bret A.  for the common east corner of said Bret A. for the common east corner of said Bret A.  the common east corner of said Bret A. the common east corner of said Bret A.  common east corner of said Bret A. common east corner of said Bret A.  east corner of said Bret A. east corner of said Bret A.  corner of said Bret A. corner of said Bret A.  of said Bret A. of said Bret A.  said Bret A. said Bret A.  Bret A. Bret A.  A. A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and an interior ell corner of said Tract 1; North 31 degrees 29 minutes 46 seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch  31 degrees 29 minutes 46 seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch 31 degrees 29 minutes 46 seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch  degrees 29 minutes 46 seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch degrees 29 minutes 46 seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch  29 minutes 46 seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch 29 minutes 46 seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch  minutes 46 seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch minutes 46 seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch  46 seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch 46 seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch  seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch seconds West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch  West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch West, passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch  passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch passing at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch  at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch at a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch  a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch a distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch  distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch distance of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch  of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch of 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch  486.24 feet a 1/2 inch 486.24 feet a 1/2 inch  feet a 1/2 inch feet a 1/2 inch  a 1/2 inch a 1/2 inch  1/2 inch 1/2 inch  inch inch iron rod found for the common north corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and  rod found for the common north corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and rod found for the common north corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and  found for the common north corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and found for the common north corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and  for the common north corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and for the common north corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and  the common north corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and the common north corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and  common north corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and common north corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and  north corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and north corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and  corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and corner of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and  of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and of said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and  said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and said Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and  Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and  A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and  Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and Wilson and Leslie Wilson tract and  and Leslie Wilson tract and and Leslie Wilson tract and  Leslie Wilson tract and Leslie Wilson tract and  Wilson tract and Wilson tract and  tract and tract and  and and east corner of that tract of land described in Deed to Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean  corner of that tract of land described in Deed to Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean corner of that tract of land described in Deed to Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean  of that tract of land described in Deed to Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean of that tract of land described in Deed to Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean  that tract of land described in Deed to Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean that tract of land described in Deed to Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean  tract of land described in Deed to Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean tract of land described in Deed to Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean  of land described in Deed to Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean of land described in Deed to Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean  land described in Deed to Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean land described in Deed to Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean  described in Deed to Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean described in Deed to Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean  in Deed to Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean in Deed to Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean  Deed to Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean Deed to Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean  to Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean to Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean  Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean Bobby Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean  Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean Dale Price and wife, Bretta Jean  Price and wife, Bretta Jean Price and wife, Bretta Jean  and wife, Bretta Jean and wife, Bretta Jean  wife, Bretta Jean wife, Bretta Jean  Bretta Jean Bretta Jean  Jean Jean Price, as recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas, and  as recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas, and as recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas, and  recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas, and recorded in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas, and  in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas, and in Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas, and  Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas, and Volume 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas, and  1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas, and 1028, Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas, and  Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas, and Page 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas, and  142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas, and 142, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas, and  Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas, and Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas, and  Records, Rockwall County, Texas, and Records, Rockwall County, Texas, and  Rockwall County, Texas, and Rockwall County, Texas, and  County, Texas, and County, Texas, and  Texas, and Texas, and  and and continuing in all for a total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to  in all for a total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to in all for a total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to  all for a total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to all for a total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to  for a total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to for a total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to  a total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to a total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to  total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to total distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to  distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to distance of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to  of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to of 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to  857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to 857.83 feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to  feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to feet to a point in the southeast line of Farm to  to a point in the southeast line of Farm to to a point in the southeast line of Farm to  a point in the southeast line of Farm to a point in the southeast line of Farm to  point in the southeast line of Farm to point in the southeast line of Farm to  in the southeast line of Farm to in the southeast line of Farm to  the southeast line of Farm to the southeast line of Farm to  southeast line of Farm to southeast line of Farm to  line of Farm to line of Farm to  of Farm to of Farm to  Farm to Farm to  to to Market Road No. 549, a variable width right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found  Road No. 549, a variable width right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found Road No. 549, a variable width right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found  No. 549, a variable width right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found No. 549, a variable width right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found  549, a variable width right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found 549, a variable width right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found  a variable width right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found a variable width right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found  variable width right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found variable width right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found  width right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found width right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found  right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found right-of-way, from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found  from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found from which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found  which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found which point a 1/2 inch iron rod found  point a 1/2 inch iron rod found point a 1/2 inch iron rod found  a 1/2 inch iron rod found a 1/2 inch iron rod found  1/2 inch iron rod found 1/2 inch iron rod found  inch iron rod found inch iron rod found  iron rod found iron rod found  rod found rod found  found found bears South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46 seconds East, 0.80 feet, said point being at the  South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46 seconds East, 0.80 feet, said point being at the South 31 degrees 29 minutes 46 seconds East, 0.80 feet, said point being at the  31 degrees 29 minutes 46 seconds East, 0.80 feet, said point being at the 31 degrees 29 minutes 46 seconds East, 0.80 feet, said point being at the  degrees 29 minutes 46 seconds East, 0.80 feet, said point being at the degrees 29 minutes 46 seconds East, 0.80 feet, said point being at the  29 minutes 46 seconds East, 0.80 feet, said point being at the 29 minutes 46 seconds East, 0.80 feet, said point being at the  minutes 46 seconds East, 0.80 feet, said point being at the minutes 46 seconds East, 0.80 feet, said point being at the  46 seconds East, 0.80 feet, said point being at the 46 seconds East, 0.80 feet, said point being at the  seconds East, 0.80 feet, said point being at the seconds East, 0.80 feet, said point being at the  East, 0.80 feet, said point being at the East, 0.80 feet, said point being at the  0.80 feet, said point being at the 0.80 feet, said point being at the  feet, said point being at the feet, said point being at the  said point being at the said point being at the  point being at the point being at the  being at the being at the  at the at the  the the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01 degrees 12 minutes  of a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01 degrees 12 minutes of a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01 degrees 12 minutes  a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01 degrees 12 minutes a non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01 degrees 12 minutes  non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01 degrees 12 minutes non-tangent curve to the left having a central angle of 01 degrees 12 minutes  curve to the left having a central angle of 01 degrees 12 minutes curve to the left having a central angle of 01 degrees 12 minutes  to the left having a central angle of 01 degrees 12 minutes to the left having a central angle of 01 degrees 12 minutes  the left having a central angle of 01 degrees 12 minutes the left having a central angle of 01 degrees 12 minutes  left having a central angle of 01 degrees 12 minutes left having a central angle of 01 degrees 12 minutes  having a central angle of 01 degrees 12 minutes having a central angle of 01 degrees 12 minutes  a central angle of 01 degrees 12 minutes a central angle of 01 degrees 12 minutes  central angle of 01 degrees 12 minutes central angle of 01 degrees 12 minutes  angle of 01 degrees 12 minutes angle of 01 degrees 12 minutes  of 01 degrees 12 minutes of 01 degrees 12 minutes  01 degrees 12 minutes 01 degrees 12 minutes  degrees 12 minutes degrees 12 minutes  12 minutes 12 minutes  minutes minutes 54 seconds, a radius of 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17  seconds, a radius of 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17 seconds, a radius of 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17  a radius of 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17 a radius of 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17  radius of 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17 radius of 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17  of 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17 of 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17  5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17 5,796.43 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17  feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17  and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17 and a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17  a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17 a chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17  chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17 chord bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17  bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17 bearing and distance of North 45 degrees 17  and distance of North 45 degrees 17 and distance of North 45 degrees 17  distance of North 45 degrees 17 distance of North 45 degrees 17  of North 45 degrees 17 of North 45 degrees 17  North 45 degrees 17 North 45 degrees 17  45 degrees 17 45 degrees 17  degrees 17 degrees 17  17 17 minutes 02 seconds East, 122.92 feet; THENCE Northeasterly, with said southeast line, the following three (3) courses and distances: Northeasterly, with said curve to the left, an arc distance of 122.92 feet to a concrete pedestal  with said curve to the left, an arc distance of 122.92 feet to a concrete pedestal with said curve to the left, an arc distance of 122.92 feet to a concrete pedestal  said curve to the left, an arc distance of 122.92 feet to a concrete pedestal said curve to the left, an arc distance of 122.92 feet to a concrete pedestal  curve to the left, an arc distance of 122.92 feet to a concrete pedestal curve to the left, an arc distance of 122.92 feet to a concrete pedestal  to the left, an arc distance of 122.92 feet to a concrete pedestal to the left, an arc distance of 122.92 feet to a concrete pedestal  the left, an arc distance of 122.92 feet to a concrete pedestal the left, an arc distance of 122.92 feet to a concrete pedestal  left, an arc distance of 122.92 feet to a concrete pedestal left, an arc distance of 122.92 feet to a concrete pedestal  an arc distance of 122.92 feet to a concrete pedestal an arc distance of 122.92 feet to a concrete pedestal  arc distance of 122.92 feet to a concrete pedestal arc distance of 122.92 feet to a concrete pedestal  distance of 122.92 feet to a concrete pedestal distance of 122.92 feet to a concrete pedestal  of 122.92 feet to a concrete pedestal of 122.92 feet to a concrete pedestal  122.92 feet to a concrete pedestal 122.92 feet to a concrete pedestal  feet to a concrete pedestal feet to a concrete pedestal  to a concrete pedestal to a concrete pedestal  a concrete pedestal a concrete pedestal  concrete pedestal concrete pedestal  pedestal pedestal monument found for corner; North 44 degrees 52 minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in  44 degrees 52 minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in 44 degrees 52 minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in  degrees 52 minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in degrees 52 minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in  52 minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in 52 minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in  minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in  16 seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in 16 seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in  seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in seconds East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in  East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in East, a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in  a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in a distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in  distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in distance of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in  of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in of 304.20 feet to an “X” found in  304.20 feet to an “X” found in 304.20 feet to an “X” found in  feet to an “X” found in feet to an “X” found in  to an “X” found in to an “X” found in  an “X” found in an “X” found in  “X” found in X” found in  found in found in  in in concrete for the common north corner of said Tract 1 and most westerly northwest corner of  for the common north corner of said Tract 1 and most westerly northwest corner of for the common north corner of said Tract 1 and most westerly northwest corner of  the common north corner of said Tract 1 and most westerly northwest corner of the common north corner of said Tract 1 and most westerly northwest corner of  common north corner of said Tract 1 and most westerly northwest corner of common north corner of said Tract 1 and most westerly northwest corner of  north corner of said Tract 1 and most westerly northwest corner of north corner of said Tract 1 and most westerly northwest corner of  corner of said Tract 1 and most westerly northwest corner of corner of said Tract 1 and most westerly northwest corner of  of said Tract 1 and most westerly northwest corner of of said Tract 1 and most westerly northwest corner of  said Tract 1 and most westerly northwest corner of said Tract 1 and most westerly northwest corner of  Tract 1 and most westerly northwest corner of Tract 1 and most westerly northwest corner of  1 and most westerly northwest corner of 1 and most westerly northwest corner of  and most westerly northwest corner of and most westerly northwest corner of  most westerly northwest corner of most westerly northwest corner of  westerly northwest corner of westerly northwest corner of  northwest corner of northwest corner of  corner of corner of  of of said Tract 2; North 44 degrees 50 minutes 38 seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete  44 degrees 50 minutes 38 seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete 44 degrees 50 minutes 38 seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete  degrees 50 minutes 38 seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete degrees 50 minutes 38 seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete  50 minutes 38 seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete 50 minutes 38 seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete  minutes 38 seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete minutes 38 seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete  38 seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete 38 seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete  seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete seconds East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete  East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete East, passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete  passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete passing at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete  at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete at a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete  a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete a distance of 375.47 feet a concrete  distance of 375.47 feet a concrete distance of 375.47 feet a concrete  of 375.47 feet a concrete of 375.47 feet a concrete  375.47 feet a concrete 375.47 feet a concrete  feet a concrete feet a concrete  a concrete a concrete  concrete concrete pedestal monument found, and continuing in all for a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2  monument found, and continuing in all for a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 monument found, and continuing in all for a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2  found, and continuing in all for a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 found, and continuing in all for a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2  and continuing in all for a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 and continuing in all for a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2  continuing in all for a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 continuing in all for a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2  in all for a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 in all for a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2  all for a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 all for a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2  for a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 for a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2  a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 a total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2  total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 total distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2  distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 distance of 398.43 feet to a 1/2  of 398.43 feet to a 1/2 of 398.43 feet to a 1/2  398.43 feet to a 1/2 398.43 feet to a 1/2  feet to a 1/2 feet to a 1/2  to a 1/2 to a 1/2  a 1/2 a 1/2  1/2 1/2 inch iron rod found for the common west corner of that tract of land described in Deed to  iron rod found for the common west corner of that tract of land described in Deed to iron rod found for the common west corner of that tract of land described in Deed to  rod found for the common west corner of that tract of land described in Deed to rod found for the common west corner of that tract of land described in Deed to  found for the common west corner of that tract of land described in Deed to found for the common west corner of that tract of land described in Deed to  for the common west corner of that tract of land described in Deed to for the common west corner of that tract of land described in Deed to  the common west corner of that tract of land described in Deed to the common west corner of that tract of land described in Deed to  common west corner of that tract of land described in Deed to common west corner of that tract of land described in Deed to  west corner of that tract of land described in Deed to west corner of that tract of land described in Deed to  corner of that tract of land described in Deed to corner of that tract of land described in Deed to  of that tract of land described in Deed to of that tract of land described in Deed to  that tract of land described in Deed to that tract of land described in Deed to  tract of land described in Deed to tract of land described in Deed to  of land described in Deed to of land described in Deed to  land described in Deed to land described in Deed to  described in Deed to described in Deed to  in Deed to in Deed to  Deed to Deed to  to to Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Records,  A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Records, A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Records,  Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Records, Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Records,  and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Records, and Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Records,  Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Records, Carrie L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Records,  L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Records, L. Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Records,  Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Records, Barrick, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Records,  as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Records, as recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Records,  recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Records, recorded in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Records,  in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Records, in Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Records,  Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Records, Volume 6167, Page 67, Deed Records,  6167, Page 67, Deed Records, 6167, Page 67, Deed Records,  Page 67, Deed Records, Page 67, Deed Records,  67, Deed Records, 67, Deed Records,  Deed Records, Deed Records,  Records, Records, Rockwall County, Texas and most northerly northwest corner of said Trat 2; THENCE South 45 degrees 15 minutes 03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of  South 45 degrees 15 minutes 03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of South 45 degrees 15 minutes 03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of  45 degrees 15 minutes 03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of 45 degrees 15 minutes 03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of  degrees 15 minutes 03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of degrees 15 minutes 03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of  15 minutes 03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of 15 minutes 03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of  minutes 03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of minutes 03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of  03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of 03 seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of  seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of seconds East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of  East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of East, leaving said southeast line, a distance of  leaving said southeast line, a distance of leaving said southeast line, a distance of  said southeast line, a distance of said southeast line, a distance of  southeast line, a distance of southeast line, a distance of  line, a distance of line, a distance of  a distance of a distance of  distance of distance of  of of 995.00 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south  feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south  to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south  a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south  1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south  inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south  iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south  rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south  with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south  a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south  yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south  plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south  cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south  stamped “JVC” set for a common south stamped “JVC” set for a common south  “JVC” set for a common south JVC” set for a common south  set for a common south set for a common south  for a common south for a common south  a common south a common south  common south common south  south south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell corner of said Tract 2; THENCE North 89 degrees 17 minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  North 89 degrees 17 minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron North 89 degrees 17 minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  89 degrees 17 minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 89 degrees 17 minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  degrees 17 minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron degrees 17 minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  17 minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 17 minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 48 seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron seconds East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron East, a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron a distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron distance of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron of 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 20.25 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  feet to a 1/2 inch iron feet to a 1/2 inch iron  to a 1/2 inch iron to a 1/2 inch iron  a 1/2 inch iron a 1/2 inch iron  1/2 inch iron 1/2 inch iron  inch iron inch iron  iron iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick  with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick with a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick  a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick a yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick  yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick yellow plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick  plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick plastic cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick  cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick cap stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick  stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick stamped “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick  “JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick JVC” set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick  set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick set for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick  for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick for a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick  a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick a common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick  common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick common south corner of said Cody A. Barrick  south corner of said Cody A. Barrick south corner of said Cody A. Barrick  corner of said Cody A. Barrick corner of said Cody A. Barrick  of said Cody A. Barrick of said Cody A. Barrick  said Cody A. Barrick said Cody A. Barrick  Cody A. Barrick Cody A. Barrick  A. Barrick A. Barrick  Barrick Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and an interior ell corner of said Tract 2; THENCE North 44 degrees 48 minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  North 44 degrees 48 minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron North 44 degrees 48 minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  44 degrees 48 minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 44 degrees 48 minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  degrees 48 minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron degrees 48 minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  48 minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 48 minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron minutes 03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 03 seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron seconds East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron East, a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron a distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron distance of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron of 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 524.11 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  feet to a 1/2 inch iron feet to a 1/2 inch iron  to a 1/2 inch iron to a 1/2 inch iron  a 1/2 inch iron a 1/2 inch iron  1/2 inch iron 1/2 inch iron  inch iron inch iron  iron iron rod found for the common east corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south  found for the common east corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south found for the common east corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south  for the common east corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south for the common east corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south  the common east corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south the common east corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south  common east corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south common east corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south  east corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south east corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south  corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south corner of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south  of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south of said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south  said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south said Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south  Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south Cody A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south  A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south A. Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south  Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south Barrick and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south  and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south and Carrie L. Barrick tract and south  Carrie L. Barrick tract and south Carrie L. Barrick tract and south  L. Barrick tract and south L. Barrick tract and south  Barrick tract and south Barrick tract and south  tract and south tract and south  and south and south  south south corner of that tract of land described in Deed to James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in  of that tract of land described in Deed to James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in of that tract of land described in Deed to James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in  that tract of land described in Deed to James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in that tract of land described in Deed to James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in  tract of land described in Deed to James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in tract of land described in Deed to James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in  of land described in Deed to James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in of land described in Deed to James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in  land described in Deed to James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in land described in Deed to James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in  described in Deed to James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in described in Deed to James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in  in Deed to James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in in Deed to James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in  Deed to James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in Deed to James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in  to James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in to James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in  James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in James Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in  Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in Kessler and Angela Kessler, as recorded in  and Angela Kessler, as recorded in and Angela Kessler, as recorded in  Angela Kessler, as recorded in Angela Kessler, as recorded in  Kessler, as recorded in Kessler, as recorded in  as recorded in as recorded in  recorded in recorded in  in in Document No. 20180000020020, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas; THENCE North 44 degrees 50 minutes 31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  North 44 degrees 50 minutes 31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron North 44 degrees 50 minutes 31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  44 degrees 50 minutes 31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 44 degrees 50 minutes 31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  degrees 50 minutes 31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron degrees 50 minutes 31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  50 minutes 31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 50 minutes 31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  minutes 31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron minutes 31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 31 seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron seconds East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron East, a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron a distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron distance of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron of 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 538.74 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  feet to a 1/2 inch iron feet to a 1/2 inch iron  to a 1/2 inch iron to a 1/2 inch iron  a 1/2 inch iron a 1/2 inch iron  1/2 inch iron 1/2 inch iron  inch iron inch iron  iron iron rod found for the east corner of said James Kessler and Angela Kessler tract; THENCE North 44 degrees 31 minutes 54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  North 44 degrees 31 minutes 54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron North 44 degrees 31 minutes 54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  44 degrees 31 minutes 54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 44 degrees 31 minutes 54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  degrees 31 minutes 54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron degrees 31 minutes 54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  31 minutes 54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 31 minutes 54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  minutes 54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron minutes 54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 54 seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron seconds East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron East, a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron a distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron distance of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron of 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 541.29 feet to a 1/2 inch iron  feet to a 1/2 inch iron feet to a 1/2 inch iron  to a 1/2 inch iron to a 1/2 inch iron  a 1/2 inch iron a 1/2 inch iron  1/2 inch iron 1/2 inch iron  inch iron inch iron  iron iron rod found for the south corner of the above mentioned Dr. Mohiudin Zeb, Nasreen Zeb tract; THENCE North 44 degrees 43 minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 606.27 feet to the POINT OF  North 44 degrees 43 minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 606.27 feet to the POINT OF North 44 degrees 43 minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 606.27 feet to the POINT OF  44 degrees 43 minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 606.27 feet to the POINT OF 44 degrees 43 minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 606.27 feet to the POINT OF  degrees 43 minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 606.27 feet to the POINT OF degrees 43 minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 606.27 feet to the POINT OF  43 minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 606.27 feet to the POINT OF 43 minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 606.27 feet to the POINT OF  minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 606.27 feet to the POINT OF minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 606.27 feet to the POINT OF  30 seconds East, a distance of 606.27 feet to the POINT OF 30 seconds East, a distance of 606.27 feet to the POINT OF  seconds East, a distance of 606.27 feet to the POINT OF seconds East, a distance of 606.27 feet to the POINT OF  East, a distance of 606.27 feet to the POINT OF East, a distance of 606.27 feet to the POINT OF  a distance of 606.27 feet to the POINT OF a distance of 606.27 feet to the POINT OF  distance of 606.27 feet to the POINT OF distance of 606.27 feet to the POINT OF  of 606.27 feet to the POINT OF of 606.27 feet to the POINT OF  606.27 feet to the POINT OF 606.27 feet to the POINT OF  feet to the POINT OF feet to the POINT OF  to the POINT OF to the POINT OF  the POINT OF the POINT OF  POINT OF POINT OF  OF OF BEGINNING and containing 264.433 acres of land, more or less.

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
600

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
RYAN S. REYNOLDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
#6385

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
2147

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
1"=200'

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
Wallace

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
Lake

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
Little

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
Buffalo

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
Long

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
Branch

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
Brushy

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
Long

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
Branch

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
Creek

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
Creek

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
Brushy

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
205

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
1139

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
549

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
549

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
550

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
1139

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
549

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
205

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
LOCATION MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
SITE LOCATION



GRAPHIC SCALE

j:\
ci

v
il 

3
d
 p

ro
je

ct
s\

cc
d
 -

 c
o

rs
o

n
 c

ra
m

er
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t\
2
1
4
7
 -

 h
ig

h
ga

te
\
su

rv
ey

\
d
w

g\
2
1
4
7
-t

it
le

-2
6
4
.4

3
3
ac

.d
w

g

09/22/2022

JVC No ________

SCALE:

One Inch

SHEET  ___  OF  ___

LA
N

D
 T

IT
LE

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

26
4.

43
3 

A
C

R
E

S
W

.W
. F

O
R

D
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
, A

B
ST

R
A

C
T

 N
O

. 8
0

T
O

W
N

 O
F 

R
O

C
K

W
A

LL
, R

O
C

K
W

A
LL

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

, T
E

X
A

S

Page 58 of 142

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
STATE HIGHWAY NO. 205 (120' RIGHT-OF-WAY) VOLUME 33, PAGE 556 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
F.M. ROAD NO. 549 ROAD NO. 549 (VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
WYLIE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
PROPOSED TXDOT RIGHT-OF-WAY 10,705 SQ. FT. 0.246 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
PROPOSED TXDOT RIGHT-OF-WAY 54,278 SQ. FT. 1.246 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
15' WATER LINE EASEMENT R.C.H. WATER SUPPLY CORP. VOLUME 929, PAGE 271 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
50' WATERLINE EASEMENT NORTH TEXAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT DOCUMENT NO. 2006-00366548 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
15' WATERLINE EASEMENT RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION VOLUME 640, PAGE 320 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
VF

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
VF

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
VF

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
10' S.W. BELL EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
VOLUME 1152, PAGE 249

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
EXISTING POND

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
CONCRETE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
METAL SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
METAL SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
METAL SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
METAL SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
METAL SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
METAL SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
METAL SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
METAL SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
METAL SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
2-STORY MASONRY RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
MASONRY GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
1-STORY MASONRY RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
MASONRY GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
METAL BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
METAL BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
METAL BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
METAL BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
METAL BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
WOOD BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
METAL BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
METAL BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
POOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
POOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
10' S.W. BELL EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
VOLUME 1152, PAGE 249

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE: To C AND C LAND, LLC; ROCKWALL HIGHGATE, LTD.; NATIONAL TITLE GROUP, LLC; and OLD REPUBLIC  C AND C LAND, LLC; ROCKWALL HIGHGATE, LTD.; NATIONAL TITLE GROUP, LLC; and OLD REPUBLIC C AND C LAND, LLC; ROCKWALL HIGHGATE, LTD.; NATIONAL TITLE GROUP, LLC; and OLD REPUBLIC  AND C LAND, LLC; ROCKWALL HIGHGATE, LTD.; NATIONAL TITLE GROUP, LLC; and OLD REPUBLIC AND C LAND, LLC; ROCKWALL HIGHGATE, LTD.; NATIONAL TITLE GROUP, LLC; and OLD REPUBLIC  C LAND, LLC; ROCKWALL HIGHGATE, LTD.; NATIONAL TITLE GROUP, LLC; and OLD REPUBLIC C LAND, LLC; ROCKWALL HIGHGATE, LTD.; NATIONAL TITLE GROUP, LLC; and OLD REPUBLIC  LAND, LLC; ROCKWALL HIGHGATE, LTD.; NATIONAL TITLE GROUP, LLC; and OLD REPUBLIC LAND, LLC; ROCKWALL HIGHGATE, LTD.; NATIONAL TITLE GROUP, LLC; and OLD REPUBLIC  LLC; ROCKWALL HIGHGATE, LTD.; NATIONAL TITLE GROUP, LLC; and OLD REPUBLIC LLC; ROCKWALL HIGHGATE, LTD.; NATIONAL TITLE GROUP, LLC; and OLD REPUBLIC  ROCKWALL HIGHGATE, LTD.; NATIONAL TITLE GROUP, LLC; and OLD REPUBLIC ROCKWALL HIGHGATE, LTD.; NATIONAL TITLE GROUP, LLC; and OLD REPUBLIC  HIGHGATE, LTD.; NATIONAL TITLE GROUP, LLC; and OLD REPUBLIC HIGHGATE, LTD.; NATIONAL TITLE GROUP, LLC; and OLD REPUBLIC  LTD.; NATIONAL TITLE GROUP, LLC; and OLD REPUBLIC LTD.; NATIONAL TITLE GROUP, LLC; and OLD REPUBLIC  NATIONAL TITLE GROUP, LLC; and OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITLE GROUP, LLC; and OLD REPUBLIC  TITLE GROUP, LLC; and OLD REPUBLIC TITLE GROUP, LLC; and OLD REPUBLIC  GROUP, LLC; and OLD REPUBLIC GROUP, LLC; and OLD REPUBLIC  LLC; and OLD REPUBLIC LLC; and OLD REPUBLIC  and OLD REPUBLIC and OLD REPUBLIC  OLD REPUBLIC OLD REPUBLIC  REPUBLIC REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY:  I, Ryan S. Reynolds, a Registered Professional Land Surveyor in the State Of Texas, do hereby certify  Ryan S. Reynolds, a Registered Professional Land Surveyor in the State Of Texas, do hereby certify Ryan S. Reynolds, a Registered Professional Land Surveyor in the State Of Texas, do hereby certify  S. Reynolds, a Registered Professional Land Surveyor in the State Of Texas, do hereby certify S. Reynolds, a Registered Professional Land Surveyor in the State Of Texas, do hereby certify  Reynolds, a Registered Professional Land Surveyor in the State Of Texas, do hereby certify Reynolds, a Registered Professional Land Surveyor in the State Of Texas, do hereby certify  a Registered Professional Land Surveyor in the State Of Texas, do hereby certify a Registered Professional Land Surveyor in the State Of Texas, do hereby certify  Registered Professional Land Surveyor in the State Of Texas, do hereby certify Registered Professional Land Surveyor in the State Of Texas, do hereby certify  Professional Land Surveyor in the State Of Texas, do hereby certify Professional Land Surveyor in the State Of Texas, do hereby certify  Land Surveyor in the State Of Texas, do hereby certify Land Surveyor in the State Of Texas, do hereby certify  Surveyor in the State Of Texas, do hereby certify Surveyor in the State Of Texas, do hereby certify  in the State Of Texas, do hereby certify in the State Of Texas, do hereby certify  the State Of Texas, do hereby certify the State Of Texas, do hereby certify  State Of Texas, do hereby certify State Of Texas, do hereby certify  Of Texas, do hereby certify Of Texas, do hereby certify  Texas, do hereby certify Texas, do hereby certify  do hereby certify do hereby certify  hereby certify hereby certify  certify certify that this plat is based on an actual on the ground survey made under my direct supervision and all  this plat is based on an actual on the ground survey made under my direct supervision and all this plat is based on an actual on the ground survey made under my direct supervision and all  plat is based on an actual on the ground survey made under my direct supervision and all plat is based on an actual on the ground survey made under my direct supervision and all  is based on an actual on the ground survey made under my direct supervision and all is based on an actual on the ground survey made under my direct supervision and all  based on an actual on the ground survey made under my direct supervision and all based on an actual on the ground survey made under my direct supervision and all  on an actual on the ground survey made under my direct supervision and all on an actual on the ground survey made under my direct supervision and all  an actual on the ground survey made under my direct supervision and all an actual on the ground survey made under my direct supervision and all  actual on the ground survey made under my direct supervision and all actual on the ground survey made under my direct supervision and all  on the ground survey made under my direct supervision and all on the ground survey made under my direct supervision and all  the ground survey made under my direct supervision and all the ground survey made under my direct supervision and all  ground survey made under my direct supervision and all ground survey made under my direct supervision and all  survey made under my direct supervision and all survey made under my direct supervision and all  made under my direct supervision and all made under my direct supervision and all  under my direct supervision and all under my direct supervision and all  my direct supervision and all my direct supervision and all  direct supervision and all direct supervision and all  supervision and all supervision and all  and all and all  all all corners are monumented as shown hereon. Except as shown, there are no visible encroachments,  are monumented as shown hereon. Except as shown, there are no visible encroachments, are monumented as shown hereon. Except as shown, there are no visible encroachments,  monumented as shown hereon. Except as shown, there are no visible encroachments, monumented as shown hereon. Except as shown, there are no visible encroachments,  as shown hereon. Except as shown, there are no visible encroachments, as shown hereon. Except as shown, there are no visible encroachments,  shown hereon. Except as shown, there are no visible encroachments, shown hereon. Except as shown, there are no visible encroachments,  hereon. Except as shown, there are no visible encroachments, hereon. Except as shown, there are no visible encroachments,  Except as shown, there are no visible encroachments, Except as shown, there are no visible encroachments,  as shown, there are no visible encroachments, as shown, there are no visible encroachments,  shown, there are no visible encroachments, shown, there are no visible encroachments,  there are no visible encroachments, there are no visible encroachments,  are no visible encroachments, are no visible encroachments,  no visible encroachments, no visible encroachments,  visible encroachments, visible encroachments,  encroachments, encroachments, conflicts or protrusions apparent on the ground.

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
NOTES: 1. BASIS OF BEARINGS DERIVED FROM THE TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83, NORTH  BASIS OF BEARINGS DERIVED FROM THE TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83, NORTH BASIS OF BEARINGS DERIVED FROM THE TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83, NORTH  OF BEARINGS DERIVED FROM THE TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83, NORTH OF BEARINGS DERIVED FROM THE TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83, NORTH  BEARINGS DERIVED FROM THE TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83, NORTH BEARINGS DERIVED FROM THE TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83, NORTH  DERIVED FROM THE TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83, NORTH DERIVED FROM THE TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83, NORTH  FROM THE TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83, NORTH FROM THE TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83, NORTH  THE TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83, NORTH THE TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83, NORTH  TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83, NORTH TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83, NORTH  STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83, NORTH STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83, NORTH  PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83, NORTH PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83, NORTH  COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83, NORTH COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83, NORTH  SYSTEM, NAD83, NORTH SYSTEM, NAD83, NORTH  NAD83, NORTH NAD83, NORTH  NORTH NORTH CENTRAL ZONE. DIRECTION FOR CONTROL ESTABLISHED THROUGH <CM1> AND <CM2> HAVING A  ZONE. DIRECTION FOR CONTROL ESTABLISHED THROUGH <CM1> AND <CM2> HAVING A ZONE. DIRECTION FOR CONTROL ESTABLISHED THROUGH <CM1> AND <CM2> HAVING A  DIRECTION FOR CONTROL ESTABLISHED THROUGH <CM1> AND <CM2> HAVING A DIRECTION FOR CONTROL ESTABLISHED THROUGH <CM1> AND <CM2> HAVING A  FOR CONTROL ESTABLISHED THROUGH <CM1> AND <CM2> HAVING A FOR CONTROL ESTABLISHED THROUGH <CM1> AND <CM2> HAVING A  CONTROL ESTABLISHED THROUGH <CM1> AND <CM2> HAVING A CONTROL ESTABLISHED THROUGH <CM1> AND <CM2> HAVING A  ESTABLISHED THROUGH <CM1> AND <CM2> HAVING A ESTABLISHED THROUGH <CM1> AND <CM2> HAVING A  THROUGH <CM1> AND <CM2> HAVING A THROUGH <CM1> AND <CM2> HAVING A  <CM1> AND <CM2> HAVING A <CM1> AND <CM2> HAVING A  AND <CM2> HAVING A AND <CM2> HAVING A  <CM2> HAVING A <CM2> HAVING A  HAVING A HAVING A  A A BEARING AND DISTANCE OF S76°53'37"E, 4,347.44'.2. THE SUBJECT TRACT LIES WITHIN ZONE X (UNSHADED), DEFINED AS "AREAS DETERMINED TO BE  THE SUBJECT TRACT LIES WITHIN ZONE X (UNSHADED), DEFINED AS "AREAS DETERMINED TO BE THE SUBJECT TRACT LIES WITHIN ZONE X (UNSHADED), DEFINED AS "AREAS DETERMINED TO BE  SUBJECT TRACT LIES WITHIN ZONE X (UNSHADED), DEFINED AS "AREAS DETERMINED TO BE SUBJECT TRACT LIES WITHIN ZONE X (UNSHADED), DEFINED AS "AREAS DETERMINED TO BE  TRACT LIES WITHIN ZONE X (UNSHADED), DEFINED AS "AREAS DETERMINED TO BE TRACT LIES WITHIN ZONE X (UNSHADED), DEFINED AS "AREAS DETERMINED TO BE  LIES WITHIN ZONE X (UNSHADED), DEFINED AS "AREAS DETERMINED TO BE LIES WITHIN ZONE X (UNSHADED), DEFINED AS "AREAS DETERMINED TO BE  WITHIN ZONE X (UNSHADED), DEFINED AS "AREAS DETERMINED TO BE WITHIN ZONE X (UNSHADED), DEFINED AS "AREAS DETERMINED TO BE  ZONE X (UNSHADED), DEFINED AS "AREAS DETERMINED TO BE ZONE X (UNSHADED), DEFINED AS "AREAS DETERMINED TO BE  X (UNSHADED), DEFINED AS "AREAS DETERMINED TO BE X (UNSHADED), DEFINED AS "AREAS DETERMINED TO BE  (UNSHADED), DEFINED AS "AREAS DETERMINED TO BE (UNSHADED), DEFINED AS "AREAS DETERMINED TO BE  DEFINED AS "AREAS DETERMINED TO BE DEFINED AS "AREAS DETERMINED TO BE  AS "AREAS DETERMINED TO BE AS "AREAS DETERMINED TO BE  "AREAS DETERMINED TO BE "AREAS DETERMINED TO BE  DETERMINED TO BE DETERMINED TO BE  TO BE TO BE  BE BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOODPLAIN", ZONE A, DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD  THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOODPLAIN", ZONE A, DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOODPLAIN", ZONE A, DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD  0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOODPLAIN", ZONE A, DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOODPLAIN", ZONE A, DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD  ANNUAL CHANCE FLOODPLAIN", ZONE A, DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD ANNUAL CHANCE FLOODPLAIN", ZONE A, DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD  CHANCE FLOODPLAIN", ZONE A, DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD CHANCE FLOODPLAIN", ZONE A, DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD  FLOODPLAIN", ZONE A, DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD FLOODPLAIN", ZONE A, DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD  ZONE A, DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD ZONE A, DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD  A, DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD A, DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD  DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD  AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD  "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD  FLOOD HAZARD FLOOD HAZARD  HAZARD HAZARD AREAS (SFHAs) SUBJECT TO INUNDATION BY THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - NO BASE FLOOD  (SFHAs) SUBJECT TO INUNDATION BY THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - NO BASE FLOOD (SFHAs) SUBJECT TO INUNDATION BY THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - NO BASE FLOOD  SUBJECT TO INUNDATION BY THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - NO BASE FLOOD SUBJECT TO INUNDATION BY THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - NO BASE FLOOD  TO INUNDATION BY THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - NO BASE FLOOD TO INUNDATION BY THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - NO BASE FLOOD  INUNDATION BY THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - NO BASE FLOOD INUNDATION BY THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - NO BASE FLOOD  BY THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - NO BASE FLOOD BY THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - NO BASE FLOOD  THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - NO BASE FLOOD THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - NO BASE FLOOD  1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - NO BASE FLOOD 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - NO BASE FLOOD  ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - NO BASE FLOOD ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - NO BASE FLOOD  CHANCE FLOOD - NO BASE FLOOD CHANCE FLOOD - NO BASE FLOOD  FLOOD - NO BASE FLOOD FLOOD - NO BASE FLOOD  - NO BASE FLOOD - NO BASE FLOOD  NO BASE FLOOD NO BASE FLOOD  BASE FLOOD BASE FLOOD  FLOOD FLOOD ELEVATIONS DETERMINED" AND ZONE AE, DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS (SFHAs)  DETERMINED" AND ZONE AE, DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS (SFHAs) DETERMINED" AND ZONE AE, DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS (SFHAs)  AND ZONE AE, DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS (SFHAs) AND ZONE AE, DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS (SFHAs)  ZONE AE, DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS (SFHAs) ZONE AE, DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS (SFHAs)  AE, DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS (SFHAs) AE, DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS (SFHAs)  DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS (SFHAs) DEFINED AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS (SFHAs)  AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS (SFHAs) AS "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS (SFHAs)  "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS (SFHAs) "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS (SFHAs)  FLOOD HAZARD AREAS (SFHAs) FLOOD HAZARD AREAS (SFHAs)  HAZARD AREAS (SFHAs) HAZARD AREAS (SFHAs)  AREAS (SFHAs) AREAS (SFHAs)  (SFHAs) (SFHAs) SUBJECT TO INUNDATION BY THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS DETERMINED"  TO INUNDATION BY THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS DETERMINED" TO INUNDATION BY THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS DETERMINED"  INUNDATION BY THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS DETERMINED" INUNDATION BY THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS DETERMINED"  BY THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS DETERMINED" BY THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS DETERMINED"  THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS DETERMINED" THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS DETERMINED"  1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS DETERMINED" 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS DETERMINED"  ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS DETERMINED" ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD - BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS DETERMINED"  CHANCE FLOOD - BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS DETERMINED" CHANCE FLOOD - BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS DETERMINED"  FLOOD - BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS DETERMINED" FLOOD - BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS DETERMINED"  - BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS DETERMINED" - BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS DETERMINED"  BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS DETERMINED" BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS DETERMINED"  FLOOD ELEVATIONS DETERMINED" FLOOD ELEVATIONS DETERMINED"  ELEVATIONS DETERMINED" ELEVATIONS DETERMINED"  DETERMINED" DETERMINED" AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA), FLOOD INSURANCE RATE  IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA), FLOOD INSURANCE RATE IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA), FLOOD INSURANCE RATE  BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA), FLOOD INSURANCE RATE BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA), FLOOD INSURANCE RATE  THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA), FLOOD INSURANCE RATE THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA), FLOOD INSURANCE RATE  FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA), FLOOD INSURANCE RATE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA), FLOOD INSURANCE RATE  EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA), FLOOD INSURANCE RATE EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA), FLOOD INSURANCE RATE  MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA), FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA), FLOOD INSURANCE RATE  AGENCY (FEMA), FLOOD INSURANCE RATE AGENCY (FEMA), FLOOD INSURANCE RATE  (FEMA), FLOOD INSURANCE RATE (FEMA), FLOOD INSURANCE RATE  FLOOD INSURANCE RATE FLOOD INSURANCE RATE  INSURANCE RATE INSURANCE RATE  RATE RATE MAP (FIRM) AS SHOWN ON COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 48397C0110L, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 FOR  (FIRM) AS SHOWN ON COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 48397C0110L, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 FOR (FIRM) AS SHOWN ON COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 48397C0110L, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 FOR  AS SHOWN ON COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 48397C0110L, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 FOR AS SHOWN ON COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 48397C0110L, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 FOR  SHOWN ON COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 48397C0110L, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 FOR SHOWN ON COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 48397C0110L, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 FOR  ON COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 48397C0110L, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 FOR ON COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 48397C0110L, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 FOR  COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 48397C0110L, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 FOR COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 48397C0110L, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 FOR  PANEL NO. 48397C0110L, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 FOR PANEL NO. 48397C0110L, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 FOR  NO. 48397C0110L, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 FOR NO. 48397C0110L, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 FOR  48397C0110L, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 FOR 48397C0110L, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 FOR  DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 FOR DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 FOR  SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 FOR SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 FOR  26, 2008 FOR 26, 2008 FOR  2008 FOR 2008 FOR  FOR FOR ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS AND INCORPORATED AREAS. 3. SURVEYOR ADDRESSED ONLY THOSE ITEMS LISTED IN OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY'S COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE, G.F. NO. 782103508, EFFECTIVE DATE APRIL 13, 2022. NO FURTHER RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY SURVEYOR. 4. VISIBLE IMPROVEMENTS/UTILITIES WERE LOCATED WITH THIS SURVEY, NO SUBSURFACE PROBING,  VISIBLE IMPROVEMENTS/UTILITIES WERE LOCATED WITH THIS SURVEY, NO SUBSURFACE PROBING, VISIBLE IMPROVEMENTS/UTILITIES WERE LOCATED WITH THIS SURVEY, NO SUBSURFACE PROBING,  IMPROVEMENTS/UTILITIES WERE LOCATED WITH THIS SURVEY, NO SUBSURFACE PROBING, IMPROVEMENTS/UTILITIES WERE LOCATED WITH THIS SURVEY, NO SUBSURFACE PROBING,  WERE LOCATED WITH THIS SURVEY, NO SUBSURFACE PROBING, WERE LOCATED WITH THIS SURVEY, NO SUBSURFACE PROBING,  LOCATED WITH THIS SURVEY, NO SUBSURFACE PROBING, LOCATED WITH THIS SURVEY, NO SUBSURFACE PROBING,  WITH THIS SURVEY, NO SUBSURFACE PROBING, WITH THIS SURVEY, NO SUBSURFACE PROBING,  THIS SURVEY, NO SUBSURFACE PROBING, THIS SURVEY, NO SUBSURFACE PROBING,  SURVEY, NO SUBSURFACE PROBING, SURVEY, NO SUBSURFACE PROBING,  NO SUBSURFACE PROBING, NO SUBSURFACE PROBING,  SUBSURFACE PROBING, SUBSURFACE PROBING,  PROBING, PROBING, EXCAVATION OR EXPLORATION WAS PERFORMED FOR THIS SURVEY. 5. FENCES SHOWN HEREON ARE GRAPHIC ONLY AND MAY MEANDER BETWEEN MEASURED LOCATIONS. 6. THE ACREAGE TOTALS AS SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON THE MATHEMATICAL CLOSURE OF THE  THE ACREAGE TOTALS AS SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON THE MATHEMATICAL CLOSURE OF THE THE ACREAGE TOTALS AS SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON THE MATHEMATICAL CLOSURE OF THE  ACREAGE TOTALS AS SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON THE MATHEMATICAL CLOSURE OF THE ACREAGE TOTALS AS SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON THE MATHEMATICAL CLOSURE OF THE  TOTALS AS SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON THE MATHEMATICAL CLOSURE OF THE TOTALS AS SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON THE MATHEMATICAL CLOSURE OF THE  AS SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON THE MATHEMATICAL CLOSURE OF THE AS SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON THE MATHEMATICAL CLOSURE OF THE  SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON THE MATHEMATICAL CLOSURE OF THE SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON THE MATHEMATICAL CLOSURE OF THE  HEREON ARE BASED ON THE MATHEMATICAL CLOSURE OF THE HEREON ARE BASED ON THE MATHEMATICAL CLOSURE OF THE  ARE BASED ON THE MATHEMATICAL CLOSURE OF THE ARE BASED ON THE MATHEMATICAL CLOSURE OF THE  BASED ON THE MATHEMATICAL CLOSURE OF THE BASED ON THE MATHEMATICAL CLOSURE OF THE  ON THE MATHEMATICAL CLOSURE OF THE ON THE MATHEMATICAL CLOSURE OF THE  THE MATHEMATICAL CLOSURE OF THE THE MATHEMATICAL CLOSURE OF THE  MATHEMATICAL CLOSURE OF THE MATHEMATICAL CLOSURE OF THE  CLOSURE OF THE CLOSURE OF THE  OF THE OF THE  THE THE COURSES AND DISTANCES REFLECTED ON THIS SURVEY.  THEY DO NOT INCLUDE THE TOLERANCES  AND DISTANCES REFLECTED ON THIS SURVEY.  THEY DO NOT INCLUDE THE TOLERANCES AND DISTANCES REFLECTED ON THIS SURVEY.  THEY DO NOT INCLUDE THE TOLERANCES  DISTANCES REFLECTED ON THIS SURVEY.  THEY DO NOT INCLUDE THE TOLERANCES DISTANCES REFLECTED ON THIS SURVEY.  THEY DO NOT INCLUDE THE TOLERANCES  REFLECTED ON THIS SURVEY.  THEY DO NOT INCLUDE THE TOLERANCES REFLECTED ON THIS SURVEY.  THEY DO NOT INCLUDE THE TOLERANCES  ON THIS SURVEY.  THEY DO NOT INCLUDE THE TOLERANCES ON THIS SURVEY.  THEY DO NOT INCLUDE THE TOLERANCES  THIS SURVEY.  THEY DO NOT INCLUDE THE TOLERANCES THIS SURVEY.  THEY DO NOT INCLUDE THE TOLERANCES  SURVEY.  THEY DO NOT INCLUDE THE TOLERANCES SURVEY.  THEY DO NOT INCLUDE THE TOLERANCES   THEY DO NOT INCLUDE THE TOLERANCES  THEY DO NOT INCLUDE THE TOLERANCES THEY DO NOT INCLUDE THE TOLERANCES  DO NOT INCLUDE THE TOLERANCES DO NOT INCLUDE THE TOLERANCES  NOT INCLUDE THE TOLERANCES NOT INCLUDE THE TOLERANCES  INCLUDE THE TOLERANCES INCLUDE THE TOLERANCES  THE TOLERANCES THE TOLERANCES  TOLERANCES TOLERANCES THAT MAY BE PRESENT DUE TO THE POSITIONAL ACCURACY OF THE BOUNDARY MONUMENTATION. 7. THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED EXCLUSIVELY FOR THE PARTIES CERTIFIED TO HEREON AND REMAINS  THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED EXCLUSIVELY FOR THE PARTIES CERTIFIED TO HEREON AND REMAINS THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED EXCLUSIVELY FOR THE PARTIES CERTIFIED TO HEREON AND REMAINS  SURVEY WAS PERFORMED EXCLUSIVELY FOR THE PARTIES CERTIFIED TO HEREON AND REMAINS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED EXCLUSIVELY FOR THE PARTIES CERTIFIED TO HEREON AND REMAINS  WAS PERFORMED EXCLUSIVELY FOR THE PARTIES CERTIFIED TO HEREON AND REMAINS WAS PERFORMED EXCLUSIVELY FOR THE PARTIES CERTIFIED TO HEREON AND REMAINS  PERFORMED EXCLUSIVELY FOR THE PARTIES CERTIFIED TO HEREON AND REMAINS PERFORMED EXCLUSIVELY FOR THE PARTIES CERTIFIED TO HEREON AND REMAINS  EXCLUSIVELY FOR THE PARTIES CERTIFIED TO HEREON AND REMAINS EXCLUSIVELY FOR THE PARTIES CERTIFIED TO HEREON AND REMAINS  FOR THE PARTIES CERTIFIED TO HEREON AND REMAINS FOR THE PARTIES CERTIFIED TO HEREON AND REMAINS  THE PARTIES CERTIFIED TO HEREON AND REMAINS THE PARTIES CERTIFIED TO HEREON AND REMAINS  PARTIES CERTIFIED TO HEREON AND REMAINS PARTIES CERTIFIED TO HEREON AND REMAINS  CERTIFIED TO HEREON AND REMAINS CERTIFIED TO HEREON AND REMAINS  TO HEREON AND REMAINS TO HEREON AND REMAINS  HEREON AND REMAINS HEREON AND REMAINS  AND REMAINS AND REMAINS  REMAINS REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF THE SURVEYOR. THE UNAUTHORIZED USE OR REUSE OF THIS SURVEY WITHOUT THE  PROPERTY OF THE SURVEYOR. THE UNAUTHORIZED USE OR REUSE OF THIS SURVEY WITHOUT THE PROPERTY OF THE SURVEYOR. THE UNAUTHORIZED USE OR REUSE OF THIS SURVEY WITHOUT THE  OF THE SURVEYOR. THE UNAUTHORIZED USE OR REUSE OF THIS SURVEY WITHOUT THE OF THE SURVEYOR. THE UNAUTHORIZED USE OR REUSE OF THIS SURVEY WITHOUT THE  THE SURVEYOR. THE UNAUTHORIZED USE OR REUSE OF THIS SURVEY WITHOUT THE THE SURVEYOR. THE UNAUTHORIZED USE OR REUSE OF THIS SURVEY WITHOUT THE  SURVEYOR. THE UNAUTHORIZED USE OR REUSE OF THIS SURVEY WITHOUT THE SURVEYOR. THE UNAUTHORIZED USE OR REUSE OF THIS SURVEY WITHOUT THE  THE UNAUTHORIZED USE OR REUSE OF THIS SURVEY WITHOUT THE THE UNAUTHORIZED USE OR REUSE OF THIS SURVEY WITHOUT THE  UNAUTHORIZED USE OR REUSE OF THIS SURVEY WITHOUT THE UNAUTHORIZED USE OR REUSE OF THIS SURVEY WITHOUT THE  USE OR REUSE OF THIS SURVEY WITHOUT THE USE OR REUSE OF THIS SURVEY WITHOUT THE  OR REUSE OF THIS SURVEY WITHOUT THE OR REUSE OF THIS SURVEY WITHOUT THE  REUSE OF THIS SURVEY WITHOUT THE REUSE OF THIS SURVEY WITHOUT THE  OF THIS SURVEY WITHOUT THE OF THIS SURVEY WITHOUT THE  THIS SURVEY WITHOUT THE THIS SURVEY WITHOUT THE  SURVEY WITHOUT THE SURVEY WITHOUT THE  WITHOUT THE WITHOUT THE  THE THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE SURVEYOR IS NOT PERMITTED. THE USE OF THIS SURVEY BY  WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE SURVEYOR IS NOT PERMITTED. THE USE OF THIS SURVEY BY WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE SURVEYOR IS NOT PERMITTED. THE USE OF THIS SURVEY BY  PERMISSION OF THE SURVEYOR IS NOT PERMITTED. THE USE OF THIS SURVEY BY PERMISSION OF THE SURVEYOR IS NOT PERMITTED. THE USE OF THIS SURVEY BY  OF THE SURVEYOR IS NOT PERMITTED. THE USE OF THIS SURVEY BY OF THE SURVEYOR IS NOT PERMITTED. THE USE OF THIS SURVEY BY  THE SURVEYOR IS NOT PERMITTED. THE USE OF THIS SURVEY BY THE SURVEYOR IS NOT PERMITTED. THE USE OF THIS SURVEY BY  SURVEYOR IS NOT PERMITTED. THE USE OF THIS SURVEY BY SURVEYOR IS NOT PERMITTED. THE USE OF THIS SURVEY BY  IS NOT PERMITTED. THE USE OF THIS SURVEY BY IS NOT PERMITTED. THE USE OF THIS SURVEY BY  NOT PERMITTED. THE USE OF THIS SURVEY BY NOT PERMITTED. THE USE OF THIS SURVEY BY  PERMITTED. THE USE OF THIS SURVEY BY PERMITTED. THE USE OF THIS SURVEY BY  THE USE OF THIS SURVEY BY THE USE OF THIS SURVEY BY  USE OF THIS SURVEY BY USE OF THIS SURVEY BY  OF THIS SURVEY BY OF THIS SURVEY BY  THIS SURVEY BY THIS SURVEY BY  SURVEY BY SURVEY BY  BY BY ANYONE OTHER THAN THE CERTIFIED PARTIES OR FOR ANY UNINTENDED USE WILL REMOVE SURVEYOR  OTHER THAN THE CERTIFIED PARTIES OR FOR ANY UNINTENDED USE WILL REMOVE SURVEYOR OTHER THAN THE CERTIFIED PARTIES OR FOR ANY UNINTENDED USE WILL REMOVE SURVEYOR  THAN THE CERTIFIED PARTIES OR FOR ANY UNINTENDED USE WILL REMOVE SURVEYOR THAN THE CERTIFIED PARTIES OR FOR ANY UNINTENDED USE WILL REMOVE SURVEYOR  THE CERTIFIED PARTIES OR FOR ANY UNINTENDED USE WILL REMOVE SURVEYOR THE CERTIFIED PARTIES OR FOR ANY UNINTENDED USE WILL REMOVE SURVEYOR  CERTIFIED PARTIES OR FOR ANY UNINTENDED USE WILL REMOVE SURVEYOR CERTIFIED PARTIES OR FOR ANY UNINTENDED USE WILL REMOVE SURVEYOR  PARTIES OR FOR ANY UNINTENDED USE WILL REMOVE SURVEYOR PARTIES OR FOR ANY UNINTENDED USE WILL REMOVE SURVEYOR  OR FOR ANY UNINTENDED USE WILL REMOVE SURVEYOR OR FOR ANY UNINTENDED USE WILL REMOVE SURVEYOR  FOR ANY UNINTENDED USE WILL REMOVE SURVEYOR FOR ANY UNINTENDED USE WILL REMOVE SURVEYOR  ANY UNINTENDED USE WILL REMOVE SURVEYOR ANY UNINTENDED USE WILL REMOVE SURVEYOR  UNINTENDED USE WILL REMOVE SURVEYOR UNINTENDED USE WILL REMOVE SURVEYOR  USE WILL REMOVE SURVEYOR USE WILL REMOVE SURVEYOR  WILL REMOVE SURVEYOR WILL REMOVE SURVEYOR  REMOVE SURVEYOR REMOVE SURVEYOR  SURVEYOR SURVEYOR FROM BURDEN OF ANY DAMAGES INCURRED. 8. THE TERM "CERTIFY" OR "CERTIFICATE" AS SHOWN AND USED HEREON INDICATES AN EXPRESSION  THE TERM "CERTIFY" OR "CERTIFICATE" AS SHOWN AND USED HEREON INDICATES AN EXPRESSION THE TERM "CERTIFY" OR "CERTIFICATE" AS SHOWN AND USED HEREON INDICATES AN EXPRESSION  TERM "CERTIFY" OR "CERTIFICATE" AS SHOWN AND USED HEREON INDICATES AN EXPRESSION TERM "CERTIFY" OR "CERTIFICATE" AS SHOWN AND USED HEREON INDICATES AN EXPRESSION  "CERTIFY" OR "CERTIFICATE" AS SHOWN AND USED HEREON INDICATES AN EXPRESSION "CERTIFY" OR "CERTIFICATE" AS SHOWN AND USED HEREON INDICATES AN EXPRESSION  OR "CERTIFICATE" AS SHOWN AND USED HEREON INDICATES AN EXPRESSION OR "CERTIFICATE" AS SHOWN AND USED HEREON INDICATES AN EXPRESSION  "CERTIFICATE" AS SHOWN AND USED HEREON INDICATES AN EXPRESSION "CERTIFICATE" AS SHOWN AND USED HEREON INDICATES AN EXPRESSION  AS SHOWN AND USED HEREON INDICATES AN EXPRESSION AS SHOWN AND USED HEREON INDICATES AN EXPRESSION  SHOWN AND USED HEREON INDICATES AN EXPRESSION SHOWN AND USED HEREON INDICATES AN EXPRESSION  AND USED HEREON INDICATES AN EXPRESSION AND USED HEREON INDICATES AN EXPRESSION  USED HEREON INDICATES AN EXPRESSION USED HEREON INDICATES AN EXPRESSION  HEREON INDICATES AN EXPRESSION HEREON INDICATES AN EXPRESSION  INDICATES AN EXPRESSION INDICATES AN EXPRESSION  AN EXPRESSION AN EXPRESSION  EXPRESSION EXPRESSION OF PROFESSIONAL OPINION REGARDING THE FACTS OF THE SURVEY AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A  PROFESSIONAL OPINION REGARDING THE FACTS OF THE SURVEY AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A PROFESSIONAL OPINION REGARDING THE FACTS OF THE SURVEY AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A  OPINION REGARDING THE FACTS OF THE SURVEY AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A OPINION REGARDING THE FACTS OF THE SURVEY AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A  REGARDING THE FACTS OF THE SURVEY AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A REGARDING THE FACTS OF THE SURVEY AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A  THE FACTS OF THE SURVEY AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A THE FACTS OF THE SURVEY AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A  FACTS OF THE SURVEY AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A FACTS OF THE SURVEY AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A  OF THE SURVEY AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A OF THE SURVEY AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A  THE SURVEY AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A THE SURVEY AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A  SURVEY AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A SURVEY AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A  AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A  DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A  NOT CONSTITUTE A NOT CONSTITUTE A  CONSTITUTE A CONSTITUTE A  A A WARRANTY OR GUARANTEE, EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED; AND IS EXCLUSIVELY TO THE PARTIES  OR GUARANTEE, EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED; AND IS EXCLUSIVELY TO THE PARTIES OR GUARANTEE, EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED; AND IS EXCLUSIVELY TO THE PARTIES  GUARANTEE, EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED; AND IS EXCLUSIVELY TO THE PARTIES GUARANTEE, EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED; AND IS EXCLUSIVELY TO THE PARTIES  EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED; AND IS EXCLUSIVELY TO THE PARTIES EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED; AND IS EXCLUSIVELY TO THE PARTIES  EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED; AND IS EXCLUSIVELY TO THE PARTIES EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED; AND IS EXCLUSIVELY TO THE PARTIES  OR IMPLIED; AND IS EXCLUSIVELY TO THE PARTIES OR IMPLIED; AND IS EXCLUSIVELY TO THE PARTIES  IMPLIED; AND IS EXCLUSIVELY TO THE PARTIES IMPLIED; AND IS EXCLUSIVELY TO THE PARTIES  AND IS EXCLUSIVELY TO THE PARTIES AND IS EXCLUSIVELY TO THE PARTIES  IS EXCLUSIVELY TO THE PARTIES IS EXCLUSIVELY TO THE PARTIES  EXCLUSIVELY TO THE PARTIES EXCLUSIVELY TO THE PARTIES  TO THE PARTIES TO THE PARTIES  THE PARTIES THE PARTIES  PARTIES PARTIES INVOLVED IN AND LIMITED TO THE TRANSACTION CLOSING AT THE TITLE COMPANY INDICATED HEREON.

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
SCHEDULE B NOTES: 10a.  EASEMENT TO THE STATE OF TEXAS, RECORDED IN VOLUME 330, PAGE 558, DEED RECORDS,   EASEMENT TO THE STATE OF TEXAS, RECORDED IN VOLUME 330, PAGE 558, DEED RECORDS,  EASEMENT TO THE STATE OF TEXAS, RECORDED IN VOLUME 330, PAGE 558, DEED RECORDS, EASEMENT TO THE STATE OF TEXAS, RECORDED IN VOLUME 330, PAGE 558, DEED RECORDS,  TO THE STATE OF TEXAS, RECORDED IN VOLUME 330, PAGE 558, DEED RECORDS, TO THE STATE OF TEXAS, RECORDED IN VOLUME 330, PAGE 558, DEED RECORDS,  THE STATE OF TEXAS, RECORDED IN VOLUME 330, PAGE 558, DEED RECORDS, THE STATE OF TEXAS, RECORDED IN VOLUME 330, PAGE 558, DEED RECORDS,  STATE OF TEXAS, RECORDED IN VOLUME 330, PAGE 558, DEED RECORDS, STATE OF TEXAS, RECORDED IN VOLUME 330, PAGE 558, DEED RECORDS,  OF TEXAS, RECORDED IN VOLUME 330, PAGE 558, DEED RECORDS, OF TEXAS, RECORDED IN VOLUME 330, PAGE 558, DEED RECORDS,  TEXAS, RECORDED IN VOLUME 330, PAGE 558, DEED RECORDS, TEXAS, RECORDED IN VOLUME 330, PAGE 558, DEED RECORDS,  RECORDED IN VOLUME 330, PAGE 558, DEED RECORDS, RECORDED IN VOLUME 330, PAGE 558, DEED RECORDS,  IN VOLUME 330, PAGE 558, DEED RECORDS, IN VOLUME 330, PAGE 558, DEED RECORDS,  VOLUME 330, PAGE 558, DEED RECORDS, VOLUME 330, PAGE 558, DEED RECORDS,  330, PAGE 558, DEED RECORDS, 330, PAGE 558, DEED RECORDS,  PAGE 558, DEED RECORDS, PAGE 558, DEED RECORDS,  558, DEED RECORDS, 558, DEED RECORDS,  DEED RECORDS, DEED RECORDS,  RECORDS, RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (DESCRIPTION TOO VAGUE TO LOCATE) 10b.  EASEMENT TO RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 320, DEED   EASEMENT TO RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 320, DEED  EASEMENT TO RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 320, DEED EASEMENT TO RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 320, DEED  TO RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 320, DEED TO RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 320, DEED  RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 320, DEED RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 320, DEED  WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 320, DEED WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 320, DEED  SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 320, DEED SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 320, DEED  CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 320, DEED CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 320, DEED  RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 320, DEED RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 320, DEED  IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 320, DEED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 320, DEED  VOLUME 640, PAGE 320, DEED VOLUME 640, PAGE 320, DEED  640, PAGE 320, DEED 640, PAGE 320, DEED  PAGE 320, DEED PAGE 320, DEED  320, DEED 320, DEED  DEED DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO AND AFFECTS AS SHOWN ON SURVEY) 10c.  EASEMENT TO RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 323, DEED   EASEMENT TO RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 323, DEED  EASEMENT TO RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 323, DEED EASEMENT TO RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 323, DEED  TO RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 323, DEED TO RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 323, DEED  RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 323, DEED RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 323, DEED  WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 323, DEED WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 323, DEED  SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 323, DEED SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 323, DEED  CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 323, DEED CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 323, DEED  RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 323, DEED RECORDED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 323, DEED  IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 323, DEED IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 323, DEED  VOLUME 640, PAGE 323, DEED VOLUME 640, PAGE 323, DEED  640, PAGE 323, DEED 640, PAGE 323, DEED  PAGE 323, DEED PAGE 323, DEED  323, DEED 323, DEED  DEED DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (DOES NOT AFFECT SUBJECT TRACT) 10d.  EASEMENT TO RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 929, PAGE 271, DEED   EASEMENT TO RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 929, PAGE 271, DEED  EASEMENT TO RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 929, PAGE 271, DEED EASEMENT TO RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 929, PAGE 271, DEED  TO RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 929, PAGE 271, DEED TO RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 929, PAGE 271, DEED  RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 929, PAGE 271, DEED RCH WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 929, PAGE 271, DEED  WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 929, PAGE 271, DEED WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 929, PAGE 271, DEED  SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 929, PAGE 271, DEED SUPPLY CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 929, PAGE 271, DEED  CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 929, PAGE 271, DEED CORPORATION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 929, PAGE 271, DEED  RECORDED IN VOLUME 929, PAGE 271, DEED RECORDED IN VOLUME 929, PAGE 271, DEED  IN VOLUME 929, PAGE 271, DEED IN VOLUME 929, PAGE 271, DEED  VOLUME 929, PAGE 271, DEED VOLUME 929, PAGE 271, DEED  929, PAGE 271, DEED 929, PAGE 271, DEED  PAGE 271, DEED PAGE 271, DEED  271, DEED 271, DEED  DEED DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO AND AFFECTS AS SHOWN ON SURVEY) 10e.  EASEMENT TO SOUTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY, RECORDED IN VOLUME 1152, PAGE   EASEMENT TO SOUTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY, RECORDED IN VOLUME 1152, PAGE  EASEMENT TO SOUTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY, RECORDED IN VOLUME 1152, PAGE EASEMENT TO SOUTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY, RECORDED IN VOLUME 1152, PAGE  TO SOUTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY, RECORDED IN VOLUME 1152, PAGE TO SOUTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY, RECORDED IN VOLUME 1152, PAGE  SOUTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY, RECORDED IN VOLUME 1152, PAGE SOUTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY, RECORDED IN VOLUME 1152, PAGE  BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY, RECORDED IN VOLUME 1152, PAGE BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY, RECORDED IN VOLUME 1152, PAGE  TELEPHONE COMPANY, RECORDED IN VOLUME 1152, PAGE TELEPHONE COMPANY, RECORDED IN VOLUME 1152, PAGE  COMPANY, RECORDED IN VOLUME 1152, PAGE COMPANY, RECORDED IN VOLUME 1152, PAGE  RECORDED IN VOLUME 1152, PAGE RECORDED IN VOLUME 1152, PAGE  IN VOLUME 1152, PAGE IN VOLUME 1152, PAGE  VOLUME 1152, PAGE VOLUME 1152, PAGE  1152, PAGE 1152, PAGE  PAGE PAGE 249, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO AND AFFECTS AS SHOWN ON SURVEY) 10f.  EASEMENT TO FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 154,   EASEMENT TO FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 154,  EASEMENT TO FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 154, EASEMENT TO FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 154,  TO FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 154, TO FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 154,  FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 154, FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 154,  ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 154, ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 154,  COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 154, COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 154,  INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 154, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 154,  RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 154, RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 154,  IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 154, IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 154,  VOLUME 1742, PAGE 154, VOLUME 1742, PAGE 154,  1742, PAGE 154, 1742, PAGE 154,  PAGE 154, PAGE 154,  154, 154, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION   (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  - NO DEFINED LOCATION - NO DEFINED LOCATION  NO DEFINED LOCATION NO DEFINED LOCATION  DEFINED LOCATION DEFINED LOCATION  LOCATION LOCATION IN DOCUMENT) 10g.  EASEMENT TO FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 221,   EASEMENT TO FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 221,  EASEMENT TO FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 221, EASEMENT TO FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 221,  TO FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 221, TO FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 221,  FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 221, FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 221,  ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 221, ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 221,  COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 221, COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 221,  INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 221, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 221,  RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 221, RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 221,  IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 221, IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 221,  VOLUME 1742, PAGE 221, VOLUME 1742, PAGE 221,  1742, PAGE 221, 1742, PAGE 221,  PAGE 221, PAGE 221,  221, 221, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION   (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  - NO DEFINED LOCATION - NO DEFINED LOCATION  NO DEFINED LOCATION NO DEFINED LOCATION  DEFINED LOCATION DEFINED LOCATION  LOCATION LOCATION IN DOCUMENT) 10h.  EASEMENT TO FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 242,   EASEMENT TO FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 242,  EASEMENT TO FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 242, EASEMENT TO FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 242,  TO FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 242, TO FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 242,  FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 242, FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 242,  ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 242, ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 242,  COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 242, COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 242,  INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 242, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 242,  RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 242, RECORDED IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 242,  IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 242, IN VOLUME 1742, PAGE 242,  VOLUME 1742, PAGE 242, VOLUME 1742, PAGE 242,  1742, PAGE 242, 1742, PAGE 242,  PAGE 242, PAGE 242,  242, 242, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION   (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION (SUBJECT TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION TO - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION - 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION 20' EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION EASEMENT - NO DEFINED LOCATION  - NO DEFINED LOCATION - NO DEFINED LOCATION  NO DEFINED LOCATION NO DEFINED LOCATION  DEFINED LOCATION DEFINED LOCATION  LOCATION LOCATION IN DOCUMENT) 10i.  EASEMENT TO FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 2753, PAGE 210,   EASEMENT TO FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 2753, PAGE 210,  EASEMENT TO FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 2753, PAGE 210, EASEMENT TO FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 2753, PAGE 210,  TO FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 2753, PAGE 210, TO FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 2753, PAGE 210,  FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 2753, PAGE 210, FARMERS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 2753, PAGE 210,  ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 2753, PAGE 210, ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 2753, PAGE 210,  COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 2753, PAGE 210, COOPERATIVE, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 2753, PAGE 210,  INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 2753, PAGE 210, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 2753, PAGE 210,  RECORDED IN VOLUME 2753, PAGE 210, RECORDED IN VOLUME 2753, PAGE 210,  IN VOLUME 2753, PAGE 210, IN VOLUME 2753, PAGE 210,  VOLUME 2753, PAGE 210, VOLUME 2753, PAGE 210,  2753, PAGE 210, 2753, PAGE 210,  PAGE 210, PAGE 210,  210, 210, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (DESCRIPTION TOO VAGUE TO LOCATE) 10j.  EASEMENT AND RIGHT-OF-WAY TO NORTH TEXAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, RECORDED IN   EASEMENT AND RIGHT-OF-WAY TO NORTH TEXAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, RECORDED IN  EASEMENT AND RIGHT-OF-WAY TO NORTH TEXAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, RECORDED IN EASEMENT AND RIGHT-OF-WAY TO NORTH TEXAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, RECORDED IN  AND RIGHT-OF-WAY TO NORTH TEXAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, RECORDED IN AND RIGHT-OF-WAY TO NORTH TEXAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, RECORDED IN  RIGHT-OF-WAY TO NORTH TEXAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, RECORDED IN RIGHT-OF-WAY TO NORTH TEXAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, RECORDED IN  TO NORTH TEXAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, RECORDED IN TO NORTH TEXAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, RECORDED IN  NORTH TEXAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, RECORDED IN NORTH TEXAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, RECORDED IN  TEXAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, RECORDED IN TEXAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, RECORDED IN  MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, RECORDED IN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, RECORDED IN  WATER DISTRICT, RECORDED IN WATER DISTRICT, RECORDED IN  DISTRICT, RECORDED IN DISTRICT, RECORDED IN  RECORDED IN RECORDED IN  IN IN DOCUMENT NO. 2006-00366548, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO AND  NO. 2006-00366548, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO AND NO. 2006-00366548, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO AND  2006-00366548, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO AND 2006-00366548, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO AND  DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO AND DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO AND  RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO AND RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO AND  ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO AND ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO AND  COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO AND COUNTY, TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO AND  TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO AND TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO AND   (SUBJECT TO AND  (SUBJECT TO AND (SUBJECT TO AND  TO AND TO AND  AND AND AFFECTS AS SHOWN ON SURVEY) 10k.  THE EXISTENCE OF AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO   THE EXISTENCE OF AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  THE EXISTENCE OF AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO THE EXISTENCE OF AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  EXISTENCE OF AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO EXISTENCE OF AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  OF AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO OF AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  THE AFFIDAVIT TO THE AFFIDAVIT TO  AFFIDAVIT TO AFFIDAVIT TO  TO TO THE PUBLIC RECORDED IN VOLUME 1053, PAGE 187, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   PUBLIC RECORDED IN VOLUME 1053, PAGE 187, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  PUBLIC RECORDED IN VOLUME 1053, PAGE 187, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   RECORDED IN VOLUME 1053, PAGE 187, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  RECORDED IN VOLUME 1053, PAGE 187, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   IN VOLUME 1053, PAGE 187, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  IN VOLUME 1053, PAGE 187, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   VOLUME 1053, PAGE 187, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  VOLUME 1053, PAGE 187, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   1053, PAGE 187, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  1053, PAGE 187, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   PAGE 187, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  PAGE 187, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   187, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  187, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   COUNTY, TEXAS.  COUNTY, TEXAS.   TEXAS.  TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO) 10l.  THE EXISTENCE OF AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO   THE EXISTENCE OF AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  THE EXISTENCE OF AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO THE EXISTENCE OF AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  EXISTENCE OF AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO EXISTENCE OF AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  OF AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO OF AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  THE AFFIDAVIT TO THE AFFIDAVIT TO  AFFIDAVIT TO AFFIDAVIT TO  TO TO THE PUBLIC RECORDED IN VOLUME 1086, PAGE 53, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   PUBLIC RECORDED IN VOLUME 1086, PAGE 53, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  PUBLIC RECORDED IN VOLUME 1086, PAGE 53, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   RECORDED IN VOLUME 1086, PAGE 53, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  RECORDED IN VOLUME 1086, PAGE 53, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   IN VOLUME 1086, PAGE 53, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  IN VOLUME 1086, PAGE 53, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   VOLUME 1086, PAGE 53, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  VOLUME 1086, PAGE 53, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   1086, PAGE 53, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  1086, PAGE 53, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   PAGE 53, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  PAGE 53, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   53, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  53, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   COUNTY, TEXAS.  COUNTY, TEXAS.   TEXAS.  TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO) 10m.  THE EXISTENCE OF AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO   THE EXISTENCE OF AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  THE EXISTENCE OF AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO THE EXISTENCE OF AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  EXISTENCE OF AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO EXISTENCE OF AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  OF AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO OF AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO AN ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO SEWAGE FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO FACILITY (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO (OSSF), AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO AS EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO EVIDENCED BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO BY THE AFFIDAVIT TO  THE AFFIDAVIT TO THE AFFIDAVIT TO  AFFIDAVIT TO AFFIDAVIT TO  TO TO THE PUBLIC RECORDED IN VOLUME 2108, PAGE 212, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   PUBLIC RECORDED IN VOLUME 2108, PAGE 212, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  PUBLIC RECORDED IN VOLUME 2108, PAGE 212, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   RECORDED IN VOLUME 2108, PAGE 212, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  RECORDED IN VOLUME 2108, PAGE 212, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   IN VOLUME 2108, PAGE 212, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  IN VOLUME 2108, PAGE 212, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   VOLUME 2108, PAGE 212, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  VOLUME 2108, PAGE 212, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   2108, PAGE 212, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  2108, PAGE 212, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   PAGE 212, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  PAGE 212, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   212, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  212, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.  ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS.   COUNTY, TEXAS.  COUNTY, TEXAS.   TEXAS.  TEXAS.  (SUBJECT TO)

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
RYAN S. REYNOLDS REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR NO. 6385 SURVEYED ON THE GROUND: SEPTEMBER 13, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
WIRE FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
IRON FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
TPED

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
TRAFFIC SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
POWER POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
GUY WIRE ANCHOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
FIBER OPTIC CABLE MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
FOCM

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
UNDERGROUND CABLE MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
UGCM

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
ELECTRIC BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
EB

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
WATER METER

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
IRRIGATION CONTROL VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
ICV

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
OVERHEAD ELECTRIC LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
OHE

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
CAP STAMPED "JVC" (UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
CONTROL MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
MAP RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
1/2" IRON ROD SET WITH YELLOW PLASTIC 

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
M.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
<CM>

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
GAS PIPELINE MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
GMKR

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
1/2" IRON ROD FOUND WITH YELLOW PLASTIC CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
EB

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
600

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
PRELIMINARY, THIS DOCUMENT SHALL NOT BE RECORDED FOR ANY PURPOSE AND SHALL NOT BE USED OR VIEWED OR RELIED UPON AS A FINAL SURVEY DOCUMENT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
RYAN S. REYNOLDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
#6385

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
2147

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
1"=200'

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
STAMPED "RSCI RPLS 5034" (UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 
 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

DATE: January 21, 2025 
 

APPLICANT: Brian Cramer; CCD – Rockwall, LLC 
 

CASE NUMBER: P2024-043; Master Plat for the Southside Hills Subdivision 
 
 

SUMMARY 
 
Consider a request by Brian Cramer of CCD – Rockwall, LLC for the approval of a Master Plat for the Southside Hills Subdivision 
consisting of 384 single-family residential lots on a 262.94-acre tract of land identified as Tracts 17-13, 17-14, 17-15, 17-16, & 
40-8 of the W. W. Ford Survey, Abstract No. 80, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 
99 (PD-99) for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) and limited General Retail (GR) District land uses, located on the east side of SH-205 
[S. Goliad Street] south of the intersection of SH-205 and FM-549, and take any action necessary. 
 
PLAT INFORMATION 
 
 Purpose. The applicant is requesting approval of a Master Plat for the Southside Hills Subdivision. The Southside 

Subdivision will be constructed in three (3) phases (i.e. two [2] residential phases and one [1] commercial phase) that will 
consist of 384 single-family residential lots, two (2) commercial lots, ten (10) open space lots, and one (1) amenity center. 
Based on the proposed Master Plat, Phase 1 will consist of 284 single-family lots, the amenity center, and a 11.60-acre 
public park. Phase 2 will contain the remaining 100 single-family lots, and Phase 3 will consist of the commercial lots. In 
addition, the Master Plat indicates the trail locations and the open space lots for the proposed subdivision. Staff should note 
that in conjunction with the submittal of this Master Plat, the applicant has also submitted a Preliminary Plat [Case No. 
P2024-042] for the Southside Hills Subdivision. 

 
 Background. The subject property is a 264.51-acre tract of land that was annexed into the City on November 4, 2010 by 

Ordinance No. 10-27 [Case No. A2010-001]. At the time of annexation, the subject property was zoned as an Agricultural 
(AG) District. According to the Rockwall Central Appraisal District (RCAD), there is an existing 8,567 SF single-family home, 
a 1,568 SF mobile home, a 61,200 SF metal building, and various other commercial buildings currently situated on the 
property. On December 18, 2021, the applicant -- Brian Cramer of Corson Cramer Development -- submitted an application 
requesting to change the zoning [Case No. Z2021-057] of the subject property from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Planned 
Development District for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) and limited Commercial (C) District land uses, which was ultimately 
withdrawn. Following this submittal, the applicant submitted a subsequent application on May 20, 2022. This application 
was requesting to change the zoning [Case No. Z2022-028] of the subject property from an Agricultural (AG) District to a 
Planned Development District for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) and limited Commercial (C) District land uses. The applicant 
also withdrew this request on June 20, 2022. The applicant submitted a third and final zoning request [Case No. Z2022-
039] to change the zoning on the subject property from Agricultural (AG) District to a Planned Development District for 
Single-Family 10 (SF-10) and limited Commercial (C) District land uses. The City Council approved this request on October 
3, 2022. 

 
 Parks Board. Per the zoning ordinance for Planned Development District 99 (PD-99) [Ordinance No. 22-51], the Southside 

Hills Subdivision is not required to pay pro-rata equipment fees or cash-in-lieu of land fees; however, a fully amenitized 
11.60-acre park must be developed and dedicated to the City of Rockwall. In addition, all improvements will need to be 
approved and accepted by the Parks and Recreation Board after being reviewed and recommended by the Director of 
Parks and Recreation. Normally the park improvements would be approved at the time of Master Plat; however, at the 
January 7, 2025 Parks Board meeting, the Board agreed to delay the approval of the park improvements until the PD Site 
Plan. 

 

Page 59 of 142



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

 Conformance to the Subdivision Ordinance. The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested 
by staff, and this plat -- conforming to the requirements for plats as stipulated by the Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the 
Municipal Code of Ordinances -- is recommended for conditional approval pending the completion of final technical 
modifications and submittal requirements. 
 

 Conditional Approval. Conditional approval of this Master Plat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the 
conditions stipulated in the Conditions of Approval section below. 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If the City Council chooses to approve the Master Plat for the Southside Hills Subdivision staff would propose the following 
conditions of approval: 
 
(1) All technical comments from the Engineering, Planning and Fire Departments shall be addressed prior to the filing of this 

Master Plat; and, 
 

(2) The Parks and Open Space Master Plan for the Southside Hills Subdivision shall be provided at the time of PD Site Plan; 
and, 

 
(3) Any construction resulting from the approval of this Master Plat shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified 

Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted 
engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state 
and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On January 14, 2025, The Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the Master Plat by 
a vote of 7-0. 

Page 60 of 142



Page 61 of 142



Page 62 of 142



S.H. 205

F.
M

. 5
49

W
YL

IE
 L

AN
E

DETENTION
POND

ZONED:
AG

ZONED:
SFE-2

ZONED:
AG

ZONED:
AG

ZONED:
AG

ZONED:
AG

ZONED:
AG

STREET A

ST
RE

ET
 B

ST
RE

ET
 C

ST
RE

ET
 E

ST
RE

ET
 F

ST
RE

ET
 G

ST
RE

ET
 J

ST
RE

ET
 Q

ST
RE

ET
 S

STREET K

STREET L

STREET M
ST

RE
ET

 P

STREET N

STREET D

STREET U

STREET W

ST
RE

ET
 O

STREET V

STREET A

STREET D

ST
RE

ET
 Q

STREET I

STREET K

ST
RE

ET
 Z

STREET X

STREET Y

STREET AA

ST
RE

ET
 B

STREET R

AMENITY
CENTER

STREET A

STREET H

STREET T

STREET R

STREET D

STREET X

STREET
BB

ST
RE

ET
H

PHASE 1
PHASE 2

D

PHASE 3

PHASE 1
PHASE 2

PHASE 3

<CM>

R
O

N

HT

December 6, 2024

MASTER PLAT
SOUTHSIDE HILLS

BEING
384 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS , 2 COMMERCIAL LOTS,

10 OPEN SPACES & 1 AMENITY CENTER
262.94 ACRES OR 11,453,704.24 SQ. FT.

SITUATED WITHIN
W.W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80

CITY OF ROCKWALL,
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

P2024-XXX

VICINITY MAP
N.T.S.

30

SITE

205

3097

205

549

549

740

1140

1139

GROSS LOT DENSITY = 1.46 UNITS/ACRES

EXIST. ZONING: PD-99
LAND USE: SF

Applicant:
Corson Cramer Development

4925 Greenville Ave, Ste. 604
Dallas, Texas 75206

Phone: 214-734-5924

Engineer/Surveyor:
 Johnson Volk Consulting, Inc.

704 Central Parkway East, Suite. 1200
Plano, Texas 75074

Phone: 972-201-3100
Contact: Tom Dayton, PE

Owner:
Rockwall Highgate, Ltd.

13155 Noel Rd., Ste 900
Dallas, Texas 75240

Phone: 214-566-8699

OPEN SPACE                ACRES

FLOOD PLAIN 29.4

OTHER 44.4

TOTAL 73.8

OPEN SPACE RATIO*

[(29.4/2) + 44.4] / 262.94   = 22.4%

*ASSUMING HALF OF FLOODPLAIN

Page 63 of 142

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
120' ROW VOL. 33, PG 556 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
GARY BYRD and wife, CAROL BYRD VOLUME 508, PAGE 125 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
1.00 ACRE RELEASE GARY BYRD and wife, CAROL BYRD VOLUME 508, PAGE 125 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
TONY POPE and wife, KAREN POPE VOLUME 915, PAGE 141 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
JORGE ABREU AND TASHA ABREU DOCUMENT NO. 20200000018552 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
LESLIE HOPE AND DARYL HOPE DOCUMENT NO. 20160000016212 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
BOBBY DALE PRICE and wife, BRETTA JEAN PRICE VOLUME 1028, PAGE 142 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
BRET A. WILSON AND LESLIE WILSON VOLUME 1327, PAGE 212 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
CODY A BARRICK AND CARRIE L BARRICK VOLUME 6167, PAGE 67 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
JAMES KESSLER AND ANGELA KESSLER DOCUMENT NO. 20180000020020 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
DR MOHIUDIN ZEB, NASREEN ZEB VOLUME 1059, PAGE 14 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
SCOTT W. & GLENITA G. BLACKWOOD VOLUME 2884, PAGE 2550 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
JAMES RUSSELL WYLIE, JR. VOLUME 175, PAGE 386 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
PAUL DAVIS JR. DOCUMENT NO. 1983-41393 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
JOSEPH EDWARD BAUMANN DOCUMENT NO. 2010-436143 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
ROCKWALL 205 BUSINESS PARK CAB. C, PAGE 7 P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
15' WATERLINE EASEMENT R.C.H. WATER SUPPLY CORP. VOL. 929, PG. 271 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
15' WATERLINE EASEMENT R.C.H. WATER SUPPLY CORP. VOL. 640, PG. 320 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
50' WATERLINE EASEMENT NORTH TEXAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT DOC. NO. 2006-00366548 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
15' WATERLINE EASEMENT R.C.H. WATER SUPPLY CORP. VOL. 929, PG. 271 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
50' WATERLINE EASEMENT NORTH TEXAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT DOC. NO. 2006-00366548 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
101 HUBBARD DR LLC LOTS 1 AND 2, BLOCK A JBR2 ADDITION CABINET J, SLIDES 131 & 132 M.R.R.C.T. DOCUMENT NO. 20180000008030 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
VARIABLE WIDTH ROW DEDICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
10' LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
10' LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
25' ROW DEDICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
50' LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
EASEMENT TO THE STATE OF TEXAS VOL. 330, PG. 558 D.R.R.C.T. (DESCRIPTION TOO VAGUE TO LOCATE)

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
12" IRF BEARS S31°29'46"E 0.8' 0.8'0.8'

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
100 YR INNUNDATION BOUNDARY (FEMA BLE DATA)

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
1/2" IRF (unless otherwise noted)

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
UE

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
Point of Curvature or Tangency on Center Line

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
C1   

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
L1    

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
Drainage Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
Building Line

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
Curve No. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
Line No. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
BL    

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
DE   

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
Control Monument

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
1/2" Iron rod set with a yellow plastic cap stamped "JVC" (unless otherwise noted)

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
SF   

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
Square Feet 

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
Esmt  

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
Easement 

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
AC  

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
Acre 

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
SE

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
Sidewalk Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
D.R.R.C.T.= Deed Records of Rockwall County, Texas

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
Drainage Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
DUE   

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
P.R.R.C.T.= Plat Records of Rockwall County, Texas

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
VE

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
Visibility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
300

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
600

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
SCALE  1" = 300'

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
300

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
LAKE RAY HUBBARD

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
GENERAL NOTES: 1. OPEN SPACE LOTS SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE HOA. OPEN SPACE LOTS SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE HOA. 2. THE PROPOSED SUBDIVISION WILL BE SERVED BY WATER, THE PROPOSED SUBDIVISION WILL BE SERVED BY WATER,  PROPOSED SUBDIVISION WILL BE SERVED BY WATER, PROPOSED SUBDIVISION WILL BE SERVED BY WATER,  SUBDIVISION WILL BE SERVED BY WATER, SUBDIVISION WILL BE SERVED BY WATER,  WILL BE SERVED BY WATER, WILL BE SERVED BY WATER,  BE SERVED BY WATER, BE SERVED BY WATER,  SERVED BY WATER, SERVED BY WATER,  BY WATER, BY WATER,  WATER, WATER, WASTEWATER, ROADWAY & DRAINAGE AS FOLLOWS:  2.1. WATER - CONNECTIONS TO EXISTING WATER LINES WATER - CONNECTIONS TO EXISTING WATER LINES ON FM 549 & SH 205 2.2. WASTEWATER - CONSTRUCTION OF ONSITE LIFT WASTEWATER - CONSTRUCTION OF ONSITE LIFT STATION AND FORCE MAIN TO EXISTING GRAVITY WASTEWATER LINE ON FM 549 2.3. ROADWAY - CONNECTIONS TO EXISTING ROADWAYS ROADWAY - CONNECTIONS TO EXISTING ROADWAYS FM 549 & SH 205 2.4. DRAINAGE - DRAINAGE TO LONG BRANCH CREEKDRAINAGE - DRAINAGE TO LONG BRANCH CREEK



FOLEY-TRAVIS LE'ARDEN J
DEATH CERTIFICATE

D.R.R.C.T

BYRD GARY ETUX
VOL. 508, PG. 125

D.R.R.C.T

PO
PE

 T
O

N
Y
 &

 K
A

R
E
N

V
O

L. 9
15

, P
G

. 1
41

D
.R

.R
.C

.T

DAVIS WILLIAM PAUL JR
VOL. 174, PG. 313/316

D.R.R.C.T

ZONED: AG

16

18

17

19

22

20

21

23

24

26

27

29

30 31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

OPEN SPACE

0.35  AC

43

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

45

52

44

53

46

47

48

49

50

51

A

A

A

A A

96

95

94

93

92

91

90

14

1

2

3

4

23

22

21

20

19

18
14

E

E

17

23

4

5

3

2

1
22

21

20

12

15

14

13

16

18

6

F

A

2

1

3

18

4

17

15

7

13

9

11

14

6

5

8

10

12

16

19

G

G

6

9

3

7

5

8

11

4

2

10

1

12

H

H

1

7

25

23

24

3

2

4

26

5

22

6
20

21

17
9

8

19

18

12

16

15

10

11

14

13

I

I

28

25

15
83

84

85

86

89

88
87

126

24

25

26

2728

29

63

21 20 19
18

OPEN SPACE

ST
RE

E
T O

STREET H

S
T

R
E

E
T

 J

S
T

R
E

E
T

 J

ST
RE

E
T G

ST
RE

E
T O

STRE
E
T D

STRE
E
T M

S
T

R
E

E
T

 L

STREET H

S
T

R
E

E
T

 X

ST
REET N

ST
RE

E
T I

STRE
E
T D

ST
RE

E
T F

ST
RE

E
T G

MATCHLINE
REF: SHEET SP1

REF: SHEET SP3

MATCHLINE
REF: SHEET SP2

REF: SHEET SP3

150 75

SCALE  1" = 150'

0 150

SP3 of 3
0

j:\
ci

v
il 

3
d
 p

ro
je

ct
s\

m
jp

 -
 m

ic
h

ae
l 
jo

yc
e 

p
ro

p
er

ti
es

\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 s
o

u
th

si
d
e 

h
ill

s\
la

n
d
sc

ap
e\

d
w

g\
m

jp
5
0
3
 -

 o
p

en
 s

p
ac

e 
p

la
n

.d
w

g

JVC No MJP503

SCALE:

One Inch

1" = 20'

S
O

U
T

H
S
ID

E
 H

IL
L

S
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

, 
T

E
X

A
S

O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
 M

A
S
T

E
R

 P
L

A
N

. HI

O

O
D

J

ST
E

C

C
CT

TE

SA

ET

S
TA

I
RE
G

3

OF

2 8

ET
X

N

R

LD
RE

CAANDS

L

EP A
H

SON

Y

3

December 4, 2024

N
1" = 150'

OPEN SPACE LEGEND

6'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE SIDEWALK PER
CITY OF ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

4'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE SIDEWALK PER
CITY OF ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

6'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE SIDEWALK
PER CITY OF ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

6'-0" WIDTH CONCRETE SIDEWALK
PER CITY OF ROCKWALL STANDARDS.

FLOODPLAIN

O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
 M

A
S
T

E
R

 P
L

A
N

Page 64 of 142



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

TO: 
DATE: 
APPLICANT: 
CASE NUMBER: 

Mayor and City Council 
January 21, 2025 
Adam Buczek; Skorburg Company 
Z2024-061; Zoning Change (AG to PD) for Erwin Farms 

On January 14, 2025, the Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing on Case No. Z2024-061, and approved a 
motion to continue the public hearing to the February 11, 2025 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. The purpose of this 
action was to allow the applicant time to make changes to their concept plan and the proposed Planned Development District 
ordinance to address concerns raised by the Planning and Zoning Commission during the public hearing. According to 
Subsection 02.03, Procedures for Zoning Applications, of Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the 
Unified Development Code (UDC), “(a) public hearing may be continued by the Planning and Zoning Commission or City Council 
any time after the public hearing has commenced. The continuation of a public hearing shall be to a specific time and date no 
later than 30-days from the first or most recent public hearing. A continued public hearing shall be presumed to be held in the 
same location as the initial public hearing, unless a different location is announced. The announcement of a continuation at a 
public hearing shall be sufficient notice and no additional notice is required.” This means the City Council will need to 
announce the new public hearing date of February 18, 2025.  No further action or motions are required. Should the City 
Council have any questions, staff will be available at the January 21, 2025 City Council Meeting.  

Page 65 of 142



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 
 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

DATE: January 21, 2025 
 

APPLICANT: Tzemach Moshe Kalmenson 
 

SUBJECT: Z2024-062; Amendment to Planned Development District 50 (PD-50) 
 
 

On December 13, 2024, the applicant, Tzemach Moshe Kalmenson, submitted an application requesting that Planned 
Development District 50 (PD-50) be amended to incorporate an additional 0.2010-acre tract of land (i.e. part of Block 29 of the 
Garner Addition) and amend the land uses to allow the Church/House of Worship land use through a Specific Use Permit (SUP) 
in the district. According to the applicant’s letter, the intent of the request -- if approved -- is to return to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and City Council with a subsequent request for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow a Church/House of Worship 
at 917 N. Goliad Street/918 N. Alamo Road. The applicant has also provided a concept plan showing how the Church/House of 
Worship would be laid out on this property; however, this concept plan is not being considered with this request.  According to 
Article 13, Definitions, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) the definition of the Church/House of Worship land use is a 
“…facility or area primarily used for religious gatherings, ceremonies, and worship services. It typically includes a sanctuary or 
worship hall, administrative offices, classrooms for religious education, and often ancillary facilities such as a fellowship hall, 
kitchen, and parking lot. These facilities serve as places for spiritual practice, community gatherings, and religious observance 
for adherents of a particular faith or denomination.” Planned Development District 50 (PD-50) is a highly restrictive zoning district 
that was originally created to allow the residential properties along N. Goliad Street [SH-205] the flexibility to convert to a 
live/work or non-residential land use permitted within the Residential-Office (RO) District. Over the years, the zoning district has 
been amended to add land uses that are not typically permitted within the Residential-Office (RO) District (e.g. 
Antique/Collectable Sales, Banquet Facility, Animal Clinic for Small Animals, and/or General Personal Service) on a case-by-
case basis through a Specific Use Permit (SUP). In reviewing the applicant’s request, staff acknowledges that given the scale 
and traffic generated by a Church/House of Worship, this land use may not be an appropriate land use for all properties within 
the district, and, that by allowing this land use through a Specific Use Permit (SUP), the Planning and Zoning Commission and 
City Council retain discretion to determine if a Church/House of Worship is an appropriate land use for a particular property in 
the district.  
 
As the proposed zoning case involves incorporating additional land and modifying the land uses permitted within Planned 
Development District 50 (PD-50), staff has notified all property owners and residents within the Planned Development District. 
In addition, staff mailed out notifications to all property owners and occupants within 500-feet of the boundary of Planned 
Development District 50 (PD-50), and to all Homeowner’s Associations (HOAs) within 1,500-feet of the boundaries of the district 
(i.e. Lakeview Summit, The Preserve, and Caruth Lakes Homeowner’s Associations). This was done in accordance with the 
requirements of Subsection 02.03(A), Notice of Public Hearing, of Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, 
of the Unified Development Code (UDC). Of the 382 notices mailed, staff has received six (6) notices in opposition to the 
applicant’s request. On January 14, 2024, the Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed the case and approved a motion to 
recommend approval of the amendment to Planned Development District 50 (PD-50) by a vote of 7-0.  Should the City Council 
have any questions, staff will be available at the meeting on January 21, 2025. 

Page 66 of 142



DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION 
City of Rockwall 

STAFFUSEONLY ------------­
PLANNING & ZONING CASE NO.

NOTE: THE APPL/CAT/ON IS NOT CONSIDERED ACCEPTED BY THE 
CITY UNTIL THE PLANNING DIRECTOR AND CITY ENGINEER HAVE 
SIGNED BELOW. Planning and Zoning Department 

385 S. Goliad Street 

Rockwall, Texas 75087 
DIRECTOR OF PLANNING: 

CITY ENGINEER: 

PLEASE CHECK THE APPROPRIATE BOX BELOW TO INDICATE THE TYPE OF DEVELOPMENT REQUEST (SELECT ONLY ONE BOX]: 

PLATTING APPLICATION FEES: 

□ MASTER PLAT ($100.00 + $15.00 ACRE) 1 

□ PRELIMINARY PLAT ($200.00 + $15.00 ACRE) 1 

□ FINAL PLAT ($300.00 + $20.00 ACRE) 1 

□ REPLAT ($300.00 + $20.00 ACRE) 1 

□ AMENDING OR MINOR PLAT ($150.00)
□ PLAT REINSTATEMENT REQUEST ($100.00)

SITE PLAN APPLICATION FEES: 

□ SITE PLAN ($250.00 + $20.00 ACRE) 1 

□ AMENDED SITE PLAN/ELEVATIONS/LANDSCAPING PLAN ($100.00)

PROPERTY INFORMATION [PLEASE PRINT] 

ZONING APPLICATION FEES: 

l2'f ZONING CHANGE ($200.00 + $15.00 ACRE) 1 

□ SPECIFIC USE PERMIT ($200.00 + $15.00 ACRE) 1 & 2

□ PD DEVELOPMENT PLANS ($200.00 + $15.00 ACRE) 1

OTHER APPLJCA TION FEES: 

□ TREE REMOVAL ($75.00)
□ VARIANCE REQUEST/SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS ($100.00) 2 

NOTES: 
1: IN DETERMINING THE FEE, PLEASE USE THE EXACT ACREAGE WHEN MULTIPLYING BY THE 
PER ACRE AMOUNT. FOR REQUESTS ON LESS THAN ONE ACRE, ROUND UP TO ONE (1) ACRE. 
� A S1,000.00 FEE WILL BE ADDED TO THE APPLICATION FEE FOR ANY REQUEST THAT 
INVOLVES CONSTRUCTION WITHOUT OR NOT IN COMPLIANCE TO AN APPROVED BUILDING 
PERMIT. 

ADDRESS 

SUBDIVISION 

GENERAL LOCATION 

917 N Goliad, Rockwall TX 75087 / 918 N Alamo Rd 

N Goliad Corridor 

ZONING, SITE PLAN AND PLATTING INFORMATION (PLEASEPRINTJ

CURRENT ZONING 

PROPOSED ZONING 

ACREAGE 

PD 50: R/O CURRENT USE 

House of Worship Allowance w/SUP PROPOSED USE 

.3 /.2 LOTS [CURRENT] 

LOT 

Residential 

House of Worship 

LOTS [PROPOSED] 

BLOCK 

□ SITE PLANS AND PLATS: BY CHECKING THIS BOX YOU ACKNOWLEDGE THAT DUE TO THE PASSAGE OF HB3167 THE CfTY NO LONGER HAS FLEXIBILITY WITH
REGARD TO ITS APPROVAL PROCESS, AND FAILURE TO ADDRESS ANY OF STAFF'S COMMENTS BY THE DA TE PROVIDED ON THE DEVELOPMENT CALENDAR WILL
RESULT IN THE DENIAL OF YOUR CASE. 

OWNER/APPLICANT/AGENT INFORMATION [PLEASE PRINT/CHECK THE PRIMARY CONTACT/ORIGINAL SIGNATURES ARE REQUIRED] 

□ OWNER rzf' APPLICANT

CONTACT PERSON CONTACT PERSON 

ADDRESS ADDRESS 

CITY, STATE & ZIP CITY, STATE & ZIP 

PHONE PHONE 

E-MAIL E-MAIL

Tzemach Moshe Kalmenson 

1950 Hidden Valley 

Rockwall, TX 75087 

469-350-5735

rabbi@jewishrockwall.com 

NOTARY VERIFICATION (REQUIRED] 
11.fh1:2'( l llB\t'vV\R \(A.IL BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORITY, ON THIS DAY PERSONALLY APPEARED ;/\� )l:lr. !OWNER] THE UNDERSIGNED, WHO 

STATED THE INFORMATION ON THIS APPLICATION TO BE TRUE AND CERTIFIED THE FOLLOWING: 

DEVELOPMENT APPL/CA noN • CITY OF ROCKWALL • 385 sour GOLIAD STREET• ROCKWALL, TX 75087 • [Pl (972) 771-7745 

Page 67 of 142



City of Rockwall 
Planning & Zoning Department 
385 S. Goliad Street 

Rockwall. Texas 75087 
(P) (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

2024-062· Amendment to Planned Development 
istrict 50 (PD-50) 

• 

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development and 
therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor to provide 

timely and accurate information, we make no guarantees. The City of 
Rockwall makes no warranty, express or implied, including warranties of 

merchantab1hty and fitness for a particular purpose. Use of the information 
is the sole responsibility of the user 

Page 68 of 142



Legend 

City of Rockwall 
Planning & Zoning Department 
385 S. Goliad Street 

Rockwall, Texas 75087 

(P): (972) 771-7745 
0N): www .rockwall.oom 

- Rockwall HOAs

D 1500' Buffer

IZZI Subject Property

Case Number: 

The City ofRockwall GIS maps are continually under development and 
therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor to provide 

timely and accurate information, we make no guarantees. The City of 
Rockwall makes no warranty, express or implied, including warranties of 
merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose. Use of the information 

is the sole responsibility of the user. 

Case Name: Amendment to Planned Developmen 
District 50 (PD-50) 

Case Type: 
Zoning: 

Case Address: 

Zoning 
Planned Development District 50 
(PD-50) 
917 & 918 N. Goliad Street 

Date Saved: 12/30/2024 
For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745 

Page 69 of 142



From: Zavala, Melanie
Cc: Miller, Ryan; Lee, Henry; Ross, Bethany; Guevara, Angelica
Subject: Neighborhood Notification Program [Z2024-062]
Date: Wednesday, December 18, 2024 4:24:49 PM
Attachments: HOA Map (12.13.2024).pdf

Public Notice (12.16.2024).pdf

HOA/Neighborhood Association Representative:

Per your participation in the Neighborhood Notification Program, you are receiving this notice to inform your
organization that a zoning case has been filed with the City of Rockwall that is located within 1,500-feet of the
boundaries of your neighborhood.  As the contact listed for your organization, you are encouraged to share this
information with the residents of your subdivision.  Please find the attached map detailing the property
requesting to be rezoned in relation to your subdivision boundaries.  Additionally, below is the summary of the
zoning case that will be published in the Rockwall Herald Banner on Friday, December 20, 2024.  The Planning
and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, January 14, 2025 at 6:00 PM, and the City
Council will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, January 21, 2025 at 6:00 PM.  Both hearings will take place at
6:00 PM at City Hall, 385 S. Goliad, Rockwall, TX 75087.

All interested parties are encouraged to submit public comments via email to Planning@rockwall.com  at least
30 minutes in advance of the meeting.  Please include your name, address, and the case number your
comments are referring to.  These comments will be read into the record during each of the public
hearings. Additional information on all current development cases can be found on the City’s website:
https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development-cases.

Z2024-062: Amendment to PD-50
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Tzemach Moshe Kalmenson for the approval of a
Zoning Change amending Planned Development District 50 (PD-50) [Ordinance No. 23-60] for the purpose of
allowing the House of Worship land use by Specific Use Permit (SUP) within the district being a 21.266-acre
tract of land situated within the S. S. McCurry Survey, Abstract No. 146 and B. F. Boydston Survey, Abstract
No. 14, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 50 (PD-50) for
Residential-Office (RO) District land uses, situated within the North Goliad Corridor Overlay (NGC OV) District,
generally located along N. Goliad Street [SH-205] north of Olive Street and south of Live Oak Street, and take
any action necessary.

Thank you,

Melanie Zavala
Planning & Zoning Coordinator | Planning Dept.| City of Rockwall
385 S. Goliad Street | Rockwall, TX 75087
Planning & Zoning Rockwall
972-771-7745 Ext. 6568

Page 70 of 142

mailto:MZavala@rockwall.com
mailto:RMiller@rockwall.com
mailto:HLee@rockwall.com
mailto:bross@rockwall.com
mailto:AGuevara@Rockwall.com
mailto:Planning@rockwall.com
https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development-cases
https://www.rockwall.com/planning.asp












PUBLIC NOTICE 
 


 


CITY OF ROCKWALL ● PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT ● 385 S. GOLIAD STREET ● ROCKWALL, TEXAS 75087 ● P: (972) 771 -7745 ● E: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 


CITY OF ROCKWALL                                         
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 
EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 


 


 
Property Owner and/or Resident of the City of Rockwall: 
 
You are hereby notified that the City of Rockwall Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will consider the following application: 
 
Z2024-062: Amendment to PD-50 
 
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Tzemach Moshe Kalmenson for the approval of a Zoning Change amending Planned Development 
District 50 (PD-50) [Ordinance No. 23-60] for the purpose of allowing the House of Worship land use by Specific Use Permit (SUP) within the district being a 21.266-
acre tract of land situated within the S. S. McCurry Survey, Abstract No. 146 and B. F. Boydston Survey, Abstract No. 14, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, 
zoned Planned Development District 50 (PD-50) for Residential-Office (RO) District land uses, situated within the North Goliad Corridor Overlay (NGC OV) District, 
generally located along N. Goliad Street [SH-205] north of Olive Street and south of Live Oak Street, and take any action necessary. 


 
For the purpose of considering the effects of such a request, the Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, January 14, 2025 at 6:00 
PM, and the City Council will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, January 21, 2025 at 6:00 PM. These hearings will be held in the City Council Chambers at City Hall, 
385 S. Goliad Street.  
 


As an interested property owner, you are invited to attend these meetings.  If you prefer to express your thoughts in writing please return the form to: 
 


Henry Lee 
Rockwall Planning and Zoning Dept. 


385 S. Goliad Street 
Rockwall, TX 75087 


 
You may also email your comments to the Planning Department at planning@rockwall.com.  If you choose to email the Planning Department please include your 
name and address for identification purposes.   
 
Your comments must be received by Tuesday, January 21, 2025 at 4:00 PM to ensure they are included in the information provided to the City Council. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Ryan Miller, AICP 
Director of Planning & Zoning 


 
MORE INFORMATION ON THIS CASE CAN BE FOUND AT: https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development-cases 


 
PLEASE RETURN THE BELOW FORM 


 
Case No. Z2024-062: Amendment to PD-50 
 
Please place a check mark on the appropriate line below:  
 


 I am in favor of the request for the reasons listed below.         
 


 I am opposed to the request for the reasons listed below.  
 


 


 


 


 


Name:  


Address:  


 


Tex. Loc. Gov. Code, Sec. 211.006 (d) If a proposed change to a regulation or boundary is protested in accordance with this subsection, the proposed change must receive, in 
order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all members of the governing body.  The protest must be written and signed by the owners of at least 20 
percent of either: (1) the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or (2) the area of the lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed 
change and extending 200 feet from that area. 
 


PLEASE SEE LOCATION MAP OF SUBJECT PROPERTY ON THE BACK OF THIS NOTICE 



mailto:planning@rockwall.com





Legend 

City of Rockwall 
Planning & Zoning Department 

385 S. Goliad Street 
Rockwall. Texas 75087 
(P) (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

1111111 

- Notified Properties

f2ZJ Subject Property

- 500"Buffer

Case Number: 22024-062 

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development and 
therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor to provide 

timely and accurate information, we make no guarantees. The City of 
Rockwall makes no warranty, express or implied, including warranties of 

merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose. Use of the information 
is the sole responsibility of the user. 

Case Name: Amendment to Planned Development 

Case Type: 
Zoning: 

District 50 (PD-50) 
Zoning 
Planned Development District 50 
(PD-50) 

Case Address: 917 & 918 N. Goliad Street 

Date Saved: 12/30/2024 
For Questions on this Case Call: (972) 771-7745 

Page 71 of 142



RESIDENT 
100 E HEATH  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

PAREDES FERNANDO 
1001 HOLLI LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
1001 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RHODES NANCY CLAYCOMB 
1003 HOLLI LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
1005  HOLLI LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
101 E RUSK  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

MUMMEY MAURICE E ETUX 
1010 HOLLI LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
102 W KAUFMAN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CALLIER JENNA AND LOGAN 
104 RUSH CREEK  
HEATH, TX 75032 

RESIDENT 
104 W KAUFMAN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CONFIDENTIAL OWNER 
105 E KAUFMAN ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

105 N ALAMO LLC 
105 N ALAMO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

MBK3 PROPERTY HOLDING CO LLC 
105 OLIVE ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

WIMPEE JOE 
105 W KAUFMAN ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
106 W KAUFMAN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

MANLEY MICHAEL J AND MARY F 
1065 MIDNIGHT PASS  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
107 E KAUFMAN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

MORGAN JEFFREY E 
1071 MIDNIGHT PASS 
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

TANG SHIFANG AND 
HAO DENG 

1079 MIDNIGHT PASS 
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
108  INTERURBAN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
109 E KAUFMAN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CURANOVIC JOHN 
109 ELM CREST DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
109 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
111 N GOLIAD ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

WAGNER GERALD P 
112 LOS PECES  

GUN BARRELL, TX 75156 

HILL TOBY VERN H & ANGELA DAWN 
113 E HEATH ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
115 E HEATH ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

STORY CATHERINE C 
117 E HEATH ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

GARRISON MONA AND RONALD 
119 E HEATH STREET  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

SFR TEXAS ACQUISITIONS 3 LLC 
120 S RIVERSIDE PLAZA #2000 

CHICAGO, IL 60606 

Page 72 of 142



HPA TEXAS SUB 2017-1 LLC 
120 S RIVERSIDE PLZ STE 2000 

CHICAGO, IL 60606 

FITE CENTRE LLC 
1200 FRONTIER TRAIL 
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

RAC OF ROCKWALL LLC 
1220 CRESTCOVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

DAFFRON JAMES R AND DEBBIE A 
12207 DARK HOLLOW RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

380 PROPERTY INC 
12207 DARK HOLLOW RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

LEAL CAROL RHEA 
1307 RIDGE ROAD #2317 

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

VANDERSLICE ROBERT 
1408 S LAKESHORE DRIVE 

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

ESTATE OF DOSVILLE PEOPLES 
1410 S GOLIAD ST APT 1707  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

STRATEGIC MANAGEMNET SERVICES LLC 
14124 EDGECREST DR  

DALLAS, TX 75254 

THE CANO REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT GROUP, 
LLC 

1445 FAIRLAKES POINTE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

DOUBLE T VENTURES LLC 
1500 S KREYMER LN  

WYLIE, TX 75098 

RAYWAY PROPERTIES LLC 
1572 N MUNSON RD  

ROYSE CITY, TX 75189 

WRIGHT JOHN M & SUSAN L 
1605 SEASCAPE CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CGC GROUP INC 
1690 LAKE FOREST DR 
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

ARISTA KAUFMAN LLC 
1717 MAIN STREET SUITE 2950 

DALLAS, TX 75201 

BARNETT JOSEPH RODNEY & LADONNA 
1855 HIDDEN HILLS  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CARLON WILLIAM ANDREW 
192 JACOB CROSSING  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

FRYER WILLIAM L III AND LAUREN S 
193 JACOB CROSSING  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

BLACK SHIRLEY M 
193 PORT SAINT CLAIRE  

ARANSAS PASS, TX 78336 

RESIDENT 
194  CODY PLACE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CROY DANNY L 
195 CODY PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
196  JACOB CROSSING 
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

STEWART DEBORAH LYNN 
196 DARRIN DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

GALLEGOS JUAN ADOLFO 
197 DARRIN DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
198  CODY PLACE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

KANSIER GAYLE 
198 DARRIN DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
199  DARRIN DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

KEANE PARKER F 
199 CODY PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CHARLES & JANE SIEBERT LIVING TRUST 
CHRISTOPHER CHARLES SIEBERT & JANE M 

SIEBERT - TRUSTEES 
199 JACOB XING  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

917 PROPERTIES LLC 
2 MANOR COURT  
HEATH, TX 75032 

Page 73 of 142



VANILLA BEAN PROPERTIES SERIES 5 LLC 
2 MANOR COURT  
HEATH, TX 75032 

RESIDENT 
200  JACOB CROSSING 
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

SELLERS ROBERT STEVEN 
200 DARRIN DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
201  OLIVE ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

MCWHIRTER CRAIG L 
201 DARRIN DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

COMMUNITY BANK 
201 E KAUFMAN ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CITY LIFT STATION 
201 E WASHINGTON ST 
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

LUSH BEAUTY SALON 
201 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

MEYERS STUART A & BRENDA S 
2010 INDUSTRIAL BLVD STE 611 

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
202  INTERURBAN ST  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

MILLER ROBERT AND KATY 
202 CODY PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

GANDY GEORGIA KNEL 
202 DARRIN DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

LOVELL CHRISTINE MARRE AND JOSHUA 
202 E HEATH  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

LAZY DALE PARTNERS LP 
202 NORTH SAN JACINTO 

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
203  JACOB CROSSING 
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CLAY KAREN L 
203 CODY PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

DAVIS ROBERT C 
203 DARRIN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

BLANKENSHIP JAMES WISE & LISA 
203 E HEATH ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
203 N ALAMO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

NELSON THERESE D 
204 DARRIN DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

PENRY TROY D AND ELIZABETH A 
204 HARRIS DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

PHILLIPS TERESA 
204 JACOB CROSSING  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
204 N WEST ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
204 W HEATH ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

NBN COMMERCIAL GROUP LLC 
2040 N BELT LINE RD STE 400 

MESQUITE, TX 75150 

DRAKE EDWARD J II & JENNIFER R 
205 DARRIN DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

BASCO JUSTIN AND PAMELA 
206 CODY PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RUDOLPH COLLIN J 
206 DARRIN DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

PRITCHETT JOHNETTA 
206 W HEATH ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
207  DARRIN DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

Page 74 of 142



RESIDENT 
207  JACOB CROSSING 
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

MITCHELL KELLI A & 
RYAN S WENZEL 

207 CODY PL  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
208  JACOB CROSSING 
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

ADAMS FAITH INVESTMENT LLC 
208 SUMMIT RIDGE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
208 W HEATH ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

HENSON ORA LOUISE 
209 DARRIN DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CONFIDENTIAL 
210 CODY PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
211  JACOB CROSSING 
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CALDWELL KARISSA A 
211 CODY PLACE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

SHIPLEY JASON P & ELIZABETH 
212 JACOB XING  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

FOSTER EDWARD M & TERI L 
214 CODY PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

WELLS LEE E & LYNDA S 
2146 HARRELL STREET  
GREENVILLE, TX 75402 

MURRAY JOHN DAVID 
215 CODY PLACE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

DAVIS RICHARD S & LYNDELL R 
2175 LAKE FOREST DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

DUZAN TIMOTHY AND ANGELA 
219 CODY PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

HILLTOP ESCAPES INC 
2234 RANDAS WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

KHATER CHARLES ETUX 
2368 E FM 552  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

ROCKWALL RUSTIC RANCH LLC 
240 WILLOWCREST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

SEYMORE INVESTMENTS LLC 
242 C NATIONAL DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

HOLLON GREGORY D 
2778 S FM 549  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

TTAAM N ALAMO SERIES LLC 
2801 NETWORK BLVD STE 300 

FRISCO, TX 75034 

WEST MICHAEL 
299 SHENNENDOAH LANE 

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
301  HIGHLAND DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

AUSTIN MICHAEL CAIN 2005 TRUST 
301 COOPER COURT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

ORTAMOND DONALD J & JANA R 
301 MARGARET ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

BEDFORD TERRI W 
301 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
301 N FANNIN ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
301 N GOLIAD ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
301 N SAN JACINTO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

FERRIS BETH 
301 WILDWOOD LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

Page 75 of 142



MATTINGLY LESLIE G AND JENNIFER S TRUSTEES 
2023 G J MATTINGLY REVOCABLE TRUST 

302 ARCADIA WAY  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

LOFTUS GERALDINE J 
302 E MARGARET ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

JOHNSON AMANDA DAWN 
302 ELM DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

WARREN PEGGY E 
302 HIGHLAND DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
302 N FANNIN ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

JOY LUTHERAN CHURCH 
302 N GOLIAD ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

JOY LUTHERAN CHURCH 
302 N GOLIAD ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
302 N SAN JACINTO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CRANE KATHERINE LYNN 
302 W KAUFMAN ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

SOLIS JOHNNY & JULIE 
3021 RIDGE RD SUITE A BOX 93 

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

RESIDENT 
303  WILLIAMS ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

SMITH WENDY 
303 DERICK DR  
FATE, TX 75189 

WILLIAMS RONALD DAVID AND PATRICIA 
303 ELM DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

WHITE SANDRA JEAN 
303 HIGHLAND DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
303 N ALAMO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

ANGLE GLENDA ANNE 
303 WILDWOOD LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CRAWFORD STEVE 
3033 NECHES  

CORPUS CHRISTI, TX 78414 

RESIDENT 
304  HIGHLAND DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
304  WILLIAMS ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

GLASS KATHLEEN J 
304 ELM DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

BLANCK SETH AND LACY 
304 N CLARK ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
304 N SAN JACINTO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

STEFANKIEWICZ STEPHANIE MARIE & JASON 
DUANE 

304 W KAUFMAN ST  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

WHITE RUNELLE 
305 HIGHLAND DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
305 N FANNIN ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

KING BOBBY R ETUX 
305 WILDWOOD LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
306  ELM DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

STANLEY PAUL & SHERI 
306 HIGHLAND DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
306 N FANNIN ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

SHIPMAN CLAYTON AUSTIN 
306 WILLIAMS ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

Page 76 of 142



RESIDENT 
307 N FANNIN ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

WATCHMEN REAL ESTATE LLC 
3077 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
308  FANNIN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

SCHWEIKERT FERN ELLEN 
308 ELM DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

FORTI CRYSTAL NICOLE & MICHAEL 
310 ELM DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
312  ELM DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

UNION BANK & TRUST CO 
SUCCESSOR TRUSTEE EMILY SUE WHITEHEAD 

REV TRUST 
312 CENTRAL AVE SE, STE 508  

MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55414 

HARKLAU CAROLINE 
312 DARTBROOK  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

SOUTHERN ROOTS LLC 
312 DARTBROOK  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

METOYER GREGORY K AND FRANCES M 
317 COOPER STREET  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

WEAST BRIAN J AND 
CYNTHIA C BROWN 
318 ARCADIA WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

WEBER MARY JANE 
318 COOPER CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

HEALDAN GROUP INC 
3460 MARRON RD SUITE 103-144 

OCEANSIDE, CA 92056 

RB40 INVESTMENTS LLC 
400 CHIPPENDALE DRIVE 

HEATH, TX 75032 

TURNER KYLE RADEY 
4002 BROWNSTONE CT 

DALLAS, TX 75204 

KMA LLC 
401 COUNTRY RIDGE RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
401 N ALAMO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
401 N FANNIN ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

MORENO ANTONIO AND SUZANNE T 
402 WILDWOOD LANE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
404 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

REED CHARLES & LISHA 
404 WILDWOOD LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
405 N ALAMO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

NICHOLSON JACQUELYN SUE AND PAUL 
EDWARD 

405 N FANNIN STREET  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

JONES GERWYN AND JANE 
406 N ALAMO ROAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
406 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

DAVENPORT RENTAL PROPERTIES - SERIES 200 
DARRIN DRIVE 

407 CASTLE PINES DRIVE  
HEATH, TX 75032 

DAVENPORT RENTAL PROPERTIES LLC 
407 CASTLE PINES DRIVE  

HEATH, TX 75032 

HOWELL RONALD & MICHELE 
434 JORDAN FARM CIRCLE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CM FANNIN I LP 
4514 TRAVIS ST STE 326  

DALLAS, TX 75205 

CM FANNIN I LP 
4514 TRAVIS ST STE 326  

DALLAS, TX 75205 

Page 77 of 142



MOFFATT DANA MICHELLE 
4756 SECRET COVE LANE  

HEATH, TX 75032 

ADAT ESTATE LLC 
482 ARCADIA WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

ADAT ESTATE LLC 
482 ARCADIA WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

ADAT ESTATE LLC 
482 ARCADIA WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

ADAT ESTATE LLC 
482 ARCADIA WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

EVOLVE ESTATES LLC 
489 MONTEREY DRIVE 
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

TREVINO BERTHA & LOUIS 
4917 SAINT JAMES CT  
MESQUITE, TX 75150 

BAF ASSETS 5 LLC 
5001 PLAZA ON THE LK STE 200 

AUSTIN, TX 78746 

RESIDENT 
501  KERNODLE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

HISTORIC OUR HOUSE-ROCKWALL LLC 
501 CAMP CREEK RD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
501 N ALAMO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
502 N ALAMO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
502 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

SMITH MARY SUE 
502 W RUSK ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

WOODARD CARL E ET UX 
502 WILDWOOD TER  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

STRINGFELLOW HOLDINGS, LLC 
5023 PARKVIEW PLACE  

ADDISON, TX 75001 

RESIDENT 
503 N ALAMO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

SEREGOW JAMES AND KATHLEEN 
503 N FANNIN ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
503 N GOLIAD ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

BYRUM RICKY CONN AND JO ANN 
504 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
504 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

NASH M CALVIN ETUX 
504 WILDWOOD TER  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
505  WILDWOOD TERRACE 

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

TUCKER PAMELA 
505 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
505 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

SOUTHERN ROOTS LLC 
505 N GOLIAD STREET  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

LAYTON ERIC A AND APRIL L 
506 N ALAMO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
506 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

HICKERSON JON D 
506 WILDWOOD TER  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
507 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

Page 78 of 142



FLEMING HALLIE B 
508 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

ALTA VISTA BNB, LLC 
519 E I30 PMB 422  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RNDI COMPANIES INC 
519 E INTERSATE 30 # 157 

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

FANG PROPERTIES LLC 
536 LOMA VISTA  
HEATH, TX 75032 

FANG PROPERTIES LLC 
536 LOMA VISTA  
HEATH, TX 75032 

FANG PROPERTIES LLC 
536 LOMA VISTA  
HEATH, TX 75032 

SIDDALL RYAN AND 
TAYLOR GILSTRAP 

5469 JEFFERSON DR 
SACHSE, TX 75048 

FRENCH MELISSA AND JACOB AARON 
5582 YARBOROUGH DR  

FORNEY, TX 75126 

PEOPLES DONNIE B 
589 CORNELIUS RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

STAR 2022 SFR3 BORROWER LP 
591 WEST PUTNAM AVE  

GREENWICH, CT 6830 

GEN 39:2-6 LLC 
599 BORDEAUX DRIVE 
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

BROWN JONATHAN R & CHRISTY A 
601 KERNODLE ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
601 N ALAMO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

ODOM JAY L & ALISON N 
601 N FANNIN ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

ODOM JAY L AND ALISON N 
601 N FANNIN ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

ODOM JAY & ALISON 
601 N FANNIN ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

ODOM JAY L AND ALISON N 
601 N FANNIN ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CARDENAS CECILIO & CARMEN 
602 N ALAMO ROAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
602 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CANUP DAVID & PATRICIA 
602 W RUSK ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

HANSARD STANLEY E ETUX DALE 
602 WILDWOOD LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

HAMILTON JOANN 
603 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
603 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
604  GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

DOMINGUEZ, JOSE AND JOHANNA 
604 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
604 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

KENDALL JESSICA 
604 WILDWOOD LANE 
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
605 N ALAMO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

POINTER PRICE 
605 NAKOMA DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

WIGGINS BRIAN C 
606 WILDWOOD LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

Page 79 of 142



MULLINS CHRISTOPHER CHARLES AND ARYN 
ELISE 

607 KERNODLE ST  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

JORDAN LARK & CAMERAN 
608 WILDWOOD LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

ROY LAWRENCE HANCE JR TRUST 
ROY LAWRENCE HANCE JR- TRUSTEE 

6946 SPERRY STREET  
DALLAS, TX 75214 

CASTRO MICHAEL AND RENE 
700 WINDSONG LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CTC TEXAN PROPERTIES LLC 
7005 CHASE OAKS BLVD SUITE 180 

PLANO, TX 75025 

SMITH G DAVID 
702 N GOLIAD ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

TIBBETTS ELAINE 
703 KERNODLE ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
703 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
703 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

REYNOLDS RACHEL AND WAYNE MARK 
703 NORTH GOLIAD STREET  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

J-PEG PROPERTIES LLC
704 N GOLIAD

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

J-PEG PROPERTIES LLC 
704 N GOLIAD

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

2021 B L GRAVES REVOCABLE TRUST 
BRYAN JOSEPH GRAVES & LAUREN CHRISTINE 

GRAVES - TRUSTEES 
705 KERNODLE ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
705 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
705 N GOLIAD ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
706 N ALAMO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CALABRESE CORINNA RAE 
707 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
708 N ALAMO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
710 N ALAMO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CRISWELL BARBARA 
7110 HUNT LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

PHILIPS SHIBU & LEJI 
734 WILDWOOD LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RECSA 911 NORTH GOLIAD STREET SERIES 
750 JUSTIN RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

MCDONALD JR EDWARD & KAYLA 
752 WILDWOOD LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

BRUCE LIVING TRUST 
DANA GLENN BRUCE & JEANNE L BRUCE-

TRUSTEES 
757 AVALON DR  

HEATH, TX 75032 

OLDEN FREDERICK EINER AND LISA HALSTEAD 
768 WILDWOOD LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CHRISTENSEN VALERIE 
801 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

GUEVARA CARLOS & MONICA A 
802 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
802 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

MASON MARK S & TAMARA M 
802 POTOMAC DRIVE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

JOHNSON BRADLEY K AND GINGER M 
803 KERNODLE ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

Page 80 of 142



KUCERA TIMOTHY M 
803 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
803 N GOLIAD ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CONSELMAN EQUITIES LLC 
804 N GOLIAD STREET  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

BUSHNELL MICHAEL S & TIFFANIE C 
805 KERNODLE ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

NAVARRO FRANCISCO OCHOA AND 
MELISSA ANN REDD 

805 N ALAMO RD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

ORTIZ ENRIQUE AROZLA 
805 N FANNIN ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
806 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
807 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

MEJIA JULIO & MARIA R 
807 N FANNIN ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
807 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

LEMMON LANDON & 
CAITLIN WALKER 
808 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
808 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

GARY DENNIS AND DIANNE 
809 COUNTY CLUB DRIVE  

HEATH, TX 75032 

MARTINEZ RAQUEL P 
809 N GOLIAD ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

SWIERCINSKY LEXUS M 
810 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
810 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

AOUN PIERRE E 
811 N GOLIAD ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RICKY JOHN SMITH AND DEBORAH KAY SMITH 
LIVING TRUST - 09/27/2008 

AND AS AMENDED AND RESTATED ON 
08/22/2016 

812 N ALAMO ROAD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
812 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CAIN JAMES O 
815 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CAIN JAMES O 
815 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

STEPHEN PRAMELA AND STEPHEN JOHN 
818 POTOMAC DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

AIBKHANOV ASHOT AND JOLI RASHID 
834 POTOMAC DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
837  POTOMAC DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

MCCULLEY LIVING TRUST 
DARREN WAYNE MCCULLEY & MICHELE JUNE 

MCCULLEY - CO-TRUSTEES 
837 POTOMAC DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

KUNJACHEN BLESSY AND SHIBU 
852 POTOMAC DRIVE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

MAYTAK LINA & MARK HILSTAD 
853 POTOMAC DRIVE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

PALMER WINDY E AND DONALD L 
868 POTOMAC DRIVE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

WARDELL JAKE P AND MEREDITH K 
880 SHORES BLVD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

INGLES CRISTINA LA SAIGNE 
901 N ALAMO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

Page 81 of 142



CROWDER GERALDINE 
901 N FANNIN ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
902 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

EAGLE SEIKI SALES LTD 
C/O ELIZABETH BURKS 

902 PALO PINTO ST  
WEATHERFORD, TX 76086 

MOMSEN KIMBERLY 
903 N ALAMO ROAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

HEMPHILL REBECCA AND TODD 
903 NORTH FANNIN STREET  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
904 N GOLIAD ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

HAM JOSHUA L 
905 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
905 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
905 N WEST ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

WILLIAMS RICKY AND ELIZABETH 
906 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

WILLIAMS RICKY AND ELIZABETH 
906 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

TCB CONSTRUCTION GROUP LLC 
MANNY LOZANO 
906 N GOLIAD ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

BRIONES RONALD AND THERESA 
906 N WEST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
907 N GOLIAD ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

JC GAERLAN LLC 
907 NORTH ALAMO ROAD 

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

PIERCE CAROLYN AND RUSSELL DAVID 
908 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

HEAVENLY HANDS BIRTHING CENTER PLLC 
908 N GOLIAD ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

MARTINKUS NICOLE 
908 N WEST ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

MOLINA JOE C II 
909 N ALAMO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
909 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

MCFADIN SARA TERESA 
909 N WEST STREET  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

ZAVALA VICTOR V 
910 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

PERRY RUBY DELL 
910 N WEST ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

WHITE TIMOTHY E 
9104 PRIVATE ROAD 2325  

TERRELL, TX 75160 

LEWIS BEN 
911 N ALAMO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
911 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

JONES PAMELA J 
912 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
912 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
913 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

BAXTER JAKE STEPHEN AND CATHERINE 
ELIZABETH 

915 N ALAMO RD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

Page 82 of 142



RESIDENT 
915 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
917 N ALAMO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
917 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
918 N ALAMO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
919 N ALAMO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
919 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

BLOCK AMY AND TRAVIS 
921 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

BARRY BARBARA 
922 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

HUDSON SHELI O 
923 N ALAMO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CHAVEZ ENRIQUE 
923 N GOLIAD ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
924 N ALAMO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CRAWFORD JUANITA LIFE ESTATE AND 
MICHAEL CRAWFORD 

925 N ALAMO  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
925 N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

PRECISION GLOBAL CORPORATION 
9330 LBJ FREEWAY SUITE 900 

DALLAS, TX 75243 

TAILLAC JEAN ANTHONY 
944 CHAD WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RICE JOSHUA M 
947 CHAD WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

PRINGLE PHYLLIS M 
948 CHAD WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CORENO FRANCISCO R 
951 CHAD WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

BRUMIT COURTNEY M AND DARREN D 
952 CHAD WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

MCCROSKEY DEE DEE RAYE 
955 CHAD WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

ALLEN MARK C AND 
DONNA K BOYD 
956 CHAD WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

LEFTEROV MARTIN AND 
JESSICA LADD 

960 CHAD WAY  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

TO TUAN QUOC 
964 CHAD WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

JENSEN MIKEL K & MICHELLE 
968 CHAD WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

WILCOX GORDON RICHARD AND GINGER R 
974 CHAD WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
975 N ALAMO  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

LOWRY BRENDA 
978 CHAD WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CLARK RYAN W & AMY B 
982 CHAD WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

GIBSON MONTE ROY & BELINDA K 
986 CHAD WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

SCHMIDT STEVEN R AND CORINNA A 
990 CHAD WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

Page 83 of 142



RESIDENT 
993  HOLLI LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

GAFFNEY BRIAN & HOPE 
994 CHAD WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

INGLE RHONDA NELL DOOLEY 
995 HOLLI LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RAWLINS DAN AND MERRIANNE 
997 HOLLI LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

GAFFNEY RICHARD BENNETT AND MARY ANNE 
998 CHAD WAY  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

MESSENGER BARNARD A & BONNIE 
998 HOLLI LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

NELSON MICHAEL D 
999 HOLLI LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

COUNTY OF ROCKWALL 
COURTHOUSE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CAIN REVOCABLE FAMILY TRUST AND 
CREDIT SHELTER TRUST AND SURVIVORS TRUST 
DEWAYNE CAIN TRUSTEE 305 STONEBRIDGE DR 

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

RESIDENT 
N GOLIAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

BOWEN JAMES A 
P.O. BOX 385  

CADDO MILLS, TX 75135 

THE PRESERVE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION 
INC 

P.O. BOX 702348  
DALLAS, TX 75370 

K'S ADVERTISING DALLAS INC THE 
PO BOX 1238  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

BUTCHER MELVIN R 
PO BOX 147  

QUINLAN, TX 75474 

CFPC INVESTMENTS LLC 
PO BOX 1731  

MARBLE FALLS, TX 78654 

CONSELMAN EQUITIES LLC 
PO BOX 2284  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

CONSELMAN EQUITIES LLC 
PO BOX 2284  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

ROCK N' ROLL REALTY LLC 
PO BOX 2571  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

WOMEN IN NEED INC 
PO BOX 349  

GREENVILLE, TX 75403 

MILE HIGH BORROW 1 LLC 
PO BOX 4090  

SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85261 

LAND HEADQUARTERS COMPANY INC 
C/O FAIR ROAD PROPERTIES INC 

PO BOX 69  
KEY BISCAYNE, FL 33149 

RUTH DOWER LIVING TRUST DATED JUNE 3, 
2014 

RUTH DOWER TRUSTEE 
PO BOX 871239  

MESQUITE, TX 75187 

Page 84 of 142



PUBLIC NOTICE 

CITY OF ROCKWALL ● PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT ● 385 S. GOLIAD STREET ● ROCKWALL, TEXAS 75087 ● P: (972) 771 -7745 ● E: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

CITY OF ROCKWALL     
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 
EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

Property Owner and/or Resident of the City of Rockwall: 

You are hereby notified that the City of Rockwall Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will consider the following application: 

Z2024-062: Amendment to PD-50 

Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Tzemach Moshe Kalmenson for the approval of a Zoning Change amending Planned Development 
District 50 (PD-50) [Ordinance No. 23-60] for the purpose of allowing the House of Worship land use by Specific Use Permit (SUP) within the district being a 21.266-
acre tract of land situated within the S. S. McCurry Survey, Abstract No. 146 and B. F. Boydston Survey, Abstract No. 14, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, 
zoned Planned Development District 50 (PD-50) for Residential-Office (RO) District land uses, situated within the North Goliad Corridor Overlay (NGC OV) District, 
generally located along N. Goliad Street [SH-205] north of Olive Street and south of Live Oak Street, and take any action necessary. 

For the purpose of considering the effects of such a request, the Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, January 14, 2025 at 6:00 
PM, and the City Council will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, January 21, 2025 at 6:00 PM. These hearings will be held in the City Council Chambers at City Hall, 
385 S. Goliad Street.  

As an interested property owner, you are invited to attend these meetings.  If you prefer to express your thoughts in writing please return the form to: 

Henry Lee 
Rockwall Planning and Zoning Dept. 

385 S. Goliad Street 
Rockwall, TX 75087 

You may also email your comments to the Planning Department at planning@rockwall.com.  If you choose to email the Planning Department please include your 
name and address for identification purposes.   

Your comments must be received by Tuesday, January 21, 2025 at 4:00 PM to ensure they are included in the information provided to the City Council. 

Sincerely, 

Ryan Miller, AICP 
Director of Planning & Zoning 

MORE INFORMATION ON THIS CASE CAN BE FOUND AT: https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development-cases 

PLEASE RETURN THE BELOW FORM 

Case No. Z2024-062: Amendment to PD-50 

Please place a check mark on the appropriate line below: 

 I am in favor of the request for the reasons listed below. 

 I am opposed to the request for the reasons listed below. 

Name: 

Address: 

Tex. Loc. Gov. Code, Sec. 211.006 (d) If a proposed change to a regulation or boundary is protested in accordance with this subsection, the proposed change must receive, in 
order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all members of the governing body.  The protest must be written and signed by the owners of at least 20 
percent of either: (1) the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or (2) the area of the lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed 
change and extending 200 feet from that area. 

PLEASE SEE LOCATION MAP OF SUBJECT PROPERTY ON THE BACK OF THIS NOTICE 

Page 85 of 142

mailto:planning@rockwall.com


ZONING & SPECIFIC USE PERMIT 
INFORMATION FORM 

CITY OF ROCKWALL ● PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT ● 385 S. GOLIAD STREET ● ROCKWALL, TEXAS 75087 ● P: (972) 771-7745 ● E: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

CITY OF ROCKWALL      
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT
PHONE: (972) 771-7745
EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM

CASE NUMBER Z2024-062 

PLEASE PLACE A CHECK MARK ON THE APPROPRIATE LINE BELOW. 
☐ I am in favor of the request

☑ I am in opposition of the request

NAME Calvin Nash 

ADDRESS 504 Wildwood Ter, Rockwall, TX, 75087, USA 

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY ADDITIONAL INFORMATION CONCERNING YOUR SUPPORT OR OPPOSITION TO THE REQUEST. 
Dear Members of the Rockwall Planning & Zoning Department, 

I am writing to express my concerns about the proposed place of worship at 917 & 918 N Goliad. The current streets, including North Goliad St, 
Live Oak, Heath St, Wildwood Terrace, Wildwood Ln, and N Alamo St, are already experiencing high traffic volumes. North Goliad Street, in 
particular, is already experiencing major congestion at this location. Adding a place of worship would turn these side streets into major 
thoroughfares, causing significant congestion, longer commute times, and safety hazards. 

I urge the City of Rocwakall to consider widening the streets in this area before approving the planning change to accommodate the increased 
traffic. This will help ensure the community can manage the traffic safely and efficiently. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

Sincerely, 

Calvin Nash 

PLEASE CHECK ALL THAT APPLY. 
☑ I live nearby the proposed Zoning or Specific Use Permit (SUP) request.

☐ I work nearby the proposed Zoning or Specific Use Permit (SUP) request.

☑ I own property nearby the proposed Zoning or Specific Use Permit (SUP) request.

☐ I own a business nearby the proposed Zoning or Specific Use Permit (SUP) request.

☐ Other:

HOW DID YOU HEAR ABOUT THIS ZONING OR SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) REQUEST? 
☑ I received a property owner notification in the mail

☐ I read about the request on the City's website

☐ I saw a zoning sign on the property

☐ I read about the request in the Rockwall Herald Banner

☐ My neighbors told me about the request

☐ Other:

Page 86 of 142



ZONING & SPECIFIC USE PERMIT 
INFORMATION FORM 

CITY OF ROCKWALL ● PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT ● 385 S. GOLIAD STREET ● ROCKWALL, TEXAS 75087 ● P: (972) 771-7745 ● E: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

CITY OF ROCKWALL      
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT
PHONE: (972) 771-7745
EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM

CASE NUMBER Z2024-062 

PLEASE PLACE A CHECK MARK ON THE APPROPRIATE LINE BELOW. 
☐ I am in favor of the request

☑ I am in opposition of the request

NAME Catherine Evans 

ADDRESS 117 Heath St, Rockwall, TX, 75087, USA 

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY ADDITIONAL INFORMATION CONCERNING YOUR SUPPORT OR OPPOSITION TO THE REQUEST. 
I already suffer from flooding issues in my home due to new parking lots being put in for businesses- the grass use to contain water flow - with 
this development I believe I would have an even harder time keeping my house from flooding. I spoke to the city when the first parking lots 
caused issues but was told it was my problem. More parking lots / concrete will cause more flooding than I can handle as I still already flood 
during heavy rains. 

PLEASE CHECK ALL THAT APPLY. 
☑ I live nearby the proposed Zoning or Specific Use Permit (SUP) request.

☐ I work nearby the proposed Zoning or Specific Use Permit (SUP) request.

☐ I own property nearby the proposed Zoning or Specific Use Permit (SUP) request.

☐ I own a business nearby the proposed Zoning or Specific Use Permit (SUP) request.

☐ Other:

HOW DID YOU HEAR ABOUT THIS ZONING OR SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) REQUEST? 
☑ I received a property owner notification in the mail

☐ I read about the request on the City's website

☐ I saw a zoning sign on the property

☐ I read about the request in the Rockwall Herald Banner

☐ My neighbors told me about the request

☐ Other:

Page 87 of 142



Case No. 22024-062: Amendment to PD-50 

Please place a check mark on the appropriate line below: 

Name: rr'/IN i1'S ea Co R.E IV c, 

Address c, � / C./2 �d WI?/ , iZoQ!..iiJ 1r Jl, o/JZ. 7~::;-2> s?
Tex. Loe. Gov. Code, Sec. 211.006 {d) If a proposed change to a regulation or boundary is protested in accordance with this subsection, the proposed change must receive, in 
order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all members of the governing body. The protest must be written and signed by the owners of at least 20 
percent of either: (1) the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or (2) the area of the lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed 
change and extending 200 feet from that area. 

CITY OF ROCKWALL• PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT • 385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TEXAS 75087 • P (972) 771-7745 •• E: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

Page 88 of 142



Page 89 of 142



PLEASE RETURN THE BELOW FORM - • - • - • - • - • - • - • - • - , - , - , - , - , - , - • - • - • - • - • - • - • � 

Case No. 22024-062: Amendment to PD-50 

Please place a check mark on the appropriate line below: 

0 I am in favor of the request for the reasons listed below. 

�- am opposed to the request for the reasons listed below. 

����������NC;�

��: • W�JG.it� ��<WQ_ 
Tex. Loe. Gov. Code. Sec. 211.006 (dl If a proposed change to a regulation or boundary is protested in accordance with this subsection, the proposed change must receive, in 
order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all members of the governing body. The protest must be written and signed by the owners of atleast 20 
percent of either: (1) the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or (2) the area of the lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed 
change and extending 200 feet from that area. 

PLEASE SEE LOCATION MAP OF SUBJECT PROPERTY ON THE BACK OF THIS NOTICE 

CITY OF ROCKWALL• PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT • 385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TEXAS 75087 • P: (972) 771-7745 • E: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 
Page 90 of 142



, �1..,11.,11-1·,1.,,1v1,," ,,,r-oc.1-."",wrvl'\JVI 
... • - 11 - ,. - • - • ..- • - • - • - • - • - • - • - • - • - • - • - •·-, - • - • - • - • - • 

Case No. 22024-062: Amendment to PD-50 

Please place a check mark on the appropriate line below: 

0 I am in favor of the request for the reasons listed below. 

A'� opposed to the request for the reasons listed below.

��\f\�•·-��: .. _Jt'-�� ,-����"'�
t)

ij•· ..• ·\.�•:t.tDt.•1tQ�,. .. . . r; �, ,'O. •··�·. .. . . ... , -:_� .. -. . ...... o. . .. . . :_,.-:_..-.; I"'":7::\j ··· .. , .. ,

Ad:::: ��t'����;���:,
1

��"1�:-'.��Th 
To,. Leo. Gw Coo,. S,< '1'1006 .{d) '• p;;,.od '"""' to a ragulattoo or boooday � pro .. �d lo ��"'" �h .,, '"'""°'• �§,,��- I� �

j-.._
,

order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all members of the governing body. The protest must be written and signed by the owners of at least 20 
percent of either: (1) the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or (2) the area of the lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed 
change_ and extending 200 feet from that area. 

-�/4J?U(� 7�YC?/?Ld' ;?/tUf \Jt�rt-zBz:,,s--1"
Page 91 of 142



Page 92 of 142



Page 93 of 142



Page 94 of 142



CITY OF ROCKWALL

ORDINANCE NO. 23- 60

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

ROCKWALL, TEXAS AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

DISTRICT 50 ( PD -50) [ ORDINANCE NO. 17- 191 AND THE
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ ORDINANCE NO. 20-021 OF
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, FOR

THE PURPOSE OF AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

DISTRICT 50 ( PD -50) TO ALLOW AN GENERAL PERSONAL

SERVICE LAND USE TO BE PERMITTED BY A SPECIFIC USE

PERMIT ( SUP) WITHIN THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, BEING A

21. 266 -ACRE TRACT OF LAND SITUATED WITHIN THE S. S. 

McCURRY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 146 AND B. F. 

BOYDSTON SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 14, CITY OF

ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS AND MORE FULLY

DESCRIBED HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ` A' OF THIS ORDINANCE; 

PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A

PENALTY OF A FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($ 2, 000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 

PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR

A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE

DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City has received a request by Cari Foote requesting the approval of an
amendment to Planned Development District 50 ( PD -50) [ Ordinance No. 17- 19] and the Unified

Development Code [ Ordinance No. 20- 02] of the City of Rockwall for the purpose of amending
the permitted land uses to allow for the addition of an General Personal Service land use to be

permitted by a Specific Use Permit ( SUP) within a 21. 266 -acre tract of land situated within the S. 
S. McCurry Survey, Abstract No. 146 and B. F. Boydston Survey, Abstract No. 14, City of
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, identified as Planned Development District 50 ( PD -50), and

more fully described in Exhibit A' and depicted in Exhibit `B' of this ordinance, which hereinafter
shall be referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body
of the City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of
the City of Rockwall have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held
public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally and to all
persons interested in and situated in the affected area, and in the vicinity thereof, and the
governing body in the exercise of its legislative discretion, has concluded that Planned

Development District 50 ( PD -50) [ Ordinance No. 17- 19] and the Unified Development Code

Ordinance No. 20- 02] should be amended as follows: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1. That the approval of this ordinance shall supersede all requirements stipulated in

Ordinance No. 17- 19; 

Z2023- 045: Amendment to PD -50 Page 11 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23- 60; PD -50

Page 95 of 142



SECTION 2. That the Subject Property shall be used only in the manner and for the purposes
authorized by this ordinance and the Unified Development Code [ Ordinance No. 20- 02] of the
City of Rockwall as heretofore amended, as amended herein by granting this zoning change, and
as maybe amended in the future; 

SECTION 3. That the Subject Property shall be developed and/ or used only in the manner and
for the purposes described in Exhibit `C' of this ordinance, and unless specifically modified within
this ordinance the Subject Property shall adhere to all development standards stipulated by the
Residential Office ( RO) District as specified in Subsection 04. 02, Residential -Office ( RO) District, 

of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code [ Ordinance No. 

20- 02] as heretofore amended, as amended herein by the granting of this zoning change, and as
may be amended in the future; 

SECTION 4. That the official zoning map of the City of Rockwall, Texas be corrected to reflect the
change in zoning described here in. 

SECTION 5. That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance
shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of
fine not to exceed the sum of two thousand dollars ($ 2, 000. 00) for each offense and each and

every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense; 

SECTION 6. That if any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of
that section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any reason
judged invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of this
ordinance or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other person, firm, 
corporation or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of

the Unified Development Code [ Ordinance No. 04- 38], and the City Council declares that it would
have adopted the valid portions and applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to

this end the provisions for this ordinance are declared to be severable; 

SECTION 7. The standards in this ordinance shall control in the event of a conflict between this

ordinance and any provision of the Unified Development Code [ Ordinance No. 04- 38] of any
provision of the City Code, ordinance, resolution, rule, regulation, or procedure that provides a
specific standard that is different from and inconsistent with this ordinance. References to zoning
district regulations or other standards in the Unified Development Code [ Ordinance No. 04- 38] 

including references to the Unified Development Code), and references to overlay districts, in

this ordinance or any of the Exhibits hereto are those in effect on the date this ordinance was
passed and approved by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 

THIS THE 6th DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2023. 

Z2023- 045: Amendment to PD -50 Page 12 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23- 60; PD -50

Page 96 of 142



ATTEST: 

Krist Tea e, City gecretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

October 16, 2023

2nd

Reading: November 6, 2023

Trace annesen, Mayor

Z2023- 045: Amendment to PD -50 Page 13 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23- 60; PD -50

Page 97 of 142



EXHIBIT ' A': 

Legal Description

BEGINNING at a point in the northwest corner of Block 32 of the Garner Addition ( 925 N. Goliad

Street); 

THENCE easterly 211. 13' along the south right of way of Live Oak Street for a corner; 

THENCE southerly 598. 12' along the west right of way of Goliad Street ( SH -205); 

THENCE east 54. 44' across Goliad Street, to the northwest corner of Block 160, Lot 1 of the

Austin Addition ( 912 N. Goliad Street); 

THENCE east 220' following the north property line of Block 160, Lot 1 of the Austin Addition ( 912
N. Goliad Street); 

THENCE southerly 441. 42' following the east property lines of lots fronting Goliad Street to a point
on the north right of way of Heath Street; 

THENCE west 39. 54' along the north right of way of Heath Street; 

THENCE southerly following along the east property lines of lots fronting Goliad Street 562. 59' to
a point being the northwest corner of B. F. Boydston Survey, Block 123, Lot F ( 604 N Goliad
Street); 

THENCE east 210. 09' along the north property line of said Block 123, Lot F for a corner; 

THENCE southerly 289. 31' along the eastern property line of said Block 123, Lot F for a corner; 

THENCE southerly 519. 9' following along the east property lines of lots fronting Goliad Street to
a point being the southeast corner of B. F. Boydston Survey, Block 123, Lot B ( 406 N. Goliad
Street); 

THENCE west 215. 11' along the south property line of said Block 123, Lot B ( 406 N. Goliad
Street) and crossing to a point on the west right of way of Goliad Street; 

THENCE southerly 170. 59' following along the west right of way of Goliad Street to a point being
the southeast corner of Block 17, Lot 15 of the Amick Addition ( 401- 403 N. Goliad Street); 

THENCE west 210' along the south property line of said Block B, Lot 15 of the Amick Addition for
a corner; 

THENCE northerly 101. 05' along the west property line of said Block 17, Lot 15 of the Amick
Addition; 

THENCE easterly 70. 83' along the north property line of Block 17, Lot 15 of the Amick Addition; 

THENCE north 170' along the west property lines of Block 18B, Lot 17 and Block 19C, Lot 21 of
the Amick Addition; 

THENCE west 72. 99' along the south property line of Block 19B, Lot 19 of the Amick Addition
501% N. Goliad Street); 

Z2023- 045: Amendment to PD -50 Page 14 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23- 60; PD -50

Page 98 of 142



EXHIBIT ` A': 

Legal Description

THENCE northerly 51. 75' along the west property line of Block 19B, Lot 19 of the Amick Addition
501% N. Goliad Street); 

THENCE easterly 97. 01' along the north property line of Block 19B, Lot 19 of the Amick Addition
501 % N. Goliad Street); 

THENCE northerly 754. 05' following along the west property lines of lots fronting Goliad Street to
a point in the south property line of Block 23A, Lot 34 of the Amick Addition (803 N. Goliad Street); 

THENCE west 115. 03' along the south property line of said Block 23A, Lot 34 of the Amick
Addition; 

THENCE northerly 139. 55' along the east right of way of N. Alamo Street; 

THENCE east 99. 47' following along the north property line of Block 24C, Lot 37 of the Amick
Addition

805. N. Goliad Street) to a point; 

THENCE northerly 250. 95' following along the west property lines of lots fronting N. Goliad Street
and crossing to the north right of way of Heath Street for a corner; 

THENCE west 70. 51' along the north right of way of Heath Street for a corner; 

THENCE northerly 205. 32' along the east right of way of N. Alamo Street; 

THENCE easterly 103. 92' along the south property line of Lot 1 of the Williams Addition; 

THENCE northerly 334. 45' following along the west property line of lots fronting Goliad Street to
a point on the south property line of Block 29 of the Garner Addition ( 915 N. Goliad Street); 

THENCE west 85. 69' along the south property line of Block 29 of the Garner Addition ( 915 N. 
Goliad Street) to the east right of way of Alamo Street; 

THENCE northerly 98. 02' along the east right of way of Alamo Street for a point; 

THENCE easterly 85. 08' along the north property line of Block 29 of the Garner Addition ( 915 N. 
Goliad Street); 

THENCE northerly 345. 36' following along the west property line of lots fronting Goliad Street to
a point in the south right-of-way of Block 32 of the Garner Addition ( 925 N. Goliad Street); 

THENCE northerly 218. 51' following along the east right of way of Alamo Street to the
POINT OF BEGINNING containing approximately 21. 266 -acres of land. 

Z2023- 045: Amendment to PD -50 Page 15 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23- 60; PD -50

Page 99 of 142



I ; .'
4 , i.l•  

v. 

y

C
5

I4
n

6    ".' 

v:'„(

r   - re's _  • : 

Int -

3L N

r... r

11 Ov

jv'
i'• v

p
bL'   

J '

11 1̀1 '
t I • ` 

y~

W  I 7 i—  
i{ 

f

i

p

k l

4• •+ ^"

ate_, .. ".. • ?'" R- . y • _ _. 

j : ,. 
r " "• ,. r ,` 

Y= ;,
fir "

Ov, 

AIt
CItv ( f(4! ' A , 

oa-'--'-' 

500

Rockwall
Feet PD J

N'_ IWF! II-' Ccr. IIC f. 

Page 100 of 142



EXHIBIT ' C': 

District Development Standards

Development Standards. 

1) Permitted Uses. Unless specifically provided by this Planned Development District
ordinance, only those land uses permitted within the Residential Office ( RO) District, as
stipulated by the Permissible Use Charts contained in Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the
Unified Development Code [ Ordinance No. 20- 02], are allowed on the Subject Property, 
however, the following additions and conditions shall apply: 

a) Antique/ Collectable Sales. The retail sales of antiques and collectables shall be

permitted through the approval of a Specific Use Permit ( SUP) by the City Council; 
however, such use shall be subject to the following conditions: 

i. Antique Sales is defined as the sale of an object having value because of its age, 
especially a domestic item or piece of furniture or handicraft esteemed for its
artistry, beauty, craftsmanship, or period of origin. 

ii. Collectable Sales is defined as the sale of an object that can be collected, or is

suitable or desirable for collecting by hobbyist, or any of a class of old things ( but
not antiques) that people collect as a hobby. 

iii. The sale of new or used clothing and appliances shall be prohibited. 

iv. The maximum floor area permitted for Antique/ Collectable Sales be limited to

2, 000 square feet. 

v. That individual lease areas within the Antique/ Collectable Sales use be

prohibited. 

b) Banquet Facility ( Event Venue). A banquet facility or event venue shall be permitted
through the approval of a Specific Use Permit ( SUP) by the City Council; however, 
such use shall be subject to the following conditions: 

i. Banquet Facility or Event Venue is defined as a commercial facility that can be
rented out for the purpose of hosting private events ( e. g. birthday parties, wedding
receptions, meetings, etc.). These events shall not be open to the general public. 

c) Animal Clinic for Small Animals. An animal clinic for small animals shall be permitted

through the approval of a Specific Use Permit ( SUP) by the City Council; however, 
such use shall be subject to the following conditions. 

An Animal Clinic for Small Animals is defined as a place where animals or pets are

given medical or surgical treatments and care. 

ii. The accessory use as a kennel shall be limited to short- term boarding and shall be
only incidental to the Animal Clinic for Small Animals use. 

iii. No outdoor pens or kennels shall be permitted. 

d) General Personal Service. A general personal service shall be as defined in Article 13, 

Definitions, of the Unified Development Code ( UDC) [ Ordinance No. 20- 02] and be

Z2023- 045: Amendment to PD -50 Page 17 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23- 60; PD -50

Page 101 of 142



EXHIBIT ' C': 

District Development Standards

permitted through the approval of a Specific Use Permit ( SUP) on a case- by- case
basis by the City Council. 

2) Cross Access Easements. Joint or shared access shall be required on all adjoining lots if
any property is used for office development or any other non- residential use permitted by
this ordinance. 

3) Parking. That all non- residential land uses shall adhere to the following parking
requirements: 

a) All parking shall be located behind the front facade of the primary structure and parking
within the front yard of any property shall be prohibited. 

b) The parking requirements for all uses shall be subject to the requirements stipulated
by Article VI, Parking and Loading, of the Unified Development Code [ Ordinance No. 
04- 38] with the exception of Professional Offices ( excluding medical offices) and
Banquet Facilities. Professional Offices shall be subject to one ( 1) parking space per
500 SF of floor area and Banquet Facilities shall be subject to one ( 1) parking space
per 100 SF of floor area. 

c) All drive aisles and parking areas required for the conversion and/ or redevelopment of
existing structures within the Planned Development District shall be paved in concrete. 
An exception for asphalt may be approved by the City Engineer. 

4) Site Plan. All properties within the Planned Development District shall be subject to site

plan review prior to changing the use from single- family residential. 

5) Variances. In the event that unique or extraordinary conditions exist on the property such
that the applicant cannot comply with the strict interpretation of this ordinance a variance
can be requested from the City Council. 

Z2023- 045: Amendment to PD -50 Page 18 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 23- 60; PD -50

Page 102 of 142



Z2024-062: Amendment to PD-50 Page | 1 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 25-XX; PD-50 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 

ORDINANCE NO. 25-XX 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 50 (PD-50) [ORDINANCE NO. 23-60] AND THE 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF 
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, FOR 
THE PURPOSE OF AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 50 (PD-50) TO INCORPORATE AN ADDITIONAL 
0.2010-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND AND TO ALLOW THE 
CHURCH/HOUSE OF WORSHIP LAND USE TO BE PERMITTED 
BY A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) WITHIN THE SUBJECT 
PROPERTY, BEING A 21.266-ACRE TRACT OF LAND 
SITUATED WITHIN THE S. S. McCURRY SURVEY, ABSTRACT 
NO. 146 AND B. F. BOYDSTON SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 14, 
CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS AND 
MORE FULLY DESCRIBED HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND 
DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘B’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING 
FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF 
A FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR 
A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City has received a request by Tzemach Moshe Kalmenson requesting the 
approval of an amendment to Planned Development District 50 (PD-50) [Ordinance No. 23-60] 
for the purpose of incorporating an additional 0.2010-acre parcel of land and allowing the 
Church/House of Worship land use to be permitted by Specific Use Permit (SUP) within Planned 
Development District 50 (PD-50) being a 21.266-acre tract of land situated within the S. S. 
McCurry Survey, Abstract No. 146 and B. F. Boydston Survey, Abstract No. 14, City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall County, Texas, more fully described in Exhibit ‘A’ and depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this 
ordinance, which hereinafter shall be referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by 
reference herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body 
of the City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of 
the City of Rockwall have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held 
public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally and to all 
persons interested in and situated in the affected area, and in the vicinity thereof, and the 
governing body in the exercise of its legislative discretion, has concluded that Planned 
Development District 50 (PD-50) [Ordinance No. 23-60] and the Unified Development Code 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] should be amended as follows: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1.  That the approval of this ordinance shall supersede all requirements stipulated in 
Ordinance No. 23-60; 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

01
.2

1.
20

25

Page 103 of 142



Z2024-062: Amendment to PD-50 Page | 2 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 25-XX; PD-50 

SECTION 2. That the Subject Property shall be used only in the manner and for the purposes 
authorized by this ordinance and the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the 
City of Rockwall as heretofore amended, as amended herein by granting this zoning change, and 
as maybe amended in the future; 
 
SECTION 3. That the Subject Property shall be developed and/or used only in the manner and 
for the purposes described in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, and unless specifically modified within 
this ordinance the Subject Property shall adhere to all development standards stipulated by the 
Residential Office (RO) District as specified in Subsection 04.02, Residential-Office (RO) District, 
of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 
20-02] as heretofore amended, as amended herein by the granting of this zoning change, and as 
may be amended in the future; 
 
SECTION 4. That the official zoning map of the City of Rockwall, Texas be corrected to reflect the 
change in zoning described here in. 
 
SECTION 5. That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance 
shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of 
fine not to exceed the sum of two thousand dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense and each and 
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense; 
 
SECTION 6. That if any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
that section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any reason 
judged invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of this 
ordinance or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other person, firm, 
corporation or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of 
the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-38], and the City Council declares that it would 
have adopted the valid portions and applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to 
this end the provisions for this ordinance are declared to be severable; 
 
SECTION 7. The standards in this ordinance shall control in the event of a conflict between this 
ordinance and any provision of the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-38] of any 
provision of the City Code, ordinance, resolution, rule, regulation, or procedure that provides a 
specific standard that is different from and inconsistent with this ordinance.  References to zoning 
district regulations or other standards in the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-38] 
(including references to the Unified Development Code), and references to overlay districts, in 
this ordinance or any of the Exhibits hereto are those in effect on the date this ordinance was 
passed and approved by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 3RD DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2025. 
 
 
 
 
 Trace Johannesen, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

01
.2

1.
20

25

Page 104 of 142



Z2024-062: Amendment to PD-50 Page | 3 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 25-XX; PD-50 

 
 
 
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 
 
 
1st Reading: January 21, 2025 
 
2nd Reading: February 3, 2025 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

01
.2

1.
20

25

Page 105 of 142



EXHIBIT ‘A’: 
Legal Description 

Z2024-062: Amendment to PD-50 Page | 4 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 25-XX; PD-50 

BEING 20.58 acres of land situated in Abstract 146, S.S. McCurry Survey; Abstract 14, B.F. 
Boydstun Survey in the County of Rockwall, Texas and being more particularly described by 
metes and bounds as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a point in the northwest corner of Block 32 of the Garner Addition (925 N. Goliad 
Street);  
 
THENCE easterly 211.13’ along the south right of way of Live Oak Street for a corner; 
 
THENCE southerly 598.12’ along the west right of way of Goliad Street (SH-205); 
 
THENCE east 54.44’ across Goliad Street, to the northwest corner of Block 160, Lot 1 of the 
Austin Addition (912 N. Goliad Street); 
 
THENCE east 220’ following the north property line of Block 160, Lot 1 of the Austin Addition (912 
N. Goliad Street); 
 
THENCE southerly 441.42’ following the east property lines of lots fronting Goliad Street to a point 
on the north right of way of Heath Street; 
 
THENCE west 39.54’ along the north right of way of Heath Street; 
 
THENCE southerly following along the east property lines of lots fronting Goliad Street 562.59’ to 
a point being the northwest corner of B.F. Boydston Survey, Block 123, Lot F (604 N Goliad 
Street); 
 
THENCE east 210.09’ along the north property line of said Block 123, Lot F for a corner;  
 
THENCE southerly 289.31’ along the eastern property line of said Block 123, Lot F for a corner; 
 
THENCE southerly 519.9’ following along the east property lines of lots fronting Goliad Street to 
a point being the southeast corner of B.F. Boydston Survey, Block 123, Lot B (406 N. Goliad 
Street); 
 
THENCE west 215.11’ along the south property line of said Block 123, Lot B (406 N. Goliad 
Street) and crossing to a point on the west right of way of Goliad Street; 
 
THENCE southerly 170.59’ following along the west right of way of Goliad Street to a point being 
the southeast corner of Block 17, Lot 15 of the Amick Addition (401-403 N. Goliad Street); 
 
THENCE west 210’ along the south property line of said Block B, Lot 15 of the Amick Addition for 
a corner; 
 
THENCE northerly 101.05’ along the west property line of said Block 17, Lot 15 of the Amick 
Addition;  
 
THENCE easterly 70.83’ along the north property line of Block 17, Lot 15 of the Amick Addition; 
 
THENCE north 170’ along the west property lines of Block 18B, Lot 17 and Block 19C, Lot 21 of 
the Amick Addition; 
 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

01
.2

1.
20

25

Page 106 of 142



EXHIBIT ‘A’: 
Legal Description 

Z2024-062: Amendment to PD-50 Page | 5 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 25-XX; PD-50 

THENCE west 72.99’ along the south property line of Block 19B, Lot 19 of the Amick Addition 
(501½ N. Goliad Street); 
 
THENCE northerly 51.75’ along the west property line of Block 19B, Lot 19 of the Amick Addition 
(501½ N. Goliad Street); 
 
THENCE easterly 97.01’ along the north property line of Block 19B, Lot 19 of the Amick Addition 
(501½ N. Goliad Street); 
 
THENCE northerly 754.05’ following along the west property lines of lots fronting Goliad Street to 
a point in the south property line of Block 23A, Lot 34 of the Amick Addition (803 N. Goliad Street); 
 
THENCE west 115.03’ along the south property line of said Block 23A, Lot 34 of the Amick 
Addition;  
 
THENCE northerly 139.55’ along the east right of way of N. Alamo Road; 
 
THENCE east 99.47’ following along the north property line of Block 24C, Lot 37 of the Amick 
Addition 
(805. N. Goliad Street) to a point; 
 
THENCE northerly 250.95’ following along the west property lines of lots fronting N. Goliad Street 
and crossing to the north right of way of Heath Street for a corner; 
 
THENCE west 70.51’ along the north right of way of Heath Street for a corner;  
 
THENCE northerly 205. 32’ along the east right of way of N. Alamo Road; 
 
THENCE easterly 103.92’ along the south property line of Lot 1 of the Williams Addition; 
 
THENCE northerly 334.45’ following along the west property line of lots fronting Goliad Street to 
a point on the south property line of Block 29 of the Garner Addition (915 N. Goliad Street); 
 
THENCE west 85.69’ along the south property line of Block 29 of the Garner Addition (915 N. 
Goliad Street) to the east right of way of Alamo Street; 
 
THENCE northerly 98.02’ along the east right of way of Alamo Road for a point; 
 
THENCE northerly 108.84’ along the east right of way of Alamo Road for a point; 
 
THENCE easterly 106.9’ along the north property line of Block 29 of the Garner Addition (918 N 
Alamo Road) for a point; 
 
THENCE northerly 104.35’ along the western property line of Block A, Lot 2, of the Rakich Addition 
(919 N. Goliad Street) for a point; 
 
THENCE westerly 16.16’ along the southern property line of Block 32, of the Garner Addition (923 
N. Goliad Street) for a point; 
 
THENCE northerly 99.89’ along the western property line of Block 32, of the Garner Addition (923 
N. Goliad Street) for a point; 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

01
.2

1.
20

25

Page 107 of 142



EXHIBIT ‘A’: 
Legal Description 

Z2024-062: Amendment to PD-50 Page | 6 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 25-XX; PD-50 

THENCE westerly 83.63’ along the southern property line of Block A, Lot 1 of the Issac Pena 
Addition (925 N. Goliad Street) for a point; 
 
THENCE northerly 211.07’ following along the east right of way of Alamo Road to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING containing approximately 20.58-acres (i.e. 896,560.105 SF) of land more or less. 
 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

01
.2

1.
20

25

Page 108 of 142



EXHIBIT ‘B’: 
Location Map 

Z2024-062: Amendment to PD-50 Page | 7 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 25-XX; PD-50 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

01
.2

1.
20

25

Page 109 of 142



EXHIBIT ‘C’: 
District Development Standards 

Z2024-062: Amendment to PD-50 Page | 8 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 25-XX; PD-50 

Development Standards. 
 
(1) Permitted Uses. Unless specifically provided by this Planned Development District ordinance, 

only those land uses permitted within the Residential Office (RO) District, as stipulated by the 
Permissible Use Charts contained in Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development 
Code [Ordinance No. 20-02], are allowed on the Subject Property; however, the following 
additions and conditions shall apply: 

 
(a) Antique/Collectable Sales. The retail sales of antiques and collectables shall be permitted 

through the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) by the City Council; however, such 
use shall be subject to the following conditions: 

 
(1) Antique Sales is defined as the sale of an object having value because of its age, 

especially a domestic item or piece of furniture or handicraft esteemed for its artistry, 
beauty, craftsmanship, or period of origin. 

 
(2) Collectable Sales is defined as the sale of an object that can be collected, or is suitable 

or desirable for collecting by hobbyist, or any of a class of old things (but not antiques) 
that people collect as a hobby. 

 
(3) The sale of new or used clothing and appliances shall be prohibited. 
 
(4) The maximum floor area permitted for Antique/Collectable Sales be limited to 2,000 

square feet. 
 
(5) That individual lease areas within the Antique/Collectable Sales use be prohibited. 
 

(b) Banquet Facility (Event Venue). A banquet facility or event venue shall be permitted 
through the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) by the City Council; however, such 
use shall be subject to the following conditions: 

 
(1) Banquet Facility or Event Venue is defined as a commercial facility that can be rented 

out for the purpose of hosting private events (e.g. birthday parties, wedding receptions, 
meetings, etc.).  These events shall not be open to the general public. 

 
(c) Animal Clinic for Small Animals. An animal clinic for small animals shall be permitted 

through the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) by the City Council; however, such 
use shall be subject to the following conditions. 

 
(1) An Animal Clinic for Small Animals is defined as a place where animals or pets are 

given medical or surgical treatments and care. 
 

(2) The accessory use as a kennel shall be limited to short-term boarding and shall be 
only incidental to the Animal Clinic for Small Animals use. 

 
(3) No outdoor pens or kennels shall be permitted. 
 

(d) General Personal Service. A general personal service shall be as defined in Article 13, 
Definitions, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] and be 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

01
.2

1.
20

25

Page 110 of 142



EXHIBIT ‘C’: 
District Development Standards 

Z2024-062: Amendment to PD-50 Page | 9 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 25-XX; PD-50 

permitted through the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) on a case-by-case basis 
by the City Council. 

 
(e) Church/House of Worship. A church/house of worship shall be as defined in Article 13, 

Definitions, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] and be 
permitted through the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) on a case-by-case basis 
by the City Council. 

 
(2) Cross Access Easements. Joint or shared access shall be required on all adjoining lots if any 

property is used for office development or any other non-residential use permitted by this 
ordinance. 

 
(3) Parking. That all non-residential land uses shall adhere to the following parking requirements: 

 
(a) All parking shall be located behind the front façade of the primary structure and parking 

within the front yard of any property shall be prohibited. 
 

(b) The parking requirements for all uses shall be subject to the requirements stipulated 
by Article VI, Parking and Loading, of the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 
04-38] with the exception of Professional Offices (excluding medical offices) and 
Banquet Facilities.  Professional Offices shall be subject to one (1) parking space per 
500 SF of floor area and Banquet Facilities shall be subject to one (1) parking space 
per 100 SF of floor area.  

 
(c) All drive aisles and parking areas required for the conversion and/or redevelopment of 

existing structures within the Planned Development District shall be paved in concrete.  
An exception for asphalt may be approved by the City Engineer. 

 
(4) Site Plan.  All properties within the Planned Development District shall be subject to site plan 

review prior to changing the use from single-family residential. 
 

(5) Variances.  In the event that unique or extraordinary conditions exist on the property such that 
the applicant cannot comply with the strict interpretation of this ordinance a variance can be 
requested from the City Council. D

R
A

FT
  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

01
.2

1.
20

25

Page 111 of 142



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council    
 

DATE: January 21, 2025 
 

APPLICANT: Inocencio Barron 
 

CASE NUMBER: Z2024-064; Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision at 
178 Lynne Drive  

 

 

SUMMARY 
 
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Inocencio Barron on behalf of Ariel Palacios for the approval of a 
Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision on a 0.1650-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 
910-A0 of Rockwall Lake Estates #2 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 
75 (PD-75) for Single Family 7 (SF-7) District, addressed as 178 Lynne Drive, and take any action necessary. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The subject property was originally platted as Lot 910-A with the Rockwall Lake Properties Development No. 2 Addition, which 
was filed with Rockwall County on April 23, 1968.  On February 17, 2009, the subject property -- along with the rest of the Lake 
Rockwall Estates Subdivision -- was annexed into the City of Rockwall by Ordinance No. 09-07.  On September 21, 2009, the 
City Council rezoned the Lake Rockwall Estates Subdivision from an Agricultural (AG) District to Planned Development District 
75 (PD-75) [Ordinance No. 09-37] for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District land uses.  On January 4, 2016, the City Council amended 
Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) with Ordinance No. 16-01, which made changes to the Consideration of a Special 
Request section of the ordinance. At the time of annexation, there was a 1,064 SF mobile home situated on the subject property; 
however, based on the City’s aerial images this structure was removed between 2023-2024.  The subject property is currently 
vacant.  
 
PURPOSE 
 
The applicant -- Inocencio Barron -- is requesting the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an 
Established Subdivision for the purpose of constructing a single-family home on the subject property in accordance with 
Subsection 02.03(B)(11), Residential Infill in or Adjacent to an Established Subdivision, of Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the 
Unified Development Code (UDC).. 
 
ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS 
 
The subject property is located at 178 Lynne Drive.  The land uses adjacent to the subject property are as follows: 

 
North: Directly north of the subject property are multiple lots zoned Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) for Single-

Family 7 (SF-7) District land uses.  These properties are mostly developed with mobile/manufactured homes, with 
some of the lots being developed with single-family homes.  Beyond this is Evans Road, which is classified as a R2 
(residential, two [2] lane, undivided roadway) on the Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown 
Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan. 

 
South: Directly south of the subject property are four (4) parcels of land (i.e. 124, 144, 154, and 164 Lynne Drive), which 

are developed with manufactured homes, a single-family home, and one (1) that is a vacant lot. Beyond this is 
County Line Road, which is classified as a Minor Collector on the Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the 
OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan. South of this is 3.5449-acre parcel of land (i.e. 505 County Line 

Page 112 of 142



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

Road) developed with a commercial business (i.e. Big League Sports Academy, Inc.) that is zoned Commercial (C) 
District. 

 
East: Directly east of the subject property is Lynne Drive, which is classified as a R2 (residential, two [2] lane, undivided 

roadway) on the Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan. 
Beyond this is a vacant lot (i.e. 179 Lynne Drive) and one (1) parcel of land (i.e. 166 Chris Drive) that is developed 
with a mobile/manufactured home. Both of these lots are zoned Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) for Single-
Family 7 (SF-7) District land uses. East of this is Chris Drive, which is classified as a R2 (residential, two [2] lane, 
undivided roadway) on the Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive 
Plan.   

 
West: Directly west of the subject property are multiple parcels of land that are developed with mobile/manufactured 

homes, and that are zoned Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District land uses. 
Beyond this is Blanche Drive, which is classified as a R2 (residential, two [2] lane, undivided roadway) on the Master 
Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan. West of this are multiple 
lots zoned Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District land uses. These properties 
are mostly developed with mobile/manufactured homes, with some of the lots being developed with single-family 
homes.   

 
CHARACTERISTICS OF THE REQUEST AND CONFORMANCE TO THE CITY’S CODES 
 
Article 13, Definitions, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) defines Residential Infill in or Adjacent to an Established 
Subdivision as “(t)he new development of a single-family home or duplex on an existing vacant or undeveloped parcel of land 
or the redevelopment of a developed parcel of land for a new single-family home or duplex within an established subdivision 
that is mostly or entirely built-out.”  An established subdivision is further defined in Subsection 02.03(B)(11) of Article 04, 
Permissible Uses, of the UDC as “…a subdivision that consists of five (5) or more lots, that is 90% developed, and that has 
been in existence for more than ten (10) years.”  The subject property is part of the Lake Rockwall Estates Subdivision, which 
has been in existence since before 1968 and is considered to be more than 90.00% developed.  The Permissible Use Charts 
contained in Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the UDC, requires a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in or Adjacent 
to an Established Subdivision in all single-family zoning districts, the Two-Family (2F) District, the Downtown (DT) District, and 
the Residential-Office (RO) District.  This property, being in a Planned Development District for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District 
land uses, requires a Specific Use Permit (SUP). 
 
In addition, Subsection 02.03(B)(11) of Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the UDC states that, “…the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and City Council shall consider the proposed size, location, and architecture of the home compared to the existing 
housing … [and] (a)ll housing proposed under this section [i.e. Residential Infill in or Adjacent to an Established Subdivision] 
shall be constructed to be architecturally and visually similar or complimentary to the existing housing …”  The following is a 
summary of observations concerning the housing on Lynne Drive compared to the house proposed by the applicant: 
 

Housing Design and 
Characteristics 

Existing Housing on Lynne Drive Proposed Housing 

Building Height One (1) Story and Two (2) Story One (1) Story  
Building Orientation All of the homes face Lynne Drive. The front elevation of the home will face onto Lynne 

Drive. 
Year Built 1974-2019 N/A 
Building SF on Property 1,024 SF – 3,186 SF 1,590 SF  
Building Architecture Majority Modular Homes, One (1) Single-Family 

Home, and Two (2) Vacant lots. 
Comparable Architecture to Newer Single-Family 
Homes 

Building Setbacks:   
Front The front yard setbacks appear to conform to the 

required 20-foot yard setback.  
30-Feet 

Side The side yard setbacks appear to conform to the 
required five (5) foot setback.  

10-Feet 

Rear The rear yard setbacks appear to conform to the ten 
(10) feet rear yard setback.  

34.6-Feet  

Building Materials Metal, Modular Paneling, Masonite Siding, Brick, 
and Stone.  

Hardie Board Siding and Brick 

Page 113 of 142



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 3 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

Paint and Color Blue, Tan, Red, White, Brown Undefined by the Applicant 
Roofs Composite Shingles and Metal  Asphalt Composite Shingle 
Driveways/Garages No Garages or Carports The garage will be a front entry garage with the 

driveway facing onto Lynne Drive. 

 

According to Section 04, Residential Parking, of Article 06, Parking and Loading, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), “(i)n 
single-family or duplex districts, parking garages must be located at least 20-feet behind the front façade for front entry garages 
…”  In this case, the applicant is proposing to put the garage approximately four (4) feet in front of the front façade of the single-
family home, and if approved the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will be waiving this requirement.  Staff 
should note that this waiver has been approved in the Lake Rockwall Estates Subdivision in the past. In addition, “…a building 
with less than 80% standard masonry construction or which utilizes an excess of 50% cementitious material shall require 
approval by the City Council in accordance with Section 3.C, Consideration of a Special Request, of this Ordinance.” In this 
case, the proposed home does not meet the requirement for exterior materials. Specifically, the proposed home exceeds the 
maximum amount of cementitious material by 32.00%. With this being said, there are other examples of newer homes in the 
subdivision that exceed the cementitious material requirements; however, this and the request to deviate the garage orientation 
standards remain a discretionary decision for the City Council pending a recommendation from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission.  For the purpose of comparing the proposed home to the existing single-family housing located adjacent to or in 
the vicinity of the subject property, staff has provided photos of the properties along Lynne Drive and the proposed building 
elevations in the attached packet.  
 
NOTIFICATIONS 
 
On December 18, 2024, staff mailed 158 notices to property owners and occupants within 500-feet of the subject property.  
There are no Homeowner Associations (HOAs) or Neighborhood Organizations within 1,500-feet of the subject property 
participating in the Neighborhood Notification Program to notify.  Additionally, staff posted a sign on the subject property, and 
advertised the public hearings in the Rockwall Herald Banner as required by the Unified Development Code (UDC).  At the time 
this report was drafted, staff had received one (1) notice in opposition of the applicant’s request.  
 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If City Council chooses to approve of the applicant’s request for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to construct a single-family home 
as a Residential Infill within an Established Subdivision, then staff would propose the following conditions of approval: 
 
(1) The applicant shall be responsible for maintaining compliance with the operational conditions contained in the Specific Use 

Permit (SUP) ordinance and which are detailed as follows: 
 

(a) Development of the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Residential Plot Plan as depicted in Exhibit ‘A’ of 
the draft ordinance. 
 

(b) Construction of a single-family home on the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Building Elevations 
depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of the draft ordinance.  
 

(c) The subject property shall be replatted prior to the issuance of a Building Permit; and,    
 

(d) Once construction of the single-family home has been completed, inspected, and accepted by the City, the Specific 
Use Permit (SUP) shall expire, and no further action by the property owner shall be required.  

 
(2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall conform to the requirements set forth 

by the Unified Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of 
Ordinances, city adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered 
and/or enforced by the state and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On January 14, 2025, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the Specific Use 
Permit (SUP) by a vote of 7-0.  

Page 114 of 142



Page 115 of 142



Page 116 of 142



Page 117 of 142



Page 118 of 142



RESIDENT 
109  BLANCHE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

SALAS ALBERTO R & ADELA A 
109 VALERIE PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
112  CHRIS DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

GAMBOA SOCORRO 
114 W RIDGEWOOD DR  

GARLAND, TX 75041 
 

 

CANIZALES ELIDA VILLAREAL 
115 CHRIS DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
118  BLANCHE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

RESIDENT 
120  BLANCHE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

HPA CL1 LLC 
120 S RIVERSIDE PLZ STE 2000  

CHICAGO, IL 60606 
 

 

OLIVARES JAIME 
1209 QUAIL DR  

GARLAND, TX 75040 
 

RESIDENT 
121  LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

FERNANDEZ URBANO 
1235 VZ CR3425  

WILLS POINT, TX 75169 
 

 

RESIDENT 
124  LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

MCDONNELL BRANDON THOMAS 
124 CHRIS DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RANGEL ADELA 
125 CHRIS DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

NORTON ANA ESTELA & MITCHELL EVERETT 
NORTON 

130 CHRIS DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

RESIDENT 
131  LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
132  BLANCHE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

HERNANDEZ SONIA BETANCOURT 
134 YVONNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

TORRES DESTINY MARY 
134 YVONNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
137  VALERIE PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

SANCHEZ ROSA & 
ISMAEL PALACIOS 

140 CHRIS DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

HOLGUIN CECILIA 
140 YVONNE DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

HOLGUIN CECILIA 
140 YVONNE DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
143  LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

RESIDENT 
144  BLANCHE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
144  LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

BETETA RUTH E 
1452 GREENBROOK DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

ALMARAZ JUAN V DIAZ 
147 CHRIS LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

VALDEZ MARY ESTHER 
148 VALERIE PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
149  VALERIE PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

Page 119 of 142



VARGAS RICARDO 
149 BLANCHE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

VARGAS RICARDO 
149 BLANCHE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
150  CHRIS DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

LUU LONG MINH AND THUC-UYEN THI LE AND 
DUY THANH PHAM 

154 LYNNE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

VAZQUEZ RAMON LOPEZ 
156 BLANCHE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
157  LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

RESIDENT 
159  CHRIS DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

TEPOX FABIOLA DOMINGUEZ 
159 VALERIE PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

DURAN ROCIO 
160 VALERIE PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

ZAVALA HUMBERTO & IMELDA 
160 YVONNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

VARGAS RICARDO 
163 BLANCHE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

HERNANDEZ JOSE O AND MIRIAM G SALAZAR 
AND 

JESUS HERNANDEZ SALAZAR 
164 LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

LOREDO SUSANA 
166 CHRIS DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

CHEPETLA ANTHONY 
167 LYNNE DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
168  BLANCHE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

RESIDENT 
168  VALERIE PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

ZALOMANTE LLC 
1690 LYNN LN  

LUCAS, TX 75002 
 

 

COLIN JOSE ENRIQUE OSORNIO 
171 CRAWFORD LN  

ROYSE CITY, TX 75189 
 

RESIDENT 
172  VALERIE PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

CARRILLO JORGE 
173 CHRIS DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

TONG VINCENT 
174 SUNRAY CREEK DR  

KATY, TX 77493 
 

TONG VINCENT HIEU AND 
TIFFANY PHU 

174 SUNRAY CREEK DR  
KATY, TX 77493 

 

 

LOC PHU AND VINCENT TONG 
174 SUNRAY CREEK DR  

KATY, TX 77493 
 

 

RESIDENT 
175  VALERIE PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

CASTANEDA NOE A 
175 BLANCHE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
178  BLANCHE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
178  VALERIE PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

PALACIOS ARIEL 
178 LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
179  LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
180  YVONNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

Page 120 of 142



JIMENEZ ALMA RODRIGUEZ 
181 CHRIS DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
185  BLANCHE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

ESQUIVEL ZAIDA 
186 CHRIS DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

RESIDENT 
187  VALERIE PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RETANA JOSE L 
187 LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

ALVAREZ FRANCISCO J 
190 BLANCHE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

SANCHEZ ALEJANDRO & 
KARLA CAMACHO 
190 YVONNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
192  LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

JIMENEZ HERIBERTO FERRER AND 
CRISTINA MORENO SALAZAR 

192 VALERIE PLACE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

RESIDENT 
193  CHRIS DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

GARCIA JOSE 
195 BLANCHE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
196  CHRIS DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

MELENDEZ HOPE 
199 DIANA DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

CANADY JERRY ANN 
199 VALERIE PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

CANADY JERRY ANN 
199 VALERIE PLACE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

MOONEY GERALD M & JEWELL F REV LIV TR 
2 BROWNWOOD  

LONGVIEW, TX 75602 
 

 

ARROYO MARGARITO & 
LUCIA ARROYO-ESPINOSA 

202 BLANCHE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

TOVAR JUAN GABRIEL 
202 VALERIE PLACE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

RESIDENT 
203  CHRIS DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

UNDERWOOD TAMMY M AND 
CAITLIN A DAVIS-WILSON 

203 LYNNE DRIVE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

UNDERWOOD TAMMY M AND 
CAITLIN A DAVIS-WILSON 

203 LYNNE DRIVE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

RESIDENT 
204  LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
204  YVONNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

TORRES JAIME AND BERNICE 
204 CHRIS DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

RESIDENT 
209  VALERIE PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

URBINA ARACELI C 
209 BLANCHE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
210  YVONNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

CRUZ MARIA D AND IGNACIO D 
212 LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

GALLEGOS JOSE GUADALUPE 
212 LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RICO RUIZ CARLOS AND MARIA 
212 VALERIE PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

Page 121 of 142



BALDERAS JOSE C GARCIA & ERIKA MARTINEZ 
PEREZ 

213 CHRIS DRIVE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

RESIDENT 
214  BLANCHE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
215  LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

RESIDENT 
216  CHRIS DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
219  BLANCHE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RUIZ JOSE C 
219 VALERIE PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

CARMONA JOEL 
221 NICOLE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

MAZARIEGOS ROMULO AND ESTELA 
224 YVONNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

CASTILLO CELIA GURRUSQUIETA 
225 LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

RESIDENT 
226  BLANCHE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

GUADALUPE JOSE AND 
ANGELA ANN GUTIERREZ 

229 BLANCHE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

GUTIERREZ JOSE G & ANGELA A 
229 BLANCHE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

SCHULKE VANESSA AND ANTHONY FRESQUEZ 
229 VALERIE PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

YANEZ MARIA TERESA 
230 CHRIS DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

PEREZ FERMIN 
230 LYNN DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

HERNANDEZ GUILLERMINA 
231 CHRIS DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
234  BLANCHE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

CARMONA MARTIN SALVADOR 
235 LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

RAMIREZ MARTHA E 
235 LYNNE DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
242  CHRIS DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RODRIGUEZ ALMA R 
242 CHRIS DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

RESIDENT 
247  BLANCHE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

GUARDIOLA GUADALUPE J 
247 CHRIS DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

CARMONA EVELIA 
249 LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

MARTINEZ CARLOS ALONZO 
252 CHRIS DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
254  LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
262  CHRIS DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

SALAZAR-CARMONA MIRIAM GUADALUPE 
263 LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
265  BLANCHE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
266  LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

Page 122 of 142



RESIDENT 
273  LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
276  LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
281  BLANCHE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

RESIDENT 
283  LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
288  LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

FRANCO RODOLFO & 
CARMEN FRANCO 

291 SMITH ACRES DR  
ROYSE CITY, TX 75189 

 

QUEVEDO OSCAR F 
293 YVONNE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RANCH TRAIL VENTURES LLC 
315 RANCH TRAIL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

MAZARIEGOS EDGAR & SONIA I 
3248 BLACKLAND RD  
ROYSE CITY, TX 75189 

 

PALICIOS MARIA 
365 LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RESIDENT 
382  RANCH TRL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
385 S GOLIAD ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ATTN;MARY SMITH 

385 S GOLIAD ST  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

CARMONA JOSE ROBERTO & 
MARIA BLANCA RESENDIZ 

397 CHRIS DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

RESIDENT 
405  RANCH TRL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

MENDOZA ERICK CRUZ 
4100 ANDYS LANE  
PARKER, TX 75002 

 

 

RENOVATION SPECIALIST LLC 
411 CHRIST DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

MBA CUSTOM HOMES LLC 
430 RENEE DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

CORDOVA JUAN JOSE RANGEL 
4427 FM 550  

ROYSE CITY, TX 75189 
 

 

RANGEL JUAN 
4427 FM 550  

ROYSE CITY, TX 75187 
 

 

RONQUILLO ALMA DELIA 
444 EVA PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

LICEA JOSE DELFINO 
448 LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

DIAZ JOSE LUIS 
494 LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

DIAZ JOSE LUIS 
494 LYNNE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

RESIDENT 
505  COUNTY LINE RD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

BIG LEAGUE SPORTS ACADEMY INC 
5508 FOREST LANE  
DALLAS, TX 75230 

 

 

GARCIA MARTIN 
590 SUN VALLEY DR  

ROYSE CITY, TX 75189 
 

FLORES DAYANARA & 
JAMES GLEASON 
611 MEADOW DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

GUTIERREZ DONATILO & BLANCA 
6514 BUNKER HILL CT  
ROWLETT, TX 75089 

 

 

GUEVARA JOSE 
6938 STATE HIGHWAY 50  

COMMERCE, TX 75428 
 

Page 123 of 142



ROCKWALL HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION 
787 HAIL DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

GUEVARA CARLOS & MONICA A 
802 N ALAMO RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PAVON MARISOL 
810 E. DOUGHERTY DR  

GARLAND, TX 75041 
 

SALAS HECTOR JABIER & CAROLINA ORTIZ 
921 W YELLOWJACKET LANE APT 105  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

    

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

Page 124 of 142



PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

 

CITY OF ROCKWALL ● PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT ● 385 S. GOLIAD STREET ● ROCKWALL, TEXAS 75087 ● P: (972) 771 -7745 ● E: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

CITY OF ROCKWALL                                         
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 
EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 
Property Owner and/or Resident of the City of Rockwall: 
 
You are hereby notified that the City of Rockwall Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will consider the following application: 
 
Z2024-064: SUP for Residential Infill 
 
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Inocencio Barron on behalf of Ariel Palacios for the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for 
Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision on a 0.1650-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 910-A0 of Rockwall Lake Estates #2 Addition, City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) for Single Family 7 (SF-7) District, addressed as 178 Lynne Drive, and take any action 
necessary. 

 
For the purpose of considering the effects of such a request, the Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, January 14, 2025 at 6:00 
PM, and the City Council will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, January 21 2025 at 6:00 PM. These hearings will be held in the City Council Chambers at City Hall, 
385 S. Goliad Street.  
 

As an interested property owner, you are invited to attend these meetings.  If you prefer to express your thoughts in writing please return the form to: 
 

Angelica Guevara 
Rockwall Planning and Zoning Dept. 

385 S. Goliad Street 
Rockwall, TX 75087 

 
You may also email your comments to the Planning Department at planning@rockwall.com.  If you choose to email the Planning Department please include your 
name and address for identification purposes.   
 
Your comments must be received by Tuesday, January 21 2025 at 4:00 PM to ensure they are included in the information provided to the City Council. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Ryan Miller, AICP 
Director of Planning & Zoning 

 
MORE INFORMATION ON THIS CASE CAN BE FOUND AT: https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development-cases 

 
PLEASE RETURN THE BELOW FORM 

 
Case No. Z2024-064: SUP for Residential Infill 
 
Please place a check mark on the appropriate line below:  
 

 I am in favor of the request for the reasons listed below.         
 

 I am opposed to the request for the reasons listed below.  
 

 

 

 

 

Name:  

Address:  

 

Tex. Loc. Gov. Code, Sec. 211.006 (d) If a proposed change to a regulation or boundary is protested in accordance with this subsection, the proposed change must receive, in 
order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all members of the governing body.  The protest must be written and signed by the owners of at least 20 
percent of either: (1) the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or (2) the area of the lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed 
change and extending 200 feet from that area. 
 

PLEASE SEE LOCATION MAP OF SUBJECT PROPERTY ON THE BACK OF THIS NOTICE 

Page 125 of 142

mailto:planning@rockwall.com


ZONING & SPECIFIC USE PERMIT 
INFORMATION FORM 

 

 

CITY OF ROCKWALL ● PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT ● 385 S. GOLIAD STREET ● ROCKWALL, TEXAS 75087 ● P: (972) 771-7745 ● E: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

CITY OF ROCKWALL                                        
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT
PHONE: (972) 771-7745
EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM

 
CASE NUMBER Z2024-064 
  
PLEASE PLACE A CHECK MARK ON THE APPROPRIATE LINE BELOW. 

☐  I am in favor of the request 

☑  I am in opposition of the request 

 
NAME Alicia  Tamez 
 
ADDRESS 105 Ashe Bend Dr, Rockwall, TX, 75087, USA 
 
PLEASE PROVIDE ANY ADDITIONAL INFORMATION CONCERNING YOUR SUPPORT OR OPPOSITION TO THE REQUEST. 

There is not enough infrastructure for more traffic as will arise from more homes. 
 
PLEASE CHECK ALL THAT APPLY. 

☐  I live nearby the proposed Zoning or Specific Use Permit (SUP) request. 

☐  I work nearby the proposed Zoning or Specific Use Permit (SUP) request. 

☐  I own property nearby the proposed Zoning or Specific Use Permit (SUP) request. 

☐  I own a business nearby the proposed Zoning or Specific Use Permit (SUP) request. 

☐  Other: All of my commerce and business, as well as doctor appointments, etc are in Rockwall 
 
HOW DID YOU HEAR ABOUT THIS ZONING OR SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) REQUEST? 

☐  I received a property owner notification in the mail 

☐  I read about the request on the City's website 

☐  I saw a zoning sign on the property 

☐  I read about the request in the Rockwall Herald Banner 

☑  My neighbors told me about the request 

☐  Other:  
 

Page 126 of 142



Page 127 of 142



Page 128 of 142



Page 129 of 142



Page 130 of 142



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
HOUSING ANALYSIS FOR CASE NO. Z2024-064 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 
 

 

 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

  

ADJACENT HOUSING ATTRIBUTES

ADDRESS HOUSING TYPE YEAR BUILT HOUSE SF ACCESSORY BUILDING EXTERIOR MATERIALS

121 Lynne Drive Vacant N/A N/A N/A N/A

143 Lynne Drive Modular Home 2019 1,952 N/A Siding 

144 Lynne Drive Modular Home 1980 1,788 740 Siding 

157 Lynne Drive Modular Home 1980 1,024 N/A Siding 

164 Lynne Drive Single-Family Home 2004 3,186 N/A Brick and Stone

167 Lynne Drive Single-Family Home 2017 1,700 192 Brick and Stone

178 Lynne Drive Modular Home 1974 1,976 312 Siding 

179 Lynne Drive Vacant N/A N/A 100 N/A

187 Lynne Drive Modular Home 1980 1,064 400 Siding 

192 Lynne Drive Modular Home 1982 1,064 320 Siding 

1992 1,719 344AVERAGES:

Page 131 of 142

mailto:PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM


CITY OF ROCKWALL 
HOUSING ANALYSIS FOR CASE NO. Z2024-064 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 
 

 

 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

 
121 Lynne Drive    

 
143 Lynne Drive       

Page 132 of 142

mailto:PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM


CITY OF ROCKWALL 
HOUSING ANALYSIS FOR CASE NO. Z2024-064 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 
 

 

 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 3 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

 
144 Lynne Drive       

157 Lynne Drive   

Page 133 of 142

mailto:PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM


CITY OF ROCKWALL 
HOUSING ANALYSIS FOR CASE NO. Z2024-064 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 
 

 

 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 4 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

 
164 Lynne Drive 

167 Lynne Drive     

Page 134 of 142

mailto:PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM


CITY OF ROCKWALL 
HOUSING ANALYSIS FOR CASE NO. Z2024-064 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 
 

 

 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 5 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

  
178 Lynne Drive    

 
179 Lynne Drive  

Page 135 of 142

mailto:PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM


CITY OF ROCKWALL 
HOUSING ANALYSIS FOR CASE NO. Z2024-064 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 
 

 

 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 6 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

 
187 Lynne Drive  

 
192 Lynne Drive   
 
  

Page 136 of 142

mailto:PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM


Z2024-064: SUP for 178 Lynne Drive Page | 1 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 25-XX; SUP # S-3XX 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 

ORDINANCE NO. 25-XX 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-3XX 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 75 (PD-75) [ORDINANCE NO. 16-01] AND THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE 
CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS 
PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE 
PERMIT (SUP) FOR RESIDENTIAL INFILL IN AN ESTABLISHED 
SUBDIVISION TO ALLOW THE CONSTRUCTION OF A SINGLE-
FAMILY HOME ON A 0.1650-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND, 
IDENTIFIED AS LOT 910-A0 OF THE ROCKWALL LAKE ESTATES 
#2 ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, 
TEXAS; AND MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED 
IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL 
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO 
EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) 
FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City has received a request by Inocencio Barron on behalf of Ariel Palacios for 
the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision for 
the purpose of constructing a single-family home on a 0.1650-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 
910-A0 of the Rockwall Lake Estates #2 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas,
zoned Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District land uses,
addressed as 178 Lynne Drive, and being more specifically described and depicted in Exhibit ‘A’
of this ordinance, which herein after shall be referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated
by reference herein; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body of 
the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the 
City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public 
hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all persons 
interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing body in the 
exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) 
[Ordinance No. 16-01] and the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the 
City of Rockwall should be amended as follows: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 

SECTION 1. That Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) [Ordinance No. 16-01] and the 
Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall, as heretofore 
amended, be and the same is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for 
Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision to allow for the construction of a single-family home 
in an established subdivision in accordance with Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] on the Subject Property; and, 

D
R

A
FT

 
O

R
D

IN
A

N
C

E 

01
.2

1.
20

25

Page 137 of 142



Z2024-064: SUP for 178 Lynne Drive Page | 2 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 25-XX; SUP # S-3XX 

SECTION 2. That the Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall be subject to the requirements set forth in 
Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) [Ordinance No. 16-01] and Subsection 03.01, General 
Residential District Standards, and Subsection 03.09, Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District, of Article 
05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-
02] -- as heretofore amended and may be amended in the future -- and with the following 
conditions: 
 
2.1 OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS 
 

The following conditions pertain to the construction of a single-family home on the Subject 
Property and conformance to these operational conditions are required: 

 

1) The development of the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Residential Plot Plan 
as depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance. 

 

2) The construction of a single-family home on the Subject Property shall generally conform to 
the Building Elevations depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance. 

 

3) The subject property shall be replatted prior to the issuance of a Building Permit.  
 

4) Once construction of the single-family home has been completed, inspected, and accepted 
by the City of Rockwall, this Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall expire, and no further action by 
the property owner shall be required. 

 
 
2.2 COMPLIANCE 
 
Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Subsection 02.02, Specific Use Permits (SUP) of 
Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) will require the Subject Property to comply with the following: 
 
1) Upon obtaining a Building Permit, should the contractor operating under the guidelines of this 

ordinance fail to meet the minimum operational requirements set forth herein and outlined in 
the Unified Development Code (UDC), the City may (after proper notice) initiate proceedings 
to revoke the Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance with Subsection 02.02(F), Revocation, 
of Article 11, Development Applications and Revision Procedures, of the Unified Development 
Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02]. 

 
SECTION 3.  That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning 
described herein. 

 
SECTION 4. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict. 

 
SECTION 5. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall 
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine not 
to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and 
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 

 
SECTION 6. If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or 
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged invalid, 
the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance, and 

D
R

A
FT

 
O

R
D

IN
A

N
C

E 

01
.2

1.
20

25

Page 138 of 142



Z2024-064: SUP for 178 Lynne Drive Page | 3 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 25-XX; SUP # S-3XX 

the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the 
ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full 
force and effect. 
 

SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 3rd DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2025. 
 
 
 
     

 Trace Johannesen, Mayor 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 
 

 
1st Reading:  January 21, 2025 
 

2nd Reading: February 3, 2025 D
R

A
FT

 
O

R
D

IN
A

N
C

E 

01
.2

1.
20

25

Page 139 of 142



  Exhibit ‘A’: 
Location Map  

Z2024-064: SUP for 178 Lynne Drive Page | 4 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 25-XX; SUP # S-3XX 

Address: 178 Lynne Drive  
 

Legal Description: Lot 910-A of the Rockwall Lake Estates #2 Addition 
 

D
R

A
FT

 
O

R
D

IN
A

N
C

E 

01
.2

1.
20

25

Page 140 of 142



  Exhibit ‘B’: 
Residential Plot Plan  

Z2024-064: SUP for 178 Lynne Drive Page | 5 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 25-XX; SUP # S-3XX 

 
D

R
A

FT
 

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

01
.2

1.
20

25

Page 141 of 142



Exhibit ‘C’: 
Building Elevations   

Z2024-064: SUP for 178 Lynne Drive Page | 6 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 25-XX; SUP # S-3XX 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D
R

A
FT

 
O

R
D

IN
A

N
C

E 

01
.2

1.
20

25

Page 142 of 142


	I. Call Public Meeting to Order
	II. Executive Session
	1. Discussion regarding possible terms of agreement of possible grant for improvements to municipal park, pursuant to Section 551.071 (Attorney consultation).
	2. Discussion regarding (re)appointments to city regulatory boards and commissions, pursuant to §551.074 (Personnel Matters).

	III. Adjourn Executive Session
	IV. Reconvene Public Meeting (6:00 P.M.)
	V. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance - Councilmember Thomas
	VI. Proclamations / Awards / Recognitions
	1. Food For Kids Day (Kiwanis) Proclamation
	Kiwanis Food 4 Kids Day_01-21-25


	VII. Appointment Items
	1. Appointment with Planning & Zoning Commission representative to discuss and answer any questions regarding planning-related cases on the agenda.

	VIII. Open Forum
	IX. Take Any Action as a Result of Executive Session
	X. Consent Agenda
	1. Consider approval of the minutes from the Jan. 6, 2025 city council meeting, and take any action necessary.
	01-06-25 CC Mtg Minutes

	2. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute this contract renewal option with SLM Landscaping for a period of one-year for the new 2025-2026 projected cost in the amount of $676,651.04 to be funded by the Parks Operations budget, and take any action necessary.
	Large Contract 2025
	SLM Grounds Maint Services contract renewal 2024 1 OF 3
	Prof Services Contract_SLM Landscaping
	LARGE GROUND MAINT_ 2025

	3. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a one-year contract with three 1-year renewal options with North Texas Baseball Association to host Fall and Spring baseball tournaments at Leon Tuttle Athletic Complex, and take any action necessary.
	North Texas Baseball Association Tournaments 2025
	Acord Certificate of Insurance

	4. P2024-042 - Consider a request by Brian Cramer of CCD – Rockwall, LLC for the approval of a Preliminary Plat for the Southside Hills Subdivision consisting of 384 single-family residential lots on a 262.94-acre tract of land identified as Tracts 17-13, 17-14, 17-15, 17-16, & 40-8 of the W. W. Ford Survey, Abstract No. 80, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 99 (PD-99) for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) and limited General Retail (GR) District land uses, located on the east side of SH-205 [S. Goliad Street] south of the intersection of SH-205 and FM-549, and take any action necessary.
	Case Memo
	Development Application
	Location Map
	Preliminary Plat
	Preliminary Drainage Plan
	Preliminary Utility Plan
	Preliminary Landscape Plan
	Survey

	5. P2024-043 - Consider a request by Brian Cramer of CCD – Rockwall, LLC for the approval of a Master Plat for the Southside Hills Subdivision consisting of 384 single-family residential lots on a 262.94-acre tract of land identified as Tracts 17-13, 17-14, 17-15, 17-16, & 40-8 of the W. W. Ford Survey, Abstract No. 80, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 99 (PD-99) for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) and limited General Retail (GR) District land uses, located on the east side of SH-205 [S. Goliad Street] south of the intersection of SH-205 and FM-549, and take any action necessary.
	Case Memo
	Development Application
	Location Map
	Master Plat


	XI. Public Hearing Items
	1. Z2024-061 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Adam Buczek of the Skorburg Company on behalf of Dr. Karl Erwin of the Estate of Karl W. Erwin for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Planned Development District for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District land uses on a 101.43-acre tract of land identified as Tract 4 of the J. M. Gass Survey, Abstract No. 88, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas zoned Agricultural (AG) District, generally located on the southside of North Country Lane east of the intersection of North Country Lane and FM-1141, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).
	Memorandum

	2. Z2024-062 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Tzemach Moshe Kalmenson for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change amending Planned Development District 50 (PD-50) [Ordinance No. 23-60] to incorporate an additional 0.2010-acre parcel of land and amend the land uses for the purpose of allowing the House of Worship land use by Specific Use Permit (SUP) within the district being a 21.467-acre tract of land situated within the S. S. McCurry Survey, Abstract No. 146 and B. F. Boydston Survey, Abstract No. 14, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 50 (PD-50) for Residential-Office (RO) District land uses and Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District, situated within the North Goliad Corridor Overlay (NGC OV) District, generally located along N. Goliad Street [SH-205] north of Olive Street and south of Live Oak Street, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).
	Memorandum
	Development Application
	Location Map
	HOA Notification Map
	Neighborhood Notification Email
	Property Owner Notification Map
	Property Owner Notification List
	Public Notice
	Property Owner Notifications
	Applicant's Letter
	Applicant's Concept Plan
	PD-50 (Ordinance No. 23-60)
	Draft Ordinance

	3. Z2024-064 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Inocencio Barron on behalf of Ariel Palacios for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision on a 0.1650-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 910-A0 of Rockwall Lake Estates #2 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) for Single Family 7 (SF-7) District, addressed as 178 Lynne Drive, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).
	Case Memo
	Development Application
	Location Map
	HOA Notification Map
	Property Owner Notification Map
	Property Owner Notification List
	Public Notice
	Property Owner Notifications
	Residential Plot Plan
	Building Elevations
	Floor Plan
	Housing Analysis
	Draft Ordinance


	XII. Adjournment



